
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                             June 11, 2019 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a card from the Board Clerk and 
indicate each item you would like to discuss.  Return the completed card to the Board Clerk before the Board considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be 
allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it.  
 
Any member of the public may also make comments during the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Board of Supervisors or 
County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period. 

Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed fewer than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 
June 11, 2019                  

  
8:30 a.m. 1.   PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

2. 
 
CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6] – 
Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law 
Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated 
representatives – Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, Deputy 
Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health and Human Services Director 
Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 
 

OPEN SESSION  (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order 
during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 
  
10:00 a.m. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

 
 4. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
 5. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)  

 
 6. INTRODUCTIONS – Jacob Trauscht, Assistant Civil Engineer, Public Works; and Dana 

Grevenkamp, Research Assistant, Water Department. 
 

DEPARTMENTAL – PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
  

7. PUBLIC WORKS – Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: 
A) the availability of funding for one (1) Building and Maintenance Worker I-II exists in the Building and 
Maintenance Budget, as certified by the Public Works Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the 
position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more 
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) authorize the hiring of one (1) Building and 
Maintenance Worker I, Range 56 ($3,292 - $3,994), or II at Range 60 ($3,612 - $4,387), depending upon 
qualifications.  
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                             June 11, 2019 

 CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  
  

 
8. 

CLERK OF THE BOARD  
 
Request Board approve an amendment to the April 16, 2019 minutes and a corresponding 
Board Order to reflect that the approved Advertising County Resources payments to the 
Friends of the Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery/Independence Fishing Derby, Inc. and Lone Pine 
Chamber of Commerce were to come from the 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 Fiscal Year budgets, 
respectively. 
 

  
 

9. 
 
 
 

10. 
 
 
 
 

11. 
 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
Advertising County Resources – Request Board approve a blanket purchase order in the 
amount of $12,360 payable to Inverted Life LLC to create video content for the Inyo County 
Economic Development Experience Video Project. 
 
Advertising County Resources – Request Board approve the following final payments from 
the 2018-19 Fiscal Year Advertising County Resources Budget: $1,875 to the Bishop Area 
Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau for the 2019 Blake Jones Trout Derby, and $3,303 
to the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce for the 2019 Wild Wild West Marathon. 
 
Personnel – Request Board grant the employee leave-of-absence-without-pay request from 
June 11, 2019 through September 10, 2019, in accordance with Article X, Leaves, 10.4(a) of 
the Inyo County Personnel Rules and Regulations. 
 

  
 

12. 
 
 
 
 
 

13. 

PLANNING 
 
Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office – Request Board approve Amendment No. 
3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and the Hydrodynamics Group, to amend the 
term to be July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, contingent upon the Board’s adoption of future 
budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 
 
Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office – Request Board approve Amendment No. 
3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Partner Engineering and Science, Inc./Andy 
Zdon, to amend the term to be July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, contingent upon the 
Board’s adoption of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 
 

  
 

14. 
 
 
 
 
 

15. 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Request Board: A) Approve the plans and specifications for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at 
the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport; B) authorize the Public Works Director to advertise and bid the 
project; and C) authorize the Public Works Director to sign the forthcoming Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Project (AIP) funding Grant Agreement for the Runway 
Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport. 
 
Road Department – Request Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Valsoft Corporation, Inc. dba Cascade Software Systems, Inc. for the provision of software 
maintenance and support services for the Road Department’s Cost Accounting Program, in an 
amount not to exceed $12,963.03 for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, 
contingent upon the Board’s adoption of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

   
DEPARTMENTAL  (To be considered at the Board’s convenience) 

 
16. 

 
AG COMMISSIONER – Request Board receive a presentation of the 2018 Annual Crop and Livestock Report.  
 

17. 
 

18. 
 
 

WATER DEPARTMENT – Request Board adopt the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 LORP Annual Work Plan. 
 
WATER DEPARTMENT – Request Board hear an informal workshop regarding the implications of the 
Department of Water Resources’ release of a draft report reprioritization of the Owens Valley Groundwater 
Basin. 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                             June 11, 2019 

19. WATER DEPARTMENT – Request Board provide direction to the County’s Owens Valley Groundwater 
Authority representatives in advance of the OVGA meeting scheduled for June 13, 2019 in Bishop. 
 

20. PUBLIC WORKS – Request Board receive an update on commercial air service at the Bishop Airport and 
regionally.  
 

21. 
 
 
 
 

22. 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Emergency Services – Request Board discuss and consider staff’s 
recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as the “Here It Comes Emergency” 
that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions from near-record snowpack posing extreme peril to 
the safety of property and persons in Inyo County. 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Emergency Services – Request Board discuss and consider staff’s 
recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as the “Rocky Road Emergency” that 
was proclaimed as the result of flooding, mud, and rock landslides and deep snow drifts over portions of Inyo 
County caused by an atmospheric river weather phenomena that began January 3, 2017 and continued 
throughout February. 
 

23. CLERK OF THE BOARD – Request Board approve the minutes from the regular Board of Supervisors 
meeting of June 4, 2019. 
 

 
Note: The agenda items listed below may be considered by the Board at any time during the meeting in the 
Board’s discretion, including before scheduled timed items. 
 
COMMENT  (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
 

24. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

  
BOARD MEMBER AND STAFF REPORTS 

  
  

CORRESPONDENCE – INFORMATIONAL  
 

25. 
 

26. 

 
Inyo County Sheriff’s Office – Sheriff and Jail Overtime Reports for February, March, and April 2019. 
 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control – Application for person-to-person transfer of Off-Sale Beer and 
Wine license from Deborah Lynn Nikolaus to Big Pine Petroleum, Inc. at Big Pine Shell Station, 109 S. Main 
St., Big Pine, CA. 
 

 



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
Consent xxn Departmental ! Correspondence Actio-n' n Public Hearing

n Schedule time for n Closed Session I Informational

For Clerk's Use

0nly:

AGENDA NUMBER

7
FROM: Public Works Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June 11,2019

SUBJECT: Hiring of one (1) Building and Maintenance Worker I/II

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS :

Request the Board find that consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:

1. The availability of funding for the requested Building and Maintenance Worker I/II comes from the
Building and Maintenance Budget, as certified by the Public Works Director and concurred with by
the County Administrator, and the Auditor-Controller;

2. The position could be filled by an internal recruitment; howeiei, an open recruitment would be
appropriate to ensure qualified candidates apply; and

3. Authorize the hiring of one Building and Maintenance Worker I/II Range 56 (53,292 - $3,994) or
Range 60 ($3,612 - $4,387) depending on qualifications.

CAO RECOMMENDATION

SUMMARY DISCUSSION

The Public Works Building and Maintenance Department will be losing one (1) Building and Maintenance
Worker I effective June 14, 2019. Filling this position immediately is crucial, as there will be only one (1)
Building and Maintenance Worker remaining as well as a Building and Maintenance Lead. This position does

routine maintenance and required maintenance on all County Buildings a'nd responds to over one thousand
(1,000) work orders each fiscal year. This is a critical position to maintain the daily operations of our facilities.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board could choose not to approve filling the position of Building and Maintenance Worker, however it is
not recommended due to high volume of work orders and required maintenance for all County Buildings.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

Personnel
Auditor

FINANCING:

This position is cunently budgeted in the Building and Maintenance Budget Unit 011100.



AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by Counfy Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

COUNTY COLINSEL:

DateApproved:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER ANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must bqrreviewed and approved by the auditor/oontroller prior to
the board

director

J
(Must be reviswed and approved by the ofpersonnel servicesPERSONNEL

3
RELATED

board clerk.)

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) oat.: 6 / 3 lry



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

f]Consent fiDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

I Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

8

n Public Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: JuNE 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Amending Minutes and Board Order to Correct Error

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Request Board approve an amendment to the April 16, 2019
minutes and a corresponding Board Order to reflect that the approved Advertising County Resources payments to the
Friends of the Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery/lndependence Fishing Derby, lnc. and Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce
were to come from the 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 FiscalYear budgets, respectively.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: An item was submitted for the April 16, 2019 agenda requesting the following: "Request
your Board approve a final payment from the 2017-18 Advertising County Resources Budget to the Friends of the Mt.
Whitney Fish Hatchery/lndependence Fishing Derby, lnc. for $1,875 for completing the 2018 lndependence Father's Day
Fishing Derby; and a final payment from the 2018-19 Advertising County Resources Budget to the Lone Pine Chamber of
Commerce for completing the 2019 Early Opener Trout Derby" (emphasis added). The Assistant Clerk of the Board
inadvertently left out the reference to Fiscal Year 2018-2019 and, unfortunately, this became the motion made by your
Board. The Assistant Clerk of the Board asks that your Board approve an amendment to both the minutes and
corresponding Board Order for that agenda item to correct the error.

ALTERNATIVES: NI^

OTHER AGENCY INVOL N/A

FINANCING: NIA

DEP ARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE :

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to
subrnlsslon to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel seruices prior to
submissrbn to the board clerk.)

DateApproved:

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are 0 .{- I



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of

California, held in the Hurlbut-Rook Community Center in Tecopa on the l6'h day of April 2019 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

CAO-
Advertising
County
Resources -
FinalFY 17-
18 CPSP
Payments

Moved by Supervisor Tillemans and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve the
following final Community Project Sponsorship Program Grant payments from the FiscalYear
2017-2018 Advertising County Resources budget: $1,875 to the Friends of the Mt. Whitney
Fish Hatchery/lndependence Fishing Derby, lnc. for completing the 2018 lndependence
Father's Day Fishing Derby; and $1,875 to the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce for
completing the 2019 Early Opener Trout Derby. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with
Supervisor Griffiths absent.

IVITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this l6tt'

oay of April, 2019

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Eoard of Supenisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing

Personnel
Auditor
CAO AN. Coun| Resources
0ther:
DATE: April26,2019

By.

/ .-.
1 r al {"-,- l

LF Ai {{ttzt"--



AGENDA REQUEST FORM

"oo*,Rl$uJ.'ft,T3o*
XConsent lDepartmental flCorrespondenceAction

n Scheduled Time for ! Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

l0
f] Puotic Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Jon Klusmtre, Museum Services Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April 16, 2019

SUBJECT: Final County of lnyo Community Project Sponsorship Program payments to the Friends of the Mt. Whitne Fish
Hatchery/lndependence Fishing Derby, lnc. for successfully completing a2018 Community Prolect Sponsorship Program
grant and the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce, for successfully completing a 2019 Community Project Sponsorship
Program grant.

DEPARTMENTAL frECOMIiENDITION: Request your Board approve a final payment from the 2017-18
Advertising County Resources Budget,01'1400, to the Friends of the Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery/lndependence Fishing
Derby, lnc., for $1,875 for completing the 20'18 lndependence Father's Day Fishing Derby (Object Code 5517); and a
final payment from the 2018-19 Advertising County Resources Budget, 011400, to the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce
for $1,875 for completing the 2019 Early Opener Trout Derby (Object Code 5582).

SUMMARY PISCUSSION: The Friends of the Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery/lndependence Fishing Derby, lnc. was
awarded a FY 2017-18 County of lnyo Community Project Sponsorship Fishing Derby Grant in the amount of $7,500
to help sponsor the lndependence Father's Day Weekend Fishing Derby. After contracts were finalized, 75 percent the
grant funds were disbursed to the Friends. The event organizers have provided staff with sufficient documentation of
acceptable expenses for reimbursement for a final payment of $1,875. The Friends also provided evidence that lnyo
County was prominently mentioned as a sponsor of the event in ads and other promotional material.

The Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce was awarded a FY 2018-19 County of lnyo Community Project Sponsorship
Fishing Derby Grant in the amount of $7,500 to help sponsor the Lone Pine Early Opener Fishing Derby. After
contracts were finalized, 75 percent the grant funds were disbursed to the Chamber. The event organizers have
provided staff with sufficient documentation of acceptable expenses for reimbursement for a final payment of $1,875.
The Chamber also provided evidence that lnyo County was prominently mentioned as a sponsor of the event in ads
and other promotional material.

ALTERNATIWS: The Board could deny the requests.

ATHEfr AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: County Administrato/s Office, Auditor/Controller.
FINANCING: The Community Project Sponsorship Program is part of the Advertising County Resources budget and
is financed from the General Fund. Funds for these grants have been budgeted in the FY 2017-18 and 2018-19
Advertising County Resources Budget (011400) in the Object Codes noted in the Departmental Recommendation.

D EPARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE:

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submlssion to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITOFYCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to

v{
I .,".

submlsslon to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERSONNEL AND RELATED lTEMflMGi be reviewed and approved by th; director of personnel services prioi to
submission to the board clerk.)

APPROVAI,S

(Not to be signed until all approvals are

(
Vt,, B r.4 fS rn,3,n 4-zt



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COI.INTY OF INYO
XConsent flDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

fl Scheduled Time for fl Closed Session

Clerk's Use Only:
NUMBER

I
E Puotic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: County Administration - Economic Development

FORTHE BOARD MEETING: June 11,2019

SUBJECT: Blanket Purchase Order - Experience Video project

P4PARTME NTAL R EC O MM FNDATI ON;
Approve_a blanket purchase order in the imount of $12,360 for lnverted Life LLC to create video content for the lnyo
County Economic Devetopment Experience Video project,

SUMMARY DISCIJSSION:
lnverted Life LLC is one of-the videographers utilized by the County this fiscal year to produce video content for thecounty's Experience Video P-roject, inCluding, among others, a paragiiding video and a nshing video. The worr proouct
has been professional and- of a quality exceeding w6at our budget oimaiOs. This agenda item is needed because the
total amount of payments for pending video projects will slightlyixceed the purchasin-g potby tnresnob triggennj 

-Board

approval. Contracts for each video are entered into Oy the Purcfiasing Agent ior each discrete'video project.

FINANCING: Funding is avaihble in the CAO Economic Devetopment Budget O'1O2O2.

DEPARTMENTHEAD SIGNATURE: /(Not to be signed until all approvats are

(The Original plus 14 copies of this document are required)

AUDITOFYCONTROLLER:

"rry board clerk.)
AND

Approved

(Must be reviewed and approvad by tha

4t,Pt{()vALS



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO
X Consent lDepartmental lCorrespondence Action

! Sctreduted Time for E Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

to
fl Puotic Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: Jon Klusmire, Museum Services Administrator
FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Final County of lnyo Community Project Sponsorship Program payments to the Bishop Area Chamber of
Commerce and Visitors Bureau for successfully completing one 2019 Non-Competitive-Fishing Derby Community Project
Sponsorship Program grant and the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce for successfully completing one 2019 Non-
Competitive Line ltem Community Project Sponsorship Program grant.

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Request your Board approve final payments from the 2018-19
Advertising County Resources Budget, 011400, to the Bishop Area Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau for
$1,875 for the 2019 Blake Jones Trout Derby (Object Code 5513), and to the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce for
$3,303 for the 2019 Wild Wild West Marathon (Object Code 5587).

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: The Bishop Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau was awarded a FY 2018-19
County of lnyo Community Project Sponsorship Program Fishing Derby Grant in the amount of $7,500 to help sponsor
the Blake Jones Fishing Derby. After contracts were finalized, 75 percent the grant funds were disbursed to the
Chamber. As outlined in the County Contract for CPSP Fishing Derbies, the event organizers have provided staff "a
final written report to the County that includes an overview of the event or project, a statistical overview of the event or
project, number of participants, etc., or other relevant details about the project event." See attached. This is sufficient
documentation to award reimbursement for a final payment of $1,875. The Chamber also provided evidence that lnyo
County was prominently mentioned as a sponsor of the event in ads and other promotional material.

The Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce was awarded a FY 2018-19 Non-Competitive Line ltem County of lnyo
Community Project Sponsorship Grant in the amount of $6,006 to help sponsor the Wild Wild West Marathon. After
contracts were finalized, 50 percent the grant funds were disbursed to the Chamber. The event organizers have
provided staff with sufficient documentation of acceptable expenses for reimbursement for a final payment of $3,303
The Chamber also provided evidence that lnyo County was prominently mentioned as a sponsor of the event in ads
and other promotional material.

ALTERNATIVES: The Board could deny the request.

OTHERAGENCY INVOLWMENT: County Administrator's Office, Auditor/Controller.
FINANCING: The Community Project Sponsorship Program is part of the Advertising County Resources budget and
is financed from the General Fund. Funds for these grants have been budgeted in the FY 2018-19 Advertising County
Resources Budget (011400) in the Object Code noted in the Departmental Recommendation.

DE PARTM ENT H EA D S IG N ATU RE

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submrssrbn to the board cled<.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITORYCONTROLLER be reviewed

Approved

(Musf

7

and approved by the auditor-controller pior to

oate 5-
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PEKSONNEL AryD RELATED ITFJU-S'(Nlust 6-e reilewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to

submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are
(



rore BLArE tol{Et TRoUr DEntv
FINAL REPORT FOR INYO COUNTY & REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF PROJECT EXPENSES

IHANK YOU lor your continued support of this importont eveni! Without the ossistqnce of
lnyo County ond help from our mony co-sponsors & volunteers, the continuqtion of the Bloke
:Jones Trout Derby might noi be possible.

2Ol9 Blqhe lonel Highliehts

' Solid poriicipotion ond o good mix of locol ond out of the oreo poriiciponts: 20% from
lnyo County ond 80% from outside of our region.

. lncreosed numbers of fomilies fishing together.

' Excellent Fishing Conditions - wolers were wel/sfocked which mqkes for hoppy
cusfornersl

' Greot locql ond out of the oreo press coveroge prior to ond following evenl.
' Moinloined impressive level of co-sponsorship of prizes - opproximolely g.10,000 in

donoted equipment, merchondise ond gift certificotes oworded.
' Mointqined owesome level of volunteer support - more fhon 30 individuols donofed

fime fo he/p sef-up & c/eon-up, register & check-in porfrciponfs, weigh 
',ish 

& other
dufies.

The Bloke Jones Troul Derby produces on excellent ROlfor lnyo Countyl Mony porticiponts
stoy in lnyo County compgrounds, plus they dine ond shop in oreo businesses from Lone pine
to Bishop" ln oddition to immediote finonciol returns, lhe event serves lo encouroge yeor-
round visitotion io the Eoslern Sierro. ln 20]9, we celebroied the 5isr Bloke Jones trout Derby
ond we hope to continue to hosl the event for mony yeors to come.
Once ogoin, thonk yov!



Wrights Rainbows

16019 N. Hwy 34
Thatcher, Idaho 83283
Phone: (208) 427-6623

TO; BISHOP CIIAMBER OF COITIMERCE
690 N. Main Street
Bishop, CA 93514
Phone: Tawnl Thomson: 760-873-8405

1600 lbs. Rainbow Trout (catchable) @ $5.50

BI$}IOP AREA CHA$BER OF COUffiRCE & Vlsrrorc BUREAU

t\

, t, .1

, l.t' 't \

!,',
', ' lI': ' t-

r l.:-li', r1 
\rl , I i

\ 1.\,q ! \.--

INVOICE

TNVOTCE #tlool
DATE: MARCH 18,2019

$8.800.00

17042

8,800.00

W1glts flainbows
TOUR:Fish Planting 3t19t2A19

li.,ir'.,

i r- \ ':I

'l
I
J

1

--1

I

. 1I
, '-'----'"t

:.i I i1

1li \ ,-l

I

i: ll

ESCB Checking

l lmril Iil I[ ilr ill i., I

DESCRIPTIOT{ AtIOUI{T

8414.t232972iA:1Ai 104141

8,800.00



f

ts

May 16,2OI9

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
Drawer N
Independence CA 93526

Dear Board,

The Lone Pine Chamber is grateful for your participation as a sponsor of the 2Ol9
Wild Wild West Marathon and Ultras,

This year the weather was amazing and we had about262 runners complete their
course, and we didn't lose one.

This is a great race that keeps bringing people from all over the world to our area and
we thank you so much for allyou do to benefit our communities.

Sincerely,,) :'. .2")
\ffie!4/-"1)
Kathleen New
President/CEO
Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce

PH. [Z5ol 8l6.t t ++ . www.lonepinechamber.org

info@ lonepinechamber.org



COUNTY OF II{YO
COMMUNTTY PROJECT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM
REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM

Mail Rei Request To:
County of Inyo
Cornrnunity Prcject Sponsorship Program
P. O. Drawer N
Independence, CA 93526

Glant Recipient Naure Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce

Total Requested

Mid Project Request
(list relevanL i nvoices)
Final Payment Request
(if yes, complete alI sections
betow)

$ 3,033.00

x

Project Name Wild Wild West Maralhon and Ullras

EXPENDITURES (LIST ONLY THOSE FOR WHICH INVOICES ARE ATTACHED)

INVOICE
DATE VENDORI\AIVIE I}ESCRIPTION OF' SERVICNS RENDERED INVOICE

AMOUNT
See attached

Invoice Total
Total Rei mtr u rsement r:eques ted (i f different)

$ 13,241,68

$ 3,033.00

CHECK LIST FOR FINAL REIMBURSEMENT
Sample of Prornotional Materials ldentifying
Inyo County as a Sponsor of the Activity

Final Report to the Board of Supervisols
Oral Report
Written Report

Documentation of All Eligible Expenses

X

x

Date Project/
Event Cornpleted

Report of Eligible
Staff Costs

5t4t2015

x

I certify that all expenditures associated with this reimbursement request are consistent with the glant agreement
between the Grant named above an<l the Coun of In

cEo 5t16t2019

Signature of Representative Titlc Date



Amount

340.00

340.00

249.00

L,33.4.4L

$ 134.s4

$ 614.60

S 2,808.45

$ 366_:40

$ r,sss,oo

s_1,,,11199

s 1oo.oo

S 19s.06

$ 147.77

$ es.46

s s0.26

r24.23

375.00

$ 1,350.00

500.00

$r .68

$

5

$

$

$

s

s

s
s

39.80

99.70

Wild Wild West 20L9

VendorDate Purpose

1

Total

supplies

water stop supplies

water stop

water

L/28/zols ultra running Mqgg4lg

n Corg

hydration

Phi ladelphia lnsuranc-e-

Drew Wicl<man

5/Le/201s Linda Duarte

s/Ielzote Kathleen New

7/24/1914 Lone Pine Market
4/11./2oLe Lone Pine Mobil

s/6lz}rs Susan Bobb

utletot9s/204/2
4127/2or9 Smart and Final

2AL9 Smart and Final

t/24/2\rs USPO

512/zore Lone Pine Market

4ls/20re Lone Pine Market

tro les

Skratch labs

advertising

advertising

t shirts

water stop supplies

Postage

3/2s/22OLs

L/30/zoLe

3/20/2A13
uTlzote

3/24/zots

L1./2rl3s2a

ultrarunning Magazine

Rainbow Racing

BLM

goodie bag

t shirts

Permit

Pacifica T Shirt
piiincu T slrirt

gas

water stop supplies

4/2

wgelstop supplies

water stop supplies

90 hrs at L5.00

60 hrs at 25.00

bibs

lnsurance



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
xx Consent Departmental f]Conespondence Action

E ScheOuled Time for E CbseO Session

For Clerk's Uso Only:
AGENDA NU'/,BER

lt
E Public Hearing

E lnformalional

FRoM: County Administrator - Personnel
FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF June ii, 20i9

SUBJEGT: Request Leave of Absence without pay

D E PARTM ENTAL RECOMME NDA TI ON :
Request your Board consider and grant the employee leave of absence without pay request from June Ll, ZOlg through
September, l0 2019, in accordance with Article X, Leaves, 10.4(a) of the tnyo County nersonnel Rules and Regulations.

SUMfuIARY DISCUSSION:
Pursuant to Article 1 0.4 of the Inyo County Personnel Rules and Regulations, any leave of absence without pay
in excess of 90 days must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. The Personnel Deparhnent has received a
request for continued medical leave without pay through September I0,201g. Personnil staffhas reviewed the
request and recommends this request be granted.

ALTERNATIWS:
The Board deny this request, but that is not recommended by the Personnel Department.

OTH ER A GENCY INVOLW M E NT :

FINANCING:
There are not other costs associated with this aotion.

COUNry COUNSEL:

suDrnlssion to the boed cbrk)

Approved: Date_

ANDCONTRACTSAGREEMENTS, ANDORDINANCES CLOSED sEsstoN REI.ATEDAND ITEMS 0e(Must
andrcviewed munsel tobyapprcved @unty pior

AUDITOFUCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND REI.ATED
submisslon to the board clefu.)

ITEMS (Must be rcvlewed and apprcved by the auditw-controller prlor to

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

submission

1

prior to

ilt
ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the direc-tor of pereonnel seryices

board clerk.)
REIATED

,,\ l)l,lto\"\l_s

DEPARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATTT RE :

?
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

%
\t.* g/st



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

X Consent ! Departmental flCorrespondence Action

f] Scheduled Time n closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDANUMBER

t)
fl tublic Hearing

E Informational

FROM: Planning Department, Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June tl,20l9

SUBJECT: Yucca Mountain Oversight, Amendment No. Three to the contract between the County of Inyo

and the Hydrodynamics Group LLC.

DEPARTMENTAL TION:
a Request the Board approve Amendment No. Three to the contract between County of Inyo and the

Hydrodynamics Group (Hydrodynamics) to amend Section 2 -Term of the agreonent to be July 1,

2016 - June 30, 2020; and, authoize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate

signatures being obtained and adoption of future budgets.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: Inyo County has been involved as an Affected Unit of Local Government

(AULG) throughout the Yucca Mountain high-level radioactive waste repository proceedings. The

Hydrodynamics Group LLC has provided consistent and high quality consulting services for the

evaluation and monitoring of groundwater regarding the proposed Yucca Mountain repository during this

time.

The County had the Hydrodynamics Group LLC under contract from 7997-2013 for professional services

regarding groundwater and the proposed Yucca Mountain repository, but let it lapse when the licensing
proceedings were halted by the NRC. On June 24, 2014 the County entered into a new sole-source

Contract with Hydrodynamics to provide technical expertise in the review and evaluation of the Departrnent

of Energy's (DOE) Supplernental Environmental Impact Statement (SEIS) with regard to technical reports,

data and information on groundwater impacts of the proposed Yucca Mountain repository and any updates to

the 2009 report titled: Analysis of Post Closure Groundwater Impacts for a Geologic Repository for the

Disposal of Spent Nuclear Fuel and High-Level Radioactive Waste at Yucca Mountain, Nye County,

Nevada. Once this work was completed, this contract also lapsed due to inactivity. The County entered into a

new sole-source Contract with Hydrodynamics on July l, 2016 for further review of the SEIS. The contract

was amended on June27,2017 extending the time of the contract to end on June 30,2018 and again on

June 5, 2018 to extend it to June 30, 2019. The contract with Hydrodynamics is now proposed to be

amended to extend the time of the contract to end on June 30,2020.

Recent conversations regarding Yucca Mountain indicate that there is still active interest in storing high-

level radioactive waste at it and this could open the possibility of the licensing proceedings to restart. It
would be in the County's best interest to keep its consultants under contract in case the licensing

proceedings or other activities related to Yucca Mountain are to begin again. Funding for Yucca Mountain
oversight by the County is funded through money the County receives from the Department of Energy.

ALTERNATIVES: The Board could not approve the amendments. This is not recommended as

Hydrodynamics' history and expertise are valuable assets for the County to utilize in reviewing and

commenting on activities related to Yucca Mountain.



Agenda Request
Page 2

OTHERAGENCY INVOLVEMENT: T\e Department of Energy

FINANCING: Projects and oversight of the proposed Yucca Mountain repository are paid with funding
-ntougtt the Department of Ener gy, and fund balance is available to offset these costs. These amendments

do not affect the Yucca Mountain Oversight Budget (620605). If additional funding is required in the

future for this work, staff will propose abudget amendment.



Agenda Request
Page 3

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

recel

Attachments:
o Proposed Contract Amendment for Hydrodynamic No. Three

o Amendments Nos. One and Two
. Original contract

Date: V;rq f i'7

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED
RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submission to

the board clerk') g.-r s tz-t (q

SESSION ANDCOUNTY
COUNSEL:

V/.--

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (MUSI bC

auditor-controller prior to submission to the board
reviewed and approved by theAUDITOR/

lt
BUDGET RELATED S

l3

APPROVALS



AMENDMENT NO. THREE TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

THB HYDRODYNAMICS GROUP
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSI ONAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "county'') and The

Hydrodynamics Group (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) have entered into an

Agreement for the provision of professional services dated June 14, 2016 on County of
Inyo Standard Contract No. 156 for the term from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

WIIEREAS, on June 27,2077 the County and Contractor consented to amend the

Agreement at Section 2 -Termto be July l,2016 to June 30, 2018.

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2018 the County and Contractor consented to amend the

Agreement at Section 2 - Term to be July 1,2016 to June 30,2019.

WIIEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed,

added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such

amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same formalities as such

Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as

set forth below.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows

. Amend Section 2 - TERM to July 1,2016 to June 30,2020

Amendment #3 to County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156



AMENDMENT NO. THREE TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY
OF INYO AI\D

THE HYDRODYNAMICS GROUP
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSION SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS
AND SEALS THIS DAY OF

COT]NTY CONTRACTOR

B By:

Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

\^--t, .

County Counsel

AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

?rL';/,.'/ J" Y;'?

Dated: April30.2019

AS TO P,ERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

\)(_
ofPersonnel Services

AS TO

County Risk

Amendment #3 to County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156



AMENDMENT NO. TWO TO THE AGREEMEI\T
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO ANI)

THE HYDRODYNAMICS GROUP.
FOR THE PROVTSTON OF PROTESSIONAL SERVTqE$

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as'oCounty") and The
Hydrodynarnics Group (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) have entered into an

Agreenrent for the plovision of plofessional services dated June 14,2016 on County of
Inyo Standard Contract No. 156 for the term from .Iuly 1. 2016 to June 30, 2017.

WHrcRAAS, on.lune 27,2An the County and Contractor consented to amend the
Agreement at Section 2 - Term to be July 1, 201 6 to June 30, 2018.

WI{EREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be rnodified, amendedo changed,
added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such

amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same formalities as such

Agreemenl, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as

set forth below.

County and Contractor hereby arnend such Agreement as follows

r Amend Section 2 - TERM to July 1,2A16 to June 30,2019

Anrendnrent #2 to County ofInyo Standard Contract - No. 156



IN WITNESS THEREOR THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS
AND SEALS THIS *:tl"'n,lV OF .\u.lr a .. , dg,t" .

AMENDMENT NO. TWO TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TIIE COUNTY
OF'INYO ANI)

TrrE gYpRopYNAMTCS GROUP.
F'ORTHE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

COUNTY CONTRACTOR

By:
*
.1ffi-'- nhTsll.w

Dated 1*5--/{ Pat.o: Yir*t?, ?-01,9 -
APPROVED AND LEGALITY:

AS TO

County Auditor

AS REQUIREMENTS

ofPersonnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

anager

By:

Arnendment #2 to County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156



AMENDMENT NO. ONE TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

T E HYDR GR
FOR T}IX PROVISION OF PRQFESSIONAI., SEKYICES

WIIBREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and The

Hydroclynamics Group (hereinafter refened to as Contractor) have entered into an

Agreement for the provision of professional services dated June 74,2A76 on County of
Inyo Standard Contract No. 156 for the term fiom July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as

set forth below.

WIIEREAS, such Agreemcnt prnvides that it may be modified, amended, changed,

added to; or subtracted &om, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if suCh

amendment or change is in ranitten form, and executed with the same formalities as such

Agreement, and attached to the original Agreemen^t to maintdin continuity;

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as

set forlh below.

Counfy and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

Amend Section 2 - TERM to July l, 2016 to June 30, 2018

Anrendrnent # I to County of Inyo Standal'd Corrtract - No' 156



AMENDMENT NO. ONg TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TIIE COUNTY OF
INYO AND

THE HXDROPYI{AMIqS CRQUR
FOR THE PROVTSTON OF PBOF',ESS.IONAT{ pERV.ICES.

IN WITNESS:I'IIEREOF, TI{n PAR't'tn$ HERETO HAVn SET THEIR HANDS
AND SEALS'IHIS ;plUOaV Or -iu44 ._ ___=-, &t1 .v

90II$rv coN'rB4c{gq

"rLrLN/*-
Bv; Mffj0-?0l.?

Dared: t"lw I ft n";/*/,.W
AND LEGALITYi:

F,.D AS TO ACCOTINTING FORM

County Auditor

AI: AS REQUIREMENTS

tector ofPersorurel Services

APPROVED TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Manager

Amendrnent #l to County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156



AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO
AND The Hydrodynamics GrouP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION gp Hydrological Consulting Sefvices

INTRODUCTION

SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred
Hydrological Coneulting Services service$

to as "Coung'') has the need for the
of The Hydrodynamics Group, LLC

fhereinatte-r€ferrsA to as "Consultant'), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and

conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITION$

1. SCOPEOFWORK,

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in

Attachment A, attached hereto ancl by roference lncotporatecl hergin, Re_ques!$ hJ. the Counly to the
Consultant to perform under this Agresment will be rnade by tho lnyo Goltnlt.PlaItlng Dlrector

iHXxi:n$.'f'"ffJ'l1!1iLy'+'flitXtl'Tii:,ii'fJlil'T.ii1':l
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amourit of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the Gounty under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should

have some need for such seruices orwork during the term of this Agreemenl.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the Countys request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and

resolutions include, but are not llmlted to, those which are referred to in lhis Agreement and, as applicable, as

set forth, in Attachment E, altached herelo and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of thls Agreement shall be 11-qm July 1, 2016 1s June 3A,2017

unless sooner terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Ccrnpsngali{n County shall pay Consuftant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees

(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by

Consultant at the County's request.

expenses will be with lhe rates set forth in of Travel and Per Diem

Paymenl (Attachment C). County reserues the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per

diem expenses which are either ln excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in

Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prlor approval of the County.

County of lnyo Standard Coniracl - No, 156

(lndependenl Consultant -Professional)
Page 1

04062016



C. NS_aruL11Snel*gSffildegllen. Except as expressly provided in this Agre.ement, Consultant

shall not be enlitled {b, rior-receive, trom County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages'

or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultanl shall not

be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,

retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or oiher paid leaves

of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. llmit-rrpon amQunt navablqgnder Aqresmgnt, The total sum of all payments made by the

County to Ca6srrttant tor s hes a4 performed uncler this Agreontent, including travel and pel diem

expenies, lf any, shall not exceeci $20,00CI * _ - . Dollars (herelnafter

referred to as "iontract limit"). County eipiessly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement
requested by Consultanl for iervices 

-or 
work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of

the contract limit.

E. BllllnSan{0jr\trfgd. Consultant shall submit to the Coun$, once a month, an itemized
statement of all houri-tpent by eonsultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which

were done at the Count/s request. This statement will be submitted to the Couniy not later than the fifth
(slh) day of the month. 

-The 
itatement to be submitted will cover the perlod from the first (1s1) day of the

ireieOirig month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identlfy the
date on wtrictr the houri were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.

Consuitant 's statement to tho Gounty will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expensos,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during lhat period. The itemized

statement for travei expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and olher incidontal
expenses in accordance wilh the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the

statement by the fifth (5th) day of the modth, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the

month.

F Federal and $tele laxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhotd any
lederal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under lhe tsrms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) county will withhold Californla State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticlpaled that total annual payments to Consultant under lhis
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499'oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or paynents from sums paid by County to Consultant under lhis
Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is

the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibili$ or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the

-lnlernal*evenueServieesn*the€alifomiaStatefmnehise-Tax-Bsarffio-''--"--
facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

County of lnyo St€ndard Contract - No, 156

(lndependent Consullanl -Professlonal)
Page 2

040620r6



4. WORK SCHEDULE-

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those seruices and work identified in

Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange hislher own schedule, butwill
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REqUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificales, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work describad in attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as othenrvise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licensas, ceflificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limlted to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or cedificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, cerlificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County, Consultant will provide

County, upon execution of this Agreemant, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certilicates and
permits which are required to perform the services identifled in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certiflcates, and permits are requlred lo perform the
services identified in Attachment A, Coung reserues the right to make such delerminations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debared, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or volunlarily excluded from participatlon in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also waranls ihat it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procuroment or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available et htlg{\41\'vrrt$Fm-gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, egulpment, vehlcles, reference materials, and

telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identifled in Attachment A to this
Agreernent. County ls not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procurlng or malntaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and malntaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. PprgonelP:s{eIUql Cqqfllv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreemenl are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and mainlain such ltems whlle they are in

Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the resull of Consultanfs negligence.

B. Pfgductg-d Cong.ul"tFff's Work a4d qervices. Any and all compositions, publications,
-plans;s;-specificationg-blueprints;mapsrforrmrlas,Trocesses;photographq slideWideutapes, computer--
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are creaied, produced, assembled, complled by, or are the result,

County of lnyo Standard Conuact - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant -Professional)
Page 3

040620 16



product, or manifestation of, Consultant's seruices or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

bf this Agreement remain, the sole and excluslve property of the County. At the termination of the

Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES,

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and

amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this

Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or emptoyees of

Ciunty. Consultant, 6y virtue of this Agieement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on b_ehalf of

County. Except as ei<pressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to

exercise any rilhts or pbwer veited in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be

considered in emptoy6e of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County thal this Agreement shall

not under any circumstances be ionstrued or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, detalls, and means of performing the work and

services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this {greement, shall not be subjmted to County's

control with respect to the physical aclion or activlties of Consuftant in fulfillment of this Agreement'

C. Consultant, its agents, offlcers, and employees are, and et all times during the term of this

Agreement shall, represent and cbnduct themselves as independent Consultanfs, and not as ernployees of
County.

{0" DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnify, including

the cost to deiend County and its offtcers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and agalnst any and all

claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, o.r

willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agonts in the performance of professional services
under thls contract, bul this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,

active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees,

and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attomey fees arising

out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or ln part by any negligent act or

omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or

anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the actlve negligence, sole

negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

end shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant,

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemniiy, and hold harmless Consultant, its

agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,

Counly oflnyo Slandard Contraot - No. 156
(lndepend€nt Consultant -Professlonal)

Page 4
04062016



expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resuliing from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or empioyees.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

. . A' _ .Rryords. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulaiions, and direclions.
Consuhant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the teimination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill ils obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic rcproduction of such recordi.

9. lnaooctlons and Aqgli8, Any aulhorlzed representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial recdrds of Consultant, wlrich
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaiuation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records'are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenruise evaluite the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

. - During the performance oi thls Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law,-against any employee, oi applicant for
employment, or person recelvlng servlces under thls Agreement, because of r-ace, ie[gion, colbi, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consuiiant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housin! Aci
(Govemmenl Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations pr6mutgateO thereunder in the
Caliiornia Code ol Regulations. Consultant shall also abiile by the Federal Civil nights Act of 1964 (p.1. 88-
352) and all amendmenls lhereto, and all admlnistrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to sald act.

I3. CANCELLATION.

_ This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Co.nsultant thirty (30) days wriLten notice of such intent lo cancel. Consultant may cdncel this Agieement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving lhirty (30) days writteh notice of sucli intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

. This is an agreement for the services of Gonsultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter inio this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County,

16. DEFAULT.

County of hyo Standard Conlract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultanl -Professlona0

Page 5

04062016



16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall nol be deemed to be a waiver
of any olher or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modiflcation of lhe terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below,

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provlsions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unaulhorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205^50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountabili$ Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of theWelfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneliciaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLICTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing seruices and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees lor a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, nol to seek or accept any employrnent with any Coun$, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the Coun$, or who has
been an adverse party ln litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access lo the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof lo any person or circumsiance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agraement, or the application
lhereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provlslons of this Agreement are severable.

'', - 27. ---FU-NDING LlMlrATldUl 
-- -

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modlflcation of available funding. Any reduction or modiflcation
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

County of lnyo Standard Conlraci - No, 156

(lndependent Consultanl -Professlonal)
Page 6

04062010



22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual

consent of the 
-parties 

heret6, if such amendment or change ls in written form and execuled wlth the same

formalities as this Agreement, and aftached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of iddress of elther party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or County shall be

requiied, or may desire, to niakd, sndlbe in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first

class mall to, ihe respective parties as follows:

Gountv of lnvo:
Inyo C6unly Flanning Department
Try"
lndependence, CA S3526

fi-fTTTSlE-AVEn-usWf

Department
Address
City and State

Name
Address
City and State

Consultant:
The Hydrodynamics Group, LLC

trqmonost vvA Yoozo

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the partles, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or Jgreements otheruvise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated hereln by

ieference, shafbe of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

dlscharged, or termlnated, unless the same be in wrlting execuled by the parties hereto.

tll ltll

Counly of lnyo Standard Conlract - No, 1 56

(lndepend€nt Consultant -Professional)
Page 7

04062016



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Ile HYdrodYnamics GrouP, LLC

FoR THE PRovlsloN sERvlcEs

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

DAY OF

CON,SULTAIIT

ne,'/ j"y;ry
Slonatum

Michael'J. King* __

Dated: MiY 11-r201s_- _

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

/-r'1r',J-*-
4oun{y Counsel

AS

S€;vicBs

FORM:

REQUIREMENTS:

TO

{7

%

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

{lndependent Consullant -Professlonal)
Page 8

04062016



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND The Hydrodynamics Group, LLC

FOR THE pROVISION OF Hydrological L;onsulting uervlces SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1, 2016 June 30, 2017

SCOPE OFWORK:

1. Contractor shall assist the County ln the revlew and evaluation of the Final Supplemental Environmental lmpa€t Statement (SEl5) that

was piepared by the U.5. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) addressing the post closure impacts of the proposed Yucca Mountain

nuclear waste repository on groundwater fesources, for the level and quallty ofthe NRC tesponses to th€ County's comments on the

Draft SEIS. Thls work shall lncludq but not be limlted to, a revlew to ensure that the NRC responded to each of the County's comments

on the DRAFT SEIS; an evaluation ofthe responses to ensure the County's concerns have been addtessed approprlatelyi provlde a

wrltten summary of these flndlngs; and be prepared to assist the County ln 3upporting lts exitlng contention$ or ctafting new

contentions based on the comments and concerns the County has submitted to the NRC. This work may also lnclude evaluating any new

models or lnformatlon lntroduced by the NRC in the Final SEIS.

2. Contractor shall recelve direction as to the scope ofthe work to be performed from the lnyo County Planning Department and/ot the
lnyo County County Counsel.

3. Contractor shall provlde all secretarial and clerical support reasonably and customarlly necessary to perform the setvlces described in

thls Agreement

4, Contractor shall maintaln and retain files and materials on cases and other matters upon which he/she is wotking. On(e completed,

Contractor may deliver the files and materials to the lnyo County Planning Department for storage,

County ot lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156

(lndependenl Consullant -Professional)
Page 9

04062016



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND The LLC

FOR THE PROVISION SERVtCES

TERM

FROM: July 1,2016 June 30, 2017

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

L COMPENSATIONT

County shall pay to Contractor for the work and servlces as descrlbed ln Attachment A whlch are performed by the Contractot at
County's request, at a rate not to exceed 520,000.

2. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES:

County shall relmburse Contractor for those lncldental expenses whlch are necessarily lncurred by Contractor ln providing the
services and work underthis Agreement. Reimbursement for lncidental expenses shall not be paid in excess of the amount of
Compensation ($20,000),

Countyotlnyo Standard Conkacl - No. 156
(lndependenl Consultant -Professlonal)

page 10

04062016



ATTACHMENTG

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO
AND The Hydrodynamics Group, LLC

FORTHE PROVISIO SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1,2016 30,2417

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

Contractor wlll be compensated only for expenses lncuned while performlng tasks specifled ln the Scope of Work, Travel and Per Dlem

expenses wlll be pald out of the 520,000 total cost of the contracted work and travel only for task lncluded ln the Scope of Work will be

relmbursed.

Counly ol lnyoSlandard Contracl - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant -Professlonal)

Pag€ 1 1

{x082018



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Ihe Hvdrodvnamics Grous. LLC

FORTHE PRovlsloN o sERvlcEs

ATTACHMENT D

TERM:

June 30, 2017

SEE AITACHED INSURANCE PROVI$IONS

FROM: July 1, 2016

County ol lnyo Standard Contr€ct - No, 166
(tndependenl Consullant -profe$lonal)

Pago 12
s082016



AND ThC

FOR THE PROV]SION OF

ATTACHMENT E

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
LLC

TERM

June 30,2017

County of lnyo Stsndard Conl.act - No. 156

(lndepondent Consultant -Professional)
Page 13

FROM: July 1,2016

SERVICES

1

FEDEML FUNDSADDENDUM

Section f f , Part B, /nspectlons and Audits, of the contract is amended to read;

"Any authorized representative of the County, or of a federal, or state agency shall have

acclss to any booits, documenls, papers, records, including, but nol limited to, financial

records of lh6 Consultant, which the County ot federal or state agency determines to be

pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,.examination,
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be malntained by

Consuttant. Further, fte Countyor federal orstale agencyhas the right, at all reasonable

times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed 
_

unOei tnis Agrbement. Coples of any ol these records shall be furnished, if requested.'

2, Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Consultant warrants that he/she has not employed or

retained anyiompany or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the consullatt, to
solicit or secure this agreement, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to pay any company or

person other than a bona flde employee, any fee, commisslon, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or

bny other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the arrard, or formation of this

agreement. For breach or violaiion of lhis warranty, the local-agency shall have the right lo annul

this agreement without liability, or at its discretion; to deduct frorn the agreement price or

consideration, or otherwise recover the full amounl of such fee, commission, percentage'

brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee,

3. Delays and Extensions. The term of the contract may be extended in the case of unavoidable

delays, changes in the scopa of work or level of effort required to meet lhe project objectives, and

for cbnsideralion of corresponding warranted adjustments in payment. An extension of contract

time is granted as described ln Section 23, Amendmenf, of the contracl.

4. Termination or Abandonment. The provisions of Section 15, Default, will also apply if the

contract is terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the consullant. The

provisions of the sectlon entitled "County Property".section 7.8., shall apply to any partially

bompleted work if the contract is terminated or abandoned.

6. General Compliance with Laws and Wage Rates. The consultant shall comply with the Stale of

Code, Section 177, and all federal,ltate, and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work'

Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract if for more than $25,000 for public works

conslruction or more than $15,000 for the alteration, demolition, repair, or maintenance of public

works, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.

i)40620't6



6.

ATTACHMENT E - Gontinued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
lpg The Hydrodynamics Group, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1, 2016 June 30, 2017

FEDERAL FUNDS ADDENDUM

Consultant's Endorsement on PS&EJOther Data. The consultanl's responsible engineer shall
sign all plans, specifications, estimates (PS&E) and englneering dala furnished by himlher, and
where appropriate, indicate hls/her California registration number.

8.

Dlsadvantaged Business Enterprlse Considerations. Consultants musl give consideration to
DBE lirms as specified in 23 CFR 172,5(b), 49 CFR, Part 26. The Consullant shall comply with
lhe applicable provisions of Exhibit 10-1, "Notice to Proposers Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
lnformation,' and Exhibit 10-J, "Standard Agreement for SubcontractolDBE Participation," that
were included in the Request for Statements of Quallfications,

Safety. The consultant shall comply with OSHA regulations applicable to the Consultant
regarding necessary safety equipmenl or procedures. The Consultant shall comply with safety
instructions issued by the county's prdect manager and other county represenlatives. Consultant
personnel shall wear hard hats and safely vests at all time when working on the construction
proJect slte.

Pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, the couily has determlned
lhat such areas are within the limlts of the project and are open io public traffic. The Consultant
shall comply with all of the requirements set forth in Divisions 11 , 12, 13, 1 4, and 15 of the Vehicle
Code. The consultant shall take all reasonably necessary precautions for safe operation of its
vehicles and the protection of the traveling public from injury and damage from such vehicles.

Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all of the provisions of the
Articte.

Certlfications, Exhibits 10-F 'Certification of Consultant, Commissions & Fees" and 10-G,
"Certification of Agency' are included as attachments to the contract and made a part of.

7

9.

County of lnyo Slandard Contracl - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consuliant -Professlonal)

Page 14

e4062016



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

X Consent ! Departmental ECorrespondence Action

fl Scheduled Time n closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

t3
n Public Hearing

n Informational

FROM: Planning Department, Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June 17,2019

SUBJECT: Yucca Mountain Oversight Budget Amendment: Amendment No. Three to the contract

between the County of Inyo and Partner Engineering and Science [nc. /Andy Zdon.

D EPA RTMENTAL RE C O MME NDATIO N :
o Request the Board approve Amendment No. Three to the contract between County of Inyo and

Partner Engineering and Science Inc. /Andy Zdonto amend Section 2 -Term of the agreement to be

July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2020; and, authorizethe Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate

signatures being obtained and adoption of future budgets.

S(IMMARY DISCUSSION: Inyo County has been involved as an Affected Unit of Local Government

(AULG) throughout the Yucca Mountain high-level radioactive waste repository proceedings. Andy Zdon
has provided consistent and high quality consulting services for the evaluation and monitoring of
groundwater regarding the proposed Yucca Mountain repository since 2015.

On May 19,2015 the Board entered into a contract with Andy Zdon and Associates to review reports and

other information relevant to the draft SEIS and to provide assistance to the County in preparing

comments on it. Mr. Zdon is a former employee of the Inyo County Water Department, and is very

familiar with the hydrology in the vicinity of Yucca Mountain, as well as with the groundwater models

used by the DOE and NRC in developing the SEIS. Mr. Zdon has been reviewing the groundwater

models being used by the DOE in the SEIS evaluations as well as new ground water models that are

under development. Mr. Zdon's contract expired on June 30,2016. The County and Partner Engineering
and Science Inc. i Andy Zdon entered into a new, sole-source, contract on July I , 2016 for the term of July
I 2016 - June 30, 2017 for further review of the SEIS. The contract was amended on June 27, 2017

extending the time of the contract to end on June 30, 2018 and changed the name of the Contractor to

Partner Engineering and Science Inc. / Andy Zdon and was amended again on June 5,2018 to extend the

contract to June 30,2019. The contract is now proposed to be amended to extend the time of the contract

to end June 30, 2020.

Recent conversations regarding Yucca Mountain indicate that there is still active interest in storing high-
level radioactive waste at it and this could open the possibility of the licensing proceedings to restart. It
would be in the County's best interest to keep its consultants under contract in case the licensing

proceedings or other activities related to Yucca Mountain are to begin again. Funding for Yucca Mountain
oversight by the County is funded through money the County receives from the Department of Energy.

ALTERNATIVES: The Board could not approve the amendments. This is not recommended as

Hydrodynamics' and Zdon's history and expertise are valuable assets for the County to utilize in
reviewing and commenting on activities related to Yucca Mountain.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: T\e Department of Energy



Agenda Request
Page 2

FINANCING: Projects and oversight of the proposed Yucca Mountain repository are paid with funding

through the Department of Energy, and fund balance is available to offset these costs. These amendments

do not affect the Yucca Mountain Oversight Budget (620605). If additional funding is required in the

future for this work, staff will propose a budget amendment.



Agenda Request
Page 3

DEPARTMENT HEAD
(Not to be signed until all
fecel

SIGNATAR{; 
.,

approvals are \ t',i

,. \_\- L\ Date: 7

Attachments:
. Proposed Contract Amendment for Hydrodynamics No. Three
o Amendments No. One and Two
. Original contract

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND
RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submission to

the board clerk.) y s l.U lq

COUNTY
COUNSEL:

,.'U*fF-
ACCOUNTINGiFINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the

auditor-controller prior to subrnission to the board

,)

AUDITOW
CONTROLLER:

5l )qAnnroved: \3

I

J Date

tftsvsBUDGET RELATEDPERSONNEL

\

APPROVAI,S



AMENDMENT NO. THREE TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

PARTNER ENGINEERING AND SCIENCE INC. /ANDY
@N, FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') and Partner

Engineering and Science Inc. / Andy Zdon (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) have

entered into an Agreement for the provision of professional services dated June 14,2016
on County of Inyo Standard Contraet No. 156 for the term from July 1, 2016 to June 30,

2017 for an amount not to exceed $20,000 ("Agreement").

WHEREAS, on June 27,2017 the County and Contractor consented to amend the
Agreement at Section 2 - Term to be July l, 2016 to June 30, 2018 and consented to
amend the contractors title to Partner Engineering and Science Inc. / Andy Zdon
("AmendmentNo. One"). Said AmendmentNo. One was erroneously titled
"Amendment No. Three" based on amendments made to a related, but separate,

agreement between County and Contractor dated May 19, 2015, for the term June 1, 2015
through June 30, 2016; and Amendment No. One erroneously identified the term of the
Agreement to begin July 1, 2015, instead of July l, 2016.

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2018 the County and Conhactor consented to amend the
Agreement at Section 2 - Term to be July I,2016 to June 30, 2019.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed,
added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such
amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same formalities as such
Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as
set forth below.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

Amend Section 2- TERM to July 1,2016 to June 30,2A2Aa

Amendment #3 to County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156



AMENDMENT NO. THREE TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY
OF INYO AND

PARTNER ENGINEERING AND SCIENCE INC. /ANI)Y ZDON
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROF'ESSIONAL SERVICES

IN WITNESS TI{EREOX" THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS
AND SEALS THIS DAY OF

COI}NTY CONTRACTOR

3/

By: By:

Dated:Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

\-l-+
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:
, 1o..\

APPROVED AS TO

County Risk

REQUIREMENTS:

of Personnel Services

Amendment #3 to County of Inyo Standard Conffact - No. I 56



AMENDMENT NO. TWO TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUI\TY OF INYO AND

PARTNER ENGINEERING AND SCIENCA INC. IAI\DY
zDrlJL FOR THE PROVTSTON OF PROFESSTONAL

SERVICNS

WHEREAS, the Cotrnty of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Partner
Engineering and Science Inc. / Andy Zdon (hereinafter refelred to as Contractor) have
entered into an Agreement for the provision of professional services dated June 14,2016
on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156 fbr the term from July 1, 2016 to June 30,

2017 far an amount not to exceed $20,000 ("Agreement").

WHEREAS, on June 27,2017 the County and Contractor consented to arnend the
Agreement at Section 2 - Term to be July 1,2016 to June 30,2018 and consented to
anrend the contractors title to Partner Engineering and Science Inc. / Andy Zdon
("Amendment No. One"). Said Amendment No. One was erroneously titled
"Anrendment No. Three" based on amendments made to a related, but separate,

agreement between County and Contractor dated May 19, 201 5, for the term June 1, 201 5

throLrgh June 30, 2016; and Amendment No. One erroneously identified the term of the
Agreernent to begin July l, 2015, instead of July 1,2016.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed,

added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such

amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same fomralities as such

Agreement, and aftached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity,

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as

set fbrth below.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreemert as follows

Amend Section - TERM to July 1,2016 to June 30,2019a

Amendrnent #2 to County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 156



AMENDMENT NO. TWO TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
INYO AND

PARTN,+B_ENqINEEBIIJG AND scIENcn INc' /ANDY zDoN
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROW

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES IIERETO HAYE SET THEIR HANDS

anp ina,lsrnrs qtr'nav oF -Jr.rna ., *tluLX.

C.OUNTY. qoNrRAcToB

Bv: /4rrAa.L&7/o* * rPaabt*2. oz*eJ . -- '---- -: .4L=_By:

Dated: Dated: 411912018

APPROVED AND LEGALiTY:

AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County ditor

A L REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Personnel Services

API'ROVED RISK ASSESSMENT:

AS

County Ris Manager

Amendment #2 to County of lnyo Standard Contract - No' 1 56



5ut-
A MENDMENT NO" TTffiAE TO TI{E ACREEMBI\T

BETWEEN TI'IE COUNTY OIT IIYYO ANT)

ANDY ZDON FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL
SERVTCES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo {liereinal}er refeffeil to as "Cottrtty") and Andy Zdotr

and Associates (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) liave entered into an Agreement {br

the provision ofprofessionai services dated June 14,2015 on County ofInyo Standard

ContractNo. 156 fbr the tern from July 1,2015 to June 30,2016'

WI{EREAS, on Octcber 1-5,2t}15 the Cormty and Contractor consented to amend ihe

r\greement at Section 3(D) (Limit Upon Amorurt Payable under Agreement) to increase

the total sum of all paynrents made by the County 1o Consultaut fot' services and wort
perfornied urder agreement to $75,000.

WHEREAS, on.lune 7,2A16 the County and Contractor consented to amencl the

Agreement at Section I Scope of Work to include:#5 Contractor shall assisi County in
reviewing the Final supplemental environmental impact statement prepared by the U'S,

Nr:clear Regulatory Commission that arldresses the post closttt'e impacts cf the proposed

Yucca Mountain nuclear waste repositofy on groundwater resources to evaluate the

adequncy of the NI{C statf s responses to the County's comments on the dlaft versiott.

Contractor shall provide a written summary of this evaluation to the County.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desjre to ccxrsent to antend such Agreement as

set lorth below.

WHEREAS, such Agreem€nt provicies that it may be ntodified, amettded, changed,

aildecl to, or sutrtracted frurn. by the mutuai consent of the parties thereto, if such

amendt'nent ol change is in written fbrm, and executed with the samc ibrmaiities as such

Agreernent, and attached to the original Agreeinent to tnaintaiit continuity.

WtIIIREAS, Cr:unty and Contractor do desire to cortsettt 1o anend such Agreement as

set i-or1h trelow.

Counfy and Contractar hereby altteltd such Agrcemcnt as follows

Amencl the contract<:r's title to l)artner Engineering anrl Science lnc./,i\ndy Zdon

Arnend Section 2 - TERIvI to july 1,2015 to June 30,2018
it

Arr:cndrncnt ll8 to {Jounty of irryo Standald l:onlract - No. I 56



O$JL
ffi'

AMENDMENT NO. 
-ti* 

r'o THE AcREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
IIYYO AND

P A RTN l-i R I{ FiGI l{ E lt R I N.fi A,N l} SSls}!^ l{' I N S r

non tnn pnoYlsloN oF PROFD$SIONAI' $FBVICE$

IN WITNESS TIIEREOX', THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SNT THEIR I{ANDS

ANn $EALS THISFI$,nAV ol' Qq::t .

COUNTY

By:

l-r*;v!ar€*J
Z'-r> + A

By:

IlatedDated: le I

AppROVED As't"Ol6pni:n rrr n LEGALITy:

ft)ur$el:-'
{*.-''

APPR )4$ TO ACCOUNTING

County Auditor

REQUIREMENTS:

tli ofPersonnel Services

,APPROVED '() RISK ASSESSMENT:

lil)

County Manager

Amendrnent #f to County of lnyo Standard Contract - No' 156



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Andy Zdon and Associates, lnc.

FOR THE pROVIS;ON gp Hydrological Consulting Services SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS. the Countv
Hydrological Consulting Service's

of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for the
services of Andy Zdon and Associates, lnc.

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), and in consideration of the mutual prornises, covenants, lerms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto herein. Reouests bv the Countv to the

nyo Cortrrly Planning directorConsultant to perform under this

t?lffi ii:?:x",f,"1;Jf *[?J"::'ffi;"JiT'J:f"XXJ;il:1,9:i
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any seruices or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requiremenis and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be fpe1n July 1,2016 1s June 30,2017
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. CompenSatipn, County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the County's request.

B. Tfavel an4 p-er 4jen. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the

::=--= - - ::=*:Jravtt=and-Be.L:dleno:
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Altachment C). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounis that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

County of lnyo Standard Conlracl - No. '156

(lndependent Consultant -Professional)
Page 1

04062016



C. No a&litiqnal Sqnsidetation. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant

shall not be entitteC to, nor receive, irom County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,

or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not

Oe entifle'd, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,

retirement behefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves

of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limiilpon anroutt oaygble un{er ApKleEent. The total sum of all payments made by the

County to Consr"friii6TG6rvicesnng,t-orf performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem

Jrpeni"., if any, shall not exceed $20,000 Dollars (hereinafter

reieryed to as "iontract limit"). County eipressly reserves the right to deny any p€yment or reimbursement

requested by Consultant for iervices br work p6rformed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of

the contract limit.

E. *,|J'nO Und pqrment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized

statement of att nogrs spent ny Consuttant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which

were done at the County's request. This slatement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth

(Sih) day of the month. 
'The 

statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day ol the

ireieOirig month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the

date on ,ini"ft tne houri were worked ind describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.

Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,

which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. .The itemized

statement for travei expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and.other incidental

expenses in accordance with the iounty's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the

statemenl by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the

rnonth.

F. Federal qnd St?te taxes..

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any

federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made

by county to consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made

under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's

when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this

Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars

($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes

or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is

the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability

for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County io Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the

internal Revenue Service and the California Stale Franchise Tax Board. To
facilitate this reporting, consultant shall complete and submit to the county
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this

Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultanl -Professional)
Page 2

040620 1 6



4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requesled by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under ihis Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, GERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as othenivise may le required.
Fu{her, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must mainiain such licenses, certiflcates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificales, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certiflcales, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, wilh evidence of current and valid iicenses, certiflcates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Aftachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certiflcates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B' Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in coveied transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred-from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at ltltg{rmmg,Sggl_qgy.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the colts ino expenses incuned by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7, COUNTYPROPERTY.

_ A' Personai Prgne{tv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identiflcation cards, keys, elc. provided to bonsultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exciusive pioperty of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items wnile iney are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or tolal, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. P*toOucts of Consulta ervices. Any and all compositions, publications,

programs, com computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audjo recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are crealed, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,

County of lnyo Slandard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consullant -Professional)

Page 3

04062016



product, or manifestation of, Consultant's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

bt tnis Rgreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the

Agreem6nt, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and

amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this

Agreement, shall be performeO as inlependent Consultant's, and not as agents, offic919' or employees of

C6unty. Consultant, by virtue of this Agieement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of

County. Except as expressly provided in_Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to

exerciie any rights or power ri"iteO in the County. No agenl officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be

considered an lmptoyie oi County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall

not under any ciriumstances be 6onstrued or considLred to create an employer-employee relationship or a

joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and

services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement'

B. Consultant shall be responsible io County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreemeni, and exiept as expressly provided in this Agreement,-shall not be subjected to County's

controiwith respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this

Agreement shall, represent and ionduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of

County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnify, including

the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, emptoyees, and volunteers from and against any and all

claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or

willful misconduct of consultant ind its employees or agenis in the performance of professional services

under this contract, but this indemnity does not ipply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence'

active negligence, or willful acts of lhe County.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees'

and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney.fees arising

out of the performance of-the work described helein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or

omission oi the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them' or

anyone for whose acts any oi ihem may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole

negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, ils agents, ofiicers, and

employees harmless undir me provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement

ln thii ngt""ment for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains

higher li;its than the minimum requiied on the lnsurance attachment to this Agreement, the County requires

anid shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, Couniy shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its

agents, offiiers, and employees'from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities'

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 156

(lndependent Consultant -Prolessional)
Page 4 

04062016



expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT"

A. Reeofd.g. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the vadous
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B hspectio$s aqd Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but nol limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenivise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violalion of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, rhedical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consuitant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promutgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P,1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

_ This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty {30) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. Counly has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT"

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
:-:::-@t$n-+tmelvmanaer*oebils-in-aoyivay=as=tesuiredtocooductlberarorkandseadces€s+equire+bF::

County, County may declare the Consuitant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 156
(lndependenl Consultant -Professional)

Page 5

04062016



16. WAIVEROF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any

subsequent default. Waiver or bieach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver

of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this

Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below'

17, CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,

regulations, and ordinanceJ providing thit information and records kept, mainlained, or accessible by

Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,

or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written

consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the Countt's written

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social

services are confidentiit anO are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45'

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,

and Sections 10850 and 1410A.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant

thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elemenis pertaining to

beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT,

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained

from the County in the course of providingj seruices and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,

gain, or enhantement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the.termination of this

Igreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any Counly, associaiion, corporation, or person who,

Otiring tne term of lhis Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has

been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by vidue of this

Agreement has gained access to the County's con{idential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumsiance shall be

declared invaiiO by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or

county statute, oidinanc", or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application

there6f, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the

provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.

ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the

option io cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying

ionsultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification

of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-

two (22) (Amendment).

County of lnyo Standatd Conlract - No- 156

(lndependent Consultant -Pro{essional)
Page 6

04062016



22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or Counly shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

Countv of lnvo:
lnyo C5unty Flanning Department Department

AddressFgtrraweaL

- CitY and State

Consultant:
Andy Zdon and Associates, lnc. Name

Address
City and Statewalnul ureeK, uA v4bvb

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parlies, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreemenls otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

lllltll

County of lnyo Slandard Contracl - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant -Prolessional)
Page 7

0406201 6



GOUNTY OF IT{YO

AilD
SERVICESFORTHE PROVISION OF

IN WITNESS THEREOF, T}IE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET TTIEIR FIAND9AND SEALS THIS

--DAYOF_"._,,r#

qquNwoFll{Yo cQr{SULTANT

AND LEGALITY:

AS AC@UNTI}.IG

REOUIREMENT$:

ASTO

*t'

L)

Odl0ty ot lnyo Shndard Contac,t . No, 156

(lndspond.nt Cotrrulled -Roh$lond)
Pagr 6

lno.

E

AS

(-

%

(x002018



AND Andy

ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Zdon and Associates, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF Hydrologrcal L:on$unng serylces SERVICES

TERM

FROM: July 1,2016 TO . June 30 ,2A17

SCOPE OF WORK:

l, Contractor shall assist the County in the continued review and evaluation of the Final Supplemental Environmental lmpact Statement
(SEIS) that was prepared by the U.5. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) addressing the post closure impacts of the proposed Yucca

Mountain nuclear waste repository on groundwater resources, for the level and quality of the NRC responses to the County's comments

on the Draft 5E15. This work shall include, but not be limited to, a review to ensure that the NRC responded to each of the County's

comments on the DRAFT SEIS; an evaluation ofthe responses to ensure the County's concerns have been addressed appropriately;
provide a written summary of these findings; and be prepared to assist the County in supporting its exiting contentions or crafting new

contentions based on the comments and concerns the County has submitted to the NRC. This work may also include running the Death

Valley Regional Groundwater model to assess the impacts of groundwater pumping on the proposed Yucca Mountain Repository and

evaluating any new models or information introduced by the NRC in the Final SEIS.

2. Contractor shall receive direction as to the scope of the work to be performed from the lnyo County Planning Department and/or the

lnyo County County Counsel.

3. Contractor shall provide all secretarial and clerical support reasonably and customarily necessary to petform the services described in

this Agreement,

4. Contractor shall maintain and retain files and materials on cases and othet matters upon which he/she is working. Once completed,

Contractor may deliver the files and materials to the lnyo County Planning Department for storage.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant -Professional)
Page 9

040620 1 6



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO
Zdon and Associates, lnc,AND

FORTHE PROVISION OF S SERVICES

TERM

FROM: July 1,2016 TO: June 30, 2017

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

I, COMPENSATION:

County shall pay to Contractor for the work and services as described in Attachment A which are performed by the Contractor at

County's request, at a rate not to exceed 520'000'

2. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES:

County shall reimburse Contractor for those incidental expenses which are necessarily incurred by Contractor in providing the

services and work under this Agreement. Reimbursement for incidental expenses shall not be paid in excess of the amount of

520,000.

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No- 156

(lndependent Consultant -Professional)
Page'10

04062016



ATTACHMENTC

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO
AND Andy Zdon and Associates, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVTCES

TERM:

FROM: July 1,2016 TO .June 30,2017

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

Contractor will be compensated only for expenses incurred while performing tasks specified in the Scope of Work. Travel and Per Diem

expenses will be paid out of the 520,000 total cost of the contracted work and travel only for tasks included in the Scope of Work will be

reimbursed.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant -Professional)

Page 1 1

04062016



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND fndy Zdon and Associates' lnc'

FOR THE PROVISION SERVICES

ATTACHMENTD

TERM:

June 30,2017

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIOI'IS

County oflnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant -PrctessionaD
Page 12

FROM: July 1,2016

040620'18



ATTACHMENT E

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Attdy Zdon and Associates, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION SERVICES

2.

TERM:

FROM: July 1,2016 TO June 30, 201 7

FEDERAL FUNDS ADDENDUM

1 . Section 12, Part B, lnspections and Audits, of the contracl is amended to read;

"Any authorized representative of the County, or ol a federal, or state agency shall have
access to any books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial
records of the Consultant, which the County or federal or sfate ageney determines to be
pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by
Consultant. Further, the County or federalor stafe agency has the right, at all reasonable
times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed
under this Agreement. Copies of any of these records shall be furnished, if requested."

Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Consultant warrants that he/she has nol employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the consultant, to
solicit or secure this agreement, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person other than a bona fide employee, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or
any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award, or formation of this
agreemenl. For breach or violation of this warranty, the local agency shall have the right to annul
this agreement without liability, or at its discretion; to deduct from the agreement price or
consideration, or othenrise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage fee, gift, or contingenl fee^

Delays and Extensions. The term of the contract may be extended in the case of unavoidable
delays, changes in the scope of work or level of effort required to meet the project objectives, and
for consideration of corresponding warranted adjustments in payment. An extension of conlract
time is granted as described in Section 23, Amendmenf, of the contract.

Termination or Abandonment^ The provisions of Section 15, Default, will also apply if the
contract is terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the consuitant. The
provisions of the section entitled "County Property" Section 7.8., shall apply to any partially
completed work if the contract is terminated or abandoned.

5. General Compliance with Laws and Wage Rates. The consultant shall comply with the Stale of

3

4

California's General e
77, , state, and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work.

Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract if for more than $25,000 for public works
construction or more than $15,000 for the alteration, demolition, repair, or maintenance of public
works, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.

County of lnyo Slandard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant -Professional)

Page 13

04062016



AND Andy

FOR THE PROVISION OF

ATTACHMENT E - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Zdon and Associates, lnc.

TERM:

TO . June 30, 2017

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant -Professional)
Page 14

FROM: July'1,2016

SERVICES

7

6

L

o

FEDERAL FUNDS ADDENDUM

consultant,s Endorsement on PS&E/Other Data. The consultant's responsible engineer shall

sign aff plans, specifications, estimates (PS&E) and engineering data furnished by him/her' and

*["r" 
"ppropriite, 

indicate hislher california registration number.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Considerations. Consultants must give consideration to

OAE fit*. ai specified in 23 CFi 172.5(b),4S CFR, Part 26. The Consultant shall comply with

tne appticaOte provisions ot f*ninit 10-1, "'i.iotice to Proposers Disadvantaggd Business Enterprise

inror*btion,,' and Exhibii 10-J, "Standard Agreement for Subcontractor/DBE Participation," that

were included in the Request for Statements of Qualifications,

safety. The consultant shall comply with osHA regulations-applicable to the consultant

r"g"rding necessary safety eguipment. or procedurJs. The Consultant shall comply with safety

inJttuitio'nr issued 6V tt e iouhty's projectmanager and other county representatives. Consultant

p"*""irtf .n"tt w""itt"rd hats lnd sitety vests lt all time when working on the construction

pro.iect site.

pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, the county has determined

that such areas are wittiin the limits of the project and are open to public traffic' The Consultanl

snattcomptywith allof the ieluirtments sitt6ttn in Divisions 11,12,13,14, and 15 of the Vehicle

Code. The consultant snatt iat<e all reasonably necessary precautions for safe operation of its

vehicles and the protection of the traveling puntic from injury and damage from such vehicles'

Any subcontract entered into as a resull of this contract shall contain all of the provisions of the

Article.

Certifications. Exhibits 10-F "Certification of Consultant, Commissions & Fees" and 10-G,
,,certification of Agency'' are included as attachments to the contract and made a part of.

04062016



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

X Consent ! Oepartmental lConespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for fl Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDANUMBER

l1
! PuUtic Hearing

n Informational

FROM: Public Works Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF:
tl

June I.4 2019

SUBIECT: Approval of Plans and Specification for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Inne Pine/Death
ValleyAirport

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Request that your Board:

A) Approve the plans and specifications for the Rwrway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death
Valley Airport;

B) Authorize the Public Works Director to advertise and bid the project;

C) Authorize the Public Works Director to sign the forthcoming Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
Airport Improvement Project (AIP) funding Grant Agreement for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at
the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: The overall objective of the project is rehabilitation Runway 16-34. More
specifically, the project consists of culvert replacement, Full Depth Reclamation of the existing asphalt, a 3 inch
asphalt overlay, shoulder grading and pavement markings.

The project will be partially funded by an FAA grant, but the grant is not yet in place. FAA procedures require
that bids for the project be opened and approved for funding prior to finalizing grant funding; the construction
contract will not be awarded until the grant is executed.

The construction contract, construction engineering, and construction management costs are ninety percent
(90y") reimbursable by the anticipated FAA AIP Grant Agreement. After the FAA Grant Agreement is in place,
the Public Works Department will apply for a Califomia Division of Aeronautics matching grant, which will
fund five percent (5%) of ttre FAA Grant Agreement amount, which is four and one-half percent (4.57o) of the
entire project. The County must pay the remainder of the match, which is five and one-half percent (5.57o) of the
entire project.

ALTERNATIWS: Your Board could choose not to approve the plans and specifications and advertising for
bids for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport. This is not recommended
because a FAA Grant Agreement for construction neods to be executed by July 30,2019 to capture as much
discretionary funds as possible. If the FAA timeline for grant award is not met, the County may not receive
adequate funding to carry out the flrll construction project.

OTHERAGENCYINVOLVEMENT: County, FAA, Counsel (for review and approval of the bid
procedures, bid documents, and contract).



Agenda Request Form
Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport - Runway Rehabilitation Project
Page2
June 18,2019

FINANCING: The project will be funded by the FAA's AIP, which will reimburse the County for ninety
percent (90%) of the construction cost of the project, and by the CDA's matching grant program, which will
reimburse the County for four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the sonstruction cost of the project. The
reimbursable costs will be paid through budget unit 150504, Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Pavement, object
codes 5700, Construction in Progress and 5265, Professional Seryices.

DEPARTMENT TIEAD SIGNA
b to(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNTY COUNSEL:

$ur.,ul*

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Mus! be revietted and

approved by counly counsel prior lo subilission la lhe board clerk)

v c,r\
I

Approved:

APPROVAI,S



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT
AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

A COUNTY OF INYO AVIATION FACILITY
LONE PINE, CALIFORNIA

AIRPORT IM PROVEMENT PROGRAM
FAA AtP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

JUNE 2019

WADELL ENGINEERING CORPORATION

AIRPORT PLANNING I ENGINEERING tr MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS



[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



PLANS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT
AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

A COI]NTY OF INYO AVIATION FACILITY
LONE PINE, CALIFORNIA

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COIINTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

A COUNTY OT'INYO PROJECT
WITH FINANCIAL AID FROM

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

APPROVED BY:

MICHAEL J. ERRANTE, P.E.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

WADELL ENGINEERING CORPORATION
AIRPORT PLANNING ! ENGINEERING ! MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

Burlingame, California (650) 348-5010



IPAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



BID PACKAGE,

RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PII\EIDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

A COUNTY OF INYO AVIATION FACILITY
LONE PINE, CALIFORNIA

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FAA AIP DESIGN GRANT NO. #3-06-0126.013,2018

FAA AIP CONSTRUCTION GRANT NO. #3-06.0126.014.2019
COLINTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Inyo County Public Works Department



[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-2t-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Sections:

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

BID PROPOSAL FORMS

CONTRACT AND BONDS

COUNTY PROVISIONS

FEDERAL PROVISIONS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

TECHMCAL SPECIFICATIONS

PLANS



[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



COUNTY OF INYO

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

FAA PROJECT NO. 3-06-0126-0 t4-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO. TR.19.OO4

The Inyo County Public Works Department is soliciting bids for:

RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

At The LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
1900 S Main St, Lone Pine, California93514

Bid Packages, which include the Notice Inviting Bids, Bid Proposal Forms, Contract and Bond Forms, Special
Provisions, and Plans may be obtained from the Inyo County Public Works Department, 168 North Edwards Street,
P.O. Drawer Q, Independence, CA 93526, Telephone (760) 878-0201. A nonrefundable fee of $100.00 will be
charged for each Bid Package. Checks shall be made out to Inyo County Public Worl<s Departnent. TheBid
Package may be viewed at the department offices during regular business hours and on the County of Inyo website
at www.inyocounty,us.

Bidders must purchase bid documents and register as plan holders to be able to submit a bid. Only registered
plan holders will receive any addenda to the bid packages. Ifa bidder does not acknowledge any and all addenda in
the bid, the bid proposal may be rejected.

To expedite shipping, fax to (760) 878-2001 a copy of(l) your mailed check, (2) your bidder contact information,
and (3) your FedEx number for shipping. Checks are to be made out to Inyo County Public Worla Department.

Bids must be delivered in a sealed envelope clearly marked thereon with the bidderrs name and address, the
word !!!, and the project title:

RUIIWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

To be considered, bids must be received by the Assistant Clerk of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, 224
N. Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N), Independence,C|93S26 at or before 3:30 P.M., on June
14,2019 after said time they will be publicly opened and read aloud. No oral, telegraphic, telephonic, or fax
proposals or modifications will be accepted.

General Work Description:

The consists of Full Depth Reclamation and overlay of Runway 16-34 at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport, and
includes the replacement ofthe existing culverts with reinforced concrete pipe, shoulder grading and pavement
markings.

Bids shall conform to and be responsive to the contact documents, which include the notice inviting bids, bid
proposal forms, contract and bond forms, general, County, Federal, special, and technical provisions, and any other
documents incorporated therein by reference. Bids are required for the entire work described in the contract
documents. Each bid must be submitted on the bid proposal forms fumished as part of the bid package.

Contract award, if awarded, will be based on lowest responsible bid total price for the Base Bid and selected Bid
Additives, whichever is in the best interests of the County of Inyo.

The work in the contract is included in Airport Improvement Program Project No. 03-06-0126-014-2019 which is
being undertaken and accomplished by the County of Inyo in accordance with the terms and conditions of a
financial grant agreement between the County and the United States, under the Airport and Airway Safety and
Capacity Expansion Act of 1987.

Prime contractors and subcontractors may attend a pre-bid meeting scheduled for June 26,2019 at 10:00
a.m. Attendees shall meet at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Terminal Building, located at 1900 S Main

RUNWAY REHABILI,{TION PROJECT
ATTHE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Notice Inviting Bids
Page NIB-l



St. After the meeting interested attendees may participate in an optional field walk of the entire work areas

until 12:00 PM.

Each bid must be accompanied by a cashier's check, a certified check, or a bidder's bond from an admitted corporate
surety on the form provided in the bid package, in an amount not less than Llo/o of the amount of the bid, and made

payable to the County of Inyo. If the notice inviting bids and bid proposal forms require or permit each bid to
include additive item prices, the amount of the bid bond or check must be not less than l0% of the amount of the bid
plus all of the additive bid items. The check or bidder's bond shall be given as security that the bidder will enter
into the contract with the County and furnish the required labor and materials payment bond, faithful performance

bond, certificates ofinsurance, or other required documents, ifthe bid is accepted. The check or bond will be

forfeited to the County if the bidder fails to timely enter into said contract or furnish the required bonds, certificates
of insurance, or other required documents. The check or bidder's bond may be retained by the County for sixty (60)

days or until the contract is fully executed by the successful bidder and the County, whichever occurs first.

The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, Regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation, apply to this contract. It
is the policy ofthe County of Inyo to practice nondiscrimination based on race, color, sex or national origin in the

award or perfonnance of this contract. All firms qualifring under this solicitation are encouraged to submit
bids/proposals.

Award of this contract will be conditioned upon satisfuing the requirements of this section. These requirements

apply to all bidders/offerors, including those who qualify as a disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE). There is no

stated DBE contract goal for this contract. The bidder/offeror shall make good faith efforts, as defined in Appendix
A, 49 CFR Parl26, to subcontract to DBE firms, as defined in 49 CFR Part26.

o The apparent successful competitor will be required to submit the following information:
o The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the contract;
. A description of the work that each DBE firm will perform;
o The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;
o Written documentation of the bidder/offeror's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose

participation it submits to meet the contract goal;
r Written confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the

commitment made under (4);
Each bidder must complete, sign, and furnish, with his bid, a "Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities", a statement

entitled "Bidders Statement on Previous Contracts Subject to EEO Clause", and "Assurance of Disadvantaged

Business Enterprise Participation", all addendum, etc., as contained in the Bid Proposal, and Statement of Good
Faith Effort for Local Hire. Each bidder must supply all the information required by the bid documents and

specifications.

The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a faithful performance bond and a labor and materials payment
bond on the forms provided in the bid package in the amount of 100% of the maximum contract amount.

This is a Federal Aid Project and all bids must be based upon rates and wages at least as high as the minimum rates

established by the Secretary of Labor as included in the Specifications. Prevailing wage rates for California shall be
paid to all classifications of labor as required by the laws of the State of Califomia. The proposed Contract is under

and subject to Executive Order I 1246 of September 24, 1965, and to the Equal Opportunity Clause. The EEO
requirements, labor provisions and wage rates are included in the specifications and bid documents and are available
for inspection at the Department of Public Services.

Pursuant to Section 1773 ofthe Labor Code, to which this contract is subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in
Inyo County have been determined by the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage
rates appear in the Department of Transportation publication entitled General Prevailing Wage Rates in effect at the

time the project is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the

State Department of Industrial Relations, are referenced, but not printed, in said publication. Such rates of wages

are also on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of the Public Works Department of
the County oflnyo and are available to any interested party upon request.

Pursuant to Section 1725.5 ofthe Labor Code, the bidder is required to certifr that they, and all subcontractors listed
on the submitted Bid Form documents, are registered with the CA Department of Industrial Relations.

RUNWAY REHAB ILIATION PROJECT
ATTHE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Notice Inviting Bids
Page NIB-2



Attention is directed to the federal minimum wage rate requirements of this project. If there is a difference between
the minimum wage rates predetermined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor and the general prevailing wage rates
determined by the Director of the California Department of Indushial Relations for similar classifications of labor,
the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the higher wage rate. The County will not accept lower
state wage rates not specifically included in the federal minimum wage determinations. This includes "helper" (or
other classifications based on hours of experience) or any other classification not appearing in the federal wage
determinations. Where federal wage determinations do not contain the state wage rate determination otherwise
available for use by the Contractor and subcontractors, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the
federal minimum wage rate that most closely approximates the duties of the employees in question.

The bidder must be licensed as required by law at the time the contract is awarded. Failure of the bidder to obtain
proper and adequate licensing for an award ofa contract shall constitute a failure to execute the contract and shall
result in the forfeiture of the security of the bidder. The State of California contractor license classification required
for this project work is an "A" or a combination of all of the specialty classifications that will be required for the
complete performance of all of the work in accordance with the contract documents. In addition, the Bidder, if a
joint venture, must have a currentjoint venture license at the time ofaward ofthe contract in accordance with
Business and Professions Code Section 7029.1.

The Bidder is further advised, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20103.5, that the first payment for work or
material under this Contract shall not be made unless and until the Registrar of Contractors verifies to the County
that the records ofthe Conhactors' State License Board indicate that the Contractor was properly licensed at the
time the contract was awarded. Any bidder or contractor not so licensed shall be subject to all legal penalties
imposed by law, including, but not limited to, any appropriate disciplinary action by the Contractors' State License
Board.

The Bidder is further advised of the Federal Requirements, attached hereto as Notice Inviting Bids Attachment A:
Information to Bidders, and shall comply with such requirements.

Inyo County reserves the right at any stage ofthese proceedings to reject any or all bids or to waive any immaterial
defect in any bid if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the County.

Each bidder must supply all the information required by the contract documents, special provisions and the standard
specifications.

County of Inyo
Public Works Department

Michael J. Errante P.E.
Director of Public Works

Dated: June 2019

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT
ATTHE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Notice Inviting Bids
Page NIB-3



IPAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



BID PROPOSAL

FORMS

RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATII VALLEY AIRPORT

1900 S Main St, Lone Pine, Califomia935l4

June 2019

Table of Contents

DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 6

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10285.I STATEMENT ...........7

PUBLTC CONTRACT CODE SECTTON 10162 QUESTTONNATRE 8

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10232 STATEMENT 9

CONTRACTOR'S LABOR CODE CERTIFICATION 10

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CERTIFICATION 11

NONCOLLU SION AFFIDAVIT t2

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 13

ASSURANCE OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION l5

DESIGNATION OF DBE AND MINORITY SUBCONTRACTORS. ..........................16

CERTIFICATE OF BUY AMERICAN COMPLIANCE FOR MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS...........................I9

CASHIER'S OR CERTIFIED CHECK FORM........... ....,...21



BID PROPOSAL FORM

To: COLINTYOF INYO
224N. Edwards Street
Independence, California 93 526
(Herein called the "Owner")

From:

(Herein called the "Contractor")

FOR: RT]NWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

(Herein called 6sProject")

Bids will be opened at 3:30 P.M., on July 3, 2019 at the assistant clerk to the Inyo County Board of Supervisor's
office, 224 N. Edwards Street, Independenc e, C A 93 526.

This bid includes all costs for all labor, materials, tools, taxes, insurance, transportation, and other related functions.
to perform all work as required by, and in accordance with, the contract documents for the RUNWAY PAVEMENT
REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT. The bidder must submit a

total bid for all of the items included in the bid schedule.

In submitting this bid, it is understood that:

l. The notice inviting bids; these bid proposal forms; the contract and bond forms; the general, County, special,

and technical provisions; the project plans; including any documents incorporated therein, are to be
considered complementary and are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof with like force
and effect as if all of said documents were set forth in full hereiri. All of said documents, which include
these bid proposal forms, are referred to collectively as the contract documents and shall constitute the
contract between the parties that will come into full force and effect upon acceptance, approval, and

execution by the Inyo County Board ofSupervisors.

2. The contract for the RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE
PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT requires the contractor to perform a complete and finished project.

Anything necessary to complete this work properly and in accordance with the law and lawful governmental

regulations, shall be performed by the contractor, whether set out specifically in the contract documents or
not.

3. The contractor, if its or hisiher bid is accepted, will furnish the required bonds and certificates of insurance

and other required documents as described in the contract documents.

Contractor agrees in submitting this bid to perform all work under the base bid, in accordance with the contract
documents, within 60 calendar days from the date of notice to proceed. The undersigned has/have checked carefully
the following figures and understand(s) that the County of Inyo will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on
the part of the undersigned in making this bid.

Rr.rNwAY REHABTLTATTON PRoJ"aTffi:I"l 
?""XPINE/DEATH 

VALLEY AIRPORT

Page BP-1



Attached as a part of this bid is: (Note selection by placing an"X" in space provided) a bid bond from an admitted
corporate surety on the form provided in the bid package ( ), o. a certified or cashier's check ( ), in an amount not
less than l0% of the amount of the bid submitted, either of which it is agreed, pursuant to the notice inviting bids and
the bid proposal forms, shall be forfeited to or retained by the County of Inyo if the undersigned fails to execute the
contract, or furnish the required bonds, certificates of insurance, and other required documents within ten (10)
calendar days after receiving the contract documents.

The bidder is required to submit a bid for all the iterns included in the bid schedule.

The amount of the bid bond or check must be not less than 10% of the amount of the bid submitted for the base bid
schedule (the total bid) plus all additive bid items.

Also attached as a part of this bid is the bid proposal form; bid item list; designation of subcontractors; Certification
Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity; Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 Statement; Public Contract Code
Section 10162 Questionnaire; Public Contract Code Section 10232 Statement; non-collusion affidavit; Contractor's
Labor Code Certification; and either (a) cashier's or certified check form, or (b) bid bond form. These documents
have been completed and signed as required on the forms provided in the bid package. The bidder's signature on this
proposal constitutes an endorsement and execution ofeach and every certification and declaration that is contained in
these documents, and bidder's promise to perform and abide by the terms of these documents.

ACCEPTAJ\CE:

The County reserves the right to reject this bid. However, this bid shall remain open and shall not be withdrawn for a
period ofsixty (60) calendar days from the date set for its opening. County reserves the right to reject any and all
Bids, or any part of any Bid, to postpone the scheduled Bid deadline dates(s), to make an award in its own best
interest, and to waive any informalities or technicalities that do not significantly affect or alter the substance of an
otherwise responsible Bid and that would not affect a Bidder's ability to perform the work adequately as specified.
This solicitation in no way obligates the County to award a Bid Contract described herein, nor will County assume
any liability for the costs incurred in the preparation and transmittal of Bids in response to this solicitation. County
reserves the right to not accept any Bid, to reject any or all Bids, to reject any part ofany Bid proposal, to negotiate
and modifu any Bid, and to waive any defects or irregularities in any Bid at County's sole discretion. Furthermore,
County shall have the sole discretion to award a Bid Contract as it may deem appropriate to best serve the interests of
County. In this regard, County may consider demonstrated quality of work, responsiveness, comparable experience,
professional qualifications, references, and proposed fees. Awards will not be based on cost alone. County does not
guarantee a minimum or maximum dollar value for any Contract(s) resulting from this solicitation. However, this
bid shall remain open and shall not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the date set for its
opening.

If written notice of the acceptance of this bid is mailed or delivered to the undersigned within sixty (60) calendar
days after the date set for its opening, or at any other time thereafter before it is withdrawn, the undersigrred will
execute and deliver the contract, bonds, certificates of insurance, and other required documents, to the owner within
ten (10) calendar days after receipt ofthe notification ofacceptance ofthis bid (notification ofaward ofcontact).

The bidder shall set forth for each unit basis item of work an item price and a total for the item; and for each lump
sum item, a total for the item; all in clearly legible figures in the respective spaces provided for this purpose. In the
case of unit basis items, the amount set forth under the "Total" column shall be the extension of the item price bid
based on the estimated quantity for the item. The amount of the bid for comparison purposes will be the total of all
items listed in the base bid schedule.

In case of discrepancy between the item unit price and the total set forth for a unit basis item, the item price shall
prevail, except as provided in (a) or (b), as follows:

(a) If the amount set forth as an item price is unreadable or otherwise unclear, or is omitted, or is the same
amount as the entry in the item "Total" column, then the amount set forth in the "Total" column for the item
shall prevail and shall be divided by the estimated quantity for the item and the unit price thus obtained shall
be the iton price.

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page BP-2



(b) (Decimal Errors): If the product of the entered item price and the estimated item quantity is exactly off by a
factor often, one hundred, etc., or one-tenth, or one-hundredth, etc., from the entered item total, the
discrepancy will be resolved by using the entered item price or item total, whichever most closely
approximates percentage-wise the itern price or item total in the engineer's estimate.

The undersigned, as bidder, declares that the only persons or parties interested in this proposal as principals are those

named herein; that this proposal is made without collusion with any other person, firm, or corporation; that he/she

has carefully examined the location of the proposed work, the contract and bond forms, and the plans therein referred
to; and he/she proposes, and agrees if this proposal is accepted, that he/she will contract with the County of Inyo, on
the contract form provided in the bid package, to provide all necessary machinery, tools, apparatus and other means

of construction, and to do all the work and furnish all the materials specified in the contract, in the manner and time
therein prescribed, and according to the requirements of the engineer as therein set forth; and that he/she will take in
full payment therefor the following itern prices:

RTJIYWAY PAYA\IInIT REIABILITATION PROJf,CT
IOI\IE PINE / DEATH VALI,ET AIRPORT

AIP PROJf,CT NO. 3-06-0126-13-2018 DESTGT{

AIP PROJECT NO. 3-06-0126-14-2019 CONSTRUCTION
COI,]NTY PROJECT NO. TR-l9-O04

BIDF'ORM

CONTRACTOR'S BID

TOTAL BrD (rN NTJMBERS)

TOTAL BrD (rN WORDS)

REVIEWED AND CHECKED RY

(For County Use)

TIME OF COMPLETION:

RUNWAY REHABILL{TION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-3

CONTRACTORBID
I]NTIOF' T]NIT ITEVIITUVI ITEVIDESCRIPTION

OIIANTITY MEASTJRE PRICE TOTALNO.

IS sI Mobilization (M-105) (5% MaxofThis Schedule)

2 Cnntnctor Chalitv Cnntrol Pmsmm (C-1fi)) I rs $

I^q s3 C\lvert Remval & ReDlacement Station 1Or19 (D701)

4 Crrlvert Remval & Renhcerent Station 2Or13 (11701) 1 Is $

I,S s5 C)rlvert Remval & ReDlacemnt Station 24+64 (D701)

6 f\rlverf Remval & Renhcemnt Siation 28+42 fl-!701) I LS s

s7 Crlvert Remval & Renlacerent Station 33+61 (D701) I Is

26.4O SY s8 FDR Exis tine Pavement 0-207)

9 5oln Cement for FDR Processins (P-207) 550 TON $

4.Rm TON s10 0.25' Plant MixBituminous Pavenrent (P403)

1t Shoulder Cmdins Pavemnt Frlse To Lishts (10'+/-) with Native Material9So/. (P-152\ 9.400 SY $

1l 250 SF st2 Airfield White Pavenrnt Markins With Beads 0-620)

Airfield Yellow Pavement Markins With Beads (P-620) 30 SF $i3

s14 Airfield Black Paverpnt Markins With No Beads P-620) 3,800 SF

sTOTAL SCHU)ULEA: AIRFIU,D PAVEVETIT RUIABIIXTATION

'..Lr.Ji]illlll.tL..r\i r!ll.lilLli,ll.ll]ril'r.\.,\!4,1!lirl;riil(irrilli\lilli.|jii\ili(ill:)l



The undersigned further specifically agrees to complete all work within 60 (sixtv) calendar days from the date of
notice to proceed

BID SECT]RITY:

The required ten percent (10%) Bid Security for this bid is attached in the form of:

(Note: Check and complete one of the following items)

( ) Bid bond issued

an admitted corporate surety on the form provided in the bid package.

( ) Certified/cashier's check No. issued

ADDEITIDA:

The undersigned acknowledges receipt ofthe following addenda and has provided for all addenda changes in this
bid.

(Fill in addendum numbers and dates addenda were received. If none have been received, enter "NONE".)

WARNING:

IF ADDEI\DA WERE ISSTJED BY TI{E COT]NTY Ai\D ARE NOT NOTED ABOVE AS BEING
RECEIVED BY THE BIDDE& THIS PROPOSAL MAY BE REJECTED.

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page BP-4



BIDDER'S BUSINESS INFORMATION:

IMPORTANT NOTICE: If bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name of corporation and
names of the president, secretary, treasurer, and manager thereof; if a copartnership or joint venture, state the true
name of the firm or joint venture and the names, current addresses, and telephone numbers of all individual co-
partners orjoint venturers composing the partnership orjoint venture; ifbidder or other interested person is an

individual, state first and last names in full. If an LLC, state the true name of the LLC and the names, current
addresses, and telephone numbers of all managing members.

A. Individual ( ), Partnership ( ), Joint Venture ( ): Corporation ( ): Limited Liability Company (LLC) ( ):

Personal Name:

Business Name:

Address:

ZipCode

Telephone: (_)
Federal Identification No.

Contractorts License No. State of

License Expiration Date

(The above address will be used to send notice of acceptance or requests for additional information)

THE T]NDERSIGNED HEREBY DECLARBS, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY TJNDER THE LAWS OF
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, THAT THE STATEMENTS MADE IN THIS BID PROPOSAL FORM,
INCLTJDING ALL OF THE ATTACHED STATEMENTS, DESIGNATIONS, CERTIFICATES, ANI)
AFFIDAVITS, ARE TRUE AJ\D CORRECT, AND TIIAT THEY ARE THE INDIVIDUAL, MANAGING
MEMBE& OR CORPORATE OFFTCE& DULY AUTHORTZED BY LAW TO MAKE THrS BrD ON
BEHALF OF CONTRACTO& AND BY SIGNING BELOW DO MAKE THIS BID ON BEHALF OF
CONTRACTOR ACCORDING TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH OR
REFERENCED HEREIN.

(Signature of Authorized Person) (Title)

(Printed Name) @ate)

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-5



DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS
In compliance with the provisions of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (Section 4100
et. seq. of the Public Contract Code of the State of California), the undersigrred bidder has set forth below
the full name, and the location of the place of business of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor
or render service to the prime contractor in or about the construction of the work or improvement, or a
subcontractor licensed by the State of California who, under subcontract to the prime contractor, specifically
fabricates and installs a portion of the work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the
plans and specifications to which the attached bid is responsive, and the portion of the work that will be done
by each subcontractor for each subcontract in excess of one-half of one percent of the prime contractor's total
bid, or $10,000.00, whichever is greater.

The bidder understands that if he fails to speciff a subcontractor for any portion of the work to be performed
under the contract in excess ofone-halfofone percent ofhis bid, or $10,000.00, whichever is greater, he shall
be deemed to have agreed to perform such portion himself, and that he shall not be permitted to sublet or
subcontract that portion of the work except in cases of public emergency or necessity, and then only after a
finding, reduced to writing as a public record of the awarding authority, setting forth the facts constituting the
emergency or necessity. No subcontactor other than those listed below will be allowed to perform work
under this contract.

If no subcontractors are to be employed on the project, enter the word "NONE".
(Use additional pages if necessary)

*AGR - Annual Gross Receipts
Enter I for less than $500,000
Enter 2 for more than $500,000 to $1,000,000

Enter 3 for more than $1,000,000 to $2,000,000
Enter 4 for more than $2,000,000 to $5,000,000
Enter 5 for more than $5,000,000

BID
ITEM
NO.

DESCRIPTION OF
WORK

LICENSE
NTJMBER
&TYPE

& DT]NS #

AGRX

o/o OF
TOTAL

CONTRACT

STJBCONTRACTOR'S
NAME, ADDRESS, AND

PHONE NO.

( Si gnature of Authorized Person) (Title)

(Date)

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-6

(Printed Name)



PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10285.1
STATEMENT

RLINWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-0t4-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 (Chapter 376, Stats. 1985), the bidder hereby
declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the bidder (CHECK ONE)

has (_), has not (__-) been convicted within the preceding three years of any offenses referred to in
that section, including any charge of fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy, or any other act in violation of any
state or Federal antitrust law in connection with the bidding upon, award of, or performance of any public
works confact, as defined in Public Contract Code Section 1101, with any public entity, as defined in
Public Contract Code Section 1100, including the Regents of the University of California or the Trustees of
the California State University. The term "bidder" is understood to include any partner, mernber, officer,
director, responsible managing officer, or responsible managing ernployee thereof as referred to in Section
10285.1.

NOTE: The bidder must place a check mark after 'has" or "has not" in one of the blank spaces

provided. The above statement is part of the proposal. Signing this proposal on the signature portion
thereof shall also constitute sigrrature of this statement. Bidders are cautioned that making a false
certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution.

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-7



PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10162

QUESTIONNAIRE

RTJIYWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT TIIE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10162, the bidder shall complete, under penalty of
perjury, the following questionnaire:

Has the bidder, any officer of the bidder, or any unployee of the bidder who has a proprietary interest in the
bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or completing a federal,
state, or local government project because of a violation oflaw or a safety regulation?

Yes

If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space.

By bidder's signature on the proposal, bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
Califomia, that the foregoing questionnaire and statements in accordance with Public Contract Code Section
10162 are true and correct.

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT ATTHE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-8

No



PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10232
STATEMENT

RI]NWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PRO GRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10232, the contractor hereby states, under penalty of
perjury, that no more than one final unappealable finding of contanpt of court by a federal court has been
issued against the contractor within the immediately preceding two year period because of the contractor's
failure to comply with an order of a federal court that orders the contractor to comply with an order of the
National Labor Relations Board.

By bidder's sigrrature on the bid proposal form, bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the

State of California, that the foregoing statements in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10232
are true and correct.

(Name and Title of Signer)

Signature Date

Company N

Business Address

RUNWAY REHABILL{TION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-9



CONTRACTOR'S LABOR CODE CERTIFICATION
(Labor Code Section 3700 et seq.)

RUNTWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA ArP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-0t4-20r9

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 and following of the labor code that requires every employer to
be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self- insurance in accordance with the
provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the
work of this contract.

(Name and Title of Signer)

Signature Date

Company Name

Business Address

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT ATTHE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-10



(THE BIDDER'S EXECUTION ON THE SIGNATURE PORTION OF THIS PROPOSAL SHALL ALSO CONSTITUTE
AN ENDORSEMENT AND EXECUTION OF THOSE CERTIFICATIONS WHICH ARE A PART OF THIS PROPOSAL)

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
CERTIFICATION

The bidder proposed

subcontractor . hereby certifies that he has_,

has not_, participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity clauses, as

required by Executive Orders 10925,1 1 I 14, or 11246, and that, where required, he has filed with the Joint

Reporting Committee, the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance, a Federal Government

contracting or administering agency, or the former President's Committee on Equal Employment

Opporrunity, all reports due under the applicable filling requirements.

Note: The above certification is required by the Equal Employment Opportunity Regulations of the
Secretary of Labor (41 CFR 60-1.7(b) (l)), and must be submitted by bidders and proposed
subcontractors only in connection with contracts and subcontracts that are subject to the equal
opportunity clause. Confacts and subcontracts that are exempt from the equal opportunity clause are
set forth in 4 1 CFR 60- 1 .5. (Generally only contracts or subcontacts of $ I 0,000 or under are

exempt.)

Currently, Standard Form 100 (EEO-I) is the only report required by the Executive Orders or their
implementing regulations.

Proposed prime contractors and subcontractors who have participated in a previous contract or subcontract
subject to the Executive Orders and have not filed the required reports should note that 4l CFR 60-1.7(b) (l)
prevents the award ofcontracts and subcontracts unless such contractor submits a report covering the
delinquent period or such other period specified by the Federal Highway Administration or by the Director,
Office of Federal Contract Compliance, U.S. Department of Labor.

Recipient, contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to
labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.

The contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all
subcontracts to perform work under the contract.

RUNWAY REHABILTATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-l 1



Noncollusion Affidavit
(Title 23 United States Code Section ll2 and

Public Contract Code Section 7106)

To the COUNTY of INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

In accordance with Title 23 United States Code Section 112 andPublic Contract Code 7106 the bidder declares

that the bid is not made in the interest of or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company,

association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has

not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly
or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or
that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by
agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or

to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element ofthe bid price, or ofthat ofany other bidder, or to secure any

advantage against the public body awarding the contract ofanyone interested in the proposed contract; that all
statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted

his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative

thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnenhip, company association, organization,

bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

Note: The above Noncollusion Affidavit is part of the Proposal. Signing this Proposal on the
signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this Noncollusion Affidavit.

Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to criminal
prosecution.

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-12



DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION
TITLE 49, CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, PART 29

The bidder, under penalty of perjury, certifies that, except as noted below, he/she or any other person

associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, and manager:

r Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by
any federal agency;

o Has not been suspurded, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any federal

agency within the past 3 years;

o Does nothave aproposed debarmentpending; and

r Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of competent
jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past 3 years.

If there are any exceptions to this certification, insert the exceptions in the following space.

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining bidder
responsibility. For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom it applies, initiating agency, and dates
of action.

Notes: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative sanctions.

The above certification is part ofthe Proposal. Sigrring this Proposal on the signature portion thereof
shall also constitute signature of this Certification.

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-13



BIDDER'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY,

TECHNICAL ABILITY, AND EXPERIENCE
(This form must be completed and submitted with this bid)

The bidder is required to state what work of a similar character to that included in the proposed contract he
has successfully performed and give referencees which will enabble the owner to judge his responsibility,
experience, skill, and business standing.

The undersigned submits herewith a statement of his financial responsibility.

The undersigned submits below a statement of the work of a similary character to that included in the
proposed contract which he has successfully performed within the last three years. (Include the type of work,
name, and phone number of all references, and the amount of contact.) Attached supplernental pages as

necessary.

As noted in General Provisions Section 20-2, Quolifrcation of Bidders, bidders may submit evidence that
they are prequalified with the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and are on their current
"bidder's list" in lieu of completing this form.

Tlpe Name and Phone Number Amount of
Contract

Signature of Bidder Date

RI,JNWAY REHABILI.ATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-14

SIGNHERE



ASSURANCE OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

Award of this contract will be conditioned upon satisfying the requirements of this section. These
requirements apply to all bidders/offerors, including those who qualifu as a DBE. No DBE contract goal has

been established for this contract. The bidder/offeror shall make good faith efforts, as defined in Appendix A,
49 CFR ParI26, to subcontract to disadvantaged business enterprises (DBE), as defined in 49 CFR Part26.

The apparent successful competitor will be required to submit the following information:
l. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the contract;
2. A description of the work that each DBE firm will perform;

3. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;
4. Written documentation of the bidder/offeror's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose

participation it submits to meet the contract goal;

5. Written confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the commitment
made under (4);

To meet the mandated requirements of the United States Departrnent of Transportation, 49 CFR ParI26,the
assurance below shall be signed by the bidder and submitted with his bid. The bidder's execution of the
signature portion ofthis proposal shall also constitute execution ofthis assurance.

Bidder's Assurance of Compliance With Title 49 CFR Part 26 Relatine To Disadvantaeed Business Enterprise
Participation

The Bidder hereby gives assurance pursuant to the requirements of Title 49 CFR Part26 that bidder has made

a reasonable effort to meet the goals for DBE participation specified for the contract for which this proposal is
submitted and that bidder, if the contract is awarded to bidder, will have a DBE participation for DBEs owned
and controlled by women of *_ percent of the amount of this bid, for DBEs owned and controlled by
minorities of *_ percent of the amount of this bid and for DBEs owned and controlled by other
disadvantaged persons of *_ percent ofthe amount ofthis bid.

SIGNHERE
Sigrrature of Bidder Date

a Bidder shall insert the percentage for women participation, minority participation, and other DBE
participation even ifthe percentages are less than the contract goal.

The bidder/offeror shall submit items #1, 2,3, 4, and 6 as a condition of bid responsiveness. Iterns #5 must be
submitted prior to commitment of the Owner to award of contract to the apparent successful bidder/offeror

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-15



DESIGNATION OF DBE AND MINORITY
SUBCONTRACTORS

The following are the names and the principal places of business of all subcontractors who will perform work
or labor, or render service to the bidder in or about the work, together with a statement of the portion and
dollar value of the work to be done by each subcontractor.

A. WOMEN-OWIIED AI\D CONTROLLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:

*AGR - Annual Gross Receipts

Enter I for less than $500,000

Enter 2 for more than $500,000 to $ I ,000,000

Enter 3 for more than $1,000,000 to $2,000,000

Enter 4 for more than $2,000,000 to $5,000,000

Enter 5 for more than $5,000,000

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORI

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-16

CONTRACT ITEM
OT'WORK AI\D
DESCRIPTION

DOLLAR
VALUE OF

WORK

SIIBCONTRACTOR'S NAME,
ADDRESS, ArlD PHONE NO. DT]NS # AGR*



B. MINORITY.OWNED AND CONTROLLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:

*AGR - Annual Gross Receips

Enter I for less than $500,000

Enter 2 for more than $500,000 to $1,000,000

Enter 3 for more than $1,000,000 to $2,000,000

Enter 4 for more than $2,000,000 to $5,000,000

Enter 5 for more than $5,000,000

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-17

CONTRACT ITEM
OF WORK AND
DESCRIPTION

DOLLAR
VALUE OF

WORK

SUBCONTRACTOR'S NAME,
ADDRESS, AND PHONE NO. DTJNS # AGR*



C. OTHERDBE-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:

* AGR - Annual Gross Receips

Enter I for less than $500,000

Enter 2 for more than $500,000 to $1,000,000

Enter 3 for more than $1,000,000 to $2,000,000

Enter 4 for more than $2,000,000 to $5,000,000

Enter 5 for more than $5,000,000

CONTRACT ITEM
OF WORKANI)
DESCRIPTION

DOLLAR
VALTJE OF

WORI(
stiBcoNTRAcToR's NAME'
ADDRESS, AND PHONE NO. DTJNS # AGR*

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-18



Certificate of Buy American Compliance for
Manufactured Products

As a matter of bid responsiveness, the bidder or offeror must complete, sign, date, and submit this

certifrcation statement with their proposal. The bidder or offeror must indicate how they intend to comply

with 49 USC $ 50101 by selecting one on the following certification statements. These statements are

mutually exclusive. Bidder must select one or the other (not both) by inserting a checkmark 1r') or the letter

'ox".

E Sidder or offeror hereby certifies that it will comply with 49 USC $ 50101 by:

a) Only installing steel and manufactured products produced in the United States;

b) Installing manufactured products for which the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has

issued a waiver as indicated by inclusion on the current FAA Nationwide Buy American

Waivers Issued listing; or
c) Installing products listed as an Excepted Article, Material or Supply in Federal Acquisition

Regulation Subpart 25. I 08.

By selecting this certification statement, the bidder or offeror agrees:

1. To provide to the Owner evidence that documents the source and origin of the steel and

manufactured product.

2. To faithfully comply with providing U.S. domestic product.

3. To furnish U.S. domestic product for any waiver request that the FAA rejects

4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless

extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justifred.

E fne bidder or offeror hereby certifies it cannot comply with the 100 percent Buy American

Preferences of 49 USC $ 50101(a) but may qualify for either a Type 3 or Type 4 waiver under 49

USC $ 50101(b). By selecting this certification statement, the apparent bidder or offeror with the

apparent low bid agrees:

1. To the submit to the Owner within 15 calendar days of the bid opening, a formal waiver

request and required documentation that supports the type of waiver being requested.

2. That failure to submit the required documentation within the specified timeframe is cause

for a non-responsive determination may result in rejection of the proposal.

3. To faithfully comply with providing U.S. domestic products at or above the approved U.S.

domestic content percentage as approved by the FAd.
4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless

extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.

Required Documentation

Type 3 Waiver - The cost of the item components and subcomponents produced in the United States is

more that 60 percent of the cost of all components and subcomponents of the "item". The required

documentation for a Type 3 waiver is:

a) Listing of all product components and subcomponents that are not comprised of 100 percent

U.S. domestic content (Excludes products listed on the FAA Nationwide Buy American

Waivers Issued listing and products excluded by Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart

25.108; products of unknown origin must be considered as non-domestic products in their

entirety).

b) Cost of non-domestic components and subcomponents, excluding labor costs associated with
final assembly at place of manufacture.

R{.rNwAY REHABTLL{rrO. *"J"#fi 
l# |:H*/DEATH 

VALLEY ArRPoRr

Page BP-19



c) Percentage of non-domestic component and subcomponent cost as compared to total "item"
component and subcomponent costs, excluding labor costs associated with final assembly at

place of manufacture.

Type 4 Waiver - Total cost of project using U.S. domestic source product exceeds the total project cost

using non-domestic product by 25 percent. The required documentation for a Type 4 of waiver is:

a) Detailed cost information for total project using U.S. domestic product

b) Detailed cost information for total project using non-domestic product

False Statements: Per 49 USC 5 47126, this certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of the

Federal Aviation Administration and the making of a false, fictitious or fraudulent certification may render

the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18, United States Code.

Date Signature

CompanyName Title

RUNWAY REHABILTATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-20



RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

CASHIER'S OR CERTIFIED CHECK FORM
(Not required if bid bond accompanies the bid)

A cashier's or certified check in the required amount and made payable to the County of Inyo is attached
below:

ATTACH CHECK HERE

RUNWAY REHABILIT{TION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-21

l

t

Bidder (print name)



RUI\-WAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA ArP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-20t9

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

BID BOND
(BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE)

(Not required if certified or cashier's check accompanies the bid)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That we,

as Principal, and

(Name of Bidder)

(Name of Corporate Surety)

as Corporate Surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California, are held and firmly

bound unto the County of Inyo, State of Califomia, in the sum of _
dollars ($ )

for the payment whereof we hereby bind ourselves, our successon, heirs, executors, and

adminisfrators, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that whereas the above bounded Principal is about to submit
to the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo a bid for the construction of the RUNWAY PAVEMENT
REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT,, in compliance
with the contract therefor:

Now, if the bid of the Principal shall be accepted and the contract awarded to the Principal by said Board of
Supervisors, and ifthe Principal shall fail or neglect to enter into the contract therefor in accordance with the
terms of the Principal's bid and the terms set forth in the bid package, or to furnish the required Faithful
Performance and Labor and Materials Payment Surety Bonds, certificates of insurance, and other required
documents, to the satisfaction of the Board of Supervisors of said County, no later than EIGHT (8)
WORIilNG DAYS after the Principal has received notice from the County that the contract has been
awarded to the Principal, then the sum guaranteed by this bond is forfeited to the County of Inyo.

RUNWAY REHABILL{TION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
PageBP-22



It is expressly agreed and understood that any errors, clerical, mathematical, or otherwise, in the bid shall not
be or constitute a defense to a forfeiture ofthis bond.

WITNESS our hands and seals this of 20

Principal

(sEAL)

(Name & Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

Surety

(SEAL)

(Name & Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

NOTE:

THE SIGNATURES OF THE PRINCIPAL (BIDDER) Al\D ST'RETYMUST EACH BE
ACKNOWLEDGED BY A NOTARY AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS MUST BE ATTACHED
TO THIS BOND. The bid bond must be executed on this form by a corporate surety admitted to issue such

bonds in the State of California. No substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact sigrrs for the surety,
an acknowledged statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such

bonds in such amounts on behalf of the surety, must accompany the bid bond.

ADDRESS OF COLINTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT:

County of Inyo (Attn.: Public Works Director)

224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box Q

Independence, California 93 526

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-23



DISPUTES RELATING TO PROPOSAL PROCESS AND AWARD

In the event a dispute arises concerning the bid process prior to the award ofany contract, the party wishing
resolution of the dispute shall submit a written request to County Director of Purchasing. Bidder may appeal
the recommended award of denial of award, provided the following stipulation are met:

l. Only a bidder who has actually submiued a Bid Proposal is eligible to submit a bid protest against another
bidder. Subcontractors are not eligible to submit bid protests. A bidder may not rely on the bid protest
submitted by another bidder, but must timely pursue its own protest.

2. Appeal must be in writing. The bid protest must contain a complete statement of the basis for the protest
and all supporting documentation. Material submitted after the Bid Protest Deadline will not be
considered. The protest must refer to the specific portion or portions of the Contact Documents upon
which the protest is based. The protest must include the name, address and telephone number of the
peruon representing the protesting bidder ifdifferent from the protesting bidder.

3. A copy of the protest and all supporting documents must also be transmitted by fax or by e-mail, by or
before the Bid Protest Deadline, to the protested bidder and any other bidder who has a reasonable
prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.

4. Must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the recommended award or denial of award
letters.

5. An appeal of a denial of award can only be brought on the following grounds:

a. Failure to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements specified in the RFB/RFP or
any addenda or amendments.

b. There has been a violation of conflict of interest as provided by California Government Code section
87100 et seq.

c. A violation of State or Federal law.

6. Appeals will not be accepted for any other reasons than those stated above. All appeals must be sent to:

Clint Quilter, Director
County of Inyo
Purchasing Department
224N. Edwards St.

Independence, CA93526

County's Purchasing Director shall make a decision concerning the appeal, and notiff the Proposer making
the appeal, within a reasonable timeframe prior to the tentatively scheduled date for awarding the contract.
The decision of the County's Purchasing Director be deerned final.

RTJNWAY REHABILI,A.TION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
PageBP-24



[This page intentionally left blank]

RUNWAY REHABILI,ATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Bid Proposal Forms
Page BP-25



CONTRACT
AND BOND FORMS

FOR

RUIYWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0t26,014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

June 2019

ENCLOSURES:
Contract

Faithful Performance Bond

Labor and Material Payment Bond



[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



I.

u.

IV.

ilI.

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

for

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT
AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and made and

entered into effective
political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"), and

(hereinafter referred to as for the consfuction or

rernoval of PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), which
parties agree, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, as follows:

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED: CONTRACTOR agrees at its own expense to fumish all labor,
materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation, permits,
services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions necessary to COUNTY to construct the
Project in accordance with the terms of the Grant, as detailed in the COUNTY's REQUEST FOR BIDS
sub nom "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS", portions of which are attached hereto as Attachment A and all
of which is incorporated herein by this reference, as well as in the CONTRACTOR's Response to the
Request for Bids, which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein by this reference,

and complete all work within the time for completion set forth in Attachment A.

TIME OF COMPLETION: Project work shall begin within calendar days after receipt of the
Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and shall continue until all
requested services are completed. Said services shall be completed no later than the Time of
Completion as noted in the Project s Special Provisions. Procedures for any extension of time shall be
complied with as noted in the Project s Special Provisions.

COMPENSATION / CONSIDERATION: Compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR for
performance of such work shall be in accordance with the schedules for payment set forth in
Attachment "B" to this contract. Any payment by COUNTY shall not be deemed a waiver of defects,
even if such defects were known to the COUNTY at the time of payment.

METHOD OF PAYMENT: CONTRACTOR shall bill by invoice directed to the Director of Public
Works or designee describing the work, the charge for the work, and date the work was performed.
CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY a completed IRS form W-9 before payments will issue from
COUNTY. COUNTY will pay the invoice within 30 days of the receipt following normal claims
handling procedures.

STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: CONTRACTOR represents that he/she is qualified and licensed

RIJNWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINEIDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page C-l

v.



vr.

VII.

VIII.

IX.

to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract. COUNTY relies upon the representations
of CONTRACTOR regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and ability to perform the
services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract. Acceptance of work by the COUNTY does
not operate to release CONTRACTOR from any responsibility to perform work to professional and/or
trade standards. CONTRACTOR shall provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to
perform all services under this Contract. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services required by this
Contract in a manner and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession. All work products of whatsoever nature delivered to the COUNTY shall be prepared in a
manner conforming to the standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in
CONTRACTOR'S profession and/or trade.

INDEPEI\DENT CONTRACTOR: Nothing contained herein or any document executed in
connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership or joint venture
relationship between COLINTY and CONTRACTOR nor to allow COUNTY to exercise discretion or
control over the manner in which CONTRACTOR performs the work or seryices that are the subject
matter of this Agreement; provided, however, the work or services to be provided by CONTRACTOR
shall be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the COLINTY's objectives in entering this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, not an employee of COUNTY or any
of its subsidiaries or affiliates. CONTRACTOR will not represent itself to be nor hold itself out as an
employee of COUNTY. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it shall not have the right or entitlement in
or to any of the pension, retirement or other benefit programs now or hereafter available to COLINTY's
employees. The consideration set forth in Sections tV and V above shall be the sole consideration due
CONTRACTOR for the services rendered hereunder. It is understood that COUNTY will not withhold
any amounts for payment of taxes from CONTRACTOR's compensation hereunder. Any and all sums
due under any applicable state, federal or municipal law or union or professional and/or trade guild
regulations shall be CONTRACTOR's sole responsibility. CONTRACTOR shall indemniff and hold
COUNTY harmless from any and all damages, claims and expenses arising out of or resulting from any
claims asserted by any third party, including but not limited to a taxing authority, as a result of or in
connection with payments due it from CONTRACTOR's compensation.

ASSIGNMENT Al\D SUBCONTRACTING. The parties recognize that a substantial inducement to
County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation, experience and competence of
Contractor. Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or obligations of the Contractor under this
Contract will be permiued only with the express consent of the County. Contractor shall not
subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract without the written
authorization of the County. If County consents to such subcontract, Contractor shall be fully
responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor. Nothing in this Contract shall
create any contractual relationship between County and subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation
on the part of the County to pay any monies due to any such subcontractor, unless otherwise required by
law.

CLAIMS RESOLUTION: Pursuant to Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code, any and all claims
submitted by the CONTRACTOR to COUNTY will follow the provisions as set forth in the Project's
County Provisions section.

INSURANCE INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall hold harrnless, defend and indemnifu County
and its offrcers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and
expenses, including attomey fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in
whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly
or indirectly unployed by any of thun, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except
where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

RUNWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-06{126-014-2019
COIjNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Page C-2



x.

xr.

XII.

xrII.

POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the meaning of the
Political Reform Act because Contractor:

l. Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/trer rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control and
direction of the County or of any County official, other than normal Contract
monitoring; and

2. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel [FPPC Reg. 18700(a)(2)].

COMPLIAi\CE WITH ALL LAWS. Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession and/or
trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and regulations that
relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.

1. Safety Training: Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as needed to
assure work will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a language" that is
understandable to employees receiving the training. The training shall in all respects be
in compliance with CAL OSHA. Contractor working with employees shall maintain a

written Injury and Illness Prevention (IIP) Program, a copy of which must be
maintained at each worksite or at a central worksite identified for the employees, if the
Contractor has non-fixed worlsites. Contractor using subcontractors with the approval
of the County to perform the work which is the subject of this Contract shall require
each subcontractor working with employees to comply with the requirements of this
section.

2. Child, Family and Spousal Support Reporting Obligations: Contractor shall comply
with the state and federal child, family and spousal support reporting requiranents and
with all lawfully served wage and eamings assignment orders or notices of assignment
relating to child, family and spousal support obligations.

3. Nondiscrimination: Contractor shall not discriminate in employment practices or in
the delivery of services on the basis of membership in a protected class which includes
any class recognized by law and not limited to race, color, religion, sex (gender), sexual
orientation, marital status, national origin (Including language use restrictions),
ancestry, disability (mental and physical, including HIV and Aids), medical Conditions
(cancer/genetic characteristics), age (40 and above) and request for family care leave.

Contractor represents that it is in compliance with federal and state laws prohibiting
discrimination in employment and agrces to stay in compliance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. sections l2l0l, et. seq.), Age Discrimination
in Employment Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title YII (42 U.S.C. 2000, et.

seq.), the California Fair Employment Housing Act (California Government Code
sections 12900, et. seq.) and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto.

LICENSES: CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to COUNTY that it has all licenses, permits,
qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required of
CONTRACTOR to practice its trade and/or profession. CONTRACTOR represents and warants to
COUNTY that CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times
during the term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, inswance and approvals which are legally
required of CONTRACTOR to practice its and/or profession.

PREVAILING WAGE: Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code, CONTRACTOR agrees
to comply with the Departrnent of lndustrial Relations regulations, to which this Contract is subject, the

RT]NWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126414-2019
COLINTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Page C-3



XIV.

xv.

prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by the Director of the State
Departrnent of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the Departrnent publication entitled
"General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the project is advertised. Future effective wage
rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations
are referenced but not printed in said publication. Such rates of wages are also on file with the State
Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of the Public Works Department of the County of
Inyo and are available to any interested party upon request. CONTRACTOR agrees to submit certified
payroll to COUNTY and comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations in submitting
the certified payroll.

CONTROLLING LAW VENUE: This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State of California.
The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of California for the

County oflnyo.

WRITTEN NOTIFICATION: Any notice, dernand, request, consent, approval or communication that
either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing and either served
personally or sent prepaid, first class mail. Any such notice, demand, et cetera, shall be addressed to the
other party at the address set forth herein below. Either party may change its address by notifying the
other party of the change of address. Notice shall be deemed communicated within 48 hours from the
time of mailing if mailed as provided in this section.

If to COUNTY County of Inyo
Public Works Department
Attn: AshleyHelms
168 N. Edwards
PO Drawer Q Independence,CA93526

If to CONTRACTOR:

XVI. AMENDMENTS. This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written document executed
by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by kryo County Counsel.

XVII. WAIVER. No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy hereunder shall operate

as a waiver of any other right or remedy thatparty may have hereunder.

XVIIL TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated for the reasons stated below:

l. Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities under this
Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the other party
or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract. If termination for cause is
given by either party to the other and it is later determined that the other party was not
in default or default was excusable, then the notice of termination shall be deemed to
have been given without cause pursuant to paragraph "b" ofthis section; or

2. By either party without cause upon fifteen (15) days' written notice of termination.
Upon termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for services performed
up to the effective date of termination; or

3. By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding ending or

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06{126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-1104

Page C-4



being materially decreased during the term of this Contract.

XIX. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the
remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be
affected, impaired or invalidated.

XX. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. It is understood and
agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by the kryo County Board
of Supervisors upon Notice and Public Hearing. [n the event that the Board of Supervisors declines to
enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that there is, in fact, no binding agreement,
either written or oral, between the parties herein.

XXI. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for every provision in this Agreement.

XXII. ALL PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN: CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that this Contract
shall include and consist of:

1. All provisions set forth expressly herein;

2. The Bid Proposal Forms, the Faithful Performance Bond, and the Labor and Materials
Payment Bond, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part of this contract by
reference; and

3. A1l other contract documents, as described in Section 5-1.02, "Contract
Components"; for the purpose of this Contract, Special Provisions includes:

a. County Provisions;
b. General Provisions;
c. Federal Provisions;
d. Special Provisions; and
e. Technical Specifications.

XXI[. EXECUTION. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties. In approving this Contract, it
shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

xxrv. REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVTSTONS

A. ACCESS TO RECORDS Al\D REPORTS: The CONTRACTOR must maintain an acceptable cost
accounting system. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the Owner, the Federal Aviation Administration
and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives access to
any books, documents, papers and records of the CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to the
specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The
CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain all books, records and reports required under this contract for a period
of not less than three years after final payment is made and all pending matters are closed.

B. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS
Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors
may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to
enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

Owner will provide CONTRACTOR written notice that describes the nature of the breach and corrective
actions the CONTRACTOR must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract. Owner resewes

RI,]NWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAAIP PROJECI NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19404

Page C-5



the right to withhold payments to CONTRACTOR until such time the CONTRACTOR corrects the breach
or the Owner elects to terminate the contract. The Owner's notice will identify a specific date by which the

CONTRACTOR must correct the breach. Owner may proceed with termination of the contract if the

CONTRACTOR fails to correct the breach by the deadline indicated in the Owner's notice.

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available
thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise
imposed or available by law.

C. GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are

promulgated to ensure that no penion shall, on the grounds ofrace, creed, color, national origtn, sex, age, or
disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal
assistance.

This provision binds the CONTRACTOR and subcontractors from the bid solicitation period through the

completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964.

D. CIVIL RIGHTS _ TITLE VI ASSURANCE

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements:

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and successors

in interest (hereinafter referred to as the *CONTRACTOR"), agrees as follows:

l. Compliance with Regulations: The CONTRACTOR (hereinafter includes consultants) will
comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may be

amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this
contract.

2. Nondiscrimination: The CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and

retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The
CONTRACTOR will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers
any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the CONTRACTOR for work to

be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment,
each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the CONTRACTOR of the
CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities
on the grounds ofrace, color, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports: The CONTRACTOR will provide all information and reports required

by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its
books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by
the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions. Where any information required of
a CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the
information, the CONTRACTOR will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation
Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-06{126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-{104

Page C4



5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a CONTRACTOR's noncompliance with the non-
discrimination provisions of this contact, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or
the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a. Withholding payments to the CONTRACTOR under the contract until the CONTRACTOR
complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The CONTRACTOR will include the provisions of paragraphs one

through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment,
unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto. The
CONTRACTOR will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or
the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is
threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because ofsuch direction, the
CONTRACTOR may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the
sponsor. In addition, the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into the litigation
to protect the interests of the United States.

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and successors in
interest (hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACTOR) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

o Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of l9e g2 USC $ 2000d et seq.,78 stat. 252) (prohibits discrimination
on the basis ofrace, color, national origtn);

o 49 CFR part 2l (Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Deparftnent of
Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

o The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970,(42 USC $
4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of
Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC $ 794 et seq.),as amended (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFRpart2T;

o The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC $ 610l et seq.) (prohibits discrimination on
the basis ofage);

r Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC $ 471, Section 47123), as amended (prohibits
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national orign, or sex);

o The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage and

applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of l964,the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of l973,by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or
activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and

CONTRACTORs, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

o Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the

basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of
public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 USC $$ 12131 - 12189) as implernented by U.S.
Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;

RTJNWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page C-7



o The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC S 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origrn, and sex);

r Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and
Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority populations by
discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health
or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

r Executive Order l3l66,Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,
and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited
English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to
ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

r Title D( of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating
because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC 1681 et seq).

E. CLEANI AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to
the Clean Air Act (42 USC 5 740-767Iq) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 USC

$ 1251-1387). The CONTRACTOR agrees to report any violation to the Owner immediately upon
discovery. The Owner assumes responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
and the Federal Aviation Administration.

CONTRACTOR must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $150,000.

F. CONTRACT WORKHOTJRS AND SAF'ETY STAIIDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS

I . Overtime Requirements: No CONTRACTOR or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract
work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit
any such laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any workweek in which he or she is
employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or
mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for
all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; Liabitity for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages: In the event of any violation of the
clause set forth in paragraph (l) of this clause, the CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor responsible
therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. ln addition, such CONTRACTOR and subcontractor shall
be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a
territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be
computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,

employed in violation ofthe clause set forth in paragraph (l) ofthis clause, in the sum of $10 for each
calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard
workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in
paragraph (l) ofthis clause.

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages: The Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of
the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of
work performed by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal
contract with the same prime CONTRACTOR, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime CONTRACTOR,
such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfu any liabilities of such CONTRACTOR or
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph

RUNWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAAIP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Page C-8



(2) of this clause.

4. Subcontractors: The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set

forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses
in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance by any
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (l) through (4) of this
clause.

G. COPELAND *AIITI-KICKBACK" ACT
CONTRACTOR must comply with the requirements of the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874
and 40 USC 3 145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR part 3. CONTRACTOR
and subcontractors are prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed on the project to give
up anypart of the compensation to which the employee is entitled. The CONTRACTOR and each
Subcontractor must submit to the Owner, a weekly statement on the wages paid to each employee
performing on covered work during the prior week. Owner must report any violations of the Act to the
Federal Aviation Administration.

H. DAVrS-BACON REQUTREMENTS

l. Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid unconditionally
and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such
payroll deductions as are permitted by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the
full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalent thereof) due at time of payrnent
computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to
exist between the CONTRACTOR and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the
Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics,
subject to the provisions ofparagraph (l)(iv) ofthis section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred
for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover
the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage
determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in
29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be
compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Providediltatthe
employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is
performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under
(l)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the
CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can
easily be seen by the workers.

(iiXA) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is
not listed in the wage determination and which is to be anployed under the contract shall be classified in
conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification
and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage
determination;

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

RTJNWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVf,,MENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page C-9



(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the
wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(B) If the CONTRACTOR and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or
their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the
amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the
contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards
Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized
representative, will approve, modifu, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of
receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that
additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the CONTRACTOR, the laborers, or mechanics to be employed in the classification, or their
representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate
(including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the
questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to
the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a

determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notifu the contracting
officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (l)(ii)
(B) or (C) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this
contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes
a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the CONTRACTOR shall either pay the benefit as

stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent
thereof.

(iv) If the CONTRACTOR does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the CONTRACTOR
may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated
in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program: Provided that the Secretary of Labor has
found, upon the written request of the CONTRACTOR, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act
have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the CONTRACTOR to set aside in a separate account
assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding.

The Federal Aviation Administration or the sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written request of an
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the
CONTRACTOR under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime CONTRACTOR, or
any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by
the same prime CONTRACTOR, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered
necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the
CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. ln the event of
failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on
the site of work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Federal Aviation Administration may,
after written notice to the CONTRACTOR, Sponsor, Applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be
necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations
have ceased.

RT]NWAY RETIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COLINTY PROJECT NO: TR-19404

Page C-l0



3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the CONTRACTOR during the course of
the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site
of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker; his
or her correct classification; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated
for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-
Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours worked; deductions made; and actual wages paid. Whenever
the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic
include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program
described in section 1(bX2XB) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain records that show
that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially
responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics
affected, and that show the costs anticipated or the actual costs incurred in providing such benefits.
CONTRACTORs employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence
of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the
apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(iiXA) The CONTRACTOR shall submit weekly for each week in which any confract work is performed a
copy of all payrolls to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the
agency is not such aparty, the CONTRACTOR will submit the payrolls to the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner,
as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set

out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i),
except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals.
Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g. the
last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be
submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour
Division Web site at www.dol.gov/whd/furms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime
CONTRACTOR is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
CONTRACTORs and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of
each covered worker and shall provide them upon request to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency
is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a pafi, the CONTRACTOR will submit them to the
applicant, sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration, the
CONTRACTOR, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation
or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime
CONTRACTOR to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime
CONTRACTOR for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the
applicant, Sponsor, or Owner).

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons
employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) The payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR $
5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR $ 5.5 (a)(3)(i), and that such
information is correct and complete;

(2) Each laborer and mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or
indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned,
other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations 29 CFR Part 3;

RTJNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126414-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Page C-11



(3) Each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash

equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination
incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form

WH-347 shall satisfu the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph
(3XiiXB) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor to
civil or criminal prosecution under Section l00l of Title l8 and Section 231 of Title 3l of the United States

Code.

(iii) The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (3Xi) of this
section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the sponsor, the

Federal Aviation Administration, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives to
interview employees during working hours on the job. If the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor fails to submit
the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the

CONTRACTOR, Sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension

of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records
upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR
5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they
performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona frde apprenticeship
program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of
Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recogtized by the Bureau, or if a person

is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of
Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for
probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in
any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the CONTRACTOR as to the entire
work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not
registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the

wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing
work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a

CONTRACTOR is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is
registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the joumeyman's hourly rate) specified in
the CONTRACTOR's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid
at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level ofprogress, expressed as

a percentage of the joumeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship
program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the fuIl amount of fringe benefits listed on
the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different
practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that
determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency
recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the CONTRACTOR will no
longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work perfiormed

until an acceptable program is approved.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-20t9
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Page C-l2



(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in
a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of
Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not
be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every
trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage
determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program.
If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe
benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines
that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage
determination that provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the
payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment
and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for
the classification of work actually performed. kr addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in
excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate
on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training
Administration withdraws approval of a taining program, the CONTRACTOR will no longer be permiued to
fiilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable
program is approved.

(iii) Equal Employment Opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and joumeymen under this part
shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as

amended, and29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by
reference in this contract.

6. Subcontracts.

The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR Part
5.5(a)(l) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Aviation Administration may by appropriate
instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier
subcontracts. The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or
lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5.

7. Contract Termination: Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in paragraph I through l0 of this section may be grounds for termination of
the contract, and for debarment as a CONTRACTOR and a subcontractor as providedin29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts containedin29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are
herein incorporated by reference in this confact.

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general

disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the
Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7 . Disputes within the meaning of this clause include

RTJNWAY REHABILMATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAAIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19404

Page C-13



disputes between the CONTRACTOR (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S.
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of Eligibility.

(i) By entering into this contract, the CONTRACTOR certifres that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or
firm who has an interest in the CONTRACTOR's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded
Government contracts by virlue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Govemment
contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 USC 1001.

I. TEXTINGWHENDRIVING

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving", (101112009) and DOT Order 3902.10, "Text Messaging While Driving", (1213012009),the

Federal Aviation Administration encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety
policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving
when performing work related to a grant or subgrant.

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the CONTRACTOR to promote policies and initiatives
for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies
that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work activities associated with the
project. The CONTRACTOR must include the substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding

$3,500 that involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of work activities associated with the project.

J. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQTIIREMENTS
CONTRACTOR and Subconfractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to
energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy
Policy and Conservation Act (42 USC 620let seq).

K. EQUAL OPPORTTJNITY CLAUSE

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows:

(1) The CONTRACTORwiII not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because

of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure

that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identifu, or national origin. Such action shall include,
but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff, or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection
for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places,

available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions
of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf
of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

(3) The CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a

collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the
said labor union or workers' representatives of the CONTRACTOR's commitments under this section and

RI,]NWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06{126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page C-14



shall post copies ofthe notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for
employment.

(a) The CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and ofthe rules, regulations, and relevant orders ofthe Secretary oflabor.

(5) The CONTRACTOR will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24,1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto,
and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary
of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(6) In the event of the CONTRACTOR's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or
suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for further Govemment
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order I 1246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies
invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of
the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The CONTRACTOR will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and
the provisions ofparagraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exunpted by
rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order
I 1246 of Septernber 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.
The CONTRACTOR will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the
administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for
noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering
agency the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the
interests of the United States.

L. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Bidder or Offeror certifies by sigrring and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, that:

(l) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or
Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an offrcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal confact, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, 'oDisclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019
COUI\ITY PROJECT NO: TR-19404

Page C-15



This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this

transaction imposed by section 1352,title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

M. PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES

(a) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any
segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees
to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained.
The CONTRACTOR agrees that a breach of this clause is a violation of the Equal Employment
Opportunity clause in this contract.

(b) "segregated facilities," as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and

wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing
areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing

facilities provided for employees that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin because of written or oral policies or employee
custom. The term does not include separate or single-user rest rooms or necessary dressing or sleeping
areas provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

(c) The CONTRACTOR shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is subject to

the Equal Employment Opportunity clause of this confact.

N. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements of
29 CFR Part l9l0 with the same force and effect as if given in full text. The employer must provide a work
environment that is free from recognizedhazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the
employee. The employer retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor's
compliance with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR
Part 1910). The employer must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement

directly with the U.S. Department of Labor - Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

O. PROCT]REMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

CONTRACTOR and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act,
as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR
Part247. In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable, the CONTRACTOR and

subcontractors are to use products containing the highest percentage of recovered materials for items
designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 40 CFR Part 247 whenever:

l) The contract requires procurunent of $10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; or

2) The CONTRACTOR has procured $10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding during
the previous fiscal year.

The list of EPA-designated items is available at www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-
guidelines-construction-products.

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery ofEPA-designated products ifthe
CONTRACTOR can demonstrate the item is:

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page C-16



a) Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance
schedule;

b) Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or

c) Is only available at an unreasonable price.

P. CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQTJENCY AND FELONY
CONVICTIONS

The applicant must complete the following two certification statements. The applicant must indicate its
current status as it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting a checkmark () in the space
following the applicable response. The applicant agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this
solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification in all lower tier subcontracts.

Certifications

1) The applicant represents that it is ( ) is not ( ) a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability
that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have
lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority
responsible for collecting the tax liability.

2) The applicant represents that it is ( ) is not ( ) a corporation that was convicted of a criminal
violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

Note

If an applicant responds in the affirmative to either of the above representations, the applicant is ineligible to
receive an award unless the sponsor has received notification from the agency suspension and debarment
official (SDO) that the SDO has considered suspension or debarment and determined that further action is not
required to protect the Government's interests. The applicant therefore must provide information to the owner
about its tax liability or conviction to the Owner, who will then notiff the FAA Airports District Office, which
will then notify the agency's SDO to facilitate completion of the required considerations before award
decisions are made.

Term Definitions

Felony conviction: Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twenty four (2a)
months of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law and includes conviction of an offense
defined in a section of the U.S. code that specifically classifies the offense as a felony and conviction of
an offense that is classified as a felony under 18 U.S.C. $ 3559.
Tax Delinquency: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for
which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not
being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the
tax liability.

Q. TERMINATTON FOR CONVENTENCE (CONSTRUCTTON & EQITTPMENT CONTRACTS)

The Owner may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written notice to the

CONTRACTOR. Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of
Owner. Upon receipt of a written notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the Owner, the
CONTRACTOR shall immediately proceed with the following obligations regardless of any delay in
determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:

RUI{WAY REHABILTTATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAAIP PROJECT NO. #3-064126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{104

Page C-17



1. CONTRACTOR must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice.

2. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated under the notice.

3. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice.

4. Deliver to the Owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially completed

work, supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the work, and as directed in
the written notice.

5. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice.

6. Take action as directed by the Owner to protect and preserve properry and work related to this

contract that Owner will take possession.

Owner agrees to pay CONTRACTOR for:

3) completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the

effective date of termination;

4) documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing work and

fumishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents in connection with
uncompleted work;

5) reasonable and substantiated claims, costs, and damages incurred in settlement of terminated contracts

with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and

6) reasonable and substantiated expenses to the CONTRACTOR directly attributable to Owner's

termination action.

Owner will not pay CONTRACTOR for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising

out of or resulting from the Owner's termination action.

The rights and remedies this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law

or under this contract.

R. VETERAN'S PREFERENCE

In the emplolnnent of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the
CONTRACTOR and all sub-tier CONTRACTORs must give preference to covered veterans as defined
within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112. Covered veterans include Vietnam-era veterans,

Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-kaq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business concems (as

defined by l5 USC 632) owned and controlled by disabled veterans. This preference only applies when
there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment
relates.

XXV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Contract, including the Contract Documents and all other documents
which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and exclusive agreement between
the County and Contractor. All prior written and oral communications, including correspondence,

drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this Conkact. If any provision of
this agreement is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provision and/or
provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated.

XXVI. ATTACHMENTS: All attachments referred to are incorporated and made a part of this agreement.

Attachments include:

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-064126414-2019
COLJNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19404

Page C-18



Attachment "A:" COUNTY OF INYO RELVANT PORTIONS OF REQIJEST FOR BIDS

Attachment "B:" RESPONSE TO COUNTYOF INYO REQUEST FORBIDS

Attachment "C:" INSURANCE PROVISIONS

---o0o---

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first
written above.

COT]NTYOFIITYO CONTRACTOR

Rick Pucci, Board Chair l, Titlet

APPROVEDAS TO FORM
AND LEGALITY

By
Inyo County Counsel

APPROVEE AS TO INSURANCE
REQUIREMENTS:

By
Inyo County Risk Manager

ATTEST: CLINT QUILTER
County Clerk
Board of Supervisors

By:

RI,]NWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA ArP PROJECT NO. #3-06{ t26414-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page C-19



Attachment "A"

RELEVANT PORTIONS OF REQUEST FOR BID

RUI\IWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/I'EATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06{126-01+2019
COLTNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page C-20



Attachment "B"

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR BID

RT]NWAY REHABILIIATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATII VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEIMNT PROGRAM

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-064 126 4t +2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{104

Page C-21



Attachment ooC"

INSURANCE PROVISIONS

RUNWAY REIHBILITATION PROJECT AT TIIE
LONE PINE/DEATII VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEME NT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-06412641+2019
COUNTV PROJECT NO: TR-19404

PWeC-22



COUNTY OF'INYO
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

RT]NWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT
AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATII VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FAA ArP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

FAITHFUL PERF'OR]VIANCE BOND
(100% oF CONTRACT AMOUNT)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that
(Name of Contractor)

as Principal, hereinafter called Contractor, and,
(Name of Corporate Surety)

as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the County of Inyo as

Obligee, hereinafter called Owner, in the amount of

, for the payment

whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, adminishators, successors and

assignees, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, Contractor has by written Contract, dated entered into

an agreement with Owner for the Construction of the RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT

THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT, to be constructed in accordance with the contract

for the RUiYWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY

AIRPORT, which contract is by reference incorporated herein and is hereinafter referred to as the

"Contract".

RI]NWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP pROJEgr NO. #3-064126-014-20t9
COIjNTY PROJECT NO: TR-1940

Contract and Bonds
Page C- 3l



NOW, THEREFORE, THE COI\DITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if Contractor shall

promptly and faithfully perform said Contract, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it

shall remain in full force and effect.

The Surety hereby waives notice of any alteration or extension of time made by the Owner.

Whenever Contractor shall be, and is declared by Owner to be, in default under the Contract, the

Owner having performed Owner's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the default,

or shall promptly either:

1. Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, or

2. Obtana Bid or Bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions,
and upon determination by Surety of the lowest responsible Bidder, or, if the Owner elects, upon
determination by the Owner and the Surety jointly of the lowest responsible Bidder, arrange for a
Contract between such Bidder and Owner, and make available as work progresses (even though
there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or contracts of
completion a:ranged under this paragraph) suffrcient funds to pay the cost of completion less the

balance of the Contract price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which
the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The term

"balance of the Contract price", as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable by
Owner to Contractor under the Contract and any amendments thereto, less the amount properly
paid by Owner to Contractor.

Any suit under this Bond must be instituted before the expiration of two (2) years from the date on

which final payment under the Contract falls due, or the date on which any warranty or guarantee period

expires, whichever is later.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the

Owner named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, or successors of the Owner.

RI,JNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAAIP pROJEgr NO. #3-06{126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{0

Contract snd Bonds
Page C- 32



Signed and sealed this day of 20 _.

(Name of Corporate Surety)

By:
(Signature)

(sEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

(Name of Contractor)

By:
(Signature)

(sEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

NOTE:

THE SIGNATT]RES OF THE CONTRACTOR AND THE STIRETY MUST EACH BE
ACKNOWLEDGED BY A NOTARY AI\D THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS MUST BE
ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. The Faithful Performance Bond must be executed by a corporate
surety on this form. No substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an
acknowledged statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute
such bonds in such amounts on behalf of the surety must accompany the Faithful Performance Bond.

ADDRESS OF' OWNER FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT:

County of Inyo (attn: Public Works Director)
224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N
Independence, California 93526

RI,JNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEYAIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAAIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{0

Contract and Bonds
Page C- 33



COUNTY OF'INYO
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORIG

RUIYWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

LABOR AND MATERIALS PAYMENT BONI)
(100% oF CoNTRACT AMOUNT)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that
(Name of Contractor)

as Principal, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR, and
(Name of Corporate Surety)

as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto the County of Lryo as

Obligee, hereinafter called Owner, for the use and benefit of claimants as hereinafter defined in the

amount of

for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assignees, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, Contractor has by written contract dated, entered into

an agreement with County for the construction of the RUI\WAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT

THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), to be

constructed in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the contract for the RUNWAY

REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT which

contract is by reference incorporated herein, and is hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACT".

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is suchthat, if Contractor shall
promptly make payment to all claimants as hereinafter defined, for all labor and material used or
reasonably required for use in the perfolmance of the Contract, then this obligation shall be void;
otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect, subject, however, to the following conditions:

RUNWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEME NT PROGRAM

FAA ArP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019
COLJNTY PROJECT NO: TR-1940

Contract and Bonds
Page C- 34

)



l. A claimant is defined as one having a direct contract with the Contractor, or with a Subcontractor
of the Contractor, for labor, materials, or both, used or reasonably required for use in performance of
the Contract. Labor and material is construed to include, but not limited to, that part of water, gas,

power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental of equipment directly applicable to the
Contract.

2.The above named Contractor and Surety hereby jointly agree with the County that every claimant
as herein defined, who has not been paid in full before the expiration of a period of ninety (90)
calendar days after the date on which the last of such claimant's work or labor was done or
performed, or materials were furnished by such claimant, may sue on this Bond for the benefit of
such claimant, prosecute the suit to final judgment for such sum or sums as may be justly due
claimant, and have execution thereon. The County shall not be liable for the payment of any costs or
expenses ofany such suit.

3. No suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant:

a) Unless claimant, other than one having a direct contract with the Contractor, shall have given
written notice to any two of the following: the Contractor, the County, or the Surety above
named, within ninety (90) calendar days after such claimant did or performed the last of the work
or labor, or furnished the last of the materials for which said claim is made, stating with
substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials were
furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done or performed. Such notice shall be served by
mailing the same by registered mail or certified mail, postage prepaid, in any envelope addressed
to the Contractor, County, or Surety, at the address below, or at any place where an office is
regularly maintained for the transaction of their business. Such notice may also be served in the
state in which the aforesaid project is located, save that such service need not be made by a
public officer.

b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which County accepted the work
done under the Contract. However, if any limitation embodied in this Bond is prohibited by any
law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shall be deemed to be amended so as to
be equal to the minimum period of limitation permitted by such law.

c) Other than in a State Court of competent jurisdiction in and for the County or other political
subdivision of the state in which the Project, or any part thereof, is situated, and not elsewhere.

4. The amount of this Bond shall be reduced by and to the extent of any payment or payments made
in good faith hereunder, inclusive of the payment by Surety of mechanics' liens which may be filed
or recorded against said Project, whether or not claim for the amount of such lien be presented under
and against this Bond.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECTAT THE LOIIE PINE/DEATH VALLEYAIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAAIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-.0r26-0t4-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-00

Contract and Bonds
Page C- 35



Signed and sealed this day of 20-.

(Name of Contractor)

By:
(Signature)

(sEAL)
(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

(Name of Corporate Surety)

By:
(Signature)

(sEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

NOTE:

THE SIGNATTIRES OF'THE CONTRACTOR AND THE STTRETY MUST EACH BE
ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORB A NOTARY PUBLTC (OR OTHER OFFTCER AUTHORTZED
UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW) AI\D THE ACKNOWLEDMENTS MUST BE ATTACHED TO
THIS BOND. The Labor and Materials Payment Bond must be executed by a corporate surety on this
form. No substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged
statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attomey-in-fact to execute such bonds in such
amounts on behalf of the surety, must accompany the Labor and Materials Payment Bond.

ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT

County of Inyo (attn: Public Works Director)
224N. Edwards, P.O. Box N
Independence, California 93526

RTJNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECTAT THE LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEYAIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAAATP PROJECT NO. #3-06{126-014-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-1940

Contract and Bonds
Page C- 36



COUNTY PROVISIONS
RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE

LONE PINEIDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

A COUNTY OF INYO AVIATION FACILITY

LONE PINE, CALIFORNIA

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

Inyo County Public Works Department



[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT THE
LONE PINEIDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019

COIINTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004

COT]NTY PROVISIONS

Table of Contents

SECTION I. INSURANCE, DEFENSE, AND INDEMNIFICATION.

1.01 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE ..............

I.O2 SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS............

1.03 OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS ..................

1.04 BUILDER'S RISK (COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION) INSURANCE.

1.05 CLAIMS MADE POLICIES

1.06 ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS ...............

L.O7 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION........

1.08 VERIFICATIONOFCOVERAGE

I

1

1

2

2

2

J

3

J

3

3

J

3

4

4

4

5

1.09

1.10

1.11

SUBCONTRACTOR............

SURETY BONDS.......

SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCUMSTANCES

I.I2 DEFENSEAND INDEMNIFICATION

1. 1 3 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY NOT LIMITED BY INSURANCE .................

SECTION 2 MINIMUM WAGES

2.OI CALIFORNIA MINIMUM WAGES

2,02 FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGES



IPAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



SECTION 1. INSURANCE, DEFENSE, AI\D II\DEMNIFICATION.

Bidders' attention is directed to the insurance requirements indicated below. It is highly
recommended that bidders confer with their respective insurance carriers or brokers to determine
the availability of insurance certificates and endorsements as prescribed and provided herein in
advance of bid submission. If an apparent low bidder fails to comply strictly with the insurance
requirements, that bidder may be disqualified from award of the Contract.

Contractor shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the contract, insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the work hereunder and the results of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees
or subcontractors. The cost of such insurance shall be included in the Conkactor's Bid.

1.01 MINIMTJM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 0l covering
CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations , bodily injury,
property damage, and personal and advertising injury, with no exclusion for work performed at
airport, with limits no less than $1010001000 per occrnrence. If a general aggregate limit applies,
either the general aggegate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or
25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. If CGL policy
has exclusion/s for work performed at airport, then a separate airport liability policy must also be
maintained with the same limits and specifications stated in this paragraph.

2. Automobile Liabitity: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Code 1 (any
auto), with limits no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employers' Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease.

4. Builder's Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an "All Risk" (Special Perils)
coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no coinsurance penalty
provisions.

5. Surety Bonds as described below.

6. Professional Liability (if Design-Build or Construction Management), with limits no less than
$2,000,000 per occrrrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.

7. Contractor's Pollution Legal Liability with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or
claim.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, the
Entity requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the
Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to the County.

I.O2 SELF-INSIJRED RETENTIONS

Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. At the option of the Entity, either:
the contractor shall cause the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as respects
lnyo County, its offrcers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the Contractor shall provide a financial
guarantee satisfactory to the Entity guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA ArP PROJECT NO. #3-064126414-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page CP-l



administration, and defense expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that
the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County.

1.03 OTHERINSTJRANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

l. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of with respect to liability arising
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts,

or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations and automobiles owned,
leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of the Contractor. General liability coverage can be
provided in the form ofan endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as ISO
FormCG20 10,CG 11 85 orbothCG20 10,CG2026,CG2033,orCG20 38;and CG2037
forms if later revisions used).

2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteen.Any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its offrcers, officials, employees, or
volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall provide that coverage shall not be canceled,

except with notice to Inyo County.

1.04 BUILDER'S RrSK(COURSE OF CONSTRUCTTOI9INSURANCE

Contractor may submit evidence of Builder's Risk insurance in the form of Course of Construction
coverage. Such coverage shall name Inyo County as a loss payee as their interest may appear.

Ifthe project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option ofthe Entity, an lnstallation
Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property Installation Floater shall be obtained that
provides for the improvement, remodel, modification, alteration, conversion or adjustment to existing
buildings, structures, processes, machinery and equipment. The Property Installation Floater shall
provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, machinery or equipment damaged,

impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of the Work, including during transit, installation,
and testing at the Entity's site.

1.05 CLAIMS MADE POLICIES
If any coverage required is written on a claims-made coverage form:

l. The retroactive date must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of the
contract or the beginning ofcontract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5)
years after completion of contract work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form
with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, the Contractor must
purchase extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirenents must be submitted to the Entity for review.

If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution
Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions. If the services involve mold
identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not contain a mold exclusion,
and the definition of Pollution shall include microbial matter, including mold.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA ArP PROJECT NO. #3-064126414-2019
COUNTY PROaJECT NO: TRl9404



1.06 ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII, unless
otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

1.07 WAIVEROF STJBROGATION

Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor may
acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any
endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation
policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Inyo County for all work performed
by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

1.08 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE
Contractor shall fumish Inyo County with original Certificates of lnsurance including all required
amendatory endorsanents (or copies ofthe aoplicable insurance languaee effecting coverage required by
this clause) and a cop)' of the Declarations and Endorsement Paee of the CGL policy listine all policy
endorsements to Inyo County before work beeins. However, failure to obtain the required documents
prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's obligation to provide them. Inyo County
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including
endorsernents, required by these specifications, at any time.

1.09 STJBCONTRACTOR

Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured
on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage, subcontractors shall provide
coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13.

1.10 ST]RETY BOI\DS
Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds:

L Bid bond

2. Performance bond

3. Payment bond

4. Maintenance bond

The Payment Bond and the Performance Bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. If the
Performance Bond provides for a one-year warranty a separate Maintenance Bond is not necessary. If the
wa:ranty period specified in the contract is for longer than one year a Maintenance Bond equal to 10% of
the contract price is required. Bonds shall be duly executed by a responsible corporate swety, authorized
to issue such bonds in the State of California and secured through an authorized agent with an office in
California.

1.11 SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCT]MSTANCES
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the
risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.

I.I2 DEFENSE AIID INDEMNIFICATION
Contractor shall defend, indernnifu and hold harmless the County, its agents, officers, employees, and
volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs,
including attomey's fees, arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or

RI,]NWAY REHABILITATION PROJf,,CT AT TIIE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA AIP PROJEC'T NO. #3-06{126414-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19404

Page CP-3



in part by any negligent act or omission ofthe Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by
the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the County, its agents, officers, employees, and

volunteers harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any
requirement in this Contract for the Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance coverage.

1.13 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY NOT LIMITED BY INSURANCE

Nothing contained in the insurance requirements applicable to the Contactor pursuant to this Contract
shall be construed as limiting the liability of the Contractor or the Contractor's Sureties.

SECTION 2 MINIMUM WAGES

2.OI CALIFORNIAMINIMUMWAGES
This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of lndustrial
Relations. No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal or be awarded a contract for a
public works project unless registered with the Departrnent of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code

section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions from this requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code
section l77l.l(a)1.

The project requires payments of not less than the general prevailing rates for per diem wages, overtime
work, legal holidays, other employee payments, and travel & subsistence if applicable, in the locality in
which the work is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed as required in
the Califomia Labor Code. Such rates of wages are on file with the Department of Industrial Relations
and in the office of the District and are available to any interested party upon request.

Contractors shall promptly notify the County in writing, about any classifications of labor not listed in the

prevailing wage determination but necessary for the performance of the work. Contractors will post a
copy of the determination of prevailing rates at the job site/s.

If the contract totals $30,000 or more and requires 20 or more working days, the prime contractor will
comply with and be responsible for compliance with all applicable provisions of Labor Code section
1777.5 for all apprenticeable occupations. The prime contractors and subcontractors must furnish
electronic certified payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner (aka Division of Labor Standards

Enforcement).

Each contractor and subcontractor shall keep accurate payroll records, showing the name, address, social
security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the
actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, wotker, or other employee ernployed by him
or her in connection with the public work. Each payroll record shall contain or be verified by a written
declaration that is made under penalty ofperjury. The County requires hard copies ofthese records for
verification, prior to making related payments to the contractor (this is in addition to the electronic
reporting required by the DIR).

By sigrring below the contractor attests that he has read and understands this document, that he is aware of
the public work and prevailing wage requirements as set forth in the California Labor Code Sections 1720

et seq.; that he is an owner, officer, or other duly authorized representative of the firm; that he and each of
his subcontractors is registered with the California DIR; and that he is aware of the provisions of Section
3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers'
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and will
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract.

RTJNWAY REIIABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA AIp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126414-2019
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19{04

Page CP-4



2.02 FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGES
If there is a difference between the minimum wage rates predetermined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor and

the general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of the Califomia Departrnent of Industrial
Relations for similar classifications of labor, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than
the higher wage rate. The County will not accept lower state wage rates not specifically included in the
federal minimum wage determinations. This includes "helper" (or other classifications based on hours of
experience) or any other classification not appearing in the federal wage determinations. Where federal
wage determinations do not contain the state wage rate determination otherwise available for use by the
Contractor and subcontractors, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the federal
minimum wage rate, which most closely approximates the duties of the employees in question.

General Decision Number: CA190020 0211512019 CA20
Superseded General Decision Number: CA20 I 8003 I

State:Califomia

Construction Types: Building, Heavy (Heavy and Dredging) and Highway

Counties: Inyo, Kern and Mono Counties in California.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; DREDGING PROJECTS (does not include hopper dredge
work);

HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include water well drilling);

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS.

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of $10.60 for calendar year
2019 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and
any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the
contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least
$10.60 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all
hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 20L9. Ifthis contract is covered by the EO
and a classification considered necessary for performance ofwork on the contract does not appear
on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage
rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO
minimum wage raterif it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will
be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts
entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itselfo but it does not
apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR
5.1(a)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under
the EO is available at www.dol.sov/whd/govcontracts.

Visit https://www.wdol.gov/wdoVscafiles/davisbacon/ca20.dvb for the complete list of wage
determinations.

RTJNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FAA Arp PROJECT NO, #3-06{[26414-2019
COLTNTY PROJf,CT NO: TR-19404

Page CP-5



[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT
AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

FEDERAL
PROVISIONS

2.

J.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Contents'
1. NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION to ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

TITLE VI SOLICITATION NOTICE

CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING DEBARMENT

CERTIFICATION OF LOWER TIER CONTRACTORS REGARDING DEBARMENT

STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE)

TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINEiDEATII VALLEY AIRPORT

Federal Provisions
FP-1

.2

.2

.J

..J

---t

7

7



[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



1. NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION to ENSURE EQUAL
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

A. The Offeror's or Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the
"Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications"
set forth herein.

B. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage

terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each frade on all construction work in
the covered area, axe as follows:

Timetables

Goals for minority participation for each trade: 24.5%

Goals for fernale participation in each trade: 6.9%

These goals are applicable to all of the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it
is Federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor
performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it
shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually
performed. With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for
both its federally involved and non-federally involved construction.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 4l CFR
Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific
affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a)
and its efforts to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and
training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the confact, and in each

trade, and the Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women
evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or. female employees or trainees
from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting
the Conffactor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the
regulations in 4l CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the
total work hours performed.

C. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal
Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) within l0 working days of award of any
construction subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier for construction work under the
contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address, and

telephone number of the subcontractor; unployer identification number of the
subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and

completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is
to be performed.

As used in this notice and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered
area" is lnyo County, CA.

2. TITLE VI SOLICITATION NOTICE
The County of Inyo, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil fughts Act of 1964
(78 Stat. 252,42 USC $$ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders or
offerors that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this
advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATI{ VALLEY AIRPORT

Federal Provisions
FP-2



submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of
race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award.

3. CERTIFICATION OF' OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDINGDEBARMENT
By submitting a bid/proposal under this solicitation, the bidder or offeror certifies that neither it
nor its principals are presently debarred or suspended by any Federal departrnent or agency from
participation in this transaction.

4. CERTIFICATION OF'LOWER TIER CONTRACTORS REGARDING DEBARMENT
The successful bidder, by administering each lower tier subcontract that exceeds $25,000 as a
"covered transaction", must verifu each lower tier participant ofa "covered transaction" under the
project is not presently debarred or otherwise disqualified from participation in this federally
assisted project. The successful bidder will accomplish this by:

a. Checking the Systan forAward Management at website: http:i/www.sam.gov.

b. Collecting a certification statement similar to the Certification of Offerer /Bidder
Regarding Debarment, above.

c. Inserting a clause or condition in the covered transaction with the lower tier contract.

If the Federal Aviation Administration later determines that a lower tier participant failed to
disclose to a higher tier participant that it was excluded or disqualified at the time it entered the
covered transaction, the FAA may pursue any available remedies, including suspension and

debarment of the non-compliant participant.

5. STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS

1. As used in these specifications:

a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this
contract resulted;

b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Confract Compliance Programs (OFCCP), U.S.
Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;

c. "Employer identification number" means the Federal social security number used on the

Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941;

d. "Minority'' includes:

(1) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of
Hispanic origrn);

(2) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or
other Spanish culture or origin regardless ofrace);

(3) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the
Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and

(4) American Indian or Alaskan native (all persons having origins in any of the original
peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership
and participation or cofilmunity identifi cation).

2. Whenever the Contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work
involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subconfact in excess of $10,000 the
provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and
female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Federal Provisions
FP-3



3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 4l CFR part 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by
the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its
affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in
accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors shall
be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown
Plan. Each contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved plan is individually required to
comply with its obligations under the EEO clause and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal
under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other
contractors or subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered
contractor's or subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.

4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7a
through 7p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract
resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and
female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in
which it has employees in the covered area. Covered construction contractors performing construction
work in a geographical arca where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted construction contract
shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being
performed. Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form, and such notices
may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal
procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in
meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement nor the failure by a union with whom
the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement to refer either minorities or women shall excuse
the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations
promulgated pursuant thereto.

6. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the
goals, such apprentices and trainees shall be employed by the Contractor during the training period and
the Contractor shall have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and fainees at the completion
of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees shall be trained
pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.

7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opporfunity. The
evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to
achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully and shall
implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all
sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor,
where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall
specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other onsite supervisory personnel are

aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with
specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written
notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the
Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the
organizations' responses.

c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each minority and
female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source, or
community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such

RUNWAY REHABILMATION PROJECT AT TI{E
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

FederalPrwisions



individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor
by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file
with the reason therefore along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the

Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority
person or female sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union
referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area
which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship
and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs
funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these
programs to the sources compiled under 7b above.

f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training
programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO
obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by
publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with
all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by
posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location
where construction work is performed.

g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under
these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff,
termination, or other employment decisions, including specific review of these items, with onsite
supervisory personnel such superintendents, general foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of
construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identiffing the
time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the

subject matter.

h. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy extemally by including it in any advertising in the news
media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to
and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other contractors and subcontractors with whom
the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.

i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female, and community
organizations, to schools with minority and female students; and to minority and female recruitment
and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and ernployment needs. Not
later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other
training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations,
such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the
selection process.

j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women
and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer, and vacation employment to minority and

female youth both on the site and in other areas of a contractor's workforce.

k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 4l
CFR part 60-3.

1. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minorify and female
personnel, for promotional opporlunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for,
through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Federal Provisions
FP-5



m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments, and other personnel
practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and
employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under
these specifications are being carried out.

n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single
user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of oflers for subcontracts from minority and
female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and
female contractor associations and other business associations.

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor's adherence to and performance under the
Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations, which assist in fulfilling one or
more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through 7p). The efforts of a contractor association,
joint contractor union, contractor community, or other similar groups of which the Contractor is a
member and participant may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through
7p of these specifications provided that the Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every
effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the
industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and
female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables,
and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on
behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a
group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance.

9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The
Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opporfunity and to take affirmative
action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority.
Consequently, if the particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even
though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally), the Contractor may be in violation
of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized.

10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate
against any person because ofrace, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

1l. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from
Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.

12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and
of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination, and cancellation of existing
subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its
implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any contractor who
fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive
Order 11246, as amended.

13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific
affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these
specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment
opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the
implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR
part 60-4.8.

14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to
ensure that the companv 

"to n"JlKT"orSlt*::ff1"liJi$:to#*#".s relating to the provisions

LONE PINE/DEATTI VALLEY AIRPORT
Federal Prwisions



hereof as may be required by the Government, and to keep records. Records shall at least include for
each employee, the name, address, telephone number, construction trade, union affiliation if any,
employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic,
apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the
indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be

maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing
records satisfu this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which
establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of
local or other area residents (e.g. those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the
Community Development Block Grant Program).

6. F'EDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE)
All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the
provisions of 29CFRpart2}l, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), with the same
force and effect as if given in full text. The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay,
recordkeeping, and child labor standards for full and part-time workers.

The Contractor has full responsibility to monitor compliance to the referenced statute or
regulation. The Contractor must address any claims or disputes that arise from this requirement
directly with the U.S. Department of Labor - Wage and Hour Division.

7. TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION
By submission of an offer, the Offeror certifies that with respect to this solicitation and any resultant
contract, the Offeror -

1) is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list of
countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the United States

Trade Representative (USTR);

2) has not knowingly entered into any contract or subconhact for this project with a person that is
a citizen or national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate
against U.S. firms as published by the USTR; and

3) has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal project that is
produced in a foreigrr country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S.
firms published by the USTR.

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America
and the making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to
prosecution under Title l8 USC Section 1001.

The Offeror/Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Offeror/Contractor
leams that its certification or that of a subcontractor was elroneous when submitted or has become

eroneous by reason of changed circumstances. The Contractor must require subcontractors provide
immediate written notice to the Contractor if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances.

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with
49 CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to an Offeror or subcontractor:

1) who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included on the list of
countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the USTR or

2) whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals ofa foreign country on
such USTR list or

3) who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreigrr country on such USTR list.
RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Federal Provisions
FP-7



Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision. The knowledge and
information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course ofbusiness dealings.

The Offeror agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this
provision for certification without modification in all lower tier subcontracts. The Contractor may rely
on the certification ofa prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm from a foreigrr country included on
the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by USTR, unless the Offeror has

knowledge that the certification is erroneous.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making an
award. If it is later determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly rendered an eroneous
certification, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) may direct through the Owner cancellation of
the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the Owner or the FAA.

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Federal Provisions
FP-8



IPAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



General Contract Provisions

Runway Pavement Rehabilitation Project

Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport

Section 10 Definition of Terms

When the following terms are used in these specifications, in the contract, or in any documents or other
instruments pertaining to construction where these specifications govern, the intent and meaning shall be
defined as follows:

Paragraph
Number

Term Definition

10-01 AASHTO The American Association of State Highway and Transportation
Officials.

10-02 Access Road The right-of-way, the roadway and all improvements constructed
thereon connecting the airport to a public roadway.

10-03 Advertisement A public announcement, as required by local law, inviting bids
for work to be performed and materials to be furnished.

10-04 Airport Airport means an area of land or water which is used or intended
to be used for the landing and takeoffofaircraft; an appurtenant
area used or intended to be used for airport buildings or other
airport facilities or rights of way; airport buildings and facilities
located in any ofthese areas, and a heliport.

10-05 Airport Improvement
Program (AIP)

A grant-in-aid program, administered by the Federal Aviation
Adminishation (FAA).

10-06 Air Operations Area
(AoA)

The term air operations area (AOA) shall mean any area of the
airport used or intended to be used for the landing, takeoff, or
surface maneuvering of aircraft. An air operation area shall
include such paved or unpaved areas that are used or intended to
be used for the unobstructed movement of aircraft in addition to
its associated runway, taxiway, or apron.

l0-07 Apron Area where aircraft are parked, unloaded or loaded, fueled and/or
serviced.

l0-08 ASTM lnternational
(ASTM)

Formerly known as the American Society for Testing and
Materials (ASTM).

10-09 Award The Owner's notice to the successful bidder of the acceptance of
the submitted bid.

Section l0 Definition of Terms



Paragraph
Number

Term Definition

10-10 Bidder Any individual, partnership, frrm, or corporation, acting directly
or through a duly authorized representative, who submits a

proposal for the work contemplated.

10-tl Building Area An area on the airport to be used, considered, or intended to be
used for airport buildings or other airport facilities or rights-of-
way together with all airport buildings and facilities located
thereon.

l0-12 Calendar Day Every day shown on the calendar

10-13 Certificate of Analysis
(coA)

The COA is the manufacturer's Certificate of Compliance (COC)
including all applicable test results required by the specifications.

10-14 Certificate of Compliance
(coc)

The manufacturer's certiltcation stating that materials or
assemblies furnished fully comply with the requirements of the
contract. The certificate shall be signed by the manufacturer's
authorized representative.

l0-1s Change Order A written order to the Contractor covering changes in the plans,

specihcations, or proposal quantities and establishing the basis of
payment and contract time adjustment, if any, for work within the
scope ofthe contract and necessary to complete the project.

10-16 Contract A written agreement between the Owner and the Contractor that
establishes the obligations of the parties including but not limited
to performance of work, furnishing of labor, equipment and
materials and the basis of payment.

The awarded contract includes but may not be limited to:
Advertisement, Contract form, Proposal, Performance bond,
payment bond, General provisions, certifications and
representations, Technical Specifications, Plans, Supplemental
Provisions, standards incorporated by reference and issued
addenda.

t0-t7 Contract ltem (Pay ltem) A specific unit of work for which a price is provided in the
contract.

Section 10 Definition of Terms 2



Paragraph
Number

Term Delinition

10-18 Contract Time The number of calendar days or working days, stated in the
proposal, allowed for completion of the contract, including
authorized time extensions. If a calendar date of completion is
stated in the proposal, in lieu of a number of calendar or working
days, the contract shall be completed by that date.

10-19 Contractor The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation primarily liable
for the acceptable performance ofthe work contracted and for the
payment of all legal debts pertaining to the work who acts

directly or through lawful agents or employees to complete the
contract work.

10-20 Contractors Quality
Control (QC) I'acilities

The Contractor's QC facilities in accordance with the Contractor

Quality Control Program (CQCP).

t0-21 Contractor Quality Control
Program (CQCP)

Details the methods and procedures that will be taken to assure

that all materials and completed construction required by the
contract conform to contract plans, technical specifications and
other requirements, whether manufactured by the Conhactor, or
procured from subcontractors or vendors.

t0-22 Control Strip A demonstration by the Contractor that the materials, equipment,
and construction processes results in a product meeting the
requirements of the specifi cation.

t0-23 Construction Safety and
Phasing Plan (CSPP)

The overall plan for safety and phasing ofa construction project
developed by the airport operator, or developed by the airport
operator's consultant and approved by the airport operator. It is
included in the invitation for bids and becomes part ofthe project
specifications.

r0-24 Drainage System The systern of pipes, ditches, and structures by which surface or
subsurface waters are collected and conducted from the airport
area.

10-2s Engineer The individual, partnership, frrm, or corporation duly authorized
by the Owner to be responsible for engineering, inspection,
and/or observation ofthe contract work and acting directly or
through an authorized representative.

t0-26 Equipment All machinery, together with the necessary supplies for upkeep
and maintenance; and all tools and apparatus necessary for the
proper construction and acceptable completion ofthe work.

t0-27 Extra Work An item of work not provided for in the awarded contract as

previously modified by change order or supplemental agreement,
but which is found by the Owner's Engineer or Resident Project
Representative (RPR) to be necessary to complete the work
within the intended scope of the contract as previously modified.

Section l0 Definition of Terms J



Paragraph
Number

Term Definition

l0-28 FAA The Federal Aviation Administration. When used to designate a
person, FAA shall mean the Administrator or their duly
authorized representative.

t0-29 Federal Specifications The federal specifications and standards, commercial item
descriptions, and supplements, amendments, and indices
prepared and issued by the General Services Administration.

t0-30 Force Account a. Contract Force Account - A method ofpayment that addresses

extra work performed by the Contractor on a time and material
basis.

b. Owner Force Account - Work performed for the project by the
Owner's employees.

10-31 Intention of Terms Whenever, in these specifications or on the plans, the words
"directed," "required," "permitted,"'brdered," "designated,"
"prescribed," or words of like import are used, it shall be
understood that the direction, requirementn permission, order,
designation, or prescription ofthe Engineer and/or Resident
Project Representative (RPR) is intended; and similarly, the
words "approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory," or words of like
import, shall mean approved by, or acceptable to, or satisfactory
to the Engineer and/or RPR, subject in each case to the final
determination of the Owner.

Any reference to a specific requirement ofa numbered paragraph
ofthe contract specifications or a cited standard shall be
interpreted to include all general requirements ofthe entire
section, specification itenl or cited standard that may be
pertinent to such specific reference.

t0-32 Lighting A system offixtures providing or controlling the light sources

used on or near the airport or within the airport buildings. The
field lighting includes all luminous signals, markers, floodlights,
and illuminating devices used on or near the airport or to aid in
the operation ofaircraft landing at, taking offfrorq or taxiing on
the airport surface.

10-33 Major and Minor Contract
Items

A major contract item shall be any item that is listed in the
proposal, the total cost ofwhich is equal to or greater than20%
of the total amount of the award conhact. All other items shall be
considered minor contract items.

l0-34 Materials Any substance specified for use in the construction of the
contract work.

10-35 Modification of Standards
(MOS)

Any deviation from standard specifications applicable to material
and construction methods in accordance with FAA Order 5300.1

Section 10 Definition of Terms 4



Paragraph
Number

Term Definifion

10-36 Notice to Proceed (NTP) A written notice to the Contractor to begin the actual contract
work on a previously agreed to date. If applicable, the Notice to
Proceed shall state the date on which the contract time begins.

10-37 Owner The term "Owner" shall mean the party of the first part or the
contracting agency signatory to the contract. Where the term
"Owner" is capitalized in this document, it shall mean airport
Sponsor only. The Owner for this project is the County of Inyo

10-38 Passenger Facility Charge
(PFC)

Per 14 Code ofFederal Regulations (CFR) Part 158 and 49
United States Code (USC) $ 40117, a PFC is a charge imposed
by a public agency on passengers enplaned at a commercial
service airport it controls.

10-39 Pavement Structure The combined swface coluse, base course(s), and subbase
course(s), ifany, considered as a single unit.

10-40 Payment bond The approved form of security fumished by the Contractor and
their own surety as a guaranty that the Contractor will pay in full
all bills and accounts for materials and labor used in the
construction of the work.

l0-41 Performance bond The approved form ofsecurity furnished by the Contractor and
their own surety as a guaranty that the Contractor will complete
the work in accordance with the terms of the contract.

t0-42 Plans The official drawings or exact reproductions which show the
location, character, dimensions and details ofthe airport and the
work to be done and which are to be considered as a part ofthe
contract, supplementary to the specifications. Plans may also be
referred to as'contract drawings.'

10-43 Project The agreed scope ofwork for accomplishing specific airport
development with respect to a particular airport.

t0-44 Proposal The written offer of the bidder (when submitted on the approved
proposal form) to perform the contemplated work and furnish the
necessary materials in accordance with the provisions of the
plans and specifications.

l0-45 Proposal guaranty The secwity furnished with a proposal to guarantee that the
bidder will enter into a contract iftheir own proposal is accepted
by the Owner.

10-46 Quality Assurance (QA) Owner's responsibility to assure that construction work
completed complies with specifications for payment.

lo-47 Quality Control (QC) Contractor's responsibility to control material(s) and
construction processes to complete construction in accordance
with project specifications.

Section 10 Definition of Terms 5



Paragraph
Number

Term Definition

l0-48 Quality Assurance (QA)
Inspector

An authorized representative ofthe Engineer and/or Resident
Project Representative (RPR) assigrred to make all necessary
inspections, observations, tests, and/or observation oftests ofthe
work performed or being performed, or of the materials fumished
or being furnished by the Contractor.

r0-49 Quality Assurance (QA)
Laboratory

The official quality assurance testing laboratories ofthe Owner
or such other laboratories as may be designated by the Engineer

or RPR. May also be referred to as Engineer's, Owner's, or QA
Laboratory.

10-50 Resident Project
Representative (RPR)

The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation duly authorized
by the Owner to be responsible for all necessary inspections,

observations, tests, and/or observations oftests ofthe contract
work performed or being performed, or of the materials furnished
or being fumished by the Contractor, and acting directly or
through an authorized representative.

10-51 Runway The area on the airport prepared for the landing and takeoff of
aircraft.

10-52 Runway Safety Area (RSA) A defined surface surrounding the runway prepared or suitable
for reducing the risk of damage to aircraft. See the construction
safety and phasing plan (CSPP) for limits ofthe RSA.

10-53 Safety Plan Compliance
Document (SPCD)

Details how the Contractor will comply with the CSPP

10-54 Specifications A part ofthe contract containing the written directions and
requirements for completing the contract work. Standards for
specifuing materials or testing which are cited in the contract
specifications by reference shall have the same force and effect
as ifincluded in the contract physically.

10-55 Sponsor A Sponsor is defined in 49 USC Q 47102(24) as a public agency
that submits to the FAA for an AIP grcnt; or a private Owner of a
public-use airport that submits to the FAA an application for an

AIP grant for the airport.

10-56 Structures Arport facilities such as bridges; culverts; catch basins, inlets,
retaining walls, cribbing; storm and sanitary sewer lines; water
lines; underdrains; electrical ducts, manholes, handholes, lighting
fixtures and bases; transformers; navigational aids; buildings;
vaults; and, other manmade features of the airport that may be

encountered in the work and not otherwise classified herein.

10-57 Subgrade The soil that forms the pavement foundation.

10-58 Superintendent The Contractor's executive representative who is present on the
work durine prosress. authorized to receive and fulfill

Section 10 Definition of Terms 6



Paragraph
Number

Term Delinition

instructions from the RPR, and who shall supervise and direct the
construction.

10-59 Supplemental Agreement A written agreement between the Contractor and the Oumer that
establishes the basis of payment and contract time adjustment, if
any, for the work affected by the supplemental agreement. A
supplemental agreement is required if: (1) in scope work would
increase or decrease the total amount ofthe awarded contract by
more than 25%: (2) in scope work would increase or decrease the
total of any major contract item by more than 25%; (3) work that
is not within the scope of the originally awarded,conhact; or (4)
adding or deleting of a major contract item.

10-60 Surety The corporation, partnership, or individual, other than the
Contractor, executing payment or performance bonds that are
furnished to the Owner by the Contractor.

10-61 Taxilane A taxiway designed for low speed movement of aircraft between
aircraft parking areas and terminal areas.

t0-62 Taxiway The portion ofthe air operations area ofan airport that has been
designated by competent airport authority for movement of
aircraft to and from the airport's runways, aircraft parking areas,
and terminal areas.

l0-63 Taxiway/Taxilane Safety
Area (TSA)

A defined surface alongside the taxiway prepared or suitable for
reducing the risk of damage to an aircraft. See the construction
safety and phasing plan (CSPP) for limits of the TSA.

t0-64 Work The fumishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and
incidentals necessary or convenient to the Contractor's
performance of all duties and obligations imposed by the
contract, plans, and specifications.

10-65 Working day A working day shall be any day other than a legal holiday,
Saturday, or Sunday on which the normal working forces ofthe
Contractor may proceed with regular work for at least six (6)
hours toward completion of the contract. When work is
suspended for causes beyond the Contractor's control, it will not
be counted as a working day. Saturdays, Sundays and holidays
on which the Contractor's forces engage in regular work will be
considered as working days.

10-66 Owner Delined terms None.

ED{D OF SECTION 10

Section l0 Definition of Terms 7



Section 20 Proposal Requirements and Conditions

20-01 Advertisement (Notice to Bidders). See the Notice to Bidders as published by the Owner.

20-02 Quatification of bidders. Each bidder shall submit evidence of competency and evidence of
financial responsibility to perform the work to the Owner at the time of bid opening.

Evidence of competency, unless otherwise specified, shall consist of statements covering the bidder's past

experience on similar work, and a list of equipment and a list of key personnel that would be available for
the work.

Each bidder shall fumish the Owner satisfactory evidence of their financial responsibility. Evidence of
financial responsibility, unless otherwise specified, shall consist of a confidential statement or report of
the bidder's financial resources and liabilities as ofthe last calendar year or the bidder's last fiscal year.

Such statements or reports shall be certified by a public accountant. At the time of submitting such

financial statements or reports, the bidder shall further certifu whether their financial responsibility is
approximately the same as stated or reported by the public accountant. If the bidder's financial
responsibility has changed, the bidder shall qualiff the public accountant's statement or report to reflect
the bidder's true financial condition at the time such qualified statement or report is submitted to the

Owner.

Unless otherwise specified, a bidder may submit evidence that they are prequalified with the State

Highway Division and are on the current "bidder's lisf'of the state in which the proposed work is
located. Evidence of State Highway Division prequalification may be submitted as evidence of financial
responsibility in lieu of the certified statements or reports specified above.

20-03 Contents of proposal forms. The Owner's proposal forms state the location and description of the
proposed construction; the place, date, and time of opening of the proposals; and the estimated quantities

of the various iterns of work to be performed and materials to be fumished for which unit bid prices are

asked. The proposal form states the time in which the work must be completed, and the amount of the
proposal guaranty that must accompany the proposal. The Owner will accept only those Proposals

properly executed on physical forms or electronic forms provided by the Owner. Bidder actions that may
cause the Owner to deem a proposal irregular are given in paragraph 20-09 Irregular proposals.

Mobilization is limited to 5 percent of the total project cost.

If so stated in the advertisement, a prebid conference is planned for this project to discuss as a minimum,
the following items: material requirements; submittals; Quality ControVQuality Assurance requirements;
the construction safety and phasing plan including airport access and staging areas; and unique airfreld
paving construction requirements. The date, time and location and attendance requirement is stated in the

advertisement, if a prebid conference is planned.

20-04 Issuance of proposal forms. The Owner reserves the right to refuse to issue a proposal form to a
prospective bidder if the bidder is in default for any of the following reasons:

a. Failure to comply with any prequalification regulations of the Owner, if such regulations are cited,

or otherwise included, in the proposal as a requirernent for bidding.

b. Failure to pay, or satisfactorily settle, all bills due for labor and materials on former contracts in
force with the Owner at the time the Owner issues the proposal to a prospective bidder.

c. Documented record of Contractor default under previous contracts with the Owner.

8Section 20 Proposal Requirements and Conditions



d. Documented record of unsatisfactory work on previous contracts with the Owner.

20-05 Interpretation of estimated proposal quantities. An estimate of quantities of work to be done
and materials to be furnished under these specifications is given in the proposal. It is the result of careful
calculations and is believed to be correct. It is given only as a basis for comparison ofproposals and the
award of the contact. The Owner does not expressly, or by implication, agree that the actual quantities
involved will correspond exactly therewith; nor shall the bidder plead misunderstanding or deception
because of such estimates of quantities, or of the character, location, or other conditions pertaining to the
work. Payment to the Contractor will be made only for the actual quantities of work performed or
materials furnished in accordance with the plans and specifications. It is understood that the quantities
may be increased or decreased as provided in the Section 40, paragraph 40-D2,Alteration of Work and

Quantities, without in any way invalidating the unit bid prices.

20-06 Examination of plans, specifications, and site. The bidder is expected to carefully examine the
site of the proposed work, the proposal, plans, specifications, and contract forms. Bidders shall satisff
themselves to the character, quality, and quantities of work to be performed, materials to be furnished,
and to the requirements of the proposed contract. The submission of a proposal shall be prima facie
evidence that the bidder has made such examination and is satisfied to the conditions to be encountered in
performing the work and the requirements of the proposed contract, plans, and specifications.

Boring logs and other records ofsubsurface investigations and tests are available for inspection of
bidders. It is understood and agreed that such subsurface information, whether included in the plans,

specifications, or otherwise made available to the bidder, was obtained and is intended for the Owner's
design and estimating purposes only. Such information has been made available for the convenience of all
bidders. It is further understood and agreed that each bidder is solely responsible for all assumptions,
deductions, or conclusions which the bidder may make or obtain from their own examination of the
boring logs and other records of subsurface investigations and tests that are fumished by the Owner.

20-07 Preparation of proposal. The bidder shall submit their proposal on the forms furnished by the
Owner. All blank spaces in the proposal forms, unless explicitly stated otherwise, must be conectly filled
in where indicated for each and every item for which a quantity is given. The bidder shall state the price
(written in ink or tJped) both in words and numerals which they propose for each pay item furnished in
the proposal. In case of conflict between words and numerals, the words, unless obviously incorrect, shall
govern. Prices should generally be written in whole dollars and cents. The extended total amount of each

item should not be rounded.

The bidder shall correctly sign the proposal in ink. If the proposal is made by an individual, their name

and post office address must be shown. If made by a partnership, the name and post offrce address of each
member of the partnership must be shown. If made by a corporation, the person signing the proposal shall
give the name of the state where the corporation was chartered and the name, titles, and business address

of the president, secretary, and the teasurer. Anyone sigrring a proposal as an agent shall file evidence of
their authority to do so and that the signature is binding upon the firm or corporation.

20-08 Responsive and responsible bidder. A responsive bid conforms to all sigrrificant terms and
conditions contained in the Owner's invitation for bid. It is the Owner's responsibility to decide if the
exceptions taken by a bidder to the solicitation are material or not and the extent of deviation it is willing
to accept.

A responsible bidder has the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed
procurement, as defined in 2 CFR $ 200.318(h). This includes such matters as Contractor integrity,
compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical resources.

20-09 Irregular proposals. Proposals shall be considered inegular for the following reasons:

9Section 20 Proposal Requirements and Conditions



a. If the proposal is on a form other than that fumished by the Owner, or if the Owner's form is
altered, or ifany part ofthe proposal form is detached.

b. If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities of any kind
that make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous.

c. Ifthe proposal does not contain a unit price for each pay item listed in the proposal, except in the
case of authorized altemate pay iterns, for which the bidder is not required to furnish a unit price.

d. Ifthe proposal contains unit prices that are obviously unbalanced.

e. If the proposal is not accompanied by the proposal guaranty specified by the Owner.

f. If the applicable Disadvantaged Business Enterprise information is incomplete.

The Owner reserves the right to reject any irregular proposal and the right to waive technicalities if such
waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and conforms to local laws and ordinances pertaining to the
letting of construction contracts.

20-10 Bid guarantee. Each separate proposal shall be accompanied by a bid bond, certified check, or
other specified acceptable collateral, in the amount specified in the proposal form. Such bond, check, or
collateral, shall be made payable to the Owner.

20-11 Delivery of proposal. Each proposal submitted shall be placed in a sealed envelope plainly marked
with the project number, location of airport, and name and business address of the bidder on the outside.
When sent by mail, preferably registered, the sealed proposal, marked as indicated above, should be
enclosed in an additional envelope. No proposal will be considered unless received at the place specified
in the advertisement or as modified by Addendum before the time specified for opening all bids.
Proposals received after the bid opening time shall be returned to the bidder unopened.

20-12 Withdrawal or revision of proposals. A bidder may withdraw or revise (by withdrawal of one
proposal and submission of another) a proposal provided that the bidder's request for withdrawal is
received by the Owner in writing or by email before the time specified for opening bids. Revised
proposals must be received at the place specified in the advertisernent before the time specified for
opening all bids.

20-13 Public opening of proposals. Proposals shall be opened, and read, publicly at the time and place
specified in the advertisement. Bidders, their authorized agents, and other interested persons are invited to
attend. Proposals that have been withdrawn (by written or telegraphic request) or received after the time
specified for opening bids shall be returned to the bidder unopened.

20-14 Disqualification of bidders. A bidder shall be considered disqualified for any of the following
reasons:

a. Submitting more than one proposal from the same partnership, firm, or corporation under the same
or different name.

b. Evidence of collusion among bidders. Bidders participating in such collusion shall be disqualified
as bidders for any future work of the Owner until any such participating bidder has been reinstated by the
Owner as a qualified bidder.

c. Ifthe bidder is considered to be in "default" for any reason specified in paragraph 20-04, Issuance
of Proposal Forms, of this section.

20-15 Discrepancies and Omissions. A Bidder who discovers discrepancies or omissions with the
project bid documents shall immediately notify the Owner's Engineer of the matter. A bidder that has

doubt as to the true meaning of a project requirernent may submit to the Owner's Engineer a written
request for interpretation no later than l0 days prior to bid opening.

Section 20 Proposal Requirements and Conditions 10



Any interpretation of the project bid documents by the Owner's Engineer will be by written addendum
issued by the Owner. The Owner will not consider any instructions, clarifications or interpretations of the
bidding documents in any manner other than written addendum.

END OF SECTION2O

Section 20 Proposal Requirements and Conditions n



Section 30 Award and Execution of Contract

30-01 Consideration of proposals. After the proposals are publicly opened and read, they will be
compared on the basis of the summation of the products obtained by multiplying the estimated quantities
shown in the proposal by the unit bid prices. Ifa bidder's proposal contains a discrepancy between unit
bid prices written in words and unit bid prices written in numbers, the unit bid price written in words shall
govern.

Until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject a bidder's proposal for any of
the following reasons:

a. If the proposal is irregular as specified in Section 20,paragraph20-09,Irregular Proposals.

b. If the bidder is disqualified for any of the reasons specifred Section 20,paragraph20-14,
Di s qu al ifi c ati on of Bidde rs.

ln addition, until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all
proposals, waive technicalities, if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and is in conformance
with applicable state and local laws or regulations pertaining to the letting of construction contracts;
advertise for new proposals; or proceed with the work otherwise. All such actions shall promote the
Owner's best interests.

30-02 Award of contract. The award of a contract, if it is to be awarded, shall be made within 60 days

but not more than 120 calendar days of the date specified for publicly opening proposals, unless otherwise
specified herein.

If the Owner elects to proceed with an award of contract, the Owner will make award to the responsible
bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the bid documents, is the
lowest in price.

30-03 Cancellation of award. The Owner reserves the right to cancel the award without liability to the
bidder, except return of proposal guaranty, at any time before a contract has been fully executed by all
parties and is approved by the Owner in accordance with paragraph 30-07 Approval of Contract.

30-04 Return of proposal guaranty. All proposal guaranties, except those of the two lowest bidders,
will be retumed immediately after the Owner has made a comparison of bids as specified in the paragraph

30-01, Consideration of Proposals. Proposal guaranties of the two lowest bidders will be retained by the

Owner until such time as an award is made, at which time, the unsuccessful bidder's proposal guaranty

will be returned. The successful bidder's proposal guaranty will be retumed as soon as the Owner
receives the contract bonds as specified in paragraph 30-05, Requirements of Contract Bonds.

30-05 Requirements of contract bonds. At the time of the execution of the contract, the successful
bidder shall furnish the Owner a surety bond or bonds that have been fully executed by the bidder and the
surety guaranteeing the performance of the work and the payment of all legal debts that may be incurred
by reason of the Contractor's performance of the work. The surety and the form of the bond or bonds

shall be acceptable to the Owner. Unless otherwise specified in this subsection, the surety bond or bonds
shall be in a sum equal to the full amount of the contract.

30-06 Execution ofcontract. The successful bidder shall sigrr (execute) the necessary agreements for
entering into the contract and retum the sigrred contract to the Owner, along with the fully executed surety
bond or bonds specified in paragraph 30-05, Requirements of Contract Bonds, of this section, within 15

calendar days from the date mailed or otherwise delivered to the successful bidder.

Section 30 Award and Execution of Contract t2



30-07 Approval of contract. Upon receipt ofthe contact and contract bond or bonds that have been
executed by the successful bidder, the Owner shall complete the execution of the confract in accordance
with local laws or ordinances, and retum the fully executed conffact to the Contractor. Delivery of the
fully executed contract to the Contractor shall constitute the Owner's approval to be bound by the
successful bidder's proposal and the terms of the contract.

30-08 Failure to execute contract. Failure of the successful bidder to execute the contract and fumish an
acceptable surety bond or bonds within the period specified in paragraph 30-06, Execution of Contract, of
this section shall bejust cause for cancellation ofthe award and forfeiture ofthe proposal guaranty, not as

a penalty, but as liquidated damages to the Owner.

EI\[D OF SECTION 30

Section 30 Award and Execution of Contract l3



Section 40 Scope of Work

40-01 Intent ofcontract. The intent ofthe contract is to provide for construction and completion, in
every detail, of the work described. It is further intended that the Contractor shall fumish all labor,
materials, equipment, tools, transportation, and supplies required to complete the work in accordance with
the plans, specifications, and terms of the contract.

40-02 Alteration of work and quantities. The Owner reserves the right to make such changes in
quantities and work as may be necessary or desirable to complete, in a satisfactory manner, the original
intended work. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the Owner's Engineer or RPR shall be and is
hereby authorized to make, in writing, such in-scope alterations in the work and variation of quantities as

may be necessary to complete the work, provided such action does not represent a significant change in
the character of the work.

For purpose ofthis section, a significant change in character ofwork means: any change that is outside
the current contract scope ofwork; any change (increase or decrease) in the total contract cost by more
Ihan25Yo; or any change in the total cost of a major contract item by more thanZlo/o.

Work alterations and quantity variances that do not meet the definition of significant change in character
of work shall not invalidate the contact nor release the surety. Contractor agrees to accept payment for
such work alterations and quantity variances in accordance with Section 90, paragraph 90-03,
Compensation for Altered Quantities.

Should the value of altered work or quantity variance meet the criteria for sigrrificant change in character
of work, such altered work and quantity variance shall be covered by a supplanental agreement.

Supplemental agreements shall also require consent of the Contractor's suret5l and separate performance

and payment bonds. If the Owner and the Contractor are unable to agree on a unit adjustment for any
contract item that requires a supplemental agreement, the Owner reserves the right to terminate the

contract with respect to the item and make other arrangements for its completion.

40-03 Omitted items. The Owner, the Owner's Engineer or the RPR may provide written notice to the
Contractor to omit from the work any contract itern that does not meet the definition of major contract
item. Major contract items may be omiued by a supplemental agreement. Such omission of contract items
shall not invalidate any other contract provision or requirement.

Should a contract item be omified or otherwise ordered to be non-performed, the Contractor shall be paid
for all work performed toward completion of such item prior to the date of the order to omit such item.
Payment for work performed shall be in accordance with Section 90, paragraph 90-04, Paymentfor
Omitted ltems.

40-04 Extra work. Should acceptable completion of the contract require the Contractor to perform an
item of work not provided for in the awarded contract as previously modified by change order or
supplemental agreement, Owner may issue a Change Order to cover the necessary extra work. Change

orders for extra work shall contain agreed unit prices for performing the change order work in accordance

with the requirements specified in the order, and shall contain any adjustment to the contract time that, in
the RPR's opinion, is necessary for completion of the extra work.

When determined by the RPR to be in the Owner's best interest, the RPR may order the Contractor to
proceed with extra work as provided in Section 90, paragraph 90-05, Paymentfor Extra Work. Extra work
that is necessary for acceptable completion of the project, but is not within the general scope of the work

Section 40 Scope of Work l4



covered by the original contract shall be covered by a supplemental agreement as defined in Section 10,
paragraph 10-59, Supplemental Agreement.

If extra work is essential to maintaining the project critical path, RPR may order the Contractor to
commence the extra work under a Time and Material contract method. Once sufficient detail is available
to establish the level of effort necessary for the extra work, the Owner shall initiate a change order or
supplemental agreement to cover the extra work.

Any claim for payment of extra work that is not covered by written agreement (change order or
supplemental agteement) shall be rejected by the Owner.

40-05 Maintenance of traffic. It is the explicit intention of the contact that the safety of aircraft, as well
as the Contractor's equipment and personnel, is the most important consideration. The Contractor shall
maintain traflic in the manner detailed in the Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP).

a. It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall provide for the free and unobstructed
movement of aircraft in the air operations areas (AOAs) of the airport with respect to their own operations
and the operations of all subcontractors as specified in Section 80, paragraph 80-04, Limitation of
Operations.It is further understood and agreed that the Contractor shall provide for the unintemrpted
operation ofvisual and electronic signals (including power supplies thereto) used in the guidance of
aircraft while operating to, from, and upon the airport as specified in Section 70,paragraph70-15,
Contractor's Responsibilityfor Uility Service and Facilities of Others.

b. With respect to their own operations and the operations of all subcontractors, the Contractor shall
provide marking, lighting, and other acceptable means of identifying personnel, equipment, vehicles,
storage areas, and any work area or condition that may be hazardous to the operation of aircraft, fire-
rescue equipment, or maintenance vehicles at the airport in accordance with the construction safety and
phasing plan (CSPP) and the safety plan compliance document (SPCD).

c. When the contract requires the maintenance of an existing road, street, or highway during the

Contractor's performance of work that is otherwise provided for in the contract, plans, and specifications,
the Contractor shall keep the road, street, or highway open to all traffic and shall provide maintenance as

may be required to accommodate traffic. The Contractor, at their expense, shall be responsible for the
repair to equal or better than preconstruction conditions of any damage caused by the Contractor's
equipment and personnel. The Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, warning signs,
flag person, and other traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the Manual on Uniform
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) (http:/imutcd.ftrwa.dot.gov4, unless otherwise specified. The
Contractor shall also construct and maintain in a safe condition any temporary connections necessary for
ingress to and egress from abutting property or intersecting roads, streets or highways

40-06 Removal of existing structures. All existing structures encountered within the established lines,
grades, or grading sections shall be removed by the Contractor, unless such existing structures are
otherwise specified to be relocated, adjusted up or down, salvaged, abandoned in place, reused in the
work or to rernain in place. The cost of runoving such existing structures shall not be measured or paid
for directly, but shall be included in the various contract items.

Should the Contractor encounter an existing structure (above or below ground) in the work for which the
disposition is not indicated on the plans, the Resident Project Representative (RPR) shall be notified prior
to disturbing such structure. The disposition of existing structures so encountered shall be immediately
determined by the RPR in accordance with the provisions of the contract.

Except as provided in Section 40, paragraph 40-07 , Rights in and Use of Materiqls Found in the Work, it
is intended that all existing materials or structures that may be encountered (within the lines, grades, or
grading sections established for completion of the work) shall be used in the work as otherwise provided
for in the contract and shall remain the property of the Owner when so used in the work.

Section 40 Scope of Work l5



40-07 Rights in and use of materials found in the work. Should the Contractor encounter any material
such as (but not restricted to) sand, stone, gravel, slag, or concrete slabs within the established lines,
grades, or grading sections, the use of which is intended by the terms of the contact to be embankment,
the Contractor may at their own option either:

a. Use such material in another contact item, providing such use is approved by the RPR and is in
conformance with the contract specifications applicable to such use; or,

b. Remove such material from the site, upon written approval of the RPR; or

c. Use such material for the Contractor's own temporary construction on site; or,

d. Use such material as intended by the terms of the contract.

Should the Contractor wish to exercise option a., b., or c., the Contractor shall request the RPR's approval
in advance ofsuch use.

Should the RPR approve the Contractor's request to exercise option a., b., or c., the Contractor shall be
paid for the excavation or removal of such material at the applicable contract price. The Contractor shall
replace, at their expense, such rernoved or excavated material with an agreed equal volume of material
that is acceptable for use in constructing embankment, backfills, or otherwise to the extent that such
replacement material is needed to complete the contract work. The Contractor shall not be charged for use

of such material used in the work or removed from the site.

Should the RPR approve the Contractor's exercise of option a., the Contractor shall be paid, at the
applicable contract price, for furnishing and installing such material in accordance with requirements of
the contract item in which the material is used.

It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall make no claim for delays by reason of their own
exercise of option a., b., or c.

The Contractor shall not excavate, remove, or otherwise disturb any material, structute, or part of a
structure which is located outside the lines, grades, or grading sections established for the work, except
where such excavation or removal is provided for in the contract, plans, or specifications.

40-08 Final cleanup. Upon completion of the work and before acceptance and final payment will be
made, the Contractor shall remove from the site all machinery, equipment, surplus and discarded
materials, rubbish, temporary structures, and stumps or portions of trees. The Contractor shall cut all
brush and woods within the limits indicated and shall leave the site in a neat and presentable condition.
Material cleared from the site and deposited on adjacent property will not be considered as having been

disposed of satisfactorily, unless the Contractor has obtained the written permission of the property
Owner.

EI{D OF SECTION 40

Section 40 Scope of Work t6



Section 50 Control of Work

50-01 Authority of the Resident Project Representative (RPR). The RPR has final authority regarding
the interpretation of project specification requirements. The RPR shall determine acceptability of the
quality of materials furnished, method ofperformance of work performed, and the manner and rate of
performance of the work. The RPR does not have the authority to accept work that does not conform to
specifi cation requirements.

50-02 Conformity with plans and specilications. All work and all materials furnished shall be in
reasonably close conformity with the lines, grades, grading sections, cross-sections, dimensions, material
requirernents, and testing requirements that are specified (including specified tolerances) in the contract,
plans, or specifications.

If the RPR finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product not within reasonably
close conformity with the plans and specifications, but that the portion of the work affected will, in their
opinion, result in a finished product having a level of safety, economy, durability, and workrnanship
acceptable to the Owner, the RPR will advise the Owner of their determination that the affected work be
accepted and remain in place. The RPR will document the determination and recommend to the Owner a
basis of acceptance that will provide for an adjustment in the contract price for the affected portion of the

work. Changes in the contract price must be covered by contract change order or supplemental agreement
as applicable.

If the RPR finds the materials fumished, work performed, or the finished product are not in reasonably
close conformity with the plans and specifications and have resulted in an unacceptable finished product,
the affected work or materials shall be removed and replaced or otherwise corrected by and at the expense

of the Contractor in accordance with the RPR's written orders.

The term "reasonably close conformity" shall not be construed as waiving the Contractor's responsibility
to complete the work in accordance with the contract, plans, and specifications. The term shall not be
construed as waiving the RPR's responsibility to insist on strict compliance with the requirements of the
contract, plans, and specifications during the Contractor's execution of the work, when, in the RPR's
opinion, such compliance is essential to provide an acceptable finished portion of the work.

The term "reasonably close conformity" is also intended to provide the RPR with the authority, after
consultation with the Sponsor and FAA, to use sound engineering judgment in their determinations to
accept work that is not in strict conformity, but will provide a finished product equal to or better than that
required by the requirements of the contract, plans and specifications.

The RPR will not be responsible for the Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures ofconstruction or the safety precautions incident thereto.

50-03 Coordination ofcontract, plans, and specifications. The contract, plans, specifications, and all
referenced standards cited are essential parts ofthe contract requirements. Ifelectronic files are provided
and used on the project and there is a conflict between the electronic files and hard copy plans, the hard
copy plans shall govern. A requirement occurring in one is as binding as though occurring in all. They
are intended to be complementary and to describe and provide for a complete work. In case of
discrepancy, calculated dimensions will govern over scaled dimensions; contract technical specifications
shall govern over contract general provisions, plans, cited standards for materials or testing, and cited
advisory circulars (ACs); contract general provisions shall govern over plans, cited standards for materials
or testing, and cited ACs; plans shall govern over cited standards for materials or testing and cited ACs. If

Section 50 Control of Work t7



any paragraphs contained in the Special Provisions conflict with General Provisions or Technical
Specifications, the Special Provisions shall govern.

From time to time, discrepancies within cited testing standards occur due to the timing of the change,
edits, and/or replacement of the standards. If the Contractor discovers any apparent discrepancy within
standard test methods, the Contractor shall immediately ask the RPR for an interpretation and decision,
and such decision shall be final.

The Contractor shall not take advantage of any apparent error or omission on the plans or specifications.
In the event the Contractor discovers any apparent error or discrepancy, Contractor shall immediately
notifr the Owner or the designated representative in writing requesting their written interpretation and
decision.

50-04 List of Special Provisions. The Special Provisions are included in a separate section ofthese
contract documents titled "Special Provisions".

50-05 Cooperation of Contractor. The Contractor shall be supplied with five hard copies or an
electronic PDF of the plans and specifications. The Contractor shall have available on the construction
site at all times one hardcopy each of the plans and specifications printed in color. Additional hard copies
of plans and specifications may be obtained by the Contractor for the cost of reproduction.

The Contractor shall give constant attention to the work to facilitate the progress thereof and shall
cooperate with the RPR and their inspectors and with other Contractors in every way possible. The
Contractor shall have a competent superintendent on the work at all times who is fully authorized as their
agent on the work. The superintendent shall be capable ofreading and thoroughly understanding the plans
and specifications and shall receive and fuIfilI instructions from the RPR or their authorized
representative.

50-06 Cooperation between Contractors. The Owner reserves the right to contract for and perform
other or additional work on or near the work covered by this confract.

When separate contracts are let within the limits of any one project, each Contractor shall conduct the
work not to interfere with or hinder the progress of completion of the work being performed by other
Contractors. Contractors working on the same project shall cooperate with each other as directed.

Each Contractor involved shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with their own
contract and shall protect and hold harmless the Owner from any and all damages or claims that may arise
because ofinconvenience, delays, or loss experienced because ofthe presence and operations ofother
Contractors working within the limits of the same project.

The Contractor shall affange their work and shall place and dispose of the materials being used to not
interfere with the operations of the other Contractors within the limits of the same project. The Contractor
shall join their work with that of the others in an acceptable manner and shall perform it in proper
sequence to that ofthe others.

50-07 Construction layout and stakes. The EngineerlRPR shall establish necessary horizontal and

vertical control. The establishment of Survey Control and/or reestablishment of survey control shall be
by a State Licensed Land Surveyor. Contractor is responsible for preserving integrity ofhorizontal and
vertical controls established by Engineer/RPR. In case of negligence on the part of the Contractor or their
employees, resulting in the destruction of any horizontal and vertical control, the resulting costs will be
deducted as a liquidated damage against the Contractor.

Prior to the start of construction, the Contractor will check all control points for horizontal and vertical
accuracy and certify in writing to the RPR that the Contractor concurs with survey control established for
the project. All lines, grades and measurements from control points necessary for the proper execution
and control of the work on this project will be provided to the RPR. The Contractor is responsible to
establish all layout required for the construction ofthe project.

Section 50 Control of Work 18



Copies of survey notes will be provided to the RPR for each area of construction and for each placement
of material as specified to allow the RPR to make periodic checks for conformance with plan grades,

alignments and grade tolerances required by the applicable material specifications. Surveys will be
provided to the RPR prior to commencing work items that cover or disturb the survey staking. Survey(s)
and notes shall be provided in the following format(s): paper copy and point file (point, northing, easting,
elevation & description delimited digital file)._

Construction Staking and Layout includes but is not limited to:

a. Clearing and Grubbing perimeter staking

b. Rough Grade slope stakes at 100-foot (30-m) stations

c. Drainage Swales slope stakes and flow line blue tops at 50-foot (15-m) stations

Subgrade blue tops at2!-foot (7.5-m) stations and 25-foot (7.5-m) offset distance (maximum) for the
following section locations:

a. Runway - minimum five (5) per station

b. Taxiways - minimum three (3) per station

c. Holding apron areas - minimum three (3) per station

d. Roadways - minimum three (3) per station

Base Course blue tops at 25-foot (7.5-m) stations and 25-foot (7.5-m) offset distance (maximum) for the
following section locations:

a. Runway - minimum five (5) per station

b. Taxiways - minimum three (3) per station

c. Holding apron areas - minimum three (3) per station

Pavement areas:

a. Edge of Pavement hubs and tacks (for stringline by Contractor) at 100-foot (30-m) stations.

b. Between Lifts at 25-foot (7.5-m) stations for the following section locations:

(1) Runways - each paving lane width
(2) Taxiways - each paving lane width
(3) Holding areas - each paving lane width

c. After finish paving operations at 50-foot (15-m) stations:

(1) All paved areas - Edge ofeach paving lane prior to next paving lot

d. Shoulder and safety area blue tops at 50-foot (15-m) stations and at all break points with maximum
of SO-foot (15-m) offsets.

e. Fence lines at 100-foot (30-m) stations minimum.

f. Electrical and Communications Systun locations, lines and grades including but not limited to duct
runs, connections, fixtures, signs, lights, Visual Approach Slope Indicators (VASIs), Precision Approach
Path krdicators (PAPIs), Runway End Identifier Lighting (REtr-), Wind Cones, Distance Markers (signs),
pull boxes and manholes.

g. Drain lines, cut stakes and alignment on 25-foot (7.5-m) stations, inlet and manholes.

h. Painting and Striping layout (pinned with 1.5 inch PK nails) marked for paint Contractor. (All nails
shall be removed after painting).

Section 50 Control of Work l9



i. Laser, or other automatic control devices, shall be checked with temporary control point or grade

hub at a minimum of once per 400 feet (120 m) per pass (that is, paving lane).

The establishment of Survey Control and/or reestablishment of survey control shall be by a State
Licensed Land Surveyor.

Controls and stakes disturbed or suspect ofhaving been disturbed shall be checked and/or reset as

directed by the Engineer without additional cost to the Owner.

Laser, GPS, String line, or other automatic control shall be checked with temporary control as necessary.

In the case oferror, on the part ofthe Contractor, their surveyor, employees or subcontractors, resulting in
established grades, alignment or grade tolerances that do not concur with those specified or shown on the
plans, the Contractor is solely responsible for correction, removal, replacement and all associated costs at

no additional cost to the Owner.

No direct payment will be made, unless otherwise specified in contract documents, for this labor,
materials, or other expenses. The cost shall be included in the price of the bid for the various items of the
Contract.

50-08 Authority and duties of Quality Assurance (QA) inspectors. QA inspectors shall be authorized
to inspect all work done and all material furnished. Such QA inspection may extend to all or any part of
the work and to the preparation, fabrication, or manufacture of the materials to be used. QA inspectors are
not authorized to revoke, alter, or waive any provision ofthe contract. QA inspectors are not authorized to
issue instructions contrary to the plans and specifications or to act as foreman for the Contractor.

QA Inspectors are authorized to notify the Contractor or their representatives of any failure of the work or
materials to conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, or specifications and to reject such

nonconforming materials in question until such issues can be referred to the RPR for a decision.

50-09 Inspection of the work. All materials and each part or detail of the work shall be subject to
inspection. The RPR shall be allowed access to all parts of the work and shall be furnished with such

information and assistance by the Contractor as is required to make a complete and detailed inspection.

If the RPR requests it, the Contractor, at any time before acceptance of the work, shall remove or uncover
such portions of the finished work as may be directed. After examination, the Contractor shall restore said
portions of the work to the standard required by the specifications. Should the work thus exposed or
examined prove acceptable, the uncovering, or removing, and the replacing of the covering or making
good of the parts removed will be paid for as extra work; but should the work so exposed or examined
prove unacceptable, the uncovering, or removing, and the replacing of the covering or making good of the
parts removed will be at the Contractor's expense.

Provide advance written notice to the RPR of work the Contractor plans to perform each week and each

day. Any work done or materials used without written notice and allowing opportunity for inspection by
the RPR may be ordered removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense.

Should the contract work include relocation, adjustment, or any other modification to existing facilities,
not the property of the (contract) Owner, authorized representatives of the Owners of such facilities shall
have the right to inspect such work. Such inspection shall in no sense make any facility owner a party to
the contract, and shall in no way interfere with the rights of the parties to this contract.

50-10 Removal of unacceptable and unauthorized work. All work that does not conform to the
requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications will be considered unacceptable, unless otherwise
determined acceptable by the RPR as provided in paragraph 50-02, Conformity with Plans and
Specifications,

Unacceptable work, whether the result of poor worlcnanship, use of defective materials, damage through
carelessness, or any other cause found to exist prior to the final acceptance ofthe work, shall be removed

Section 50 Control of Work 20



immediately and replaced in an acceptable manner in accordance with the provisions of Section 70,
paragraph 7 0 -l 4, C ontr ac t or' s Re sp ons ibi I i ty for Work.

No removal work made under provision of this paragraph shall be done without lines and grades having
been established by the RPR. Work done contary to the instructions of the RPR, work done beyond the
lines shown on the plans or as established by the RPR, except as herein specified, or any extra work done
without authority, will be considered as unauthorized and will not be paid for under the provisions of the
contract. Work so done may be ordered removed or replaced at the Contractor's expense.

Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply with any order of the RPR made under the
provisions of this subsection, the RPR will have authority to cause unacceptable work to be rernedied or
removed and replaced; and unauthorized work to be rernoved and recover the resulting costs as a
liquidated damage against the Contractor.

50-11 Load restrictions. The Contractor shall comply with all legal load restrictions in the hauling of
materials on public roads beyond the limits of the work. A special permit will not relieve the Contractor
of liability for damage that may result from the moving of material or equipment.

The operation of equipment of such weight or so loaded as to cause damage to structures or to any other
type of construction will not be permitted. Hauling of materials over the base course or surface course
under construction shall be limited as directed. No loads will be permiued on a concrete pavement, base,
or structure before the expiration of the curing period. The Contractor, at their own expense, shall be
responsible for the repair to equal or better than preconsfuction conditions of any damage caused by the
Contractor's equipment and personnel.

The Contractor shall pay particular attention when sections of existing airfield pavements will be used as

haul routes to assure that existing pavements are not overloaded. The Contractor shall to preserve or
rehabilitate any access roads or haul routes to the bid documents. Construction traffic should be kept off
airport pavements to the extent possible.

50-12 Maintenance during construction. The Contractor shall maintain the work during construction
and until the work is accepted. Maintenance shall constitute continuous and effective work prosecuted
day by day, with adequate equipment and forces so that the work is maintained in satisfactory condition at
all times.

In the case of a contract for the placing of a course upon a course or subgrade previously constructed, the
Contractor shall maintain the previous course or subgrade during all construction operations.

All costs of maintenance work during construction and before the project is accepted shall be included in
the unit prices bid on the various contract items, and the Contractor will not be paid an additional amount
for such work.

50-13 Failure to maintain the work. Should the Contactor at any time fail to maintain the work as

provided in paragraph 50-12, Maintenance during Construction, the RPR shall immediately notiS the
Contractor of such noncompliance. Such notification shall specify a reasonable time within which the
Contractor shall be required to remedy such unsatisfactory maintenance condition. The time specified will
give due consideration to the exigency that exists.

Should the Contractor fail to respond to the RPR's notification, the Owner may suspend any work
necessary for the Owner to correct such unsatisfactory maintenance condition, depending on the exigency
that exists. Any maintenance cost incurred by the Owner, shall be recovered as a liquidated damage
against the Contractor.

50-14 Partial acceptance. If at any time during the execution of the project the Contractor substantially
completes a usable unit or portion of the work, the occupancy of which will benefit the Owner, the
Contractor may request the RPR to make final inspection of that unit. If the RPR finds upon inspection
that the unit has been satisfactorily completed in compliance with the contract, the RPR may accept it as

Section 50 Control of Work 2t



being complete, and the Contractor may be relieved of further responsibility for that unit. Such partial
acceptance and beneficial occupancy by the Owner shall not void or alter any provision ofthe contract.

50-15 Final acceptance. Upon due notice from the Contractor of presumptive completion of the entire
project, the RPR and Owner will make an inspection. If all construction provided for and contemplated by
the contract is found to be complete in accordance with the contract, plans, and specifications, such

inspection shall constitute the final inspection. The RPR shall notifu the Contractor in writing of final
acceptance as ofthe date ofthe final inspection.

If, however, the inspection discloses any work, in whole or in part, as being unsatisfactory the RPR will
notifu the Contractor and the Contactor shall correct the unsatisfactory work. Upon correction of the

work, another inspection will be made which shall constitute the final inspection, provided the work has

been satisfactorily completed. ln such event, the RPR will make the final acceptance and notifu the
Contractor in writing of this acceptance as of the date of final inspection.

50-16 Claims for adjustment and disputes. If for any reason the Contractor deems that additional
compensation is due for work or materials not clearly provided for in the confract, plans, or specifications
or previously authorized as extra work, the Contractor shall notifu the RPR in writing of their intention to
claim such additional compensation before the Contractor begins the work on which the Contractor bases

the claim. If such notification is not given or the RPR is not afforded proper opportunity by the Contractor
for keeping strict account of actual cost as required, then the Contractor hereby agrees to waive any claim
for such additional compensation. Such notice by the Contractor and the fact that the RPR has kept
account of the cost of the work shall not in any way be construed as proving or substantiating the validity
of the claim. When the work on which the claim for additional compensation is based has been

completed, the Contractor shall, within 10 calendar days, submit a written claim to the RPR who will
present it to the Owner for consideration in accordance with local laws or ordinances.

Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as a waiver of the Contractor's right to dispute final
payment based on differences in measurernents or computations.

50-17 Value Engineering Cost Proposal. NOT USED.

EI\D OF SECTION 50

Section 50 Control of Work 22



Section 60 Control of Materials

60-01 Source of supply and quality requirements. The materials used in the work shall conform to the
requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications. Unless otherwise specified, such materials that are

manufactured or processed shall be new (as compared to used or reprocessed).

In order to expedite the inspection and testing of materials, the Contractor shall furnish documentation to
the RPR as to the origrn, composition, and manufacture of all materials to be used in the work.
Documentation shall be furnished promptly after execution of the contract but, in all cases, prior to
delivery of such materials.

At the RPR's option, materials may be approved at the source of supply before delivery. If it is found
after trial that sources of supply for previously approved materials do not produce specified products, the
Contractor shall furnish materials from other sources.

The Contractor shall furnish airport lighting equipment that meets the requirements of the specifications;
and is listed in AC 150/5345-53, Airport Lighting Equipment Cerffication Program and Addendum,that
is in effect on the date of advertisement.

60-02 Samples, tests, and cited specifications. All materials used in the work shall be inspected, tested,
and approved by the RPR before incorporation in the work unless otherwise desigrrated. Any work in
which untested materials are used without approval or written permission of the RPR shall be performed
at the Contractor's risk. Materials found to be unacceptable and unauthorized will not be paid for and, if
directed by the RPR, shall be removed at the Contractor's expense.

Unless otherwise designated, quality asswance tests will be made by and at the expense of the Owner in
accordance with the cited standard methods of ASTM, American Association of State Highway and
Transportation Officials (AASHTO), federal specifications, Commercial Item Descriptions, and all other
cited methods, which are current on the date of advertisement for bids.

The testing organizations performing on-site quality assurance field tests shall have copies of all
referenced standards on the construction site for use by all technicians and other personnel. Unless
otherwise designated, samples for quality assurance will be taken by a qualified representative of the
RPR. All materials being used are subject to inspection, test, or rejection at any time prior to or during
incorporation into the work. Copies of all tests will be furnished to the Contractor's representative at their
request after review and approval ofthe RPR.

A copy of all Contractor QC test data shall be provided to the RPR daily, along with printed reports, in an
approved format, on a weeHy basis. After completion of the project, and prior to final payment, the
Contractor shall submit a final report to the RPR showing all test data reports, plus an analysis of all
results showing ranges, averages, and corrective action taken on all failing tests. The Contractor shall
employ a Quality Control (QC) testing organization to perform all Contractor required QC tests in
accordance with Item C-100 Contractor Quality Control Program (CQCP).

60-03 Certification of compliance/analysis (COC/COA). The RPR may permit the use, prior to
sampling and testing, of certain materials or assemblies when accompanied by manufacturer's COC
stating that such materials or assemblies fully comply with the requirements of the contract. The
certificate shall be signed by the manufacturer. Each lot of such materials or assemblies delivered to the
work must be accompanied by a certificate of compliance in which the lot is clearly identified. The COA
is the manufacturer's COC and includes all applicable test results.

Section 60 Control of Materials 23



Materials or assemblies used on the basis of certificates of compliance may be sampled and tested at any
time and if found not to be in conformity with contract requirements will be subject to rejection whether
in place or not.

The form and distribution of certificates of compliance shall be as approved by the RPR.

When a material or assembly is specified by "brand name or equal" and the Contractor elects to furnish
the specified "or equal," the Contractor shall be required to fumish the manufacturer's certificate of
compliance for each lot of such material or assembly delivered to the work. Such certificate of
compliance shall clearly identifu each lot delivered and shall certifu as to:

a. Conformance to the specified performance, testing, quality or dimensional requirements; and,

b. Suitability of the material or assembly for the use intended in the contract work.

The RPR shall be the sole judge as to whether the proposed "or equal" is suitable for use in the work.

The RPR reseryes the right to refuse permission for use of materials or assemblies on the basis of
certifi cates of compliance.

60-04 Plant inspection. The RPR or their authorized representative may inspect, at its source, any
specified material or assembly to be used in the work. Manufacturing plants may be inspected from time
to time for the purpose of determining compliance with specified manufacturing methods or materials to
be used in the work and to obtain samples required for acceptance of the material or assembly.

Should the RPR conduct plant inspections, the following conditions shall exist:

a. The RPR shall have the cooperation and assistance of the Contractor and the producer with whom
the Contractor has contracted for materials.

b. The RPR shall have full entry at all reasonable times to such parts of the plant that concem the
manufacture or production of the materials being furnished.

c. If required by the RPR, the Contractor shall arrange for adequate office or working space that may
be reasonably needed for conducting plant inspections. Place office or working space in a convenient
location with respect to the plant.

It is understood and agreed that the Owner shall have the right to retest any material that has been tested

and approved at the source ofsupply after it has been delivered to the site. The RPR shall have the right to
reject only material which, when retested, does not meet the requirements of the contract, plans, or
specifications.

60-05 Engineer/ Resident Project Representative (RPR) field office. Not Used

60-06 Storage of materials. Materials shall be stored to assure the preservation of their quality and
fitness for the work. Stored materials, even though approved before storage, may againbe inspected prior
to their use in the work. Stored materials shall be located to facilitate their prompt inspection. The
Contractor shall coordinate the storage of all materials with the RPR. Materials to be stored on airport
property shall not create an obstruction to air navigation nor shall they interfere with the free and
unobstructed movement of aircraft. Unless otherwise shown on the plans and/or CSPP, the storage of
materials and the location of the Contractor's plant and parked equipment or vehicles shall be as directed
by the RPR. Private property shall not be used for storage purposes without written permission of the
Owner or lessee of such property. The Contractor shall make all arrangements and bear all expenses for
the storage of materials on private property. Upon request, the Contractor shall furnish the RPR a copy of
the property Owner's permission.

Section 60 Control of Materials 24



All storage sites on private or airport property shall be restored to their original condition by the
Contractor at their expense, except as otherwise agreed to (in writing) by the Owner or lessee of the
property.

60-07 Unacceptable materials. Any material or assembly that does not conform to the requirements of
the contract, plans, or specifications shall be considered unacceptable and shall be rejected. The
Contractor shall remove any rejected material or assembly from the site of the work, unless otherwise
instructed by the RPR.

Rejected material or assembly, the defects of which have been corrected by the Contractor, shall not be
returned to the site of the work until such time as the RPR has approved its use in the work.

60-08 Owner furnished materials. The Contractor shall fumish all materials required to complete the
work, except those specified, if any, to be furnished by the Owner. Owner-fumished materials shall be
made available to the Contractor at the location specified.

All costs of handling, tansportation from the specified location to the site of work, storage, and installing
Owner-furnished materials shall be included in the unit price bid for the contract item in which such

Owner-fumished material is used.

After any Owner-furnished material has been delivered to the location specified, the Confactor shall be
responsible for any demurrage, damage, loss, or other deficiencies that may occur during the Contractor's
handling storage, or use of such Owner-furnished material. The Owner will deduct from any monies due
or to become due the Contractor any cost incurred by the Owner in making good such loss due to the
Contractor's handling, storage, or use of Owner-furnished materials.

END OF'SECTION 60

Section 60 Control of Materials 25



Section 70 Legal Regulations and Responsibility to Public

70-01 Laws to be observed. The Contractor shall keep fully informed of all federal and state laws, all
local laws, ordinances, and regulations and all orders and decrees ofbodies or tribunals having any
jurisdiction or authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on the work, or which in
any way affect the conduct of the work. The Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all
such laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees; and shall protect and indemniff the Owner and all
their officers, agents, or servants against any claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of
any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, whether by the Contractor or the Contractor's
ernployees.

70-02 Permitso licenses, and taxes. The Contractor shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges,
fees, and taxes, and give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful execution of the work.

70-03 Patented deviceso materialso and processes. If the Contractor is required or desires to use any
desigrr, device, material, or process covered by letters ofpatent or copyright, the Contractor shall provide
for such use by suitable legal agreement with the Patentee or Owner. The Contractor and the surety shall
indemnifu and hold harmless the Owner, any thfud party, or political subdivision from any and all claims
for infringement by reason ofthe use ofany such patented design, device, material or process, or any
trademark or copyright, and shall indemni$ the Owner for any costs, expenses, and damages which it
may be obliged to pay by reason of an infringement, at any time during the execution or after the
completion of the work.

70-04 Restoration of surfaces disturbed by others. The Owner reserves the right to authorize the
construction, reconstruction, or maintenance of any public or private utility service, FAA or National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) facility, or a utility service of another government
agency at any time during the progress of the work. To the extent that such construction, reconstruction,
or maintenance has been coordinated with the Owner, such authorized work (by others) must be shown on
the plans and is indicated as follows: None

Except as listed above, the Contractor shall not permit any individual, firm, or corporation to excavate or
otherwise disturb such utility services or facilities located within the limits of the work without the

written permission of the RPR.

Should the Owner of public or private utility service, FAA, or NOAA facility, or a utility service of
another govemment agency be authorized to construct, reconstruct, or maintain such utility service or
facility during the progress of the work, the Contractor shall cooperate with such Owners by ananging
and performing the work in this contract to facilitate such construction, reconstruction or maintenance by
others whether or not such work by others is listed above. When ordered as extra work by the RPR, the
Contractor shall make all necessary repairs to the work which are due to such authorized work by others,
unless otherwise provided for in the contract, plans, or specifrcations. It is understood and agreed that the
Contractor shall not be entitled to make any claim for damages due to such authorized work by others or
for any delay to the work resulting from such authorized work.

70-05 Federal Participation. The United States Government has agreed to reimburse the Owner for
some portion of the contract costs. The contract work is subject to the inspection and approval of duly
authorized representatives of the FAA Administrator. No requirement of this contract shall be construed
as making the United States a party to the contract nor will any such requirement interfere, in any way,
with the rights of either party to the contract.

Section 70 Legal Regulations and Responsibility to Public 26



70-06 Sanitaryo health, and safety provisions. The Contractor's worksite and facilities shall comply
with applicable federal, state, and local requirements for health, safety and sanitary provisions.

70-07 Public convenience and safety. The Contractor shall control their operations and those of their
subcontractors and all suppliers, to assure the least inconvenience to the traveling public. Under all
circumstances, safety shall be the most important consideration

The Contractor shall maintain the free and unobstructed movement of aircraft and vehicular traffic with
respect to their own operations and those of their own subcontractors and all suppliers in accordance with
Section 40, paragraph 40-05, Maintenance of Trffic, and shall limit such operations for the convenience
and safety of the traveling public as specified in Section 80, paragraph 80-04, Limitation of Operations.

The Contractor shall remove or control debris and rubbish resulting from its work operations at frequent
intervals, and upon the order of the RPR. If the RPR determines the existence of Contractor debris in the
work site rq)resents ahazardto airport operations and the Contractor is unable to respond in a prompt and
reasonable manner, the RPR reserves the right to assign the task of debris removal to a third party and
recover the resulting costs as a liquidated damage against the Contractor.

70-08 Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP). The Contractor shall complete the work in
accordance with the approved Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) developed in accordance
with AC 15015370-2, Operational Safety on Airports During Construction. The CSPP is included within
the set of projectplans.

70-09 Use of explosives. The use of explosives is not permitted on this project.

70-10 Protection and restoration ofproperty and landscape. The Conhactor shall be responsible for
the preservation of all public and private property and shall protect carefully from disturbance or damage
all land monuments and property markers until the Engineer/RPR has witnessed or otherwise referenced
their location and shall not move them until directed.

The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character, during the
execution of the work, resulting from any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in manner or method of
executing the work, or at any time due to defective work or materials, and said responsibility shall not be
released until the project has been completed and accepted.

When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by or on
account of any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in the execution of the work, or in consequence of
the non-execution thereofby the Contractor, the Contactor shall restore, at their expense, such property
to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done, by repairing, or
otherwise restoring as may be directed, or the Contractor shall make good such damage or injury in an

acceptable manner.

70-11 Responsibility for damage claims. The Confractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the
EngineeriRPR and the Owner and their officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, or claims,
of any character, brought because of any injuries or damage received or sustained by any person, persons,

or property on account ofthe operations ofthe Contractor; or on account ofor in consequence ofany
neglect in safeguarding the work; or through use of unacceptable materials in constructing the work; or
because of any act or omission, neglect, or misconduct of said Contractor; or because of any claims or
amounts recovered from any infringements of patent, trademark, or copyright; or from any claims or
amounts arising or recovered under the'oWorkmen's Compensation Act," or any other law, ordinance,
order, or decree. Money due the Contractor under and by virtue of their own contract considered
necessary by the Owner for such purpose may be retained for the use of the Owner or, in case no money
is due, their own surety may be held until such suits, actions, or claims for injuries or damages shall have
been settled and suitable evidence to that eflect furnished to the Owner, except that money due the

Section 70 Legal Regulations and Responsibility to Public 27



Contractor will not be withheld when the Contractor produces satisfactory evidence that he or she is
adequately protected by public liability and property damage insurance.

70-12 Third party beneficiary clause. It is specifically agreed between the parties executing the contact
that it is not intended by any ofthe provisions ofany part ofthe contract to create for the public or any
member thereof a third-parly beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the contract to maintain a
suit for personal injuries or property damage pursuant to the terms or provisions of the contract.

70-13 Opening sections of the work to traffic. If it is necessary for the Contractor to complete portions

of the contract work for the benefrcial occupancy of the Owner prior to completion of the entire contract,
such "phasing" of the work must be specified below and indicated on the approved Construction Safety
and Phasing Plan (CSPP) and the project plans. When so specified, the Contractor shall complete such
portions of the work on or before the date specified or as otherwise specified.

Upon completion of any portion of work listed above, such portion shall be accepted by the Owner in
accordance with Section 50, paragraph 50-14, Partial Acceptance.

No portion of the work may be opened by the Contractor until directed by the Owner in writing. Should it
become necessary to open a portion of the work to traffic on a temporary or intermittent basis, such
openings shall be made when, in the opinion of the RPR, such portion of the work is in an acceptable

condition to support the intended traffic. Temporary or intermittent openings are considered to be inherent
in the work and shall not constitute either acceptance of the portion of the work so opened or a waiver of
any provision of the contract. Any damage to the portion of the work so opened that is not attributable to
traffic which is permitted by the Owner shall be repaired by the Contractor at their expense.

The Contractor shall make their own estimate of the inherent difficulties involved in completing the work
under the conditions herein described and shall not claim any added compensation by reason ofdelay or
increased cost due to opening a portion ofthe contract work.

The Contractor must conform to safety standards contained AC 150/5370-2 and the approved CSPP.

Contractor shall refer to the plans, specifications, and the approved CSPP to identifu barricade
requirements, temporary and/or permanent markings, airfield lighting, guidance signs and other safety
requirements prior to opening up sections of work to traffic.

70-14 Contractor's responsibility for work. Until the RPR's final written acceptance of the entire
completed work, excepting only those portions of the work accqrted in accordance with Section 50,
paragraph 50-14, Partial Acceptance,the Contractor shall have the charge and care thereofand shall take
every precaution against injury or damage to any part due to the action of the elements or from any other
cause, whether arising from the execution or from the non-execution of the work. The Contractor shall
rebuild, repair, restore, and make good all injuries or damages to any portion of the work occasioned by
any ofthe above causes before final acceptance and shall bear the expense thereofexcept damage to the

work due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control ofand without the fault or negligence ofthe
Contractor, including but not restricted to acts of God such as earthquake, tidal wave, tornado, hurricane
or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature, or acts of the public enemy or of government authorities.

If the work is suspended for any cause whatever, the Contractor shall be responsible for the work and
shall take such precautions necessary to prevent damage to the work. The Contractor shall provide for
normal drainage and shall erect necessary temporary structures, signs, or other facilities at their own
expense. During such period of suspension of work, the Contractor shall properly and continuously
maintain in an acceptable growing condition all living material in newly established planting, seeding,

and sodding furnished under the contract, and shall take adequate precautions to protect new fee growth
and other important vegetative growth against injury.

70-15 Contractor's responsibility for utility service and facilities of others. As provided in paragraph

70-04, Restoration of Surfoces Disturbedby Others,the Contractor shall cooperate with the owner of any

Section T0Legal Regulations and Responsibility to Public 28



public or private utility service, FAA or NOAA, or a utility service of another government agency that
may be authorized by the Owner to construct, reconstruct or maintain such utility services or facilities
during the progress of the work. In addition, the Contractor shall control their operations to prevent the
unscheduled intemrption of such utility services and facilities.

To the extent that such public or private utility services, FAA, or NOAA facilities, or utility services of
another govemmental agency are known to exist within the limits of the contract work, the approximate
locations have been indicated on the plans and/or in the contract documents.

It is understood and agreed that the Owner does not guarantee the accuracy or the completeness ofthe
location information relating to existing utility services, facilities, or structures that may be shown on the
plans or encountered in the work. Any inaccuracy or omission in such information shall not relieve the
Contractor of the responsibility to protect such existing features from damage or unscheduled intemrption
of service.

It is further understood and agreed that the Contractor shall, upon execution of the contract, notify the
Owners of all utility services or other facilities of their plan of operations. Such notification shall be in
writing addressed to "The Person to Contact" as provided in this paragraph and paragraph 70-04,
Restoration of Surfaces Disturbed By Others. A copy of each notifrcation shall be given to the RPR.

kr addition to the general wriuen notification provided, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to
keep such individual Owners advised of changes in their plan of operations that would affect such
Owners-

Prior to beginning the work in the general vicinity of an existing utility service or facility, the Contactor
shall again noti$ each such Owner of their plan of operation. If, in the Contractor's opinion, the Owner's
assistance is needed to locate the utility service or facility or the presence ofa representative ofthe Owner
is desirable to observe the work, such advice should be included in the notification. Such notification shall
be given by the most expeditious means to reach the utility owner's "Person to Contact" no later than fwo
normal business days prior to the Contractor's commencement of operations in such general vicinity. The
Contractor shall furnish a written summary of the notification to the RPR.

The Contractor's failure to give the two days' notice shall be cause for the Owner to suspend the
Contractor's operations in the general vicinity of a utility service or facility.

Where the outside limits of an underground utility service have been located and staked on the ground,
the Contractor shall be required to use hand excavation methods within 3 feet (1 m) of such outside limits
at such points as may be required to ensure protection from damage due to the Contractor's operations.

Should the Contractor damage or intemrpt the operation of a utility service or facility by accident or
otherwise, the Contractor shall immediately notify the proper authority and the RPR and shall take all
reasonable measures to prevent further damage or interruption of service. The Contractor, in such events,
shall cooperate with the utility service or facility owner and the RPR continuously until such damage has
been repaired and service restored to the satisfaction ofthe utility or facility owner.

The Contractor shall bear all costs of damage and restoration of service to any utility service or facility
due to their operations whether due to negligence or accident. The Owner reserves the right to deduct
such costs from any monies due or which may become due the Contractor, or their own surety.

70-15.1 FAA facilities and cable runs. The Contractor is hereby advised that the construction limits of the
project include existing facilities and buried cable runs that are owned, operated and maintained by the
FAA. The Contactor, during the execution of the project work, shall comply with the following:

a. The Contractor shall permit FAA maintenance personnel the right of access to the project work site
for purposes of inspecting and maintaining all existing FAA owned facilities.

Section 70 Legal Regulations and Responsibility to Public 29



b. The Contractor shall provide notice to the FAA Air Traffic Organization (ATO)/Technical
Operations/System Support Center (SSC) Point-of-Contact through the airport manager a minimum of
seven (7) calendar days prior to commencement of construction activities in order to permit sufficient
time to locate and mark existing buried cables and to schedule any required facility outages.

c. If execution of the project work requires a facility outage, the Confractor shall contact the FAA
Point-of-Contact a minimum of 72 hours prior to the time of the required outage.

d. Atry damage to FAA cables, access roads, or FAA facilities during construction caused by the
Contractor's equipment or personnel whether by negligence or accident will require the Contractor to
repair or replace the damaged cables, access road, or FAA facilities to FAA requirements. The
Contractor shall not bear the cost to repair damage to underground facilities or utilities improperly located
by the FAA.

e. If the project work requires the cutting or splicing of FAA owned cables, the FAA Point-of-Contact
shall be contacted a minimum of 72 hours prior to the time the cable work commences. The FAA reserves

the right to have a FAA representative on site to observe the splicing of the cables as a condition of
acceptance. All cable splices are to be accomplished in accordance with FAA specifications and require
approval by the FAA Point-of-Contact as a condition of acceptance by the Owner. The Contractor is
hereby advised that FAA restricts the location of where splices may be installed. If a cable splice is
required in a location that is not permitted by FAA, the Contractor shall furnish and install a sufficient
length of new cable that eliminates the need for any splice

70-16 Furnishing rights-of-way. The Owner will be responsible for furnishing all rights-of-way upon
which the work is to be constructed in advance of the Contractor's operations.

70-17 Personal liability of public officials. In carrying out any of the contract provisions or in exercising
any power or authority granted by this contract, there shall be no liability upon the Engineer, RPR, their
authorized representatives, or any officials of the Owner either personally or as an official of the Owner.
It is understood that in such matters they act solely as agents and representatives of the Owner.

70-18 No waiver of legal rights. Upon completion of the work, the Owner will expeditiously make final
inspection and noti$ the Contractor of final acceptance. Such final accqrtance, however, shall not
preclude or stop the Owner from correcting any measurement, estimate, or certificate made before or after
completion of the work, nor shall the Owner be precluded or stopped from recovering from the Contractor
or their surety, or both, such overpayment as may be sustained, or by failure on the part of the Contractor
to fulfill their obligations under the contract. A waiver on the part of the Owner of any breach of any part

ofthe contract shall not be held to be a waiver ofany other or subsequent breach.

The Contractor, without prejudice to the terms of the contract, shall be liable to the Owner for latent
defects, fraud, or such gross mistakes as may amount to fraud, or as regards the Owner's rights under any
warranty or guaranty.

70-19 Environmental protection. The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and

regulations controlling pollution of the environment. The Contractor shall take necessary precautions to
prevent pollution of streams, lakes, ponds, and reservoirs with fuels, oils, asphalts, chemicals, or other
harmful materials and to prevent pollution of the atmosphere from particulate and gaseous matter.

70-20 Archaeological and historical findings. Unless otherwise specifred in this subsection, the
Contractor is advised that the site of the work is not within any property, district, or site, and does not
contain any building, structure, or object listed in the current National Register of Historic Places
published by the United States Department of Interior.

Should the Contractor encounter, during their operations, any building, part ofa building, structure, or
object that is incongruous with its surroundings, the Contractor shall immediately cease operations in that

Section 70 Legal Regulations and Responsibility to Public 30



location and notify the RPR. The R.PR will immediately investigate the Contractor's finding and the
Owner will direct the Contractor to either resume operations or to suspend operations as directed.

Should the Owner order suspension ofthe Contractor's operations in order to protect an archaeological or
historical finding, or order the Contractor to perform extra work, such shall be covered by an appropriate
contract change order or supplemental agreement as provided in Section 40, paragraph 40-04, Extra
Work, and, Section 90, paragraph 90-05, Paymentfor Extra Work.If appropriate, the contract change
order or supplemental agreement shall include an extension of contract time in accordance with Section
80, paragraph 80-07, Determination and Extension of Contract Tirne.

70-21 Insurance Requirements. Insurance requirements are presented in the contract forms section of
this bid document.

EI\D OF SECTION 70

Section 70 Legal Regulations and Responsibility to Public 31



Section 80 Execution and Progress

80-01 Subletting of contract. The Owner will not recognize any subcontractor on the work. The
Contractor shall at all times when work is in progress be represented either in person, by a qualified
superintendent, or by other designated, qualified representative who is duly authorized to receive and

execute orders of the Resident Project Representative (RPR).

The Contractor shall perform, with his organization, an amount of work equal to at least 30 percent of the
total contract cost.

Should the Contractor elect to assign their contract, said assignment shall be concurred in by the surety,
shall be presented for the consideration and approval of the Owner, and shall be consummated only on the
written approval of the Owner.

The Contractor shall provide copies of all subcontracts to the RPR 14 days prior to being utilized on the
project. As aminimum, the information shall include the following:

o Subcontractor's legal company name.

. Subcontractor's legal company address, including County name.

o Principal contact person's name, telephone and fax number.

. Complete narrative description, and dollar value of the work to be performed by the
subcontractor.

. Copies of required insurance certificates in accordance with the specifications.

o Minorityi non-minority status.

80-02 Notice to proceed (NTP).The Owners notice to proceed will state the date on which contract time
cofilmences. The Contractor is expected to commence project operations within 10 days of the NTP date.

The Contractor shall notify the RPR at leasI24 in advance of the time contract operations begins. The
Contractor shall not conrmence any actual operations prior to the date on which the notice to proceed is
issued by the Owner.

80-03 Execution and progress. Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall submit their coordinated
construction schedule showing all work activities for the RPR's review and acceptance at least l0 days
prior to the start of work. The Contractor's progress schedule, once accepted by the RPR, will represent

the Contractor's baseline plan to accomplish the project in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Contract. The RPR will compare actual Contractor progress against the baseline schedule to determine
that status of the Contractor's performance. The Contractor shall provide sufficient materials, equipment,
and labor to guarantee the completion of the project in accordance with the plans and specifrcations
within the time set forth in the proposal.

If the Contractor falls significantly behind the submitted schedule, the Contractor shall, upon the RPR's
request, submit a revised schedule for completion of the work within the contract time and modify their
operations to provide such additional materials, equipment, and labor necessary to meet the revised
schedule. Should the execution ofthe work be discontinued for any reason, the Contractor shall notifu the
RPR at leastZ4 hours in advance of resuming operations.

Section 80 Execution and Progress 32



The Contractor shall not commence any actual construction prior to the date on which the NTP is issued
by the Owner. The project schedule shall be prepared as a network diagram in Critical Path Method
(CPM), Program Evaluation and Review Technique (PERT), or other format, or as otherwise specified. It
shall include information on the sequence of work activities, milestone dates, and activity duration. The
schedule shall show all work items identified in the project proposal for each work area and shall include
the project start date and end date.

The Contractor shall maintain the work schedule and provide an update and analysis of the progress

schedule on a twice monthly basis, or as otherwise specified in the contract. Submission of the work
schedule shall not relieve the Contractor ofoverall responsibility for scheduling, sequencing, and
coordinating all work to comply with the requirements of the contract.

80-04 Limitation of operations. The Contractor shall control their operations and the operations of their
subcontractors and all suppliers to provide for the free and unobstructed movement of aircraft in the air
operations areas (AOA) of the airport.

When the work requires the Contractor to conduct their operations within an AOA of the airport, the work
shall be coordinated with airport operations (through the RPR) at least 48 hours prior to commencement
of such work. The Contractor shall not close an AOA until so authorized by the RPR and until the
necessary temporary marking, signage and associated lighting is in place as provided in Section 70,
paragraph 70-08, Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP).

When the contract work requires the Contractor to work within an AOA of the airport on an intermittent
basis (intermittent opening and closing of the AOA), the Contractor shall maintain constant
communications as specified; immediately obey all instructions to vacate the AOA; and immediately
obey all instructions to resume work in such AOA. Failure to maintain the specified communications or to
obey instructions shall be cause for suspension of the Contractor's operations in the AOA until
satisfactory conditions are provided. The areas of the AOA identified in the Construction Safety Phasing
Plan (CSPP) and as listed below, cannot be closed to operating aircraft to permit the Contractor's
operations on a continuous basis and will therefore be closed to aircraft operations intermittently as

follows: runways, parallel taxiways and primary apron access.

The Contractor shall be required to conform to safety standards contained in AC 150i5370-2, Operational
Safety on Airports During Construction and the approved CSPP.

80-04.1 Operational safety on airport during construction. All Contractors' operations shall be
conducted in accordance with the approved project Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) and the
Safety Plan Compliance Document (SPCD) and the provisions set forth within the current version of AC
150/5370-2, Operational Safety on Airports During Construction. The CSPP included within the contract
documents conveys minimum requirements for operational safety on the airport during construction
activities. The Contractor shall prepare and submit a SPCD that details how it proposes to comply with
the requirernents presented within the CSPP.

The Contractor shall implunent all necessary safety plan measures prior to commencement of any work
activity. The Contractor shall conduct routine checks to assure compliance with the safety plan measures.

The Contractor is responsible to the Owner for the conduct of all subcontractors it employs on the project.
The Contractor shall assure that all subcontractors are made aware of the requirements of the CSPP and
SPCD and that they implement and maintain all necessary measures.

No deviation or modifications may be made to the approved CSPP and SPCD unless approved in writing
by the Owner. The necessary coordination actions to review Contractor proposed modifications to an
approved CSPP or approved SPCD can require a significant amount of time.

Section 80 Execution and Progress JJ



80-05 Character of workers, methods, and equipment. The Contractor shall, at all times, employ
sufficient labor and equipment for prosecuting the work to full completion in the manner and time
required by the contract, plans, and specifications.

All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform properly the work assigned to them.
Workers engaged in special work or skilled work shall have sufficient experience in such work and in the
operation of the equipment required to perform the work satisfactorily.

Any person employed by the Contractor or by any subcontractor who violates any operational regulations
or operational safety requirements and, in the opinion of the RPR, does not perform his work in a proper

and skillful manner or is intemperate or disorderly shall, at the written request of the RPR, be removed
immediately by the Contactor or subcontractor unploying such person, and shall not be employed again
in any portion of the work without approval of the RPR.

Should the Contractor fail to rernove such person or persons, or fail to furnish suitable and sufficient
personnel for the proper execution of the work, the RPR may suspend the work by written notice until
compliance with such orders.

All equipment that is proposed to be used on the work shall be of sufficient size and in such mechanical
condition as to meet requirements of the work and to produce a satisfactory quality of work. Equipment
used on any portion of the work shall not cause injury to previously completed work, adjacent property,

or existing airport facilities due to its use.

When the methods and equipment to be used by the Contractor in accomplishing the work are not
prescribed in the confact, the Contactor is free to use any methods or equipment that will accomplish the
work in conformity with the requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications.

When the contract specifies the use of certain methods and equipment, such methods and equipment shall
be used unless otherwise authorized by the RPR. If the Contractor desires to use a method or tlpe of
equipment other than specified in the contract, the Confactor may request authority from the RPR to do
so. The request shall be in writing and shall include a full description of the methods and equipment
proposed and of the reasons for desiring to make the change. If approval is given, it will be on the
condition that the Contractor will be fully responsible for producing work in conformity with contract
requirements. If, after trial use of the substituted methods or equipment, the RPR determines that the work
produced does not meet contract requirements, the Contractor shall discontinue the use of the substitute
method or equipment and shall complete the remaining work with the specified methods and equipment.
The Contractor shall remove any deficient work and replace it with work of specified quality, or take such

other corrective action as the RPR may direct. No change will be made in basis of payment for the
contract items involved nor in contract time as a result of authorizing a change in methods or equipment
under this paragraph.

80-06 Temporary suspension of the work. The Owner shall have the authority to suspend the work
wholly, or in part, for such period or periods the Owner may deem necessary, due to unsuitable weather,
or other conditions considered unfavorable for the execution of the work, or for such time necessary due

to the failure on the part ofthe Contractor to carry out orders given or perform any or all provisions ofthe
contract.

In the event that the Contractor is ordered by the Owner, in writing, to suspend work for some unforeseen
cause not otherwise provided for in the contract and over which the Contractor has no control, the
Contractor may be reimbursed for actual money expended on the work during the period of shutdown. No
allowance will be made for anticipated profits. The period of shutdown shall be computed from the
effective date of the written order to suspend work to the effective date of the written order to resume the
work. Claims for such compensation shall be filed with the RPR within the time period stated in the
RPR's order to resume work. The Contractor shall submit with their own claim information substantiating
the amount shown on the claim. The RPR will forward the Contractor's claim to the Owner for

Section 80 Execution and Progress 34



consideration in accordance with local laws or ordinances. No provision of this article shall be construed
as entitling the Contractor to compensation for delays due to inclement weather or for any other delay
provided for in the contract, plans, or specifications.

If it becomes necessary to suspend work for an indefinite period, the Contractor shall store all materials in
such manner that they will not become an obstruction nor become damaged in any way. The Contractor
shall take every precaution to prevent damage or deterioration of the work performed and provide for
normal drainage of the work. The Contractor shall erect temporary structures where necessary to provide
for traffic on, to, or from the airport.

80-07 Determination and extension of contract time. The number of calendar days stated in the
proposal and conffact shall be known as the Contract Time.

Ifthe contract time requires extension for reasons beyond the Contractor's control, it shall be adjusted as

follows:

80-07.1 Contract time based on calendar days. Contract Time based on calendar days shall consist of the
number of calendar days stated in the contract counting from the effective date of the Notice to Proceed
and including all Saturdays, Sundays, holidays, and non-work days. All calendar days elapsing between
the effective dates of the Owner's orders to suspend and resume all work, due to causes not the fault of
the Contractor, shall be excluded.

At the time of final payment, the contract time shall be increased in the same proportion as the cost of the
actually completed quantities bears to the cost of the originally estimated quantities in the proposal. Such
increase in the contract time shall not consider either cost of work or the extension of contract time that
has been covered by a change order or supplemental agreement. Charges against the contract time will
cease as ofthe date offinal acceptance.

80-08 Failure to complete on time. For each calendar day or working day, as specified in the contract,
that any work remains uncompleted after the contact time (including all extensions and adjustments as

provided in paragraph 80-07, Determination and Extension of Contract Time) the sum specified in the
contract and proposal as liquidated damages (LD) will be deducted from any money due or to become due
the Contractor or their own surety. Such deducted sums shall not be deducted as a penalty but shall be
considered as liquidation of a reasonable portion of damages including but not limited to additional
engineering senrices that will be incurred by the Owner should the Contractor fail to complete the work in
the time provided in their contract.

Schedule Liquidated Damages Cost Allowed Construction Time

Base Bid $3,000.00 per day 60 Calendar Days

Bid Additives $3,000.00 per day None

The maximum construction time allowed will be the sum of the time allowed for individual schedules but
not more than 60 days. Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the
time fixed for its completion, or after the date to which the time for completion may have been extended,
will in no way operate as a wavier on the part of the Owner of any of its rights under the contract.

80-09 Default and termination of contract. The Contractor shall be considered in default of their
contract and such default will be considered as cause for the Owner to terminate the contract for any of
the following reasons, if the Contactor:

a. Fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified in the Notice to Proceed, or

b. Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment and/or materials to
assure completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract, or

Section 80 Execution and Progress 35



c. Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to perform anew such

work as may be rejected as unacceptable and unsuitable, or

d. Discontinues the execution of the work, or

e. Fails to resume work which has been discontinued within a reasonable time after notice to do so, or

f. Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency, or

g. Allows any final judgment to stand against the Contractor unsatisfied for a period of l0 days, or

h. Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or

i. For any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner.

Should the Owner consider the Contractor in default of the contract for any reason above, the Owner shall
immediately give written notice to the Contractor and the Contractor's suret5i as to the reasons for
considering the Contractor in default and the Owner's intentions to terminate the contract.

Ifthe Contractor or surety, within a period of l0 days after such notice, does not proceed in accordance
therewith, then the Owner will, upon written notification from the RPR of the facts of such delay, neglect,
or default and the Contractor's failure to comply with such notice, have full power and authority without
violating the contract, to take the execution of the work out of the hands of the Contractor. The Owner
may appropriate or use any or all materials and equipment that have been mobilized for use in the work
and are acceptable and may enter into an agreement for the completion of said contract according to the
terms and provisions thereof, or use such other methods as in the opinion of the RPR will be required for
the completion of said contract in an acceptable manner.

All costs and charges incurred by the Owner, together with the cost of completing the work under
contract, will be deducted from any monies due or which may become due the Contractor. If such

expense exceeds the sum which would have been payable under the contract, then the Contractor and the

surety shall be liable and shall pay to the Owner the amount of such excess.

80-10 Termination for national emergencies. The Owner shall terminate the contract or portion thereof
by written notice when the Contractor is prevented from proceeding with the construction confact as a

direct result of an Executive Order of the President with respect to the execution of war or in the interest
ofnational defense.

When the contract, or any portion thereof, is terminated before completion of all items of work in the
contract, payment will be made for the actual number of units or items of work completed at the contract
price or as mutually agreed for items of work partially completed or not started. No claims or loss of
anticipated profits shall be considered.

Reimbursement for organization of the work, and other overhead expenses, (when not otherwise included
in the contract) and moving equipment and materials to and from the job will be considered, the intent
being that an equitable settlement will be made with the Contractor.

Acceptable materials, obtained or ordered by the Confractor for the work and that are not incorporated in
the work shall, at the option of the Contractor, be purchased from the Contractor at actual cost as shown
by receipted bills and actual cost records at such points of delivery as may be desigrrated by the RPR.

Termination of the contract or a portion thereof shall neither relieve the Contractor of their
responsibilities for the completed work nor shall it relieve their surety of its obligation for and conceming
any just claim arising out of the work performed.

80-11 Work area, storage area and sequence of operations. The Contractor shall obtain approval from
the RPR prior to beginning any work in all areas of the airport. No operating runway, taxiway, or air
operations area (AOA) shall be crossed, entered, or obstructed while it is operational. The Contractor
shall plan and coordinate work in accordance with the approved CSPP and SPCD.

Section 80 Execution and Progress 36



END OF SECTION 80

Section 80 Execution and Progress 5t



Section 90 Measurement and Payment

90-01 Measurement of quantities. All work completed under the contract will be measured by the RPR,

or their authorized representatives, using United States Customary Units of Measurement.

The method of measurernent and computations to be used in determination of quantities of material
furnished and of work performed under the contract will be those methods generally recognized as

conforming to good engineering practice.

Unless otherwise specified, longitudinal measurements for area computations will be made horizontally,
and no deductions will be made for individual fixtures (or leave-outs) having an area of 9 square feet (0.8

square meters) or less. Unless otherwise specified, transverse measurements for area computations will be

the neat dimensions shown on the plans or ordered in writing by the RPR.

Unless otherwise specified, all contract items which are measured by the linear foot such as electrical
ducts, conduits, pipe culverts, underdrains, and similar items shall be measured parallel to the base or
foundation upon which such items are placed.

The term "lump sum" when used as an item of payment will mean complete payment for the work
described in the contract. When a complete structure or structural unit (in effect, "lump sum" work) is
specified as the unit of measurement, the unit will be construed to include all necessary fittings and

accessories.

When requested by the Contractor and approved by the RPR in writing, material specifred to be measured

by the cubic yard may be weighed, and such weights will be converted to cubic yards for payment
purposes. Factors for conversion from weight measurement to volume measurement will be determined
by the RPR and shall be agreed to by the Contractor before such method of measurernent of pay quantities

is used.

Measurement and Payment Terms

Term Description

Excavation and
Embankment
Volume

In computing volumes of excavation, the average end area method will be used unless
otherwise specified.

Measurement and
Proportion by
Weight

The term'ton" will mean the short ton consisting of 2,000 pounds (907 km) avoirdupois.
All materials that are measured or proportioned by weights shall be weighed on accurate,

independently certified scales by competent, qualified personnel at locations designated
by the RPR. If material is shipped by rail, the car weight may be accepted provided that

only the actual weight of material is paid for. However, car weights will not be
acceptable for material to be passed through mixing plants. Trucks used to haul material
being paid for by weight shall be weighed empty daily at such times as the RPR directs,
and each truck shall bear a plainly legible identiltcation mark.

Measurement by
Volume

Materials to be measured by volume in the hauling vehicle shall be hauled in approved
vehicles and measured therein at the point of delivery. Vehicles for this purpose may be
of any size or type acceptable for the materials hauled, provided that the body is of such
shape that the actual contents may be readily and accurately determined. All vehicles

Section 90 Measurement and Payment 38



Term Description

shall be loaded to at least their water level capacity, and all loads shall be leveled when
the vehicles arrive at the point of delivery.

Asphalt Material Asphalt materials will be measured by the gallon (liter) or ton (kg). When measured by
volume, such volumes will be measured at 60'F (16"C) or will be corrected to the
volume at 60"F (16"C) using ASTM D1250 for asphalts. Net certified scale weights or
weights based on certified volumes in the case of rail shipments will be used as a basis of
measurement, subject to correction when asphalt material has been lost from the car or
the distributor, wasted, or otherwise not incorporated in the work. When asphalt
materials are shipped by truck or transport, net certified weights by volume, subject to
correction for loss or foaming, will be used for computing quantities.

Cement Cement will be measured by the ton (kg) or hundredweight (km).

Structure Structures will be measured according to neat lines shown on the plans or as altered to fit
field conditions.

Timber Timber will be measured by the thousand feet board measure (MFBM) actually
incorporated in the structure. Measurement will be based on nominal widths and
thicknesses and the extreme length ofeach piece.

Plates and Sheets The thickness of plates and galvanized sheet used in the manufacture of comrgated metal
pipe, metal plate pipe culverts and arches, and metal cribbing will be specified and
measwed in decimal fraction of inch.

Miscellaneous ltems When standard manufactured items are specified such as fence, wire, plates, rolled
shapes, pipe conduit, etc., and these items are identified by gauge, unit weight, section
dimensions, etc., such identification will be considered to be nominal weights or
dimensions. Unless more stringently controlled by tolerances in cited specifications,
manufacturing tolerances established by the industries involved will be accepted.

Scales Scales must be tested for accuracy and serviced before use. Scales for weighing
materials which are required to be proportioned or measured and paid for by weight shall
be furnished, erected, and maintained by the Contractor, or be certified permanently
installed commercial scales. Platform scales shall be installed and maintained with the
platform level and rigid bulkheads at each end.

Scales shall be accurate within 0.5% ofthe correct weight throughout the range ofuse.
The Contractor shall have the scales checked under the observation ofthe RPR before
beginning work and at such other times as requested. The intervals shall be uniform in
spacing throughout the graduated or marked length ofthe beam or dial and shall not
exceed 0.1% ofthe nominal rated capacity ofthe scale, but not less than one pound (454
grams). The use of spring balances will not be permitted.

Section 90 Measurement and Payment 39



Term Description

In the event inspection reveals the scales have been "overweighing" (indicating more
than correct weight) they will be immediately adjusted. All materials received
subsequent to the last previous correct weighting-accuracy test will be reduced by the
percentage of error in excess of 0.5%.

In the event inspection reveals the scales have been under-weighing (indicating less than
correct weight), they shall be immediately adjusted. No additional payment to the
Contractor will be allowed for materials previously weighed and recorded.

Beams, dials, platforms, and other scale equipment shall be so arranged that the operator
and the RPR can safely and conveniently view them.

Scale installations shall have available ten standard 5O-pound (2.3 km) weights for
testing the weiglring equipment or suitable weights and devices for other approved
equipment.

All costs in connection with furnishing, installing, certifuing, testing, and maintaining
scales; for furnishing check weights and scale house; and for all other items specified in
this subsection, for the weighing of materials for proportioning or payment, shall be
included in the unit contract prices for the various items ofthe project.

Rental Equipment Rental of equipment will be measured by time in hours of actual working time and
necessary traveling time of the equipment within the limits of the work. Special
equipment ordered in connection with extra work will be measured as agreed in the
change order or supplemental agreement authorizing such work as provided in paragraph

90-05 Paymentfor Extra Work.

Pay Quantities When the estimated quantities for a specific portion of the work are designated as the pay
quantities in the contract, they shall be the hnal quantities for which payment for such
specific portion of the work will be made, unless the dimensions of said portions of the
work shown on the plans are revised by the RPR. Ifrevised dimensions result in an

increase or decrease in the quantities of such work, the final quantities for payment will
be revised in the amount represented by the authorized changes in the dimensions.

90-02 Scope of payment. The Contractor shall receive and accept compensation provided for in the
contract as full payment for furnishing all materials, for performing all work under the confact in a
complete and acceptable manner, and for all risk, loss, damage, or expense of whatever character arising
out ofthe nature ofthe work or the execution thereof, subject to the provisions ofSection 70, paragraph

70-18, No Waiver of Legal Rights.

When the "basis of payment" subsection of a technical specification requires that the contract price (price
bid) include compensation for certain work or material essential to the item, this same work or material
will not also be measured for payment under any other contract item which may appear elsewhere in the
contract, plans, or specifications.

90-03 Compensation for altered quantities. When the accepted quantities of work vary from the
quantities in the proposal, the Contractor shall accept as payment in full, so far as contract items are

concerned, payment at the original contact price for the accepted quantities of work actually completed
and accepted. No allowance, except as provided for in Section 40, paragraph 40-02, Alteration of Work
and Quantities, will be made for any increased expense, loss of expected reimbursement, or loss of
anticipated profits suffered or claimed by the Contractor which results directly from such alterations or
indirectly from their own unbalanced allocation of overhead and profit among the contract ituns, or from
any other cause.

Section 90 Measurement and Payment 40



90-04 Payment for omitted items. As specified in Section 40, paragraph 40-03, Omitted ltem,y, the RPR
shall have the right to omit from the work (order nonperformance) any contract item, except major
contract items, in the best interest of the Owner.

Should the RPR omit or order nonperformance of a contract item or portion of such item from the work,
the Contractor shall accept payment in full at the contract prices for any work actually completed and
acceptable prior to the RPR's order to omit or non-perform such contract item.

Acceptable materials ordered by the Contractor or delivered on the work prior to the date of the RPR's
order will be paid for at the actual cost to the Contractor and shall thereupon become the property of the
Owner.

In addition to the reimbursement hereinbefore provided, the Contractor shall be reimbursed for all actual
costs incuned for the purpose of performing the omitted contract item prior to the date of the RPR's
order. Such additional costs incurred by the Contractor must be directly related to the deleted contract
item and shall be supported by certified staternents by the Contractor as to the nature the amount of such
costs.

90-05 Payment for extra work. Extra work, performed in accordance with Section 40, paragraph 40-04,
Extra Work, will be paid for at the contract prices or agreed prices specified in the change order or
supplemental agreement authorizing the extra work.

90-06 Partial payments. Partial payments will be made to the Contractor at least once each month as the
work progresses. Said payments will be based upon estimates, prepared by the RPR, of the value of the
work performed and materials complete and in place, in accordance with the contract, plans, and
specifications. Such partial payments may also include the delivered actual cost of those materials
stockpiled and stored in accordance with paragraph 90-07, Payment for Materials on Hand. No partial
payment will be made when the amount due to the Contractor since the last estimate amounts to less than
five hundred dollars.

Retention shall be as follows:

a. From the total of the amount determined to be payable on a partial payment, 5o/opercent of such total
amount will be deducted and retained by the Owner for protection of the Owner's interests. Unless
otherwise instructed by the Owner, the amount retained by the Owner will be in effect until the final
payment is made except as follows:

(1) Contractor may request release of retainage on work that has been partially accepted
by the Owner in accordance with Section 50-03. Contractor must provide a certified
invoice to the RPR that supports the value of retainage held by the Owner for partially
accepted work.

(2) In lieu of retainage, the Contractor may exercise at its option the establishment of an
escrow account per paragraph 90-08.

b. The Contractor is required to pay all subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their
contracts no later than 30 days after the Contractor has received a partial payment. Contractor
must provide the Owner evidence of prompt and full payment of retainage held by the prime
Contractor to the subcontractor within 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily
completed. A subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed when all the tasks called for in the
subcontract have been accomplished and documented as required by the Owner. When the Owner
has made an incremental acceptance of a portion of a prime contract, the work of a subcontractor
covered by that acceptance is deemed to be satisfactorily completed.

c. When at least 95% of the work has been completed to the satisfaction of the RPR, the RPR
shall, at the Owner's discretion and with the consent of the surety, prepare estimates of both the
contract value and the cost of the remaining work to be done. The Owner may retain an amount

Section 90 Measurement and Payment 4l



not less than twice the contract value or estimated cost, whichever is greater, of the work
remaining to be done. The remainder, less all previous payments and deductions, will then be

certified for payment to the Contractor.

It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall not be entitled to demand or receive partial payment

based on quantities ofwork in excess ofthose provided in the proposal or covered by approved change

orders or supplemental agreements, except when such excess quantities have been determined by the RPR
to be a part of the final quantity for the item of work in question.

No partial payment shall bind the Owner to the acceptance of any materials or work in place as to quality
or quantity. All partial payments are subject to correction at the time of final payment as provided in
paragraph 90-09, Acceptance and Final Payment.

The Contractor shall deliver to the Owner a complete release of all claims for labor and material arising
out of this contract before the final payment is made. If any subcontractor or supplier fails to furnish such

a release in full, the Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to the Owner to
indannifu the Owner against any potential lien or other such claim. The bond or collateral shall include
all costs, expenses, and attorney fees the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging any such lien or
claim.

90-07 Payment for materials on hand. Partial payments may be made to the extent of the delivered cost
of materials to be incorporated in the work, provided that such materials meet the requirernents of the
contract, plans, and specifications and are delivered to acceptable sites on the airport property or at other
sites in the vicinity that are acceptable to the Owner. Such delivered costs of stored or stockpiled
materials may be included in the next partial payment after the following conditions are met:

a. The material has been stored or stockpiled in a manner acceptable to the RPR at or on an approved
site.

b. The Contractor has furnished the RPR with acceptable evidence of the quantity and quality of such

stored or stockpiled materials.

c. The Contractor has furnished the RPR with satisfactory evidence that the material and

transportation costs have been paid.

d. The Contractor has fumished the Owner legal title (free of liens or encumbrances of any kind) to
the material stored or stockpiled.

e. The Contractor has furnished the Owner evidence that the material stored or stockpiled is insured
against loss by damage to or disappearance of such materials at any time prior to use in the work.

It is understood and agreed that the transfer of title and the Owner's payment for such stored or stockpiled
materials shall in no way relieve the Contractor of their responsibility for fumishing and placing such

materials in accordance with the requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications.

ln no case will the amount of partial payments for materials on hand exceed the contract price for such

materials or the contract price for the contract item in which the material is intended to be used.

No partial payment will be made for stored or stockpiled living or perishable plant materials.

The Contractor shall bear all costs associated with the partial payment of stored or stockpiled materials in
accordance with the provisions of this paragraph.

90-08 Payment of withheld funds. At the Contractor's option, if an Owner withholds retainage in
accordance with the methods described in paragraph 90-06 Partial Payments, the Contractor may request
that the Owner deposit the retainage into an escrow account. The Owner's deposit of retainage into an

escrow account is subject to the following conditions:

Section 90 Measurement and Payment 42



a. The Contractor shall bear all expenses ofestablishing and maintaining an escrow account and
escrow agreement acceptable to the Owner.

b. The Contractor shall deposit to and maintain in such escrow only those securities or bank
certificates of deposit as are acceptable to the Owner and having a value not less than the retainage that
would otherwise be withheld from partial payment.

c. The Contractor shall enter into an escrow agreement satisfactory to the Owner.

d. The Contractor shall obtain the written consent of the surety to such agreement.

90-09 Acceptance and linal payment. When the contract work has been accepted in accordance with the
requirements of Section 50, paragraph 50-15, Final Acceptance,the RPR will prepare the final estimate of
the items of work actually performed. The Contractor shall approve the RPR's final estimate or advise the
RPR of the Contractor's objections to the final estimate which are based on disputes in measurements or
computations of the final quantities to be paid under the contract as amended by change order or
supplemental agreement. The Contractor and the RPR shall resolve all disputes (if any) in the
measurement and computation of final quantities to be paid within 30 calendar days of the Contractor's
receipt of the RPR's final estimate. If, after such 30-day period, a dispute still exists, the Contractor may
approve the RPR's estimate under protest of the quantities in dispute, and such disputed quantities shall
be considered by the Owner as a claim in accordance with Section 50, paragraph 50- 1 6, Claims for
Adjustment and Disputes.

After the Contractor has approved, or approved under protest, the RPR's final estimate, and after the
RPR's receipt of the project closeout documentation required in paragraph 90-l l, Contractor Final
Project Documentation, final payment will be processed based on the entire sum, or the undisputed sum
in case of approval under protest, determined to be due the Contractor less all previous payments and all
amounts to be deducted under the provisions of the contract. A1l prior partial estimates and payments
shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment

If the Contractor has filed a claim for additional compensation under the provisions of Section 50,
paragraph50-16, ClaimsforAdjustmentsandDisputes, orundertheprovisionsofthisparagraph,such
claims will be considered by the Owner in accordance with local laws or ordinances. Upon final
adjudication of such claims, any additional payment determined to be due the Contractor will be paid
pursuant to a supplemental final estimate.

90-10 Construction warranty.

a. In addition to any other wa:ranties in this contract, the Contractor warrants that work performed
under this contract conforms to the contract requirements and is free of any defect in equipment, material,
workmanship, or design furnished, or performed by the Contractor or any subcontractor or supplier at any
tier.

b. This warranty shall continue for a period of one year from the date of final acceptance of the work,
except as noted. If the Owner takes possession of any part of the work before final acceptance, this
warranty shall continue for a period of one year from the date the Owner takes possession. However, this
will not relieve the Contractor from corrective items required by the final acceptance of the project work.
Light Emitting Diode ernitting diode (LED) light fixtures with the exception of obstruction lighting, must
be wa:ranted by the manufacturer for a minimum of four (4) years after date of installation inclusive of all
electronics.

c. The Contractor shall remedy at the Contractor's expense any failure to conform, or any defect. In
addition, the Contractor shall remedy at the Contractor's expense any damage to Owner real or personal
property, when that damage is the result of the Contractor's failure to conform to contract requirements;
or any defect of equipment, material, workrnanship, or design furnished by the Contractor.

Section 90 Measurement and Payment 43



d. The Contractor shall restore any work damaged in fulfilling the terms and conditions of this clause.

The Contractor's warrant5l with respect to work repaired or replaced will run for one year from the date of
repair or replacement.

e. The Owner will notify the Confactor, in writing, within 7 days after the discovery of any failure,
defect, or damage.

f. If the Contractor fails to remedy any failure, defect, or damage within 14 days after receipt of
notice, the Owner shall have the right to replace, repair, or otherwise remedy the failure, defect, or
damage at the Contractor's expense.

g. With respect to all warranties, express or implied, from subcontractors, manufacturers, or suppliers
for work performed and materials furnished under this contract, the Contractor shall: (l) Obtain all
warranties that would be given in normal commercial practice; (2) Require all warranties to be executed,

in writing, for the benefit of the Owner, as directed by the Owner, and (3) Enforce all warranties for the

benefit of the Owner.

h. This warranty shall not limit the Owner's rights with respect to latent defects, gross mistakes, or
fraud.

90-11 Contractor Final Project Documentation. Approval of final payment to the Contractor is
contingent upon completion and submittal of the items listed below. The final payment will not be

approved until the RPR approves the Contractor's final submittal. The Contractor shall:

a. Provide trvo (2) copies of all manufacturer's warranties specified for materials, equipment, and

installations.

b. Provide weekly payroll records (not previously received) from the general Contractor and all
subcontractors.

c. Complete final cleanup in accordance with Section 40, paragraph 40-08, Final Cleanup.

d. Complete all punch list items identified during the Final Inspection.

e. Provide complete release of all claims for labor and material arising out of the Contract.

f. Provide a certified statement signed by the subcontractors, indicating actual amounts paid to the

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) subcontractors and/or suppliers associated with the project.

g. When applicable per state requirements, return copies of sales tax completion forms.

h. Manufacturer's certifications for all items incorporated in the work.

i. All required record drawings, as-built drawings or as-constructed drawings.

j. Project Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manual(s).

k. Security for Construction Waranty.

l. Equipment commissioning documentation submitted, if required.

Ei\[D OF SECTION 90

Section 90 Measurement and Payment

END OF DOCT]MENT

44



2

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
RUNWAY PAVEM ENT REHABILITATION
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

FAA AtP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-013-2018 DESTGN
FAA Af P PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 CONSTRUCTTON

COUNTY PROJECT NO. TR.19.OO4

LOCATION AND GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE WORK. The work to be done under this
contract is located at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport, Lone Pine, California. The overall
objective of the work is rehabilitation of the airport runway.

More specifically, the project consists of subgrade preparation and compaction, full depth
reclamation (FDR) of the existing asphalt pavements and base, asphalt surface course, paint
marking, and culvert removal and replacement.

The scope of the work is shown on the "Construction Layout Plan"

The paved and dirt runways will be closed during construction. The apron and helicopter area will
remain open.

TIME OF COMPLETION, SEQUENCE OF WORK SCHEDULES & MEETINGS. The Contractor
shall complete all the work under the base bid within 60 calendar davs from the date of notice to
proceed. This schedule includes pavement curing time prior to paint marking.

The paved and dirt runways will be closed during construction and the apron and helicopter area
will remain open, in accordance with the Construction Closure & Safety Plan. All work shall be
performed in daylight unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. The Contractor may make
submittals at any time after notification of award to expedite his ordering materials and
commencing the work in an efficient manner. The Contracto/s schedule submittals shall strive to
consolidate work efforts and multi-task work items to the extent possible in order to expedite
completion of the project and avoid the necessity of acceptance testing and inspection during
periods of relatively minor activity. The contract time allows for procurement, delivery, and
installation of all systems.

Within 10 days of the Notice to Proceed and every two weeks thereafter, the Contractor shall
submit to the Engineer (in Microsoft Project format) baseline, monthly updated, and final updated
schedules, each consistent in all respects with the time and order of work requirements of the
contract. Work must be executed in the sequence indicated on the current accepted schedule.

Schedules must show the order in which the Contractor proposes to prosecute the work with
logical links between time-scaled work activities and calculations made using the critical path
method to determine the controlling activities. The Contractor is responsible for assuring that all
activity sequences are logical and that each schedule shows a coordinated plan for complete
performance of the work.

The Engineer will schedule the preconstruction meeting prior to issuing the Notice to Proceed to
the Contractor. The Engineer will prepare an agenda for the preconstruction meeting and take
minutes.

The Contractor shall be available to attend weekly progress meetings, if scheduled and
determined by the Engineer to be necessary. The meeting shall be attended by the Contractor's
job foreman, safety officer, and representative of the subcontractors actively working or beginning
to work at the time of the meeting.

The preparation of schedules and attendance at meetings shall be considered as included in

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AI RPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABI LITATION SP-1



3.

Mobilization and no additionalcompensation will be allowed therefor

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Liquidated damages, for failure to complete the work within the time
for completion specified for any or all construction phases shall be three thousand dollars
($3,000.00) per calendar day.

ASSIGNMENT. ln entering this contract or a subcontract to this contract, the Contractor or
subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and interest in and
to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C.A. Sec. 15) or
under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of
the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials
pursuant to this works contract or a subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become
effective at the time the Owner tenders final payment to the Contractor without further
acknowledgment by the parties.

PREVAILING WAGES AND TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE PAYMENTS. A copy of the
determination of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages and general prevailing wages for
holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed is on file at the
Owner's offices. Contractor and any subcontractors will not pay less than the specified prevailing
rates of wages to all workers employed in the execution of the contract. The Contractor will pay
at least the minimum of state or federal wages, whichever is the greater.

Contractor will post one copy of the prevailing rates of wages at the job site. For each calendar
day or portion thereof, and for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such
work or craft in which the workman is employed or any public work done under the contract by
him, or any subcontractor under him, Contractor shall forfeit the sum of $50.00 as penalty to the
Owner.

Travel and subsistence payments shall be paid to each worker needed to execute the work and
such payments are defined in the applicable collective bargaining agreements filed with the
Department of lndustrial Relations for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved.

HOURS OF WORK. Eight hours labor constitutes a legal day's work pursuant to this contract.
The time of service of any worker employed upon the project is limited and restricted to eight
hours during any one calendar day and forty hours during any one calendar week unless said
employee is compensated at a rate of one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all times in
excess of the foregoing hours. The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall not work more than 8
hours per day unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. lf the Contractor schedule requires
overtime observation or acceptance testing by the Engineer or Owner staff, the cost for additional
payment to the Engineer and Owner for the Engineer's and Owner's overtime shall be deducted
from payments to the Contractor. The Engineer shall be the sole judge of these hours and costs.

Contractor shall keep and make available and accurate record showing the name of and actual
hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by each worker employed by the
Contractor or any subcontractor in connection with the project.

Contractor shall, as a penalty, forfeit $25.00 for each worker employed in execution of the
contract by Contractor or by any subcontractor for each calendar day during that such worker is
required or permifted to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day or forty hours in any
one calendar week in violation of this section.

ACTS OF GOD. Contractor shall not be responsible for the cost of repairing or restoring
damages to the work which exceeds 5% of the contract price and which damage is determined to
have been proximately caused by an act of God, provided that the work damaged is built in
accordance with accepted and applicable building standards and the plans and specifications of

4.

5.

6

7

LONE PI NE/DEATH VALLEY AI RPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABI LITATION SP-2



8.

10

the Owner. As used herein, the term "acts of God" includes only earthquakes in excess of the
magnitude of 3.5 on the Richter Scale and tidal waves.

CERTAIN CLAIMS. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any demand of $375,000, or less, by the
Contractor for a time extension; payment of money or damages arising from the work done by or
on behalf of the Contractor pursuant to this contract; or payment of an amount which is disputed
by the Owner shall be processed in by informal conferences, non-binding judicially supervised
mediation and judicial arbitration.

A single written claim shall be filed under this section prior to the date of final payment for all
demands arising out of the contract.

Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the claim, the Owner may request additional
documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses or claims the Owner may have
against the Contractor. lf the amount of the claim is less than $50,000, the Contractor shall
respond to the request for additional information within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the
request. The Contractor shall respond to the request within thirty (30) days of receipt if the
amount of the claim exceeds $50,000 but is less than $375,000.

Unless further documentation is requested, the Owner shall respond to the claim within forty-five
(45) days if the amount of the claim is less than $50,000 or within sixty (60) days if the amount of
the claim is more than $50,000, but less than $375,000. lf further documentation is requested,
the Owner shall respond within the same amount of time taken by the Contractor to respond or
fifteen (15) days, whichever is greater, after receipt of further information if the claim is less than
$50,000. lf the claim is more than $50,000 but less than $375,000 and further documentation is
requested by the Owner, the Owner shall respond within the same amount of time taken by the
Contractor to respond or thirty (30) days, whichever is greater.

lf the Contractor disputes the Owner's response, or the Owner fails to respond, the Contractor
may demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute.
The demand shall be served on the Owner within fifteen (15) days after the deadline of the Owner
to respond or within fifteen (15) days of the Owner's response, whichever occurs first. The
Owner shall schedule the meet and confer conference within thirty (30) days of the request.

lf the meet and confer conference does not produce a satisfactory request, the Contractor may
pursue remedies authorized by law.

CONSTRUCTION MEANS AND SAFETY. Wadell Engineering Corporation, its subconsultants,
and the Owner are not responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences,
and safety at the site. These items are the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor
shall comply with applicable portions of the attached FAA Advisory Gircular 15015370-2G,
"Operational Safety on Airports Duri n g Construction".

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE. The Contractor shall use every reasonable precaution
to safeguard persons and property including the general public. lt shall be the sole responsibility
of the Contractor to procure, place and maintain four yellow runway closure crosses and eight
water filled barricades with lights, and to furnish and maintain any other barriers, temporary
construction fences, lights, and danger signals as are necessary to protect persons and property
near the work site. All barricades and obstructions shall be protected at night by lights, which
shall be suitably distributed and kept illuminated from sunset to sunrise. Lights shall be of a type
acceptable to the Engineer with 360-degree visibility. Runway crosses and barricades shall
become the property of the Owner upon completion and shall be stored on site as approved by
the Engineer.

ln the event of interruption to domestic water, sewer, storm drain, or to other utility services as a
result of accidental breakage, or as a result of being exposed or unsupported, the Contractor

9.

LONE PI N E/DEATH VALLEY AI RPORT RU NWAY PAVE ME NT RE HAB I LITAT I ON SP-3



11

12

13.

14.

15.

16

shall promptly notify the proper authority. The Contractor shall cooperate with said authority in
restoration of service as promptly as possible and bear all costs of repair. ln no case shall
interruption of any water or utility service be allowed to exist outside working hours unless prior
approval is received.

Neither the owner nor its officers or agents or Wadell Engineering Corporation shall be
responsible to the Contractor for damages as a result of the location of the underground utilities
being other than that shown on the plans or for the existence of underground utilities not shown
on the plans. The Contractor shall seek and mark utilities within the work area prior to excavation
or opening ground surfaces. The Contractor shall retain, utilize and compensate a private USA
company for utility marking prior to any digging.

FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION. The Contractor shall perform all work in a fire-safe
manner. He shall supply and maintain on the site adequate fire-fighting equipment capable of
extinguishing incipient fires. The Contractor shall comply with applicable local and state fire
prevention regulations.

PROTECTION OF UTILITIES, CABLES, NAVAIDS, AND WEATHER BUREAU FACILITIES. ThE
Contractor is hereby informed that there are public utility, airport private utility and weather
reporting facilities on the airport. lt is the Contractor's responsibility to find and protect such
facilities. The Contractor shall conduct private USA utility searches within work areas, in particular
the terminal area and near airport lighting and weather facilities to prevent damage to systems.
The cost is considered included in the cost of all subgrade preparation and underground work,
and is not subject to separate payment.

CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES. The Contractor shall furnish all stakes for the layout
and construction of the work. The Contractor shall satisfy himself as to the accuracy of all
measurements before constructing any permanent structure. No staking will be provided by the
Engineer. The Contractor's lavout for paint markinqs shall be done at the direction of an on-site
California licensed professional land survevor.

No separate measurement and payment will be made for establishing and maintaining
construction layout stakes required under this Contract. The cost for this construction layout
staking shall be considered to be included in the various contract prices for which construction
layout staking is required.

TEMPORARY ELECTRIC POWER. The Contractor shall make his own arrangements for electric
power for use during construction. The Contractor shall compensate the Owner at Owner
determined rates for any use of Owner power.

SANITARY FACILITIES. The Contractor shall provide and maintain sanitary facilities for his
employees and his subcontractor's employees that will comply with the regulations of the local
and state departments of health and as directed by the Engineer.

WATER & WATERING. The Contractor shall furnish and apply water required in the compaction
of embankments, subgrades, subbases, base courses, dust control, and for other purposes in

accordance with the requirements of these specifications or as directed by the Engineer. Water,
when required, shall be applied at the locations, in the amounts, and during the hours as directed
by the Engineer. The Contractor shall make all arrangements and shall bear all expenses for
furnishing of water supply including adequate equipment of ample capacity to ensure uniform
application of water in the amounts directed by the Engineer.

The performance of this item, including provision of all water, shall be considered incidental to the
other contract items and, therefore, no direct payment for water shall be made.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AI RPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION SP.4



17

18.

19.

HAUL ROUTES, ROUTE MAINTENANCE, AND DUST CONTROL. Construction equipment
shall follow the routes if shown on the plans unless the Engineer approves other routes.

The Contractor shall perform all necessary maintenance of routes during construction and shall
perform all work as necessary to restore the routes used by his equipment to their original
condition at the conclusion of construction. Damage to existing paved and unpaved areas shall
be repaired promptly and to the sole satisfaction of the Engineer. Pavement damage repairs shall
include milling, compaction and repaving as directed by the Engineer. The Gontractor is hereby
notified that heavy truck usage of the airport pavements and roads likely will result in the
requirement for repairs. Such repairs shall be at no cost to the Owner.

Dust control methods and means shall be designed and implemented by the Contractor to assure
that dust from the project and support areas shall not spread to adjacent on airport tenants and
parking areas or to off-airport properties. The economic value of damage to aircraft and aircraft
maintenance facilities and activities can occur even by light dusting, which may result in claims
and civil litigation. Haul routes shall be sprinkled with water as necessary to prevent dust
diffusion during the course of the work.

All maintenance and restoration work shall be completed to the Engineer's satisfaction before
final payment is awarded.

WORK lN AIR OPERATIONS AREAS. Employee vehicle parking is confined to the Contractor's
area shown on the plans. This project requires work in and adjacent to aircraft operations areas.
When the Contractor enters air operations areas the following apply:

The Contractor shall provide a knowledgeable flag person with aviation radio to prevent vehicle
incursions and access to operations areas including crossings of runways and taxiways.

FAA-approved orange and white checkered flags shall be provided by the Contractor on all
vehicles. No vehicles are allowed within 25 feet of a parked aircraft or within 40 feet of a moving
aircraft.

Workmen on foot shall remain at least 150 feet back from the edge of an operational runway,
unless cleared through a radio operator who then maintains a watch over the operation.
Workmen on or within 50 feet of an active runway or taxiway shall wear orange safety vests at all
times.

ln the event of an emergency, men and equipment shall be moved immediately at the direction of
the Engineer.

Normally, work will not be permitted in the air operations area between the hours 2000 to 0600. lf
an emergency situation requires work during these hours, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer
as far in advance as possible and obtain clearance from him before proceeding to work. During
night operations, each vehicle shall be equipped with an omni-directional amber flashing light
mounted on the roof of the cab. Headlights, taillights and flashers shall be used for all activities
during these hours.

HAZARD LIGHTING OF CONSTRUCTION AREAS. ln the area of construction as shown on the
plans and in accordance with the construction schedule, the Contractor shall outline access
routes to the construction area and the construction area itself by the use of suitable lighted
barricades.

Construction equipment that extends 15 feet or more above ground level shall be cleared through
the Engineer and shall be lighted at night in an approved manner and/or lowered to height of
adjacent structural surroundings at the discretion of the Engineer.

LONE PIN E/DEATH VALLEY AI RPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION sP-5



20.

21

22

CLEANUP DURING THE WORK. The Contractor shall at all times during the work keep the
premises clean and orderly. He shall promptly remove all waste materials and rubbish. All
directions from the Engineer and other authorized public officials having jurisdiction over health
and safety shall be obeyed.

Whenever the Contractor is hauling material or debris on or across roadways, auto parking,
aircraft aprons, taxiways, or runways, he shall take all necessary precautions to prevent any
spillage or dropping of material or debris from his haul vehicles. lf and when such spills occur,
the Contractor shall be especially diligent in promptly cleaning them up. lt is emphasized that
even the smallest spills of rock or debris may be hazardous to automobiles and aircraft until
cleaned up.

SITE RESTORATION AND CLEANUP. Upon completion of the project, all areas used by the
Contractor in connection with the work shall be properly cleared of all temporary structures,
rubbish, and waste materials and the areas shall be properly graded to drain and blend in with the
abutting property. Any waste area obtained by the Contractor for deposit of waste materials shall
be finished to properly drain and blend with the surrounding terrain.

CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE AND COOPERATION. The Owner relies on prompt and
efficient execution of the project and closeout of the contract. Contractor non-responsiveness or
mismanagement that results in delay to the Engineer adversely impacts the Owner's ability to
perform compliance inspections, complete the project accounting and finish the project. The
Contractor will be deemed non-responsive or un-cooperative in the event the Contractor does not
furnish (1) daily receipts for delivered materials (where applicable such as aggregate base and
asphaltic concrete), (2) prompt progress and final payment requests, (3) prompt Contractor test
results for quality control, (4) complete and accurate "as-built" markup drawings for the completed
work.

The Engineer shall not allow payment for materials delivered without an applicable load receipt
submitted to the Engineer on the day of delivery. The Contractor shall have 14 calendar days
from completion of the final punch list work to submit "as-built" markups and the final payment
request.

Delays to the Engineer due to the Engineer's determination of non-responsiveness by the
Contractor shall be back charged against monies due the Contractor at the rate of $2,000 per
engineer day. Such charges are in addition to liquidated damages.

END OF SPECIAL PROVISIONS

LONE PINEJDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION sP-6



@ Advisory
Circular

U.S. Department
of Transportation
FederalAviation
Administration

Subject: Operational Safety on
Airports During Construction

Datez 1211312017

Initiated By: AAS-100

AC No: 15015370-2G

Change:

1

2

3

4

5

Purpose.

This AC sets forth guidelines for operational safety on airports during construction.

Cancellation.

This AC cancels AC 15015370-2F, Operational Safety on Airports during Construction,
dated Septemb er 29, 2011.

Application.
This AC assists airport operators in complying with Title 14 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 139, Certification of Airports. For those certificated airports,
this AC provides one way, but not the only way, of meeting those requirements. The use

of this AC is mandatory for those airport construction projects receiving funds under the
Airport Improvement Program (AIP). See Grant Assurance No. 34, Policies, Standards,
and Specifications. While we do not require non-certificated airports without grant
agreements or airports using Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Program funds for
construction projects to adhere to these guidelines, we recommend that they do so to
help these airports maintain operational safety during construction.

Related Documents.

ACs and Orders referenced in the text of this AC do not include a revision letter, as they
refer to the latest version. Appendix A contains a list of reading material on airport
construction, design, and potential safety hazards during construction, as well as

instructions for obtaining these documents.

Principal Changes.

The AC incorporates the following principal changes:

1. Notification about impacts to both airport owned and FAA-owned NAVAIDs was
added. See paragraph 2.13.5.3, NAVAIDs.



tzlt3l20t7

R.

AC 15015370-2G

2. Guidance for the use of orange construction signs was added. See paragraph
2.18.4.2, Temporary Signs.

3. Open trenches or excavations may be permitted in the taxiway safety area while the
taxiway is open to aircraft operations, subject to restrictions. See paragraph 2.22.3.4,
Excavations.

4. Guidance for temporary shortened runways and displaced thresholds has been
enhanced. See Fizure 2-1 and Fisure 2-2.

5. Figures have been improved and a new Appendix F on the placement of orange
construction signs has been added.

Hyperlinks (allowing the reader to access documents located on the internet and to
maneuver within this document) are provided throughout this document and are

identified with underlined text. When navigating within this document, retum to the
previously viewed page by pressing the "ALT" and " <-" keys simultaneously.

Figures in this document are schematic representations and are not to scale.

Use of Metrics.
Throughout this AC, U.S. customary units are used followed with "soft" (rounded)
conversion to metric units. The U.S. customary units govern.

Where to Find this AC.
You can view a list of all ACs at
http://www.faa.sov/regulations policies/advisory circulars/. You can view the Federal
Aviation Regulations at http://www.faa.eov/rezulations policies/faa_regulations/.

Feedback on this AC.
If you have suggestions for improving this AC, you may use the Advisory Circular
Feedback form at the end of this AC.

Director of Airport Safety and Standards

6

7

8

ll



r2lt3l20t7

CONTENTS

Paragraph

2.2 Assume Responsibility......

2.3 Submit the CSPP

2.4 Meet CSPP Requirements

2.5 Coordination.

Phasing.

Areas and Operations Affected by Construction Activity. .............

Navigation Aid (NAVAID) Protection. ..............

Contractor Access.

Wildlife Management

Foreign Object Debris (FOD) Management

Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Management. .............

Notification of Construction Activities...............

Inspection Requirements.................

2.15 Underground Utilities

AC 150/5370-2G

Page

Ghapter 1. Planning an Airlield Construction Project

1.1 Overview.

1.2 Plan for Safety.....

1.3 Develop a Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP).................

I.4 Who Is Responsible for Safety During Construction?.......................

1-1

1-l

1-1

1-3

t-4

Ghapter 2. Construction Safety and Phasing Plans .....2-l

2.I Overview... .......2-l

.......2-l

.......2-l

.......2-2

.......2-6

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.r0

2.tl
2.t2

2.t3

2.t4

'.,.,..''....,,2-7

...............2-7

.............2-tt

.............2-rt

.............2-ts

.............2-t6

.............2-16

.............2-16

.............2-t8

.............2-r9

2.L6 Penalties...... ...2-19

2.17 Special Conditions ....2-19

2.18 Runway and TaxiwayVisual Aids. ...2-t9

2.19 Marking and Signs for Access Routes...... 2-29

2.20 Hazard Marking, Lighting and Signing ..............2-30

2.21 Work Zone Lighting for Nighttime Construction................ ....................2-32

2.22 Protection of Runway and Taxiway Safety Areas. ...............2-33

2.23 Other Limitations on Construction.

lll

2-37



t2/13/2017 AC t5015370-2G

Chapter 3. Guidelines for Writing a CSPP.....

3.1 General Requirements.................

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Applicability of Subjects.....

Graphical Representations. .

Reference Documents

Restrictions

.....3-2

.....3-2

3-1

3-1

3-1

3-1

3-2

3-2

3-2

3-2

3-4

3-5

3-5

3-5

3-6

3-6

3-6

3-6

3-7

3-7

c-1

D-1

3.6 Coordination. .............

3.7 Phasing.

3.8 Areas and Operations Affected by Construction. ...

3.9 NAVAID Protection.

3

3

3

3

10

11

t2

13

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

Contractor Access.

Wildlife Management

FOD Management................

HAZMAT Management.......

.... 3-3

....3-4

3.14 Notification of Construction Activities

3. I 5 Inspection Requirements......

3. 16 Underground Utilities. .........

3. l7 Penalties. .........

3. 18 Special Conditions. ...

3.19 Runway and Taxiway Visual Aids

Marking and Signs for Access Routes.

Hazard Marking and Lighting. ................

Work Zone Lighting for Nighfiime Construction. ........

Protection of Runway and Taxiway Safety Areas. .......

3.24 Other Limitations on Construction.

Appendix D. Construction Project Daily Safety Inspection Checklist..

...3-4

...3-4

...3-5

Appendix A. Related Reading Material... .................... A-1

Appendix C. Safety and Phasing Plan Checklist...

Appendix E. Sample Operational Effects Tab1e......... .....................8-1

Appendix F. Orange Construction Signs ......................F-1

iv



tzlt3l20t7 AC 150/5370-2G

FIGURES

Number

Figure 2-1. Temporary Partially Closed Runway.....

Figure 2-2. T emporary Displaced Threshold.................

Figure 2-3. Markings for a Temporarily Closed Runway.............

Figure 2-4. Temporary Taxiway Closure.

Figure 2-5. Temporary Outboard White Threshold Bars and Yellow Arrowheads

Figure 2-6. Lighted X in Daytime.................

Figure 2-7 . Lighted, X at Night..

Figure 2-8. Interlocking Baricades .........

Figure 2-9.Low Profile Barricades

Figure E-I. Phase I Example.........

Figure E-2. Phase II Example........

Figure E-3. Phase III Example.......

Figure F-I. Approved Sign Legends.....

Figure F-2. Orange Constuction Sign Example 1.................

Figure F-3. Orange Construction Sign Example 2................. ................F-3

TABLES

Page

....2-9

..2-r0

2-21

2-22

2-24

2-26

2-26

2-31

2-32

..E-1

..8-2

..E-3

..F-1

..F-2

Number

Table A- 1. FAA Publications ........................,

Table A-2. Code of Federal Regulation.........,

Table B- I . Terms and Acronyms...................,

Table C-1. CSPP Checklist...

Table D- 1 . Potentially Hazardous Conditions

Table E-1. Operational Effects Table

Table E-2. Runway and Taxiway Edge Protection............

Table E-3. Protection Prior to Runway Threshold..

Page

................... A-1

................... A-3

................... B-1

................... c-1

................... D-l

....................E-4

....................E-6

....................E_7

v



t2/13/2017 AC ts0/5370-2c

Page Intentionally Blank

vl



12/13120t7 AC 15015370-2G

CHAPTER {. PLANNING AN AIRFIELD CONSTRUCTION PROJECT

1.1 Overview.

Airports are complex environments, and procedures and conditions associated with
construction activities often affect aircraft operations and can jeopardize operational
safety. Safety considerations are paramount and may make operational impacts
unavoidable. However, careful planning, scheduling, and coordination of construction
activities can minimize disruption of normal aircraft operations and avoid situations that
compromise the airport's operational safety. The airport operator must understand how
construction activities and aircraft operations affect one another to be able to develop an

effective plan to complete the project. While the guidance in this AC is primarily used
for construction operations, the concepts, methods and procedures described may also
enhance the day-to-day airport maintenance operations, such as lighting maintenance
and snow removal operations.

t.2 Plan for Safety.

Safety, maintaining aircraft operations, and construction costs are all interrelated. Since
safety must not be compromised, the airport operator must strike a balance between
maintaining atcraft operations and construction costs. This balance will vary widely
depending on the operational needs and resources of the airport and will require early
coordination with airport users and the FAA. As the project design progresses, the
necessary construction locations, activities, and associated costs will be identified and

their impact to airport operations must be assessed. Adjustments are made to the
proposed construction activities, often by phasing the project, and/or to airport
operations to maintain operational safety. This planning effort will ultimately result in a
project Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP). The development of the CSPP
takes place through the following five steps:

r.2.1 Identify Affected Areas.

The airport operator must determine the geographic areas on the airport affected by the
construction project. Some, such as a runway extension, will be defined by the project.
Others may be variable, such as the location of haul routes and material stockpiles.

1.2.2 DescribeCurrentOperations.

Identify the normal airport operations in each affected area for each phase of the project.
This becomes the baseline from which the impact on operations by construction
activities can be measured. This should include a narrative of the tlpical users and
aircraft operating within the affected areas. It should also include information related to
airport operations: the Aircraft Approach Category (AAC) and Airplane Design Group
(ADG) of the airplanes that operate on each runway; the ADG and Taxiway Design
Group (TDG)I for each affected taxiway; designated approach visibility minimums;

I Find Taxiway Desigrr Group information in AC 150/5300-13, Airport Design.

l-l



t2/13t20r7 AC 15015370-2G

available approach and departure procedures; most demanding aircraft; declared
distances; available air traffic control services; airport Surface Movement Guidance and
Control System (SMGCS) plan; and others. The applicable seasons, days and times for
certain operations should also be identified as applicable.

r.2.3 Allow for Temporar.v Changes to Operations.

To the extent practical, current airport operations should be maintained during the
construction. In consultation with airport users, Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting
(ARFF) personnel, and FAA Air Traffic Organization (ATO) personnel, the airport
operator should identiff and prioritize the airport's most important operations. The
construction activities should be planned, through project phasing if necessary, to safely
accommodate these operations. When the construction activities cannot be adjusted to
safely maintain current operations, regardless of their importance, then the operations
must be revised accordingly. Allowable changes include temporary revisions to
approach procedures, restricting certain aircraft to specific runways and taxiways,
suspension of certain operations, decreased weights for some aircraft due to shortened
runways, and other changes. An example of a table showing temporary operations
versus current operations is shown in Appendix E.

1.2.4 Take Required Measures to Revise Opg&daqs.

Once the level and type of aircraft operations to be maintained are identified, the airport
operator must determine the measures required to safely conduct the planned operations
during the construction. These measures will result in associated costs, which can be
broadly interpreted to include not only direct construction costs, but also loss of revenue
from impacted operations. Analysis of costs may indicate a need to reevaluate allowable
changes to operations. As aircraft operations and allowable changes will vary widely
among airports, this AC presents general guidance on those subjects.

1.2.5 Manage Safety Risk.

The FAA is committed to incorporating proactive safety risk management (SRM) tools
into its decision-making processes. FAA Order 5200.11, FAA Airports (ARP) Safety
Managernent System (SMS), requires the FAA to conduct a Safety Assessment for
certain triggering actions. Certain airport projects may require the airport operator to
provide a Project Proposal Summary to help the FAA determine whether a Safety
Assessment is required prior to FAA approval of the CSPP. The airport operator must
coordinate with the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District Office early in the
development of the CSPP to determine the need for a Safety Risk Assessment. If the
FAA requires an assessment, the airport operator must at a minimum:

1. Notifu the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District Office during the project
"scope development" phase of any project requiring a CSPP.

2. Provide documents identified by the FAA as necessary to conduct SRM.

3. Participate in the SRM process for airport projects.

4. Provide a representative to participate on the SRM panel.

l-2



I

tzlt3l20t7

1.3

1.3.1

AC rs0/5370-2c

5. Ensure that all applicable SRM identified risks elements are recorded and mitigated
within the CSPP.

Develop a Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP).

Development of an effective CSPP will require familiarity with many other documents
referenced throughout this AC. See Appendix A for a list of related reading material.

List Requirements.

A CSPP must be developed for each on-airfield construction project funded by the
Airport Improvement Program (AIP) or located on an airport certificated under Part
139. For on-airfield construction projects at Part 139 airports funded without AIP funds,
the preparation of a CSPP represents an acceptable method the certificate holder may
use to meet Part 139 requirements during airfreld construction activity. As per FAA
Order 5200.11, projects that require Safety Assessments do not include construction,
rehabilitation, or change of any facility that is entirely outside the air operations area,
does not involve any expansion of the facility envelope and does not involve
construction equipment, haul routes or placement of material in locations that require
access to the air operations area, increase the facility envelope, or impact line-of-sight.
Such facilities may include passenger terminals and parking or other structures.
However, extraordinary circumstances may trigger the need for a Safety Assessment
and a CSPP. The CSPP is subject to subsequent review and approval under the FAA's
Safety Risk Management procedures (see paragraph 12t.

1.3.2 Prepare a Safety Plan Compliance Document (SPCD).

The Safety Plan Compliance Document (SPCD) details how the contractor will comply
with the CSPP. Also, it will not be possible to determine all safety plan details (for
example specific hazard equipment and lighting, contractor's points of contact,
construction equipment heights) during the development of the CSPP. The successful
contractor must define such details by preparing an SPCD that the airport operator
reviews for approval prior to issuance of a notice-to-proceed. The SPCD is a subset of
the CSPP, similar to how a shop drawing review is a subset to the technical
specifications.

1.3.3 Assume ResponsibiliW for the CSPP.

The airport operator is responsible for establishing and enforcing the CSPP. The airport
operator may use the services of an engineering consultant to help develop the CSPP.
However, writing the CSPP cannot be delegated to the construction contractor. Only
those details the airport operator determines cannot be addressed before contract award
are developed by the contractor and submitted for approval as the SPCD. The SPCD
does not restate nor propose differences to provisions already addressed in the CSPP.

t-3



t2lt3l20t7

r.4

T.4.7

t.4.2

AC ts0ls370-2c

Who Is Responsible for Safety During Construction?

Establish a Safetv Culture.

Everyone has a role in operational safety on airports during construction: the airport
operator, the airport's consultants, the construction contractor and subcontractors,
airport users, airport tenants, ARFF personnel, Air Traffic personnel, including
Technical Operations personnel, FAA Airports Division personnel, and others, such as

military personnel at any airport supporting military operations (e.g. national guard or a
joint use facility). Close communication and coordination between all affected parties is
the key to maintaining safe operations. Such communication and coordination should
start at the project scoping meeting and continue through the completion of the project.
The airport operator and contractor should conduct onsite safety inspections throughout
the project and immediately remedy any deficiencies, whether caused by negligence,
oversight, or project scope change.

Assess Airport Operator's Responsibilities.

An airport operator has overall responsibility for all activities on an airport, including
construction. This includes the predesign, design, preconstruction, construction, and
inspection phases. Additional information on the responsibilities listed below can be
found throughout this AC. The airport operator must:

t-4



12/t3/2017 AC 15015370-2G

t.4.2.t Develop a CSPP that complies with the safety guidelines of Chapter 2.

Conskuction Safetlland Phasine Plans, and Chapter 3. Guidelines for
Writins a CSPP. The airport operator may develop the CSPP internally or
have a consultant develop the CSPP for approval by the airport operator.
For tenant sponsored projects, approve a CSPP developed by the tenant or
its consultant.

1.4.2.2 Require, review and approve the SPCD by the contractor that indicates
how it will comply with the CSPP and provides details that cannot be

determined before contract award.

1.4.2.3 Convene a preconstruction meeting with the construction contractor,
consultant, airport employees and, if appropriate, tenant sponsor and other
tenants to review and discuss project safety before beginning construction
activity. The appropriate FAA representatives should be invited to attend
the meeting. See AC 150/5370-12. Quality Managementfor Federally
Funded Airport Construction Projecfs. (Note "FAA" refers to the Airports
Regional or District Office, the Air Traffic Organization, Flight Standards
Service, and other offices that support airport operations, flight
regulations, and construction/environmental policies.)

t.4.2.4 Ensure contact information is accurate for each representative/point of
contact identified in the CSPP and SPCD.

t.4.2.5 Hold weekly or, if necessary, daily safety meetings with all affected
parties to coordinate activities.

t.4.2.6 NotiS users, ARFF personnel, and FAA ATO personnel of construction
and conditions that may adversely affect the operational safety of the
airport via Notices to Airmen (NOTAM) and other methods, as

appropriate. Convene a meeting for review and discussion if necessary.

t.4.2.7 Ensure construction personnel know applicable airport procedures and
changes to those procedures that may affect their work.

t.4.2.8 Ensure that all temporary construction signs are located per the scheduled
list for each phase ofthe project.

r.4.2.9 Ensure construction contractors and subcontractors undergo training
required by the CSPP and SPCD.

t.4.2.10 Ensure vehicle and pedestrian operations addressed in the CSPP and
SPCD are coordinated with airport tenants, the airport traffic control tower
(ATCT), and construction contractors.

At certificated airports, ensure each CSPP and SPCD is consistent with
Part 139.

t.4.2.tr

1-5



t2/1312017

t.4.2.12

1.4.2.r3

1.4.2.t4

AC t5015370-2G

Conduct inspections sufficiently frequently to ensure construction
contractors and tenants comply with the CSPP and SPCD and that there
are no altered construction activities that could create potential safety
hazards.

Take immediate action to resolve safety deficiencies.

At airports subject to 49 CFR Part 1542, Airport Security, ensure

construction access complies with the security requirements of that
regulation.

t.4.z.ts Notify appropriate parties when conditions exist that invoke provisions of
the CSPP and SPCD (for example, implementation of low-visibility
operations).

t.4.2.t6 Ensure prompt submittal of a Notice of Proposed Construction or
Alteration (Form 7460-I) for conducting an aeronautical study of potential
obstructions such as tall equipment (cranes, concrete pumps, other), stock
piles, and haul routes. A separate form may be filed for each potential
obstruction, or one form may be filed describing the entire construction
area and maximum equipment height. In the latter case, a separate form
must be filed for any object beyond or higher than the originally evaluated
arealheight. The FAA encourages online submittal of forms for
expediency at https://oeaaa.faa. eov/oeaaalexternaVportal.isp. The
appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District Offrce can provide
assistance in determining which objects require an aeronautical study.

t.4.2.t7 Ensure prompt transmission of the Airport Sponsor Strategic Event
Submission, FAA Form 6000-26,located at
https://oeaaa.faa. gov/oeaaa/externaVcontenVAIRPORT_SPONSOR STR
ATEGIC_EVENT_SUBMIS SION_FORM.pdf, to assure proper
coordination for NAS Strategic Intemrption per Service Level Agreement
with ATO.

t.4.2.t8 Promptly notify the FAA Airports Regional or District Office of any
proposed changes to the CSPP prior to implementation of the change.
Changes to the CSPP require review and approval by the airport operator
and the FAA. The FAA Airports Regional or District office will determine
if further coordination within the FAA is needed. Coordinate with
appropriate local and other federal government agencies, such as

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (O SHA), Transportation S ecurity Administration (T SA),
and the state environmental agency.

Define Construction Contractor's Responsibilities.

The contractor is responsible for complying with the CSPP and SPCD. The contractor
must:

1.4.3

l-6



t2/1312017 AC ts0ls370-2c

Submit a Safety Plan Compliance Document (SPCD) to the airport
operator describing how it will comply with the requirements of the CSPP
and supply any details that could not be determined before contract award.
The SPCD must include a certification statement by the contactor,
indicating an understanding of the operational safety requirements of the
CSPP and the assertion of compliance with the approved CSPP and SPCD
unless written approval is granted by the airport operator. Any
construction practice proposed by the contractor that does not conform to
the CSPP and SPCD may impact the airport's operational safety and will
require a revision to the CSPP and SPCD and re-coordination with the
airport operator and the FAA in advance.

Have available at all times copies of the CSPP and SPCD for reference by
the airport operator and its representatives, and by subcontractors and
contractor employees.

Ensure that construction personnel are familiar with safety procedures and
regulations on the airport. Provide a point of contact who will coordinate
an immediate response to correct any construction-related activity that
may adversely affect the operational safety of the airport. Many projects
will require 24-hour coverage.

Identi$ in the SPCD the contractor's on-site employees responsible for
monitoring compliance with the CSPP and SPCD during construction. At
least one of these employees must be on-site when active construction is
taking place.

Conduct sufficient inspections to ensure construction personnel comply
with the CSPP and SPCD and that there are no altered construction
activities that could create potential safety hazards.

Restrict movement of construction vehicles and personnel to permitted
construction areas by flagging, barricading, erecting temporary fencing, or
providing escorts, as appropriate, and as specified in the CSPP and SPCD.

Ensure that no contractor employees, employees of subcontactors or
suppliers, or other persons enter any part of the air operations area (AOA)
from the construction site unless authorized.

Ensure prompt submittal through the airport operator of Form 7460-l for
the purpose of conducting an aeronautical study of contractor equipment
such as tall equipment (cranes, concrete pumps, and other equipment),
stock piles, and haul routes when different from cases previously filed by
the airport operator. The FAA encourages online submittal of forms for
expediency at https://oeaaa.faa. gov/oeaaa/externaVportal jsp.

1.4.3.r

t.4.3.2

r.4.3.3

t.4.3.4

1.4.3.5

1.4.3.6

t.4.3.7

1.4.3.8

l-7



tzlt3l20r7

1.4.4

AC 15015370-2G

1.4.3.9 Ensure that all necessary safety mitigations are understood by all parties
involved, and any special requirements of each construction phase will be
fulfilled per the approved timeframe.

1.4.3.10 Participate in pre-construction meetings to review construction limits,
safety mitigations, NOTAMs, and understand all special airport
operational needs during each phase ofthe project.

Define Tenant's Responsibilities.

If planning construction activities on leased property, Airport tenants, such as airline
operators, fixed base operators, and FAA ATO/Technical Operations sponsoring
construction are strongly encouraged to:

1. Develop, or have a consultant develop, a project specific CSPP and submit it to the
airport operator. The airport operator may forgo a complete CSPP submittal and
instead incorporate appropriate operational safety principles and measures addressed
in the advisory circular within their tenant lease agreemqnts.

2. In coordination with its contractor, develop an SPCD and submit it to the airport
operator for approval issued prior to issuance of a Notice to Proceed.

3. Ensure that construction personnel are familiar with safety procedures and
regulations on the airport during all phases of the constuction.

4. Provide a point of contact of who will coordinate an immediate response to correct
any construction-related activity that may adversely affect the operational safety of
the airport.

5. Identiff in the SPCD the contractor's on-site employees responsible for monitoring
compliance with the CSPP and SPCD during construction. At least one of these
employees must be on-site when active construction is taking place.

6. Ensure that no tenant or contractor employees, employees of subcontractors or
suppliers, or any other persons enter any part of the AOA from the construction site
unless authorized.

7. Restrict movement of construction vehicles to construction areas by flagging and
ba:ricading, erecting temporary fencing, or providing escorts, as appropriate, as

specified in the CSPP and SPCD.

8. Ensure prompt submittal through the airport operator of Form 7460-l for
conducting an aeronautical study of contractor equipment such as tall equipment
(cranes, concrete pumps, other), stock piles, and haul routes. The FAA encourages
online submittal of forms for expediency at

https://oeaaa. faa. eov/oeaaalextemaVportal j sp.

9. Participate in pre-construction meetings to review construction limits, safety
mitigations, NOTAMs, and understand all special airport operational needs during
each phase ofthe project.

l-8



12/1312017 AC 150/5370-2G

CHAPTER 2. CONSTRUCTION SAFEW AND PHASING PLANS

2.1 Overview.

Aviation safety is the primary consideration at airports, especially during construction.
The airport operator's CSPP and the contractor's Safety Plan Compliance Document
(SPCD) are the primary tools to ensure safety compliance when coordinating
consfuction activities with airport operations. These documents identiff all aspects of
the construction project that pose a potential safety hazard to airport operations and
outline respective mitigation procedures for each hazard. They must provide
information necessary for the Airport Operations department to conduct airfield
inspections and expeditiously identify and correct unsafe conditions during
construction. All aviation safety provisions included within the project drawings,
contract specifications, and other related documents must also be reflected in the CSPP
and SPCD.

Assume Responsibility.

Operational safety on the airport remains the airport operator's responsibility at all
times. The airport operator must develop, certify, and submit for FAA approval each

CSPP. It is the airport operator's responsibility to apply the requirements of the FAA
approved CSPP. The airport operator must revise the CSPP when conditions warrant
changes and must submit the revised CSPP to the FAA for approval. The airport
operator must also require and approve a SPCD from the project contractor.

Submit the CSPP.

Construction Safety and Phasing Plans should be developed concurrently with the
project design. Milestone versions of the CSPP should be submitted for review and
approval as follows. While these milestones are not mandatory, early submission will
help to avoid delays. Submittals are preferred in 8.5 x 1l inch or 11 x 17 inch format
for compatibility with the FAA's Obstruction Evaluation / Airport Airspace Analysis
(OE / AAA) process.

Submit an Outline/Draft .

By the time approximately 25Yoto 30% of the project design is completed, the principal
elements of the CSPP should be established. Airport operators are encouraged to submit
an outline or draft, detailing all CSPP provisions developed to date, to the FAA for
review at this stage of the project design.

2.3.2 Submit a CSPP.

The CSPP should be formally submitted for FAA approval when the project design is
80 percent to 90 percent complete. Since provisions in the CSPP will influence contract
costs, it is important to obtain FAA approval in time to include all such provisions in
the procurement contract.

2.2

2.3

2.3.t

2-l



t2lt3l20t7

2.3.3

AC r5015370-2G

Submit an SPCD.

The contractor should submit the SPCD to the airport operator for approval to be issued
prior to the Notice to Proceed.

2.3.4 Submit CSPP Revisions.

All revisions to a previously approved CSPP must be re-submitted to ttre FAA for
review and approvaVdisapproval action.

2.4

2.4.1

Meet CSPP Requirements.

To the extent possible, the CSPP should address the following as outlined in Chapter 3.

Guidelines for Writine a CSPP. Details that cannot be determined at this stage are to be
included in the SPCD.

1. Coordination.

a. Contractor progress meetings.

b. Scope or schedule changes.

c. FAA ATO coordination.

2. Phasing.

a. Phase elements.

b. Construction safety drawings.

3. Areas and operations affected by the construction activity.

a. Identifrcation of affected areas.

b. Mitigation of effects.

4. Protection of navigation aids (NAVAIDs).

5. Contractor access.

a. Location of stockpiled construction materials.

b. Vehicle and pedestrian operations.

6. Wildlife management.

a. Trash.

b. Standing water.

c. Tall grass and seeds.

d. Poorly maintained fencing and gates.

e. Disruption of existing wildlife habitat.

7. Foreign Object Debris (FOD) management.

8. Hazardous materials (HAZMAT) management.

9. Notification of construction activities.

2-2



r2l13l20t7 AC 150/5370-2G

a. Maintenance of a list of responsible representatives/ points of contact.

b. NOTAM.

c. Emergency notification procedures.

d. Coordination with ARFF Persorurel.

e. Notification to the FAA.

1 0. Inspection requirements.

a. Daily (or more frequent) inspections.

b. Final inspections.

I 1. Underground utilities.

12. Penalties.

13. Special conditions.

14. Runway and taxiway visual aids. Marking, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs.

a. General.

b. Markings.

c. Lighting and visual NAVAIDs.

d. Signs, temporary, including orange construction signs, and permanent signs.

15. Marking and signs for access routes.

16.Hazard marking and lighting.

a. Purpose.

b. Equipment.

17. Work zone lighting for nighttime construction (if applicable).

18. Protection of runway and taxiway safety areas, object free areas, obstacle free
zones, and approach/departure surfaces.

a. Runway Safety Area (RSA).

b. Runway Object Free Area (ROFA).

c. Taxiway Safety Area (TSA). Provide details for any adjustments to Taxiway
Safety Area width to allow continued operation of smaller aircraft. See

paragraph2.22.!.

d. Taxiway Object Free Area (TOFA). Provide details for any continued aircraft
operations while construction occurs within the TOFA. See paragraph 2.22.4.

e. Obstacle Free Zone (OFZ).

f. Runway approach/departure surfaces.

19. Other limitations on construction.

a. Prohibitions.

2-3



tzlt3l20t7

2.4.2

AC 15015370-2G

b. Restrictions

The Safety Plan Compliance Document (SPCD) should include a general statement by
the construction contractor that he/she has read and will abide by the CSPP. In addition,
the SPCD must include all supplemental information that could not be included in the
CSPP prior to the contract award. The contractor statement should include the name of
the contractor, the title of the project CSPP, the approval date of the CSPP, and a
reference to any supplemental information (that is, "I, (Name of Contractor), have read
the (Title of Project) CSPP, approved on (Date), and will abide by it as written and with
the following additions as noted:"). The supplemental information in the SPCD should
be written to match the format of the CSPP indicating each subject by corresponding
CSPP subject number and title. If no supplemental information is necessary for any
specific subject, the statement, 'No supplemental information," should be written after
the corresponding subject title. The SPCD should not duplicate ihformation in the
CSPP:

1. Coordination. Discuss details of proposed safety meetings with the airport operator
and with contractor employees and subcontractors.

2. Phasing. Discuss proposed construction schedule elements, including:

a. Duration of each phase.

b. Daily start and finish of construction, including "night only" construction.

c. Duration of construction activities during:

i. Normal runway operations.

ii. Closed runway operations.

iii. Modified runway "Aircraft Reference Code" usage.

3. Areas and operations affected by the construction activity. These areas and
operations should be identified in the CSPP and should not require an entry in the
SPCD.

4. Protection of NAVAIDs. Discuss specific methods proposed to protect operating
NAVAIDS.

5. Contractor access. Provide the following:

a. Details on how the contractor will maintain the integrity of the airport security
fence (gate guards, daily log ofconstruction personnel, and other).

b. Listing of individuals requiring driver training (for certificated airports and as

requested).

c. Radiocommunications.

i. Types of radios and backup capabilities.

ii. Who will be monitoring radios.

iii. Who to contact if the ATCT cannot reach the contractor's designated
person by radio.

2-4



t2/1312017 AC ts0ls370-2c

d. Details on how the contractor will escort material delivery vehicles.

6. Wildlife management. Discuss the following:

a. Methods and procedures to prevent wildlife attraction.

b. Wildlife reporting procedures.

7. Foreign Object Debris (FOD) management. Discuss equipment and methods for
control of FOD, including construction debris and dust.

8. Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) management. Discuss equipment and methods for
responding to hazardous spills.

9. Notification of construction activities. Provide the following:

a. Contactor points of contact.

b. Contractor emergency contact.

c. Listing of tall or other requested equipment proposed for use on the airport and
the timeframe for submittingT460-I forms not previously submitted by the
airport operator.

d. Batch plant details, including 7460-l submittal.

10. Inspection requirements. Discuss daily (or more frequent) inspections and special
inspection procedures.

11. Underground utilities. Discuss proposed methods of identiffing and protecting
underground utilities.

12. Penalties. Penalties should be identified in the CSPP and should not require an entry
in the SPCD.

13. Special conditions. Discuss proposed actions for each special condition identified in
the CSPP.

14. Runway and taxiway visual aids. Including marking, lighting, signs, and visual
NAVAIDs. Discuss proposed visual aids including the following:

a. Equipment and methods for covering signage and airfield lights.

b. Equipment and methods for temporary closure markings (paint, fabric, other).

c. Temporary orange construction signs.

d. Types of temporary Visual Guidance Slope Indicators (VGSI).

15. Marking and signs for access routes. Discuss proposed methods of demarcating
access routes for vehicle drivers.

16.Hazard marking and lighting. Discuss proposed equipment and methods for
identiffing excavation areas.

17. Work zone lighting for nighttime construction (if applicable). Discuss proposed
equipment, locations, aiming, and shielding to prevent interference with air traffic
control and aircraft operations.

2-5



t211312017 AC 15015370-2G

18. Protection of runway and taxiway safety areas, object free areas, obstacle free
zones, and approach/departure surfaces. Discuss proposed methods of identiffing,
demarcating, and protecting airport surfaces including:

a. Equipment and methods for maintaining Taxiway Safety Area standards.

b. Equipment and methods to ensure the safe passage of aircraft where Taxiway
Safety Area or Taxiway Object Free Area standards cannot be maintained.

c. Equipment and methods for separation of construction operations from aircraft
operations, including details of barricades.

19. Other limitations on construction should be identified in the CSPP and should not
require an entry in the SPCD.

2.5 Coordination.
Airport operators, or tenants responsible for design, bidding and conducting
construction on their leased properties, should ensure at all project developmental
stages, such as predesign, prebid, and preconstruction conferences, they capture the
subject of airport operational safety during construction (see AC 150/5370-12, Quality
Managementfor Federally Funded Airport Construction Projects).In addition, the
following should be coordinated as required:

2.5.1 Progress Meetines.

Operational safety should be a standing agenda item for discussion during progress
meetings throughout the project developmental stages.

2.5.2 Scooe or Schedule Changes.

Changes in the scope or duration at any of the project stages may require revisions to
the CSPP and review and approval by the airport operator and the FAA (see paragraph

r.4.2.17).

2.5.3 FAA ATO Coordination.

Early coordination with FAA ATO is highly recommended during the design phase and
is required for scheduling Technical Operations shutdowns prior to construction.
Coordination is critical to restarts of NAVAID services and to the establishment of any
special procedures for the movement of aircraft. Formal agreements between the airport
operator and appropriate FAA offices are recommended. All relocation or adjustrnents
to NAVAIDs, or changes to final grades in critical areas, should be coordinated with
FAA ATO and may require an FAA flight inspection prior to restarting the facility.
Flight inspections must be coordinated and scheduled well in advance of the intended
facility restart. Flight inspections may require a reimbursable agreement between the
airport operator and FAA ATO. Reimbursable agreements should be coordinated a
minimum of 12 months prior to the start of construction. (See paragraph 2.13.5.3.2 for
required FAA notification regarding FAA-owned NAVAIDs.)

2-6



t2/1312017

2.6

2.6.1

2.6.2

2.7

AC t5015370-2G

Phasing.

Once it has been determined what types and levels of airport operations will be
maintained, the most efficient sequence of construction may not be feasible. In this
case, the sequence of construction may be phased to gain maximum efficiency while
allowing for the required operations. The development of the resulting construction
phases should be coordinated with local Air Traffic personnel and airport users. The
sequenced construction phases established in the CSPP must be incorporated into the
project design and must be reflected in the contract drawings and specifications.

Phase Elements.

For each phase the CSPP should detail:

r Areas closed to aircraft operations.

o Duration of closures.

o Taxi routes and/or areas of reduced TSA and TOFA to reflect reduced ADG use.

r ARFF access routes.

r Construction staging, disposal, and cleanout areas.

o Construction access and haul routes.

. Impacts to NAVAIDs.

. Lighting, marking, and signing changes.

o Available runway length and/or reduced RSA and ROFA to reflect reduced ADG
use.

o Declared distances (if applicable).

o Requiredlvzafimarking, lighting, and signing.

o Work zone lighting for nighttime construction (if applicable).

. Lead times for required notifications.

Construction Safety Drawines.

Drawings specifically indicating operational safety procedures and methods in affected
areas (i.e., construction safety drawings) should be developed for each construction
phase. Such drawings should be included in the CSPP as referenced attachments and
should also be included in the contract drawing package.

Areas and Operations Affected by Construction Activity.
Runways and taxiways should remain in use by aircraft to the maximum extent possible
without compromising safety. Pre-meetings with the FAA ATO will support operational
simulations. See Appendix E for an example of a table showing temporary operations
versus current operations. The tables in Appendix E can be useful for coordination
among all interested parties, including FAA Lines of Business.

2-7



tzl13/2017

2.7.1

AC 15015370-2G

Identification of Affected Areas.

Identifying areas and operations affected by the construction helps to determine
possible safety problems. The affected areas should be identified in the construction
safety drawings for each construction phase. (See paragraph2.6.2.) Of particular
concern are:

2.7.t.1 Closing, or Partial Closing, of Runways, Taxiways and Aprons, and
Displaced Thresholds.

When a runway is partially closed, a portion of the pavement is
unavailable for any aircraft. operation, meaning taxiing, landing, or takeoff
in either direction on that pavement is prohibited. A displaced threshold,
by contrast, is established to ensure obstacle clearance and adequate safety
area for landing aircraft. The pavement prior to the displaced threshold is
normally available for take-off in the direction of the displacement and for
landing and takeoff in the opposite direction. Misunderstanding this
difference, may result in issuance of an inaccurate NOTAM, and can lead
to a hazardous condition.

2.7.t.t.1 Partially Closed Runways.

The temporarily closed portion of a partially closed nrnway will generally
extend from the threshold to a taxiway that may be used for entering and
exiting the runway. If the closed portion extends to a point between
taxiways, pilots will have to back-taxi on the runway, which is an
undesirable operation. See Fieure 2-1 for a desirable configuration.

2.7.1.1.2 Displaced Thresholds.

Since the portion of the runway pavement between the permanent
threshold and a standard displaced threshold is available for takeoff and
for landing in the opposite direction, the temporary displaced threshold
need not be located at an entrance/exit taxiway. See Figwe 2-2.

Closing of aircraft rescue and fire frghting access routes.

Closing of access routes used by airport and airline support vehicles.

2.7.1.2

2.7.t.3

2.7.r.4

2.7.t.5

2.7.1.6

Intemrption of utilities, including water supplies for fire fighting.

Approach/departure surfaces affected by heights of objects.

Construction areas, storage areas, and access routes near runways,
taxiways, aprons, or helipads.

2-8



12/13120t7 AC ls0ls370-2c

Figure 2-1. Temporary Partially Closed Runway

CHANGE LENSES
AS NECESSARY

OBLITERATE AIMING
POINT MARKING

I
I

I USE DECLARED
DISTANCES TO
PROVIDE RSA
AND CLEAR

APPROACH AND
DEPARTURE

SURFACE

COVER DISTANCE
REMAINING SIGN

IN THIS OIRECTION

)INSTALL SIGN AT
BOTH ENDS OF THE
RUNWAY (OPTIONAL)

g

ru

INSTALL TEMPORARY
RUNWAY DESIGNATION
AND THRESHOLD BAR

M@l
TE TAXIWAY

CENTERLINE MARKINGS
TO CLOSED AREAS

2
INSTALL TEMPOMRY
RUNWAY
THRESHOLD/END
LIGHTING

INSTALL TEMPOMRY
REIL (OPTTONAL)

RUNWAY SAFEW
AREA EXTENDS

REQUIRED DISTANCE
PRIOR TO

THRESHOLD

OBLITERATE
TOUCHDOWN
ZONE MARKING

INSTALL TEMPORARY
CHEVRONS

NOTES:

PLACE LOW PROFILE BARRICADES AT
ALL ACCESS POINTS TO CLOSED
SECTION OF RUNWAY.

2. THIS FIGURE IS A SCHEMATIC
REPRESENTATION AND NOT INTENDED
FOR INSPECTION PURPOSES. REFER TO
THE APPLICABLE ACs FOR GUIDANCE.

3, THIS FIGURE DEPICTS A TYPICAL
TEMPORARY PARTIALLY CLOSED
RUNWAY- THE ACTUAL TEMPOMRY
MEASURES WILL VARY PER EACH
SPECIFIC SITUATION.

occo 
I

4. DISCONNECT/COVER LIGHTS IN CLOSED
AREAS.

DISCONNECT/COVER
TAXIWAY DIRECTION
SIGN

5. DURING CONSTRUCTION VASI AND PAPI
SYSTEMS SHOULD BE TAKEN OUT OF
SERVICE.

CONSTRUCTION AREA

DtscoNNEcT LTGHTS (TYPTCAL)

>
BLAST FENCE TO PROTECT

CONSTRUCTION ZONE (MAY
BE REQUIRED).IFBLAST

FENCE IS NOT USED, INSTALL
LOW PROFILE BARRICADES

OBLITERATE RUNWAY DESIGNATION
AND CENTERLINE MARKINGS

TEMPOMRY

PROFILE BARRICADES

DISCONNECT/COVER
TAXIWAY DIRECTION

SIGNS

TAXIWAYCLOSED
MARKING

WTH FLASHERS
SEE NOTE 1

OBLITERATE THRESHOLD
MARKINGS

J
NOT TO SCALE

2-9



r2l13l20r7 AC ts0ls370-2c

Figure 2-2. Temporary Displaced Threshold

.l

:l
/i:

OBLITERATEAIMING
POINT MARKING

t

INSTALL TEMPORARY
RUNWAY DESIGNATION,

ARROWHEADS AND
DISPLACED THRESHOLD BAR

INSTALL TEMPORARY
RUNWAYTHRESHOLD LIGHTING

(INBOARD LIGHT IS YELLOWGREEN,

USE DECLARED
DISTANCES

TO PROVIDE
RSA AND CLEAR

APPROACH/DEPARTURE
SURFACEALL OTHERS ARE BLANI(GREEN)

INSTALL TEMPORARY
ARROWS TO EXISTING

CENTERLINE MARKING,
SEE NOTE

t

TURN CENTERLINE LIGHTS
OFF IF DISPLACEMENT OF

THRESHOLD IS MORE THAN 7OO'

OBLITERATE
TOUCHDOWN ZONE
ANO CENTERLINE
MARKING

OBLITERATE RUNWAY
DESIGNATION MARKING

CHANGE EXISTING
LIGHTS TO YELLOWRED RUNWAY SAFEW

AREA EXTENDS
REOUIRED DISTANCE

PRIOR TO
THRESHOLDruHrv+l

OBLITERATE
THRESHOLD
MARKINGS

INSTALL RED/RED LIGHTS

NOTES:

THIS FIGURE IS A SCHEMATIC REPRESENTATION
AND NOT INTENDED FOR INSPECTION PURPOSES.
REFFR TO THE APPLICABLE ACs FOR GUIDANCE.

[ 1 
"onrr*uaroNAREA

I)\*l
BLAST FENCE OUTSIDE
TOFA TO PROTECT
CONSTRUCTION ZONE
(MAY BE REOUIREO)

2. THIS FIGURE DIPICTS A TYPICAL TEMPOMRY
DISPLACED THRESHOLD. THE ACTUAL TEMPORARY
MEASURES WILL VARY PER EACH SPECIFIC
SITUATION.

3. DURING CONSTRUCTION VASI AND PAPI SYSTEMS
SHOULD BE TAKEN OUT OF SERVICE.

t

NOT TO SCALE

Note: See paragraph 2.18.2.5

2-10



l2lt3/2017

2.7.2

2.8

2.9.1

2.9

AC 150/5370-2G

Mitigation of Effects.

Establishment of specific procedures is necessary to maintain the safety and efficiency
of airport operations. The CSPP must address:

2.7.2.1 Temporary changes to runway and/or taxi operations.

2.7.2.2 Detours for ARFF and other airport vehicles.

2.7.2.3 Maintenance of essential utilities.

2.7.2.4 Temporary changes to air traffic control procedures. Such changes must
be coordinated with the ATO.

Navigation Aid (NAVAID) Protection.

Before commencing construction activity, parking vehicles, or storing construction
equipment and materials near a NAVAID, coordinate with the appropriate FAA
ATO/Technical Operations office to evaluate the effect of construction activity and the
required distance and dfuection from the NAVAID. (See paragraph 2.13.5.3.)
Construction activities, materials/equipment storage, and vehicle parking near electronic
NAVAIDs require special consideration since they may interfere with signals essential
to airnavigation. If any NAVAID maybe affected, the CSPP and SPCD must show an
understanding of the "critical area" associated with each NAVAID and describe how it
will be protected. Where applicable, the operational critical areas of NAVAIDs should
be graphically delineated on the project drawings. Pay particular affention to stockpiling
material, as well as to movement and parking of equipment that may interfere with line
of sight from the ATCT or with electronic emissions. Interference from construction
equipment and activities may require NAVAID shutdown or adjustment of instrument
approach minimums for low visibility operations. This condition requires that a
NOTAM be filed (see paragraph2.I3.2). Construction activities and
materials/equipment storage near a NAVAID must not obstruct access to the equipment
and instruments for maintenance. Submiual of a7460-l form is required for
construction vehicles operating near FAA NAVAIDs. (See paragraph 2.13.5.3.)

Contractor Access.

The CSPP must detail the areas to which the contractor must have access, and explain
how contractor personnel will access those areas. Specifically address:

Location of Stockpiled Construction Materials.

Stockpiled materials and equipment storage are not permitted within the RSA andOFZ,
and if possible should not be permitted within the Object Free Area (OFA) of an
operational runway. Stockpiling material in the OFA requires submittal of a7460-l
form and justification provided to the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District
Office for approval. The airport operator must ensure that stockpiled materials and
equipment adjacent to these areas are prominently marked and lighted during hours of
restricted visibility or darkness. (See paragraph2.l8.2.) This includes determining and

2-tt



t2/1312017

2.9.2

AC 150/5370-2G

verifying that materials are stabilized and stored at an approved location so as not to be

ahazard to aircraft operations and to prevent athaction of wildlife and foreign object
damage from blowing or tracked material. See paragraphs 2.10 arld2.IL.

Vehicle and Pedestrian Operations.

The CSPP should include specific vehicle and pedestrian requirements. Vehicle and
pedestrian access routes for airport construction projects must be controlled to prevent
inadvertent or unauthorized entry of persons, vehicles, or animals onto the AOA. The
airport operator should coordinate requirements for vehicle operations with airport
tenants, contractors, and the FAA air traffic manager. ln regard to vehicle and
pedestrian operations, the CSPP should include the following, with associated training
requirements:

2.9.2.1 Construction Site Parking.
Designate in advance vehicle parking areas for contractor employees to
prevent any unauthorized entry of persons or vehicles onto the AOA.
These areas should provide reasonable contractor employee access to the
job site.

2.9.2.2 Construction Equipment Parking.
Contractor employees must park and service all construction vehicles in an
area designated by the airport operator outside the OFZ and never in the
safety area of an active runway or taxiway. Unless a complex setup
procedure makes movement of specialized equipment infeasible, inactive
equipment must not be parked on a closed taxiway or runway. If it is
necessary to leave specialized equipment on a closed taxiway or runway at
night, the equipment must be well lighted. Employees should also park
construction vehicles outside the OFA when not in use by construction
personnel (for example, ovemight, on weekends, or during other periods
when construction is not active). Parking areas must not obstruct the clear
line of sight by the ATCT to any taxiways or runways under air traffic
control nor obstruct any nrnway visual aids, signs, or navigation aids. The
FAA must also study those areas to determine effects on airport design
criteria, surfaces establishedby 14 CFRPart77, Safe, EfficientUse, and
Preservation of the Navigable Airspace (Part77), and on NAVAIDs and
Instrument Approach Procedures (IAP). See paragraphz.I3.l for further
information.

2.9.2.3 Access and Haul Roads.

Determine the construction contractor's access to the construction sites
and haul roads. Do not permit the construction contractor to use any
access or haul roads other than those approved. Access routes used by
contractor vehicles must be clearly marked to prevent inadvertent entry to
areas open to airport operations. Pay special attention to ensure that if
construction traffic is to share or cross any ARFF routes that ARFF right
of way is not impeded at any time, and that construction traffic on haul

2-12



tzl13t20t7 AC 150/s370-2G

roads does not interfere with NAVAIDs or approach surfaces of
operational runways. Address whether access gates will be blocked or
inoperative or if a rally point will be blocked or inaccessible.

Marking and lighting of vehicles in accordance with AC 150/5210-5,
Painting, Marking, and Lighting of Vehicles Used on an Airport.

Description of proper vehicle operations on various areas under normal,
lost communications, and emergency conditions.

Required escorts

Training Requirements for Vehicle Drivers to Ensure Compliance
with the Airport Operator's Vehicle Rules and Regulations.

Specifrc training should be provided to vehicle operators, including those
providing escorts. See AC 150/5210-20, Ground Vehicle Operations on
Airports, for information on training and records maintenance
requirements.

Situational Awareness.

Vehicle drivers must confirm by personal observation that no aircraft is
approaching their position (either in the air or on the ground) when given
clearance to cross a runway, taxiway, or any other area open to airport
operations. In addition, it is the responsibility of the escort vehicle driver
to verify the movemenVposition of all escorted vehicles at arry given time.
At non-towered airports, all aircraft movements and flight operations rely
on aircraft operators to self-report their positions and intentions. However,
there is no requirement for an aircraft to have radio communications.
Because aircraft do not always broadcast their positions or intentions,
visual checking, radio monitofrg, and situational awareness of the
surroundings is critical to safety.

2.9.2.9 Two-WayRadioCommunicationProcedures.

2.9.2.9.1 General.

The airport operator must ensure that tenant and construction contractor
personnel engaged in activities involving unescorted operation on aircraft
movement areas observe the proper procedures for communications,
including using appropriate radio frequencies at airports with and without
ATCT. When operating vehicles on or near open runways or taxiways,
construction personnel must understand the critical importance of
maintaining radio contact, as directed by the airport operator, with:

l. Airport operations

2. ATCT

2.9.2.4

2.9.2.s

2.9.2.6

2.9.2.7

2.9.2.8

2-13



t2lt3l20t7 AC 15015370-2G

3. Common Traffic Advisory Frequency (CTAF), which may include
LINICOM, MULTICOM.

4. Automatic Terminal lnformation Service (ATIS). This frequency is
useful for monitoring conditions on the airport. Local air traffic will
broadcast information regarding construction related nrnway closures
and "shortened" runways on the ATIS frequency.

Areas Requirine Two-Way Radio Communication with the ATCT.

Vehicular traffic crossing active movement areas must be controlled either
by two-way radio with the ATCT, escort, flagman, signal light, or other
means appropriate for the particular airport.

Frequencies to be Used.

The airport operator will specify the frequencies to be used by the
contractor, which may include the CTAF for monitoring of aircraft
operations. Frequencies may also be assigned by the airport operator for
other communications, including any radio frequency in compliance with
Federal Communications Commission requirements. At airports with an

ATCT, the airport operator will specify the frequency assigned by the
ATCT to be used between contractor vehicles and the ATCT.

Proper radio usage, including read back requirements

Proper phraseology, including the International Phonetic Alphabet.

Lisht Gun Sisnals.

Even though radio communication is maintained, escort vehicle drivers
must also familiaize themselves with ATCT light gun signals in the event
of radio failure. See the FAA safety placard "Ground Vehicle Guide to
Airport Signs and Markings." This safety placard may be downloaded
through the Runway Safety Program Web site at
htto://www.faa. eov/airports/runwav-safety/publications/ (see "Signs &
Markings Vehicle Dashboard Sticker") or obtained from the FAA Airports
Regional Office.

Maintenance of the secured area of the airport, including:

Fencing and Gates.

Airport operators and contractors must take care to maintain security
during construction when access points are created in the security fencing
to permit the passage of construction vehicles or personnel. Temporary
gates should be equipped so they can be securely closed and locked to
prevent access by animals and unauthorized people. Procedures should be
in place to ensure that only authorized persons and vehicles have access to
the AOA and to prohibit "piggybacking" behind another person or vehicle
The Department of Transportation (DOT) document DOT/fea/AR-

2.9.2.9.2

2.9.2.9.3

2.9.2.9.4

2.9.2.9.5

2.9.2.9.6

2.9.2.t0

2.9.2.t0.1

2-14



t2/13/20t7

2.t0

2.10.1 Trash.

Food scraps must be collected from construction personnel activity.

AC r5015370-2G

00/52, Recommended Security Guidelines for Airport Planning and
Construction, provides more specific information on fencing. A copy of
this document can be obtained from the Airport Consultants Council,
Airports Council International, or American Association of Airport
Executives.

2.9.2.r0.2 Badeine Requirements.

Airports subject to 49 CFR Part 1542, Airport Security, must meet
standards for access control, movement of ground vehicles, and
identifi cation of construction contractor and tenant personnel.

Wildlife Management.

The CSPP and SPCD must be in accordance with the airport operator's wildlife hazard
management plan, if applicable. See AC 1s0/s200-33 Haz ardou s Wil dl ife A ttr ac t ant s
On or Near Airports, and CertAlert 98-05, Grasses Attractive to Hazardous Wildlife.
Construction contractors must carefully control and continuously remove waste or loose
materials that might attact wildlife. Contractor personnel must be aware of and avoid
construction activities that can create wildlife hazards on airports, such as:

2.t0.2

2.t0.3

2.10.4 Poorlv Maintained Fencing and Gates.

See paragraph 2.9.2.I0.1 .

2.10.5

Standine Water.

Tall Grass and Seeds.

Requirements for turf establishment can be at odds with requirements for wildlife
control. Grass seed is athactive to birds. Lower quality seed mixtures can contain seeds

of plants (such as clover) that attract larger wildlife. Seeding should comply with the
guidance in AC 150/5370-10, Standardsfor Specifying Construction of Airports, Item
T-901, Seeding. Contact the local office of the United Sates Department of Agriculture
Soil Conservation Service or the State University Agricultural Extension Service
(County Agent or equivalent) for assistance and recommendations. These agencies can
also provide liming and fertilizer recommendations.

Disruption of Existing Wildlife Habitat.

While this will frequently be unavoidable due to the nature of the project, the CSPP
should specify under what circumstances (location, wildlife type) contuactor personnel
should immediately notifr the airport operator of wildlife sightings.

2-t5



tzlt3l20t7 AC rs015370-2c

2.tl X'oreign Object Debris (FOD) Management.

Waste and loose materials, commonly referred to as FOD, are capable of causing
damage to aircraft landing gears, propellers, and jet engines. Construction contractors
must not leave or place FOD on or near active aircraft movement areas. Materials
capable of creating FOD must be continuously removed during the construction project.
Fencing (other than security fencing) or covers may be necessary to contain material
that can be carried by wind into areas where aircraft operate. See AC 150/5210-24,
Foreign Object Debris (FOD) Management.

2.t2 Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Managernent.

Contractors operating construction vehicles and equipment on the airport must be
prepared to expeditiously contain and clean-up spills resulting from fuel or hydraulic
fluid leaks. Transport and handling of other hazardous materials on an airport also
requires special procedures. See AC 150/5320-15, Management of Airport Industrial
Waste.

2.t3 Notification of Construction Activities.
The CSPP and SPCD must detail procedures for the immediate notification of airport
users and the FAA of any conditions adversely affecting the operational safety of the
airport. It must address the notification actions described below, as applicable.

2.I3.1 List of Responsible Representatives/points of contact for all involved parties, and
procedures for contacting each of them, including after hours.

2.13.2 NOTAMS.

Only the airport operator may initiate or cancel NOTAMs on airport conditions, and is
the only entity that can close or open a runway. The airport operator must coordinate the
issuance, maintenance, and cancellation of NOTAMs about airport conditions resulting
from construction activities with tenants and the local air traffic facility (control tower,
approach control, or air traffic control center), and must either enter the NOTAM into
NOTAM Manager, or provide information on closed or hazardous conditions on airport
movement areas to the FAA Flight Service Station (FSS) so it can issue a NOTAM. The
airport operator must file and maintain a list of authorized representatives with the FSS.

Refer to AC 150/5200-28, Notices to Airmen (NOTAMI for Airport Operators, for a
sample NOTAM form. Only the FAA may issue or cancel NOTAMs on shutdown or
irregular operation of FAA owned facilities. Any person having reason to believe that a
NOTAM is missing, incomplete, or inaccurate must notiS the airport operator. See

paragraph 2.7 .l.l about issuing NOTAMs for partially closed runways versus runways
with displaced thresholds.

2-r6



1211312017

2.t3.3

2.13.4

AC 15015370-2G

Emergency notification procedures for medical, fire fighting, and police response.

Coordination with ARFF.

The CSPP must detail procedures for coordinating through the airport sponsor with
ARFF personnel, mutual aid providers, and other emergency services if construction
requires:

1. The deactivation and subsequent reactivation of water lines or fire hydrants, or

2. The rerouting, blocking and restoration of emergency access routes, or

3. The use of hazardous materials on the airfield.

2.13.5 Notification to the FAA.

2.13.5.r Part77.
Any person proposing construction or alteration of objects that affect
navigable airspace, as defined in Part 77, must notifu the FAA. This
includes construction equipment and proposed parking areas for this
equipment (i.e., cranes, graders, other equipment) on airports. FAA Form
7460-I, Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, canbe used for
this purpose and submitted to the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or
District Office. See Appendix A to download the form. Further guidance
is available on the FAA web site at oeaaa.faa.gov.

2.13.5.2 Part 157.

With some exceptions, Title 14 CFR Part I57, Notice of Construction,
Alteration, Activation, and Deactivation of Airports,rcquires that the
airport operator notify the FAA in writing whenever a non-Federally
funded project involves the construction of a new airport; the construction,
realigning, altering, activating, or abandoning of a runway, landing strip,
or associated taxiway; or the deactivation or abandoning of an entire
airport. Notification involves submitting FAA Form 7480-I, Notice of
Landing Area Proposal, to the nearest FAA Airports Regional or District
Office. See Appendix A to download the form.

2.13.s.3 NAVAIDS.
For emergency (short-notice) notification about impacts to both airport
owned and FAA owned NAVAIDs, contact: 866-432-2622.

2.13.5.3.r Aimort Owned/FAA Maintained.

If construction operations require a shutdown of 24 hours or greater in
duration, or more than 4 hours daily on consecutive days, of a NAVAID
owned by the airport but maintained by the FAA, provide a 45-day
minimum notice to FAA ATO/Technical Operations priorto facility
shutdown, using Strategic Event Coordination (SEC) Form 6000.26
contained within FAA Order 6000.15, General Maintenance Handbook

for National Airspace System (NAS) Facilities.

2-17



r2lt3l20t7 AC rs0ls370-2c

2.t3.s.3.2 FAA Owned.

1. The airport operator must notiff the appropriate FAA ATO Service
Area Planning and Requirements (P&R) Group a minimum of 45 days
prior to implementing an event that causes impacts to NAVAIDs,
using SEC Form 6000.26.

2. Coordinate work for an FAA owned NAVAID shutdown with the
local FAA ATO/Technical Operations office, including any necessary
reimbursable agreements and flight checks. Detail procedures that
address unanticipated utility outages and cable cuts that could impact
FAA NAVAIDs. Refer to active Service Level Agreement with ATO
for specifics.

Inspection Requirements.

Daily Inspections.

Inspections should be conducted at least daily, but more frequently if necessary to
ensure conformance with the CSPP. A sample checklist is provided in Appendix D.
Construction Project Daily Safety Inspection Checklist. See also AC 150/5200-18,
Airport Safety Self-Inspection. Atrport operators holding a Part 139 certificate are

required to conduct self-inspections during unusual conditions, such as construction
activities, that may affect safe air carrier operations.

Interim Inspections.

Inspections should be conducted ofall areas to be (re)opened to aircraft traffic to ensure

the proper operation of lights and signs, for correct markings, and absence of FOD. The
contractor should conduct an inspection of the work area with airport operations
personnel. The contractor should ensure that all construction materials have been
secured, all pavement surfaces have been swept clean, all transition ramps have been
properly constructed, and that surfaces have been appropriately marked for aircraft to
operate safely. Only if all items on the list meet with the airport operator's approval
should the air traffic control tower be notified to open the area to aircraft operations.
The contractor should be required to retain a suitable workforce and the necessary

equipment at the work area for any last minute cleanup that may be requested by the
airport operator prior to opening the area.

Final Inspections.

New runways and extended runway closures may require safety inspections at
certificated airports prior to allowing air carrier service. Coordinate with the FAA
Airport Certification Safety Inspector (ACSD to determine if a final inspection will be
necessary.

2.r4

2.r4.r

2.t4.2

2.14.3

2-18



t2lt3l20t7 AC ts0ls370-2c

2.t5 Underground Utilities.
The CSPP and/or SPCD must include procedures for locating and protecting existing
underground utilities, cables, wires, pipelines, and other underground facilities in
excavation areas. This may involve coordinating with public utilities and FAA
ATO/Technical Operations. Note that "One Call" or "Miss Utility" services do not
include FAA ATO/Technical Operations.

2.t6 Penalties.

The CSPP should detail penalty provisions for noncompliance with airport rules and
regulations and the safety plans (for example, if a vehicle is involved in a runway
incursion). Such penalties tlpically include rescission of driving privileges or access to
the AOA.

2.t7 Special Conditions.

The CSPP must detail any special conditions that affect the operation of the airport and
will require the activation of any special procedures (for example, low-visibility
operations, snow removal, atcraft in distress, aircraft accident, security breach, Vehicle
/ Pedestrian Deviation (VPD) and other activities requiring construction
suspension/resumption).

2.18 Runway and Taxiway Visual Aids.
This includes marking, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs. The CSPP must ensure
that areas where aircraft will be operating are clearly and visibly separated from
consfuction areas, including closed runways. Throughout the duration of the
conskuction project, veri$ that these areas remain clearly marked and visible at all
times and that marking, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs that are to continue to
perform their functions during construction remain in place and operational. Visual
NAVAIDs that are not serving their intended function during construction must be
temporarily disabled, covered, or modified as necessary. The CSPP must address the
following, as appropriate:

2.18.r General.

Airport markings, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs must be clearly visible to pilots,
not misleading, confusing, or deceptive. All must be secured in place to prevent
movement by prop wash, jet blast, wing vortices, and other wind currents and
constructed of materials that will minimize damage to an aircraft in the event of
inadvertent contact. Items used to secure such markings must be of a color similar to the
marking.

2.I8.2 Markings.

During the course of construction projects, temporary pavement markings are often
required to allow for aircraft operations during or between work periods. During the
design phase of the project, the designer should coordinate with the project manager,

2-19



t2/t312017 AC 15015370-2G

airport operations, airport users, the FAA Airports project manager, and Airport
Certification Safety Inspector for Part 139 airports to determine minimum temporary
markings. The FAA Airports project manager will, wherever a runway is closed,

coordinate with the appropriate FAA Flight Standards Office and disseminate findings
to all parties. Where possible, the temporary markings on finish grade pavements should
be placed to mirror the dimensions of the final markings. Markings must be in
compliance with the standards of AC 150/5340-1 , Standards for Airport Markings,
except as noted herein. Runways and runway exit taxiways closed to aircraft operations

are marked with a yellow X. The preferred visual aid to depict temporary runway
closure is the lighted X signal placed on or near the runway designation numbers. (See

paragraph 2.18.2.1 .2.)

2.18.2.1 Closed Runways and Taxiways.

2.t8.2.r.t Permanently Closed Runways.

For runways, obliterate the threshold marking, runway designation
marking, and touchdown zone markings, and place an X at each end and at

1,000-foot (300 m) intervals. For a multiple runway environment, if the

lighted X on a designated number will be located in the RSA of an

adjacent active nrnway, locate the lighted X farther down the closed
runway to clear the RSA of the active runway. In addition, the closed

runway numbers located in the RSA of an active runway must be marked

with a flat yellow X.

2.18.2.t.2 Temporarilv Closed Runways.

For runways that have been temporarily closed, place an X at each end of
the runway directly on or as near as practicable to the runway designation

numbers. For a multiple runway environment, if the lighted X on a
designated number will be located in the RSA of an adjacent active

runway, locate the lighted X farther down the closed runway to clear the
RSA of the active nrnway. In addition, the closed runway numbers located

in the RSA of an active runway must be marked with a flat yellow X. See

Figure 2-3. See also paragraph 2.18.3.3.

2.18.2.1.3 Partiallv Closed Runways and Disolaced Thresholds.

When threshold markings are needed to identify the temporary beginning
of the runway that is available for landing, the markings must comply with
AC 150i5340-1. An X is not used on a partially closed runway or a
runway with a displaced threshold. See paragraph 2.7.1.1 for the

difference between partially closed runways and runways with displaced
thresholds. Because of the temporary nature of threshold displacement due

to construction, it is not necessary to re-adjust the existing nrnway
centerline markings to meet standard spacing for a runway with a visual
approach. Some of the requirements below may be waived in the cases of
low-activity airports and/or short duration changes that are measured in
days rather than weeks. Consider whether the presence of an airport traffic

2-20



l2lt3l20t7 AC 15015370-2G

confrol tower allows for the development of special procedures. Contact
the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District Office for assistance.

Figure 2-3. Markings for a Temporarily Closed Runway

L Partially Closed Runways. Pavement markings for temporary closed
portions of the nrnway consist of a runway threshold bar, runway
designation, and yellow chevrons to identi$ pavement areas that are
unsuitable for takeoff or landing (see AC 150/5340-1). Obliterate or
cover markings prior to the moved threshold. Existing touchdown zone
markings beyond the moved threshold may remain in place. Obliterate
aiming point markings. Issue appropriate NOTAMs regarding any
nonstandard markings. See Fieure 2-4.

2. Displaced Thresholds. Pavement markings for a displaced threshold
consist of a runway threshold bar, runway designation, and white
a:rowheads with and without arrow shafts. These markings are
required to identify the portion of the runwaybefore the displaced
threshold to provide centerline guidance for pilots during approaches,
takeoffs, and landing rollouts from the opposite direction. See AC
I50/5340-L Obliterate markings prior to the displaced threshold.
Existing touchdown zone markings beyond the displaced threshold
may remain in place. Obliterate aiming point markings. Issue
appropriate NOTAMs regarding any nonstandard markings. See

Fiwre2-2.

2-21



tzlt3l20l7 AC 15015370-2G

2.I8.2.1.4 Taxiways.

1. Permanently Closed Taxiways. AC 150/5300-13 Airport Design,
notes that it is preferable to remove the pavement, but for pavement

that is to remain, place an X at the entrance to both ends of the closed
section. Obliterate taxiway centerline markings, including runway
leadoff lines, leading to the closed taxiway. See Figrre 2-4.

Figure 2-4. Temporary Taxiway Closure

.l .t1



t2/1312017 AC t5015370-2G

2. Temporarily Closed Taxiways. Place barricades outside the safety
area of intersecting taxiways. For runway/taxiway intersections, place

an X at the entrance to the closed taxiway from the runway. If the
taxiway will be closed for an extended period, obliterate taxiway
centerline markings, including runway leadoff lines and taxiway to
taxiway turns, leading to the closed section. Always obliterate runway
lead-off lines for high speed exits, regardless of the duration of the
closure. If the centerline markings will be reused upon reopening the
taxiway, it is preferable to paint over the marking. This will result in
less damage to the pavement when the upper layer of paint is
ultimately removed. See Figure 2-4.

2.18.2.1.5 Temporarily Closed Aimort.
When the airport is closed temporarily, mark all the nrnways as closed.

2.t8.2.2 If unable to paint temporary markings on the pavement, construct them
from any of the following materials: fabric, colored plastic, painted sheets
of plywood, or similar materials. They must be properly configured and

appropriately secured to prevent movement by prop wash, jet blast, or
other wind currents. Items used to secure such markings must be of a color
similar to the marking.

2.t8.2.3 It may be necessary to remove or cover runway markings, including but
not limited to, runway designation markings, threshold markings,
centerline markings, edge stripes, touchdown zone markings and aiming
point markings, depending on the length of construction and tlpe of
activity at the airport. When removing runway markings, apply the same
treaknent to areas between stripes or numbers, as the cleaned area will
appear to pilots as a marking in the shape of the treated area.

2.t8.2.4 If it is not possible to install threshold bars, chevrons, and arrows on the
pavement, "temporary outboard white threshold bars and yellow
arrowheads", see Fizure 2-5, may be used. Locate them outside of the
nrnway pavement surface on both sides of the runway. The dimensions
must be as shown in Figure 2-5. If the markings are not discernible on
grass or snow, apply a black background with appropriate material over
the ground to ensure they are clearly visible.

2.t8.2.s The application rate of paint to mark a short-term temporary runway and

taxiway markings may deviate from the standard (see Item P-620,
"Runway and Taxiway Painting," in AC 150/5370-10), but the dimensions
must meet the existing standards. When applying temporary markings at
night, it is recommended that the fast curing, Type II paint be used to help
offset the higher humidity and cooler temperatures often experienced at
night. Diluting the paint will substantially increase cure time and is not
recommended. Glass beads are not recommended for temporary markings.
Striated markings may also be used for certain temporary markings. AC

2-23



t2lt3t20t7 AC ts0ls370-2c

150/5340-1 , Standards for Airport Markings, has additional guidance on
temporary markings.

Figure 2-5. Temporary Outboard White Threshold Bars and Yellow Arrowheads

i A

INSTALL TEMPORARY WHITE
THRESHOLD BARS AND
YELLOWARROWHEADS ON
BOTH SIDES
SEE DETAIL BELOW

CLOSED PORTION OF
RUNWAY

W

YELLOW ARROWHEAD DETAIL

I\

2-24



tzl13l20t7

2.t8.3

AC 150/s370-2G

Lighting and Visual NAVAIDs.
This paragraph refers to standard runway and taxiway lighting systems. See below for
hazard lighting. Lighting installation must be in conformance with AC 150/5340-30,
Design and Installation Details for Airport Visual Aids, and fixture design in
conformance with AC 150/5345-50, Spbcificationfor Portable Runway and Taxiway
Lights. When disconnecting runway and taxiway lighting fixtures, disconnect the
associated isolation transformers. See AC 150/5340-26, Maintenance of Airport Visual
Aid Facilities, for disconnect procedures and safety precautions. Alternately, cover the
light fixture in such away as to prevent light leakage. Avoid removing the lamp from
energized fixtures because an excessive number of isolation transformers with open
secondaries may damage the regulators and/or increase the current above its normal
value. Secure, identify, and place any above ground temporary wiring in conduit to
prevent electrocution and fire ignition sources. Maintain mandatory hold signs to
operate normally in any situation where pilots or vehicle drivers could mistakenly be in
that location. At towered airports certificated under Part 139, holding position signs are
required to be illuminated on open taxiways crossing to closed or inactive runways. If
the holding position sign is installed on the nrnway circuit for the closed runway, install
a jumper to the taxiway circuit to provide power to the holding position sign for
nighttime operations. Where it is not possible to maintain power to signs that would
normally be operational, install barricades to exclude atcraft. Figure 2- 1 , Figrure 2-2,
Fizure 2-3, and Figure 2-4 illustrate temporary changes to lighting and visual
NAVAIDS.

2.18.3.t Permanently Closed Runways and Taxiways.

For runways and taxiways that have been permanently closed, disconnect
the lighting circuits.

2.18.3.2 Temporarily Closed Runways and New Runways Not Yet Open to Air
Traffic.

If available, use a lighted X, both at night and during the day, placed at
each end of the runway on or near the runway designation numbers facing
the approach. (Note that the lighted X must be illuminated at all times that
it is on a runway.) The use of a lighted X is required if night work requires
nrnway lighting to be on. See AC 150/5345-55, Specificationfor L-893,
Lighted Visual Aid to Indicate Temporary Runway Closure. For runways
that have been temporarily closed, but for an extended period, and for
those with pilot controlled lighting, discormect the lighting circuits or
secure switches to prevent inadvertent activation. For runways that will be
opened periodically, coordinate procedures with the FAA air traffic
manager or, at airports without an ATCT, the airport operator. Activate
stop bars if available. Fieure 2-6 shows a lighted X by day. Fizure 2-7
shows a lighted X at night.

2-25



t2/13/2017 AC 15015370-2G

Figure 2-6.Lighted X in Daytime

Figure 2-T.Lighted X at Night

Partially Closed Runways and Displaced Thresholds.

When a nrnway is partially closed, a portion of the pavement is
unavailable for any aircraft operation, meaning taxiing and landing or
taking off in either direction. A displaced threshold, by contrast, is put in
place to ensure obstacle clearance by landing aircraft. The pavement prior
to the displaced threshold is available for takeoff in the direction of the
displacement, and for landing and takeoff in the opposite direction.
Misunderstanding this difference and issuance of a subsequently
inaccurate NOTAM can result inahazardous situation. For both partially

2.t8.3.3

2-26



tzl13l20t7 AC rs0ls370-2c

closed nrnways and displaced thresholds, approach lighting systems at the
affected end must be placed out of service.

Partially Closed Runways.

Disconnect edge and threshold lights on that part of the runway at and
behind the threshold (that is, the portion of the mnway that is closed).
Alternately, cover the light fixtures in such a way as to prevent light
leakage. See Fizure 2-1.

Temporarv Displaced Thresholds.

Edge lighting in the area of the displacement emits red light in the
direction of approach and yellow light (white for visual runways) in the
opposite direction. If the displacement is 700 feet or less, blank out
centerline lights in the direction of approach or place the centerline lights
out of service. If the displacement is over 700 feet, place the centerline
lights out of service. See AC 150/5340-30 for details on lighting displaced
thresholds. See Figure 2-2.

Temporary nrnway thresholds and runway ends must be lighted if the
nrnway is lighted and it is the intended threshold for night landings or
instrument meteorological conditions.

A temporary threshold on an unlighted runway may be marked by
retroreflective, elevated markers in addition to markings noted in
paragraph 2.18.2.1.3. Markers seen by aircraft on approach are green.
Markers at the rollout end of the runway are red. At certificated airports,
temporary elevated threshold markers must be mounted with a frangible
fitting (see 14 CFR Part 139.309). At non-certifrcated airports, the
temporary elevated threshold markings may either be mounted with a
frangible fitting or be flexible. See AC 150/5345-39 , Specification for L-
853, Runway and Taxiway Retroreflective Markers.

Temporary threshold lights and runway end lights and related visual
NAVAIDs are installed outboard of the edges of the fuIl-strength
pavement only when they cannot be installed on the pavement. They are
installed with bases at grade level or as low as possible, but not more than
3 inch (7.6 cm) above ground. (The standard above ground height for
airport lighting fixtures is 14 inches (35 cm)). When any portion of a base
is above grade, place properly compacted fill around the base to minimize
the rate of gradient change so aircraft can, in an emergency, cross at
normal landing or takeoff speeds without incurring significant damage.
See AC 150/5370-10.

Maintain threshold and edge lighting color and spacing standards as

described in AC 150/5340-30. Battery powered, solar, or portable lights
that meet the criteria in AC 150/5345-50 may be used. These systems are
intended primarily for visual flight rules (VFR) aircraft operations but may

2.18.3.3.1

2.18.3.3.2

2.r8.3.3.3

2.t8.3.3.4

2.18.3.3.5

2.r8.3.3.6

2-27



tzl13t20r7

2.18.4

AC t5015370-2G

be used for instrument flight rules (IFR) aircraft operations, upon
individual approval from the Flight Standards Division of the applicable
FAA Regional Office.

2,18.3.3.7 When runway thresholds are temporarily displaced, reconfigure yellow
lenses (caution zone), as necessary, and place the centerline lights out of
service.

2.18.3.3.8 Relocate the Visual Glide Slope Indicator (VGSI), such as Visual Approach
Slope Indicator (VASI) and Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI);
other airport lights, such as Runway End Identifier Lights (REIL); and

approach lights to identi$r the temporary threshold. Another option is to
disable the VGSI or any equipment that would give misleading indications
to pilots as to the new threshold location. Installation of temporary visual
aids may be necessary to provide adequate guidance to pilots on approach

to the affected runway. If the FAA owns and operates the VGSI,
coordinate its installation or disabling with the local ATO/Technical
Operations Office. Relocation of such visual aids will depend on the

duration of the project and the benefits gained from the relocation, as this
can result in great expense. See FAA JO 6850.2, Visual Guidance Lighting
Systems, for installation criteria for FAA owned and operated NAVAIDs.

Issue a NOTAM to inform pilots of temporary lighting conditions.2.t8.3.3.9

2.18.3.4 Temporarily Closed Taxiways.

If possible, deactivate the taxiway lighting circuits. When deactivation is

not possible (for example other taxiways on the same circuit are to remain
open), cover the light fixture in a way as to prevent light leakage.

Siens.

To the extent possible, signs must be in conformance with AC 150/5345-44,
Specification for Runway and Taxiway Signs, and AC 1 50i 5340- 1 8 , Standard for
Airport Sign Systerns.

2.r8.4.r Existing Signs.

Runway exit signs are to be covered for closed runway exits. Outbound
destination signs are to be covered for closed runways. Any time a sign
does not serve its normal function or would provide conflicting
information, it must be covered or removed to prevent misdirecting pilots.
Note that information signs identifyrng a crossing taxiway continue to
perform their normal function even if the crossing taxiway is closed. For
long term construction projects, consider relocating signs, especially
runway distance remaining signs.

2-28



r2lt3/2017

2.19

AC rs0ls370-2c

2.r8.4.2 Temporary Signs.

Orange construction signs comprise a message in black on an orange
background. Orange construction signs may help pilots be aware of
changed conditions. The airport operator may choose to introduce these
signs as part of a movement area construction project to increase
situational awareness when needed. Locate signs outside the taxiway
safety limits and ahead of construction areas so pilots can take timely
action. Use temporary signs judiciously, striking a balance between the
need for information and the increase in pilot workload. When there is a
concern of pilot "information overload," the applicability of mandatory
hold signs must take precedence over orange construction signs
recommended during construction. Temporary signs must meet the
standards for such signs in Engineering Brief 93, Guidancefor the
Assembly and Installation of Temporary Orange Construction Signs.
Many criteria in AC 150/5345-44, Specificationfor Runway and Taxiway
Signs, are referenced in the Engineering Brief. Permissible sign legends
are:

1. CONSTRUCTION AHEAD,

2. CONSTRUCTION ON RAMP, and

3. RWY XX TAKEOFF RUN AVAILABLE XXX FT.

Phasing, supported by drawings and sign schedule, for the installation of
orange construction signs must be included in the CSPP or SPCD.

2.18.4.2.1 Takeoff Run Available (TORA) siens.

Recommended: Where a runway has been shortened for takeoff, install
orange TORA signs well before the hold lines, such as on a parallel
taxiway prior to a tum to a runway hold position. See EB 93 for sign size
and location.

2.I8.4.2.2 Sign legends are shown in Fizure F-l.

Note: See Figure E-1, Figure E-2, Figure E-3, Figure F-2, and Figure F-3
for examples of orange construction sign locations.

Marking and Signs for Access Routes.

The CSPP should indicate that pavement markings and signs for construction personnel
will conform to AC 150/5340-18 and, to the extent practicable, with the Federal
Highway Administration Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) and/or
State highway specifications. Signs adjacent to areas used by aircraft must comply with
the frangibility requirements of AC 150/5220-23 , Frangible Connections, which may
require modification to size and height guidance in the MUTCD.

2-29



t2l13l20t7

2.20

2.20.1

2.20.2 Equipment.

2.20.2.r

2.20.2.2

AC rs015370-2c

Hazard Marking, Lighting and Signing.

Hazardmarking, lighting, and signing prevent pilots from entering areas closed to
aircraft, and prevent construction personnel from entering areas open to aircraft. The
CSPP must speci$ prominent, comprehensible warning indicators for any area affected
by construction that is normally accessible to aircraft, personnel, or vehicles. Hazard
marking and lighting must also be specified to identiff open manholes, small areas

under repair, stockpiled material, waste areas, and areas subject to jet blast. Also
consider less obvious construction-related hazards and include markings to identify
FAA, airport, and National Weather Service facilities cables and power lines;
instrument landing system (ILS) critical areas; airport surfaces, such as RSA, OFA, and

OFZ; and other sensitive areas to make it easier for contractor personnel to avoid these

areas.

Barricades.

Low profile barricades, including traffic cones, (weighted or sturdily
attached to the surface) are acceptable methods used to identify and define
the limits of construction and hazardous areas on airports. Careful
consideration must be given to selecting equipment that poses the least
danger to aircraft but is sturdy enough to remain in place when subjected
to typical winds, prop wash and jet blast. The spacing of barricades must
be such that a breach is physically prevented barring a deliberate act. For
example, if barricades are intended to exclude aircraft, gaps between
barricades must be smaller than the wingspan of the smallest aircraft to be
excluded; if ba:ricades are intended to exclude vehicles, gaps between
barricades must be smaller than the width of the excluded vehicles,
generally 4 feet (I.2 meters). Provision must be made for ARFF access if
necessary. If barricades are intended to exclude pedestrians, they must be

continuously linked. Continuous linking may be accomplished through the
use of ropes, securely attached to prevent FOD.

Lights.
Lights must be red, either steady burning or flashing, and must meet the
luminance requirements of the State Highway Department. Batteries
powering lights will last longer if lights flash. Lights must be mounted on
barricades and spaced at no more than l0 feet (3 meters). Lights must be

operated between sunset and sunrise and during periods of low visibility
whenever the airport is open for operations. They may be operated by
photocell, but this may require that the contractor turn them on manually
during periods of low visibility during daytime hours.

Supplement Barricades with Signs (for example) As Necessary.

Examples are "No Entry" and'No Vehicles." Be aware of the increased
effects of wind and jet blast on barricades with attached signs.

2.20.2.3

2-30



t2lt3t20t7 AC 15015370-2G

Air Operations Area - General.

Barricades are not permitted in any active safety area or on the runway
side of a runway hold line. Within a runway or taxiway object free area,
and on aprons, use orange traffic cones, flashing or steady burning red
lights as noted above, highly reflective collapsible barricades marked with
diagonal, alternating orange and white stripes; and/or signs to separate all
construction/maintenance areas from the movement area. Barricades may
be supplemented with alternating orange and white flags at least 20 by 20
inch (50 by 50 cm) square and securely fastened to eliminate FOD. All
barricades adjacent to any open nrnway or taxiway / taxilane safety area,
or apron must be as low as possible to the ground, and no more than 18

inches high, exclusive of supplementary lights and flags. Barricades must
be of low mass; easily collapsible upon contact with an aircraft or any of
its components; and weighted or sturdily attached to the surface to prevent
displacement from prop wash, jet blast, wing vortex, and other surface
wind currents. If affixed to the surface, they must be frangible at grade
level or as low as possible, but not to exceed 3 inch (7.6 cm) above the
ground. Fizure 2-8 and Fizure 2-9 show sample barricades with proper
coloring and flags.

Figure 2-8. Interlocking Barricades

2.20.2.4

2-31



l2lt3l20t7

2.21

AC 1501s370-2G

Figure 2-9.Low Profile Barricades

2.20.2.5 Air Operations Area - Runway/Taxiway Intersections.

Use highly reflective barricades with lights to close taxiways leading to
closed runways. Evaluate all operating factors when determining how to
mark temporary closures that can last from 10 to 15 minutes to a much
longer period of time. However, even for closures of relatively short
duration, close all taxiway/runway intersections with barricades. The use

oftraffic cones is appropriate for short duration closures.

2.20.2.6 Air Operations Area - Other.
Beyond runway and taxiway object free areas and aprons, barricades
intended for construction vehicles and personnel may be many different
shapes and made from various materials, including railroad ties,
sawhorses, jersey barriers, or barrels.

2.20.2.7 Maintenance.

The construction specifications must include a provision requiring the

contractor to have a person on call 24 hours a day for emergency
maintenance of airport hazard lighting and barricades. The contractor must
file the contact person's information with the airport operator. Lighting
should be checked for proper operation at least once per day, preferably at

dusk.

Work Zone Lighting for Nighttime Construction.

Lighting equipment must adequately illuminate the work area if the construction is to be
performed during nighttime hours. Refer to AC 150/5370-10 for minimum illumination
levels for nighttime paving projects. Additionally, it is recommended that all support
equipment, except haul trucks, be equipped with artificial illumination to safely

2-32



t2/13/2017

2.22

2.22.1

AC 15015370-2G

illuminate the area immediately surrounding their work areas. The lights should be
positioned to provide the most natural color illumination and contrast with a minimum
of shadows. The spacing must be determined by trial. Light towers should be positioned
and adjusted to aim away from ATCT cabs and active runways to prevent blinding
effects. Shielding may be necessary. Light towers should be removed from the
conskuction site when the area is reopened to aircraft operations. Construction lighting
units should be identified and generally located on the construction phasing plans in
relationship to the ATCT and active nrnways and taxiways.

Protection of Runway and Taxiway Safety Areas.

Runway and taxiway safety areas, OFZs, OFAs, and approach surfaces are described in
AC 150/5300-13. Protection of these areas includes limitations on the location and
height of equipment and stockpiled material. An FAA airspace study may be required.
Coordinate with the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District Office if there is any
doubt as to requirements or dimensions (see paragraph 2.13 5) as soon as the location
and height of materials or equipment are known. The CSPP should include drawings
showing all safety areas, object free areas, obstacle free zones and approach departure
surfaces affected by construction.

Runway Safety Area (RSAL

A runway safety area is the defined surface surrounding the runway prepared or suitable
for reducing the risk of damage to airplanes in the event of an undershoot, overshoot, or
excursion from the runway (see AC 150/5300-13). Construction activities within the
existing RSA are subject to the following conditions:

2.22.t.1 No construction may occur within the existing RSA while the runway is
open for atcraft operations. The RSA dimensions may be temporarily
adjusted if the runway is restricted to aircraft operations requiring an RSA
that is equal to the RSA width and length beyond the runway ends
available during construction. (See AC 150/5300-13). The temporary use
of declared distances and/or partial runway closures may provide the
necessary RSA under certain circumstances. Coordinate with the
appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District Office to have declared
distances information published, and appropriate NOTAMs issued. See

AC 150/5300-13 for guidance on the use ofdeclared distances.

2.22.t.2 The airport operator must coordinate the adjustment of RSA dimensions as

permitted above with the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District
Office and the local FAA air traffic manager and issue a NOTAM.

2.22.t.3 The CSPP and SPCD must provide procedures for ensuring adequate
distance for protection from blasting operations, if required by operational
considerations.

2-33



tzlt3l20t7 AC t5015370-2G

2.22.t.4

2.22.r.4.1

Excavations.

Open trenches or excavations are not permitted within the RSA while the
runway is open. Backfill trenches before the runway is opened. If
backfilling excavations before the runway must be opened is
impracticable, cover the excavations appropriately. Covering for open
tenches must be designed to allow the safe operation of the heaviest
aftcraft operating on the runway across the trench without damage to the
aircraft.

2.22.t.4.2 Construction contractors must prominently mark open trenches and
excavations at the construction site with red or orange flags, as approved
by the airport operator, and light them with red lights during hours of
restricted visibility or darkness.

2.22.1.5 Erosion Control.
Soil erosion must be controlled to maintain RSA standards, that is, the
RSA must be cleared and graded and have no potentially hazardous ruts,
humps, depressions, or other surface variations, and capable, under dry
conditions, of supporting snow removal equipment, aircraft.rescue and fue
fighting equipment, and the occasional passage of aircraft without causing
structural damage to the aircraft.

2.22.2 Runway Object Free Area (ROFA).

Construction, including excavations, may be permitted in the ROFA. However,
equipment must be removed from the ROFA when not in use, and material should not
be stockpiled in the ROFA if not necessary. Stockpiling material in the OFA requires
submittal of a7460-l form and justification provided to the appropriate FAA Airports
Regional or District Office for approval.

2.22.3 Taxiwav Safetv Area (TSA).

2.22.3.1 A taxiway safety area is a defined surface alongside the taxiway prepared

or suitable for reducing the risk of damage to an airplane unintentionally
departing the taxiway. (See AC 150/5300-13.) Since the width of the TSA
is equal to the wingspan of the design aircraft, no construction may occur
within the TSA while the taxiway is open for aircraft operations. The TSA
dimensions may be temporarily adjusted if the taxiway is restricted to
aircraft operations requiring a TSA that is equal to the TSA width
available during construction. Give special consideration to TSA
dimensions at taxiway turns and intersections. (see AC 150/5300-13).

2.22.3.2 The airport operator must coordinate the adjustment of the TSA width as

permitted above with the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District
Office and the FAA air traffic manager and issue a NOTAM.

2-34



t2lt3t20t7 AC 1501s370-2G

The CSPP and SPCD must provide procedures for ensuring adequate
distance for protection from blasting operations.

Excavations.

1. Curves. Open trenches or excavations are not permitted within the
TSA while the taxiway is open. Trenches should be backfilled before
the taxiway is opened. If backfilling excavations before the taxiway
must be opened is impracticable, cover the excavations appropriately.
Covering for open trenches must be designed to allow the safe
operation of the heaviest aircraft operating on the taxiway across the
trench without damage to the aircraft.

2. Straight Sections. Open trenches or excavations are not permitted
within the TSA while the taxiway is open for unrestricted aircraft
operations. Trenches should be backfilled before the taxiway is
opened. If backfilling excavations before the taxiway must be opened
is impracticable, cover the excavations to allow the safe passage of
ARFF equipment and of the heaviest aircraft operating on the taxiway
across the trench without causing damage to the equipment or aircraft.
In rare circumstances where the section of taxiway is indispensable for
aircraft movement, open trenches or excavations may be permitted in
the TSA while the taxiway is open to aircraft operations, subject to the
following restrictions:

a. Taxiing speed is limited to 10 mph.

b. Appropriate NOTAMs are issued.

c. Marking and lighting meeting the provisions of paragraphs 2.18
and 2.20 are implemented.

d. Low mass, low-profile lighted barricades are installed.

e. Appropriate temporary orange construction signs are installed.

3. Construction contractors must prominently mark open trenches and
excavations at the construction site with red or orange flags, as

approved by the airport operator, and light them with red lights during
hours of restricted visibility or darkness.

Erosion control.
Soil erosion must be controlled to maintain TSA standards, that is, the
TSA must be cleared and graded and have no potentially hazardous ruts,
humps, depressions, or other surface variations, and capable, under dry
conditions, of supporting snow removal equipment, aircraft rescue and
firefighting equipment, and the occasional passage of aircraft without
causing structural damage to the aircraft.

2.22.3.3

2.22.3.4

2.22.3.5

2-35



tzlt3l20t7

2.22.4

AC rs0ls370-2c

Taxiway Obiect Free Area (TOFA).

Unlike the Runway Object Free Area, aircraft wings regularly penetrate the taxiway
object free area during normal operations. Thus, the restrictions are more stringent.
Except as provided below, no construction may occur within the taxiway object free
area while the taxiway is open for aircraft operations.

2.22.4.r The taxiway object free area dimensions may be temporarily adjusted if
the taxiway is restricted to aircraft operations requiring a taxiway object
free area that is equal to the taxiway object free area width available. Give
special consideration to TOFA dimensions at taxiway turns and
intersections.

2.22.4.2 Offset taxiway centerline and edge pavement markings (do not use glass
beads) may be used as a tempora4y measure to provide the required
taxiway object free area. Where offset taxiway pavement markings are
provided, centerline lighting, centerline reflectors, or taxiway edge

reflectors are required. Existing lighting that does not coincide with the
temporary markings must be taken out of service.

2.22.4.3 Construction activity, including open excavations, may be accomplished
without adjusting the width of the taxiway object free area, subject to the
following restrictions :

2.22.4.3.I Taxiing speed is limited to l0 mph.

2.22.4.3.2 NOTAMs issued advising taxiing pilots of hazard and recommending
reduced taxiing speeds on the taxiway.

2.22.4.3.3 Marking and lighting meeting the provisions of paragraphs2.lS and2.20
are implemented.

2.22.4.3.4 If desired, appropriate orange construction signs are installed. See

paragraph 2.18.4.2 and Appendix F.

2.22.4.3.5 Five-foot clearance is maintained between equipment and materials and
any part of an aircraft (includes wingtip overhang). If such clearance can
only be maintained if an aircraft does not have fulIuse of the entire
taxiway width (with its main landing gear at the edge of the usable
pavement), then it will be necessary to move personnel and equipment for
the passage of that aircraft.

2.22.4.3.6 Flaggers furnished by the contractor must be used to direct and control
construction equipment and personnel to a pre-established setback
distance for safe passage ofaircraft, and airline and/or airport personnel.
Flaggers must also be used to direct taxiing aircraft. Due to liability
issues, the airport operator should require airlines to provide flaggers for
directing taxiing aircraft .

2-36



t2lt3l20t7 AC r501s370-2G

2.22.5 Obstacle Free Zone (OFZ).

ln general, personnel, material, and/or equipment may not penetrate the OFZ while the
runway is open for aircraft operations. If a penetration to the OFZ is necessary, it may
be possible to continue aircraft operations through operational restrictions. Coordinate
with the FAA through the appropriate FAA Airports Regional or District Office.

2.22.6 Runway Approach/Departure Areas and Clearways.

All personnel, materials, and/or equipment must remain clear of the applicable
threshold siting surfaces, as defined in AC 150/5300-13. Objects that do not penetrate
these surfaces may still be obstructions to air navigation and may affect standard
instrument approach procedures. Coordinate with the FAA through the appropriate
FAA Airports Regional or District Office.

2.22.6.1 Construction activity in a runway approach/departure area may result in
the need to partially close a nrnway or displace the existing runway
threshold. Partial runway closure, displacement of the runway threshold,
as well as closure of the complete runway and other portions of the
movement area also require coordination through the airport operator with
the appropriate FAA air traffic manager (FSS if non-towered) and
ATO/Technical Operations (for affected NAVAIDS) and airport users.

2.22.6.2 Caution About Partial Runway Closures.

When filing a NOTAM for a partial runway closure, clearly state that the
portion of pavement located prior to the threshold is not available for
landing and departing traffrc. In this case, the threshold has been moved
for both landing and takeoff purposes (this is different than a displaced
threshold). There may be situations where the portion of closed runway is
available for taxiing only. If so, the NOTAM must reflect this condition).

2.22.6.3 Caution About Displaced Thresholds.

Implementation of a displaced threshold affects nrnway length available
for aircraft landing over the displacement. Depending on the reason for the
displacement (to provide obstruction clearance or RSA), such a
displacement may also require an adjusfrnent in the landing distance
available and accelerate-stop distance available in the opposite direction.
If project scope includes personnel, equipment, excavation, or other work
within the existing RSA of any usable nrnway end, do not implement a
displaced threshold unless arrivals and departures toward the construction
activity are prohibited. Instead, implement a partial closure.

2.23 Other Limitations on Construction.
The CSPP must specifr any other limitations on construction, including but not limited
to:

2-37



t2/t312017

2.23.1 Prohibitions.

2.23.r.r

2.23.2

AC 150/5370-2G

No use of tall equipment (cranes, concrete pumps, and so on) unless a
7460-l determination leffer is issued for such equipment.

2.23.t.2 No use of open flame welding or torches unless fire safety precautions are
provided and the airport operator has approved their use.

2.23.t.3 No use of electrical blasting caps on or within 1,000 feet (300 meters) of
the airport property. See AC 150/5370-10.

Restrictions.

2.23.2.1 Construction suspension required during specific airport operations.

2.23.2.2 Areas that cannot be worked on simultaneously.

2.23.2.3 Day or night construction restrictions.

2.23.2.4 Seasonalconstructionrestrictions.

2.23.2.5 Temporary signs not approved by the airport operator.

2.23.2.6 Grades changes that could result in unplanned effects on NAVAIDs.

2-38



12/13/2017

3.1

3.2

3.3

AC 15015370-2G

CHAPTER 3. GUIDELINES FOR WRITING A CSPP

General Requirements.

The CSPP is a standalone document written to correspond with the subjects outlined in
paragraph 2.4.The CSPP is organized by numbered sections corresponding to each
subject listed in paragraph 2.4, and described in detail in paragraphs 2.5 - 2.23.Each
section number and title in the CSPP matches the corresponding subject outlined in
paragraph 2.4 (for example, 1. Coordination,2. Phasing, 3. Areas and Operations
Affected by the Construction Activity, and so on). With the exception of the project
scope of work outlined in Section 2. Phasing, only subjects specific to operational
safety during construction should be addressed.

Applicability of Subjects.

Each section should, to the extent practical, focus on the specific subject. Where an
overlapping requirement spans several sections, the requirement should be explained in
detail in the most applicable section. A reference to that section should be included in
all other sections where the requirement may apply. For example, the requirement to
protect existing underground FAA ILS cables during trenching operations could be
considered FAA ATO coordination (Coordination, paragraph2.5.3), an area and
operation affected by the construction activity (Areas and Operations Affected by the
Construction Activity, paragraph2.T.L.41, a protection of a NAVAID (Protection of
Navigational Aids (NAVAIDs), paragraph Z.E), or a notification to the FAA of
construction activities (Notification of Construction Activities, paragraph2.l3.5.3.2\.
However, it is more specifically an underground utility requirement (Underground
Utilities, paragraph Zl). The procedure for protecting underground ILS cables during
trenching operations should therefore be described in2.4.2.11: "The contractor must
coordinate with the local FAA System Support Center (SSC) to mark existing ILS cable
routes along Runway 17-35. The ILS cables will be located by hand digging whenever
the trenching operation moves within 10 feet of the cable markings." All other
applicable sections should include a reference to 2.4.2.11: "ILS cables shall be
identified and protected as describedn2.4.2.l1" or "See 2.4.2.11 for ILS cable
identification and protection requirements." Thus, the CSPP should be considered as a
whole, with no need to duplicate responses to related issues.

Graphical Representations.

Construction safety drawings should be included in the CSPP as attachments. When
other graphical representations will aid in supporting written statements, the drawings,
diagrams, and/or photographs should also be attached to the CSPP. References should
be made in the CSPP to each graphical attachment and may be made in multiple
sections.

3-1



t2/13/2017

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

AC 15015370-2G

Reference Documents.

The CSPP must not incorporate a document by reference unless reproduction of the
material in that document is prohibited. In that case, either copies of or a source for the

referenced document must be provided to the contractor. Where this AC recommends
references (e.g. as in paragraph 3.9) the intent is to include a reference to the
corresponding section in the CSPP, not to this Advisory Circular.

Restrictions.

The CSPP should not be considered as a project design review document. The CSPP
should also avoid mention of permanent ("as-built") features such as pavements,

markings, signs, and lighting, except when such features are intended to aid in
maintaining operational safety during the construction.

Coordination.
Include in this section a detailed description of conferences and meetings to be held
both before and during the project. Include appropriate information from AC 150/5370-
12. Discuss coordination procedures and schedules for each required FAA ATO
Technical Operations shutdown and restart and all required flight inspections.

Phasing.

Include in this section a detailed scope of work description for the project as a whole
and each phase of work covered by the CSPP. This includes all locations and durations
of the work proposed. Attach drawings to graphically support the written scope of work.
Detail in this section the sequenced phases of the proposed construction. Include a

reference to paragraph 3.8, as appropriate.

Areas and Operations Affected by Construction.
Focus in this section on identifying the areas and operations affected by the
construction. Describe corresponding mitigation that is not covered in detail elsewhere
in the CSPP. Include references to paragraphs below as appropriate. Attach drawings as

necessary to graphically describe affected areas and mechanisms proposed. See

Appendix F for sample operational effects tables and figures.

NAVAID Protection.

List in this section all NAVAID facilities that will be affected by the construction.
Identify NAVAID facilities that will be placed out of service at any time prior to or
during construction activities. Identify individuals responsible for coordinating each
shutdown and when each facility will be out of service. lnclude a reference to paragraph

3.6 for FAA ATO NAVAID shutdown, restart, and flight inspection coordination.
Outline in detail procedures to protect each NAVAID facility remaining in service from
interference by construction activities. Include a reference to paragraph 3.14 for the

3-2



t2/13t2017

3.10

3.10.1

3.10.2

3.10.3

AC 150/5370-2G

issuance of NOTAMs as required. Include a reference to paragraph 3.16 for the
protection of underground cables and piping serving NAVAIDs. If temporary visual
aids are proposed to replace or supplement existing facilities, include a reference to
paragraph 3.19. Attach drawings to graphically indicate the affected NAVAIDS and the
corresponding critical areas.

Contractor Access.

This will necessarily be the most extensive section of the CSPP. Provide sufficient
detail so that a contractor not experienced in working on airports will understand the
unique restrictions such work will require. Due to this extent, it should be broken down
into subsections as described below:

Location of Stockpiled Construction Materials.

Describe in this section specific locations for stockpiling material. Note any height
restrictions on stockpiles. Include a reference to paragraph 3.2I forhazardmarking and
lighting devices used to identifr stockpiles. Include a reference to paragraph 3.1 I for
provisions to prevent stockpile material from becoming wildlife attractants. Include a
reference to paragraph3.l2 for provisions to prevent stockpile material from becoming
FOD. Attach drawings to graphically indicate the stockpile locations.

Vehicle and Pedestrian Operations.

While there are many items to be addressed in this major subsection of the CSPP, all are
concerned with one main issue: keeping people and vehicles from areas of the airport
where they don't belong. This includes preventing unauthorized entry to the AOA and
preventing the improper movement of pedestrians or vehicles on the airport. In this
section, focus on mechanisms to prevent construction vehicles and workers traveling to
and from the worksite from unauthorized entry into movement areas. Speciff locations
of parking for both employee vehicles and construction equipment, and routes for
access and haul roads. In most cases, this will best be accomplished by attaching a
drawing. Quote from AC 150/5210-5 specific requirements for contractor vehicles
rather than referring to the AC as a whole, and include special requirements for
identifuing HAZMAT vehicles. Quote from, rather than incorporate by reference, AC
15015210-20 as appropriate to address the airport's rules for ground vehicle operations,
including its training progmm. Discuss the airport's recordkeeping system listing
authorized vehicle operators.

Two-Way Radio Communications.

Include a special section to identify all individuals who are required to maintain
communications with Air Traffic (AT) at airports with active towers, or monitor CTAF
at airports without or with closed ATCT. Include training requirements for all
individuals required to communicate with AT. Individuals required to monitor AT
frequencies should also be identified. If construction employees are also required to
communicate by radio with Airport Operations, this procedure should be described in
detail. Usage of vehicle mounted radios and/or portable radios should be addressed.
Communication procedures for the event of disabled radio communication (that is, light

3-3



t2lt3l20t7

3.r0.4

3.11

3.t2

3.13

3.r4

AC 150/5370-2G

signals, telephone numbers, others) must be included. All radio frequencies should by
identifred (Tower, Ground Control, CTAF, UNICOM, ATIS, and so on).

Aimort Security.

Address security as it applies to vehicle and pedestrian operations. Discuss TSA
requirements, security badging requirements, perimeter fence integrity, gate security,
and other needs. Attach drawings to graphically indicate secured and/or Security
Identification Display Areas (SIDA), perimeter fencing, and available access points.

Wildlife Management.

Discuss in this section wildlife management procedures. Describe the maintenance of
existing wildlife mitigation devices, such as perimeter fences, and procedures to limit
wildlife attractants. Include procedures to notify Airport Operations of wildlife
encounters. Include a reference to paragraph 3.10 for security (wildlife) fence integrity
maintenance as required.

FOD Management.

ln this section, discuss methods to control and monitor FOD: worksite housekeeping,
ground vehicle tire inspections, runway sweeps, and so on. Include a reference to
paragraph 3.15 for inspection requirements as required.

HAZMAT Management.

Describe in this section HAZMAT management procedures: fuel deliveries, spill
recovery procedures, Safety Data Sheet (SDS), Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) or
Product Safety Data Sheet (PSDS) availability, and other considerations. Any specific
airport HAZMAT restrictions should also be identified. Include a reference to paragraph

3.10 for HAZMAT vehicle identification requirements. Quote from, rather than
incorporate by reference, AC 150/5320-15.

Notification of Construction Activities.

List in this section the names and telephone numbers of points of contact for all parties
affected by the construction project. We recommend a single list that includes all
telephone numbers required under this section. Include emergency notification
procedures for all representatives of all parties potentially impacted by the construction.
Identify individual representatives - and at least one alternate - for each parby. List both
on-duty and off-duty contact information for each individual, including individuals
responsible for emergency maintenance of airport construction hazard lighting and
barricades. Describe procedures to coordinate immediate response to events that might
adversely affect the operational safety of the airport (such as intemrpted NAVAID
service). Explain requirements for and the procedures for the issuance of Notices to
Airmen (NOTAMs), notification to FAA required by 14 CFR Part77 and Part 157 and
in the event of affected NAVAIDs. For NOTAMs, identiff an individual, and at least

one alternate, responsible for issuing and cancelling each specific type of Notice to

3-4



tzl13/2017

3.15

3.16

3.t7

3.18

AC rs015370-2c

Airmen (NOTAM) required. Detail notificationmethods forpolice, fire fighting, and
medical emergencies. This may include 911, but should also include direct phone
numbers of local police deparhnents and nearby hospitals. Identify the 8911 address of
the airport and the emergency access route via haul roads to the construction site.
Require the contractor to have this information available to all workers. The local
Poison Control number should be listed. Procedures regarding notification of Airport
Operations and/or the ARFF Deparhnent of such emergencies should be identified, as

applicable. If airport radio communications are identified as a means of emergency
notification, include a reference to paragraph 3.10. Differentiate between emergency
and nonemergency notification of ARFF personnel, the latter including activities that
affect ARFF water supplies and access roads. Identify the primary ARFF contact person
and at least one alternate. If notification is to be made through Airport Operations, then
detail this procedure. lnclude a method of confrmation from the ARFF department.

Inspection Requirements.

Describe in this section inspection requirements to ensure airfield safety compliance.
Include a requirement for routine inspections by the resident engineer (RE) or other
airport operator's representative and the construction contractors. Ifthe engineering
consultants and/or contractors have a Safety Officer who will conduct such inspections,
identiff this individual. Describe procedures for special inspections, such as those
required to reopen areas for aircraft operations. Part 139 requires daily airfield
inspections at certificated airports, but these may need to be more frequent when
construction is in progress. Discuss the role of such inspections on areas under
construction. Include a requirement to immediately remedy any deficiencies, whether
caused by negligence, oversight, or project scope change.

Underground Utilities.
Explain how existing underground utilities will be located and protected. Identifu each

utility owner and include contact information for each company/agency in the master
list. Address emergency response procedures for damaged or disrupted utilities. Include
a reference to paragraph 3 .14 for notification of utility owners of accidental utility
disruption as required.

Penalties.

Describe in this section specific penalties imposed for noncompliance with airport rules
and regulations, including the CSPP: SIDA violations, VPD, and others.

Special Conditions.

Identify any special conditions that may trigger specific safety mitigation actions
outlined in this CSPP: low visibility operations, snow removal, aircraft in distress,
aircraft accident, security breach, VPD, and other activities requiring construction
suspension/resumption. lnclude a reference to paragraph 3.10 for compliance with
airport safety and security measures and for radio communications as required. Include

3-5



tzlt3/2017

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

AC 15015370-2G

a reference to paragraph 3.14 for emergency notification of all involved parties,

including police/security, ARFF, and medical services.

Runway and Taxiway Visual Aids.

Include marking, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDS. Detail temporary runway and
taxiway marking, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs required for the construction.
Discuss existing marking, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs that are temporarily,
altered, obliterated, or shut down. Consider non-federal facilities and address

requirements for reimbursable agreements necessary for alteration of FAA facilities and
for necessary flight checks. Identify temporary TORA signs or runway distance
remaining signs if appropriate. Identify required temporary visual NAVAIDs such as

REIL or PAPI. Quote from, rather than incorporate by reference, AC 150/5340-1,
Standards for Airport Markings; AC I 50/5340- 1 8 , Standards for Airport Sign Systems;

and AC 150/5340-30, as required. Attach drawings to graphically indicate proposed

marking, lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs.

Marking and Signs for Access Routes.

Detail plans for marking and signs for vehicle access routes. To the extent possible,
signs should be in conformance with the Federal Highway Administration MUTCD
and/or State highway specifications, not hand leffered. Detail any modifications to the
guidance in the MUTCD necessary to meet frangibility/treight requirements.

Hazard Marking and Lighting.
Specifu all marking and lighting equipment, including when and where each type of
device is to be used. Specify maximum gaps between barricades and the maximum
spacing of hazard lighting. Identify one individual and at least one alternate responsible
for maintenance ofhazard marking and lighting equipment in the master telephone list.
Include a reference to paragraph 3.14. Attach drawings to graphically indicate the
placement ofhazard marking and lighting equipment.

Work Zone Lightin g for Nighttime Construction.
If work is to be conducted at night, specify all lighting equipment, including when and
where each type of device is to be used. Indicate the direction lights are to be aimed and
any directions that aiming of lights is prohibited. Specifu any shielding necessary in
instances where aiming is not sufficient to prevent interference with air traffic control
and aircraft operations. Attach drawings to graphically indicate the placement and
aiming of lighting equipment. Where the plan only indicates directions that aiming of
lights is prohibited, the placement and positioning of portable lights must be proposed
by the Contractor and approved by the airport operator's representative each time lights
are relocated or repositioned.

3-6



t2lt3t20t7

3.23

3.24

AC 15015370-2G

Protection of Runway and Taxiway Safety Areas.

This section should focus exclusively on procedures for protecting all safety areas,
including those altered by the construction: methods of demarcation, limit of access,
movement within safety areas, stockpiling and trenching restrictions, and so on.
Reference AC 150/5300-13, as required. lnclude a reference to paragraph 3.10 for
procedures regarding vehicle and personnel movement within safety areas. Include a
reference to paragraph 3.10 for material stockpile restrictions as required. Detail
requirements for trenching, excavations, and backfill. Include a reference to paragraph
3.2I forhazard marking and lighting devices used to identiff open excavations as

required. If runway and taxiway closures are proposed to protect safety areas, or if
temporary displaced thresholds and/or revised declared distances are used to provide the
required Runway Safety Area, include a reference to paragraphs 3.14 and 3.19. Detail
procedures for protecting the runway OFZ, runway OFA, taxiway OFA and runway
approach surfaces including those altered by the construction: methods of demarcation,
limit of cranes, storage of equipment, and so on. Quote from, rather than incorporate by
reference, AC 150/5300-13, as required. Include a reference to paragraph 3.24 for
height (i.e., crane) restrictions as required. One way to address the height of equipment
that will move during the project is to establish a three-dimensional o'box" within which
equipment will be confined that can be studied as a single object. Attach drawings to
graphically indicate the safety area,OFZ, and OFA boundaries.

Other Limitations on Construction.
This section should describe what limitations must be applied to each area of work and
when each limitation will be applied: limitations due to airport operations, height (i.e.,
crane) restrictions, areas which cannot be worked at simultaneously, day/night work
restrictions, winter construction, and other limitations. Include a reference to paragraph
3.1 for project phasing requirements based on construction limitations as required.

3-7



t2/t3/20t7 AC t5015370-2G

Page Intentionally Blank

3-8



l2l13l20t7 AC ts015370-2c
Appendix A

APPENDIX A. RELATED READING MATERIAL

Obtain the latest version of the following free publications from the FAA on its Web site at
http ://www. faa. eov/aimorts/.

Table A-1. FAA Publications

Number Title and Description

AC 150/5200-28 Notices to Airmen NOfAMlfor Airport Operators

Guidance for using the NOTAM System in airport reporting.

AC 150/5200-30 Airport Field Condition Assessments and Winter Operations Safety

Guidance for airport owners/operators on the development of an
acceptable airport snow and ice control program and on appropriate field
condition reporting procedures.

AC 150/5200-33 Hazardous Wildlife Attractants On or Near Airports

Guidance on locating certain land uses that might altracthazardous
wildlife to public-use airports.

AC 150/5210-5 Painting, Marking, and Lighting of Vehicles Used on an Airport

Guidance, specifications, and standards for painting, marking, and
lighting vehicles operating in the airport air operations areas.

AC t50/52t0-20 Ground Vehicle Operations to include Taxiing or Towing an Aircraft on
Airports

Guidance to airport operators on developing ground vehicle operation
training programs.

AC 150/5300-13 Airport Design

FAA standards and recommendations for airport design. Establishes
approach visibility minimums as an airport design parameter, and
contains the Object Free area and the obstacle free-zone criteria.

AC t50/5210-24 Airport Foreign Object Debris (FOD) Management

Guidance for developing and managing an airport foreigu object debris
(FOD) program

A-t



r2l13l20r7 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix A

Number Title and Description

AC 150/5320-1s Management of Airport Industrial Waste

Basic information on the characteristics, management, and regulations of
industrial wastes generated at airports. Guidance for developing a Storm
Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) that applies best management
practices to eliminate, prevent, or reduce pollutants in storm water runoff
with particular airport industrial activities.

AC ts0/5340-l Standards for Airport Markings

FAA standards for the siting and installation of signs on airport runways
and taxiways.

AC 150/5340-18 Standards for Airport Sign Systems

FAA standards for the siting and installation of signs on airport nrnways
and taxiways.

AC r50/s34s-28 Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) Systems

FAA standards for PAPI systems, which provide pilots with visual glide
slope guidance during approach for landing.

AC 150/5340-30 Design and Installation Details for Airport Visuql Aids

Guidance and recommendations on the installation of airport visual aids.

AC 1s0/5345-39 Specificationfor L-853, Runway and Taxiway Retroreflective Markers

AC 150/5345-44 Specificationfor Runway and Taxiway Signs

FAA specifications for unlighted and lighted signs for taxiways and
runways.

AC 150/s345-53 Airport Lighting Equipment Certffication Program

Details on the Airport Lighting Equipment Certification Program
(ALECP).

AC 150/s345-50 Specificationfor Portable Runway and Taxiway Lights

FAA standards for portable runway and taxiway lights and runway end
identifier lights for temporaryuse to permit continued aircraft. operations
while all or part of a runway lighting system is inoperative.

AC 150/s34s-55 Specificationfor L-893, Lighted Visual Aid to Indicate Temporary
Runway Closure

A-2



Number Title and Description

AC 150/5370-10 Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports

Standards for construction of airports, including earthwork, drainage,
paving, turfing, lighting, and incidental construction.

AC 150/5370-12 Quality Managernent for F ederally Funded Airpor t Cons truction
Projects

EB 93 Guidancefor the Assembly and Installation of Temporary Orange
Construction Signs

FAA Order 5200.11 FAA Airports (ARP) Safetv Manasement System (SMS)

Basics for implementing SMS within ARP. Includes roles and
responsibilities of ARP management and staff as well as other FAA lines
of business that contribute to the ARP SMS.

FAA Certalert 98-05 Grasses Attractive to Hazardous Wildlife

Guidance on grass management and seed selection.

FAA Form 7460-l Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration

FAA Form 7480-l Notice of Landing Area Proposal

FAA Form 6000.26 National NAS Strategic Intemrption Service Level Agreement, Stategic
Events Coordination, Airport Sponsor Form

t2/1312017 AC rs015370-2G
Appendix A

Obtain the latest version of the following free publications from the Electronic Code of
Federal Regulations at http ://www.ecfr. gov/.

Table A-2. Code of tr'ederal Regulation

Obtain the latest version of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices from the
Federal Highway Adminishation at http : //mutcd. flrwa. dot. gov/.

Number Title

Title 14 CFR Part 77 Safe, Efficient Use and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace

Title 14 CFR Part 139 Certification of Airports

Title 49 CFR Part 1542 Airport Security

A-3



t2n3l20t7 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix A

Page Intentionally Blank

A-4



t2/1312017 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix B

APPENDIX B. TERMS AND ACRONYMS

Table B'1. Terms and
Term Definition

Form 7460-1 Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration. For on-airport projects, the form
submitted to the FAA regional or airports division office as formal written
notification ofany kind ofconstruction or alteration ofobjects that affect navigable
airspace, as defined in 14 CFR Part77, Safe, Efricient Use, and Preservation of
the Navigable Airspace. (See guidance available on the FAA web site at
https://oeaaa.faa.gov.) The form may be downloaded at
http://www.faa.eov/airports/resources/forms/, or filed electronically at:
https ://oeaaa.faa. eov.

Form 7480-1 Notice of Landing Area Proposal. Form submitted to the FAA Airports Regional
Division Office or Airports District Office as formal written notification whenever
a project without an airport layout plan on file with the FAA involves the
construction of a new airport; the construction, realigring, altering, activating, or
abandoning of a runway, landing strip, or associated taxiway; or the deactivation or
abandoning of an entire airport The form may be downloaded at
httu : //www. faa. gov/airports/res ource s/forms/.

Form 6000-26 Airport Sponsor Strategic Event Submission Form

AC Advisory Circular

ACSI Airport Certification Safety Inspector

ADG Airplane Design Group

AIP Airport Improvement Program

ALECP Airport Lighting Equipment Certification Program

ANG Air National Guard

AOA Air Operations Area, as defined in 14 CFR Part 107. Means a portion of an airport,
specified in the airport security program, in which security measures are canied
out. This area includes aircraft movement areas, aircraft parking areas, loading
ramps, and safety areas, and any adjacent areas (such as general aviation areas) that
are not separated by adequate security systems, measures, or procedures. This area
does not include the secured area of the airport terminal building.

ARFF Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting

ARP FAA Office of Airports

ASDA Accelerate-Stop Distance Available

AT Air Traffic

ATCT Airport Traffrc Control Tower

ATIS Automatic Terminal Information Service

ATO Air Traffi c Organization

Certificated Airport An airport that has been issued an Airport Operating Certificate by the FAA under

B-l



t2lt3l20t7 AC 1501s370-2G
Appendix B

Term Definition

the authority of 14 CFR Part 139, Certification of Airports

CFR Code of Federal Regulations

Construction The presence of construction-related personnel, equipment, and materials in any
location that could infringe upon the movement of aircraft.

CSPP Construction Safety and Phasing Plan. The overall plan for safety and phasing ofa
construction project developed by the airport operator, or developed by the airport
operator's consultant and approved by the airport operator. It is included in the
invitation for bids and becomes part of the project specifications.

CTAF Common Traffic Advisory Frequency

Displaced
Threshold

A threshold that is located at a point on the runway other than the desigrrated

beginning of the runway. The portion of pavement behind a displaced threshold is

available for takeoffs in either direction or landing from the opposite direction.

DOT Department of Transportation

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

FAA Federal Aviation Administration

FOD Foreign Obj ect Debris/Damage

FSS Flight Service Station

GA General Aviation

HAZMAT Hazardous Materials

HMA Hot Mix Asphalt

IAP Instrument Approach Procedures

IFR Instrument Flight Rules

LS Instrument Landing System

LDA Landing Distance Available

LOC Localizer antenna array

Movement Area The runways, taxiways, and other areas of an airport that are used for taxiing or
hover taxiing, airtaxiing, takeoff, and landing ofaircraft, exclusive ofloading
aprons and aircraft parking areas (reference 14 CFR Part 139).

MSDS Material Safety Data Sheet

MUTCD Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

NAVAID Navigation Aid

NAVAID Critical
Area

An area of defined shape and size associated with a NAVAID that must remain
clear and graded to avoid interference with the electronic signal.

Non-Movement
Area

The area inside the airport security fence exclusive of the Movement Area. It is
important to note that the non-movement area includes pavement traversed by
aircraft.

B-2



tzlt3l20t7 AC 150/5370-2G
Appendix B

Term Definition

NOTAM Notices to Airmen

Obstruction Any object/obstacle exceeding the obstruction standards specified by 14 CFR Part
77, subpart C.

occ Operations Control Center

OE / Au{A Obstruction Evaluation / Airport Airspace Analysis

OFA Object Free Area. An area on the ground centered on the runway, taxiway, or taxi
lane centerline provided to enhance safety ofaircraft operations by having the area
free ofobjects except for those objects that need to be located in the OFA for air
navigation or aircraft ground maneuvering purposes. (See AC 150/5300-13 for
additional guidance on OFA standards and wingtip clearance criteria.)

OFZ Obstacle Free Zone. The airspace below 150 ft (a5 m) above the established airport
elevation and along the runway and extended nrnway centerline that is required to
be clear of all objects, excqlt for frangible visual NAVAIDs that need to be located
in the OFZ because of their function, in order to provide clearance protection for
aircraft landing or taking offfrom the runway and for missed approaches. The OFZ
is subdivided as follows: Runway OFZ, trnner Approach OFZ, Inner Transitional
OFZ,and Precision OFZ. Refer to AC 150i5300-13 for guidance on OFZ.

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration

OTS Out of Service

P&R Planning and Requirements Group

NPI NAS Planning & Integration

PAPI Precision Approach Path Indicator

PFC Passenger Facility Charge

PLASI Pulse Light Approach Slope Indicator

Project Proposal
Summary

A clear and concise description ofthe proposed project or change that is the object
of Safety Risk Management.

RA Reimbursable Agreement

RE Resident Engineer

REIL Runway End Identifier Lights

RNAV Area Navigation

ROFA Runway Object Free Area

RSA Runway Safety Area. A defined surface surrounding the runway prepared or
suitable for reducing the risk of damage to airplanes in the event of an undershoot,
overshoot, or excursion from the runway, in accordance with AC 150/5300-13.

SDS Safety Data Sheet

SIDA Security Identification Display Area

SMS Safety Management System

B-3



tzlt3/2017 AC t5015370-2G
Appendix B

Term Definition

SPCD Safety Plan Compliance Document. Details developed and submitted by a
contractor to the airport operator for approval providing details on how the
performance of a construction project will comply with the CSPP.

SRM Safety Risk Management

SSC Systun Support Center

Taxiway Safety
Area

A defined surface alongside the taxiway prepared or suitable for reducing the risk
of damage to an airplane unintentionally departing the taxiway, in accordance with
AC ls0/s300-13.

TDG Taxiway Design Group

Tunporary Any condition that is not intended to be permanent.

Ternporary Runway
End

The beginning of that portion of the runway available for landing and taking off in
one direction, and for landing in the other direction. Note the difference from a
displaced threshold.

Threshold The beginning of that portion of the runway available for landing. In some
instances, the landing threshold may be displaced.

TODA Takeoff Distance Available

TOFA Taxiway Object Free Area

TORA Takeoff Run Available. The length of the runway less any length of runway
unavailable and/or unsuitable for takeoff run computations. See AC 150i5300-13
for guidance on declared distances.

TSA Taxiway Safety Area, or

Transportation Security Administration

UNICOM A radio communications system of a type used at small airports

VASI Visual Approach Slope lndicator

VGSI Visual Glide Slope lndicator. A device that provides a visual glide slope indicator
to landing pilots. These systems include precision approach path indicator (PAPD,

visual approach slope indicator (VASD, and pulse light approach slope indicator
(PLASD.

VFR Visual Flight Rules

VOR Very High Frequency Omnidirectional Radio Range

VPD Vehicle / Pedestrian Deviation

B-4



t211312017 AC ts0ls370-2c
Appendix C

APPENDIX G. SAFEW AND PHASING PLAN CHECKLIST

This appendix is keyed to Cl:a;pter 2. In the electronic version of this AC, clicking on the
paragraph designation in the Reference column will access the applicable paragraph. There may
be instances where the CSPP requires provisions that are not covered by the list in this appendix.

This checklist is intended as an aid, not a required submittal.

Table C-1. CSPP Checklist

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

General Considerations

Requirements for predesign, prebid,
and preconstruction conferences to
introduce the subject of airport
operational safety during construction
are specified.

2.5

Operational safety is a standing
agenda item for construction progress
meetings.

2.5

Scheduling of the construction phases

is properly addressed.

2.6

Any formal agreements are
established.

2.5.3

Areas and Operations Affected by Construction Activity

Drawings showing affected areas are
included.

2.7.1

Closed or partially closed runways,
taxiways, and aprons are depicted on
drawings.

2.7.t.r

Access routes used by ARFF vehicles
affected by the project are addressed.

2.7.t.2

Access routes used by airport and
airline support vehicles affected by
the project are addressed.

2.7.t.3

Underground utilities, including
water supplies for firefrghting and
drainage.

2.7.t.4

c-1



t2/1312017 AC 150/5370-2G
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

Approach/departure surfaces affected
by heights of temporary objects are

addressed.

2.7.1.5

Construction areas, storage areas, and
access routes near runways, taxiways,
aprons, or helipads are properly
depicted on drawings.

2.7.1

Temporary changes to taxi operations
are addressed.

2.7.2.1

Detours for ARFF and other airport
vehicles are identified.

2.7.2.2

Maintenance of essential utilities and
underground infrastructure is
addressed.

2.7.2.3

Temporary changes to air traffic
control procedures are addressed.

2.7.2.4

NAVAIDS

Critical areas for NAVAIDs are

depicted on drawings.
2.8

Effects of construction activity on the
performance of NAVAIDS, including
unanticipated power outages, are

addressed.

2.8

Protection of NAVAID facilities is
addressed.

2.8

The required distance and direction
from eachNAVAID to any
construction activity is depicted on
drawings.

2.8

Procedures for coordination with
FAA ATo/Technical Operations,
including identification of points of
contact, are included.

2.8,2.13.1,
2.t3.5.3.t,

2.1 8.1

Contractor Access

The CSPP addresses areas to which
contractor will have access and how

2.9

c-2



tzl13l20t7 AC ts015370-2c
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

the areas will be accessed.

The application of 49 CFR Part 1542
Airport Security, where appropriate,
is addressed.

2.9

The location of stockpiled
construction materials is depicted on
drawings.

2.9.r

The requirement for stockpiles in the
ROFA to be approved by FAA is
included.

2.9.r

Requirements for proper stockpiling
of materials are included.

2.9.r

Construction site parking is
addressed.

2.9.2.L

Construction equipment parking is
addressed.

2.9.2.2

Access and haul roads are addressed. 2.9.2.3

A requirement for marking and
lighting of vehicles to comply with
AC 150/5210-5. Painting, Marking
and Lighting of Vehicles Used on an
Airport, is included.

2.9.2.4

Proper vehicle operations, including
requirements for escorts, are
described.

2.9.2.5,2.9.2.6

Training requirements for vehicle
drivers are addressed.

2.9.2.7

Two-way radio communications
procedures are described.

2.9.2.9

Maintenance of the secured area of
the airport is addressed.

2.9.2.t0

Wildlife Management

The airport operator's wildlife
management procedures are
addressed.

2.10

c-3



l2n3l20t7 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

Foreign Object Debris Management

The airport operator's FOD
management procedures are

addressed.

2.Lt

Hazardous Materials Management

The airport operator's hazardous
materials management procedures are

addressed.

2.r2

Notification of Construction Activities

Procedures for the immediate
notification of airport user and local
FAA of any conditions adversely
affecting the operational safety of the
airport are detailed.

2.r3

Maintenance of a list by the airport
operator of the responsible
representatives/points of contact for
all involved parties and procedures
for contacting them 24 hours a day,
seven days a week is specified.

2.13.1.

A list of local ATO/Technical
Operations persorurel is included.

2.13.r

A list of ATCT managers on duty is
included.

2.t3.t

A list of authorized representatives to
the OCC is included.

2.r3.2

Procedures for coordinating, issuing,
maintaining and cancelling by the
airport operator of NOTAMS about
airport conditions resulting from
construction are included.

2.8,2.13.2,
2.t8.3.3.9

Provision of information on closed or
hazardous conditions on airport
movement areas by the airport
operator to the OCC is specified.

2.t3.2

Emergency notifi cation procedures
for medical, fire fiehting, and police

2.r3.3

C4



t2lt3l20r7 AC ts0ls370-2c
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

response are addressed.

Coordination with ARFF personnel
for non-emergency issues is
addressed.

2.t3.4

Notification to the FAA under 14
CFRparts 77 and 157 is addressed.

2.r3.5

Reimbursable agreements for flight
checks and/or design and
construction for FAA owned
NAVAIDs are addressed.

2.t3.5.3.2

Inspection Requirements

Daily and interim inspections by both
the airport operator and contractor are
specified.

2.r4.1,2.14.2

Final inspections at certificated
airports are specified when required.

2.t4.3

Underground Utilities

Procedures for protecting existing
underground facilities in excavation
areas are described.

2.1s

Penalties

Penalty provisions for noncompliance
with airport rules and regulations and
the safety plans are detailed.

2.t6

Special Conditions

Any special conditions that affect the
operation of the airport or require the
activation of any special procedures
are addressed.

2.r7

Runway and Taxiway Visual Aids - Marking, Lighting, Signs, and Visual NAVAIDs

The proper securing of temporary
airport markings, lighting, signs, and
visual NAVAIDs is addressed.

2.r8.1

Frangibility of airport markings,
lighting, signs, and visual NAVAIDs
is specified.

2.18.t,2.18.3,
2.t8.4.2,
2.20.2.4

c-5



t2/t3/2017 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

The requirement for markings to be
in compliance with AC 1 50/5340- I,
Standards for Airport Markings, is
specified.

2.18.2

Detailed specifications for materials
and methods for temporary markings
are provided.

2.t8.2

The requirement for lighting to
conform to AC 150/5340-30, Design
and Installation Details for Airport
Visual Aids ; AC 150/5345-50,
Specification for Portable Runway
and Taxiway Lights;and AC
I50/ 53 45 -53, Airport Lighting
Cerffication Program, is specified.

2.18.3

The use of a lighted X is specified
where appropriate.

2.t8.2.r.2,
2.r8.3.2

The requirement for signs to conform
to AC 150 I 5345-44. Specification for
Runway and Taxiway,Slgns; AC
50/5340-18, Standards for Airport
Sign Systems; and AC 150/5345-53,
Airp ort Li ghtin g C er tifi c at i on
Program, is specified.

2.t8.4

Marking and Signs For Access Routes

The CSPP specifies that pavement
markings and signs intended for
construction personnel should
conform to AC 150/5340-18 and, to
the extent practicable, with the
MUTCD and/or State highway
specifications.

2.18.4.2

Hazard Marking and Lighting

Prominent, comprehensible warning
indicators for any area affected by
construction that is normally
accessible to aircraft, personnel, or
vehicles are specified.

2.20.r

c-6



tzlt3l20t7 AC 150/5370-2G
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

Hazard marking and lighting are
specified to identify open manholes,
small areas under repair, stockpiled
material, and waste areas.

2.20.t

The CSPP considers less obvious
construction-related hazards.

2.20.r

Equipment that poses the least danger
to aircraft but is sturdy enough to
remain in place when subjected to
typical winds, prop wash and jet blast
is specified.

2.20.2.1

The spacing of barricades is specified
such that a breach is physically
prevented barring a deliberate act.

2.20.2.1

Red lights meeting the luminance
requirements of the State Highway
Department are specified.

2.20.2.2

Barricades, temporary markers, and
other objects placed and left in areas
adjacent to any open runway,
taxiway, taxi lane, or apron are
specified to be as low as possible to
the ground, and no more than 18 inch
high.

2.20.2.3

Barricades are specified to indicate
construction locations in which no
part of an aircraftmay enter.

2.20.2.3

Highly reflective barriers with lights
are specified to barricade taxiways
leading to closed runways.

2.20.2.5

Markings for temporary closures are
specified.

2.20.2.5

The provision of a contractor's
representative on call 24 hours a day
for emergency maintenance of airport
hazard lighting and barricades is
specified.

2.20.2.7

c-7



r2l13l20r7 AC r50/5370-2G
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

Work Znne Lighting for Nighttime Construction

If work is to be conducted at night,
the CSPP identifies construction
lighting units and their general
locations and aiming in relationship
to the ATCT and active runways and
taxiways.

2.2r

Protection of Runway and Taxiway Safety Areas

The CSPP clearly states that no
construction may occur within a
safety area while the associated
nrnway or taxiway is open for aircraft
operations.

2.22.1.1,
2.22.3.t

The CSPP specifies that the airport
operator coordinates the adjustment
of RSA or TSA dimensions with the
ATCT and the appropriate FAA
Airports Regional or District Office
and issues a local NOTAM.

2.22.r.2,
2.22.3.2

Procedures for ensuring adequate
distance for protection from blasting
operations, if required by operational
considerations, are detailed.

2.22.3.3

The CSPP specifies that open
trenches or excavations are not
permitted within a safety area while
the associated runway or taxiway is
open, subject to approved exceptions

2.22.1.4

Appropriate covering of excavations
in the RSA or TSA that cannot be

backfrlled before the associated
runway or taxiway is open is detailed.

2.22.t.4

The CSPP includes provisions for
prominent marking of open trenches
and excavations at the construction
site.

2.22.L4

Grading and soil erosion control to
maintain RSA/TSA standards are

2.22.3.5

c-8



t2lt3/2017 AC 1s01s370-2c
Appendix C

Coordination Reference Addressed? Remarks

Yes No NA

addressed.

The CSPP specifies that equipment is
to be removed from the ROFA when
not in use.

2.22.2

The CSPP clearly states that no
construction may occur within a
taxiway safety area while the taxiway
is open for aircraft operations.

2.22.3

Appropriate details are specified for
any construction work to be
accomplished in a taxiway object free
area.

2.22.4

Measures to ensure that personnel,
material, and/or equipment do not
penetrate the OFZ or threshold siting
surfaces while the runway is open for
aircraft operations are included.

2.22.4.3.6

Provisions for protection of runway
approach/departure areas and
clearways are included.

2.22.6

Other Limitations on Construction

The CSPP prohibits the use of open
flame welding or torches unless
adequate fue safety precautions are
provided and the airport operator has

approved their use.

2.23.t.2

The CSPP prohibits the use of
electrical blasting caps on or within
1,000 ft (300 m) of the airport
property.

2.23.t.3

c-9



tzlt3l20r7 AC rs015370-2c
Appendix D

APPENDIX D. CONSTRUCTION PROJECT DAILY SAFEW INSPECTION GHECKLIST

The situations identified below are potentially hazardous conditions that may occur during
airport construction projects. Safety area encroachments, unauthorized and improper ground
vehicle operations, and unmarked or uncovered holes and trenches near aircraft operating
surfaces pose the most prevalent threats to airport operational safety during airport construction
projects. The list below is one tool that the airport operator or contractor may use to aid in
identifuing and correcting potentially hazardous conditions. It should be customized as

appropriate for each project including information such as the date, time and name of the person

conducting the inspection.

Table D-1. Potentially Hazardous Conditions

Item Action Required (Describe)
No Action
Required
(Check)

Excavation adjacent to runways, taxiways,
and aprons improperly backfilled.

Mounds of earth, construction materials,
temporary structures, and other obstacles
near any open runway,taxiway, or taxi
lane; in the related Object Free area and
aircraft approach or departure areas/zones;

or obstructing any sign or marking.

Runway resurfacing projects resulting in
lips exceeding 3 inch (7.6 cm) from
pavement edges and ends.

Heavy equipment (stationary or mobile)
operating or idle near AOA, in runway
approaches and departures areas, or in
OFZ.

Equipment or material near NAVAIDs that
may degrade or impair radiated signals
and/or the monitoring of navigation and
visual aids. Unauthorized or improper
vehicle operations in localizer or glide
slope critical areas, resulting in electronic
interference and/or facility shutdown.

Tall and especially relatively low visibility
units (that is, equipment with slim profiles)

- cranes, drills, and similar objects -located in critical areas, such as OFZ and

D-1



r2lt3/2017 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix D

Item Action Required @escribe)
No Action
Required
(Check)

approach zones

Improperly positioned or malfunctioning
lights or unlighted airport hazards, such as

holes or excavations, on any apron, open
taxiway, or open taxi lane or in a related
safety, approach, or departure area.

Obstacles, loose pavement, trash, and other
debris on or near AOA. Construction debris
(gravel, sand, mud, paving materials) on
airport pavements may result in aircraft
propeller, turbine engine, or tire damage.
Also, loose materials may blow about,
potentially causing personal injury or
equipment damage.

Inappropriate or poorly maintained fencing
during construction intended to deter
human and animal intrusions into the AOA.
Fencing and other markings that are
inadequate to separate construction areas
from open AOA create aviation hazards.

Improper or inadequate marking or lighting
of runways (especially thresholds that have
been displaced or runways that have been
closed) and taxiways that could cause pilot
confusion and provide a potential for a
nrnway incursion. Inadequate or improper
methods of marking, barricading, and
lighting of temporarily closed portions of
AOA create aviation hazards.

Wildlife attractants - such as trash (food
scraps not collected from construction
personnel activity), grass seeds, tall grass,

or standing water - on or near airports.

Obliterated or faded temporary markings
on active operational areas.

Misleading or malfunctioning obstruction
lights. Unlighted or unmarked obstructions
in the approach to any open runway pose
aviation hazards.

D-2



t2/1312017 AC 1s0/s370-2c
Appendix D

Item Action Required @escribe)
No Action
Required
(Check)

Failure to issue, update, or cancel
NOTAMs about airport or runway closures
or other construction related airport
conditions.

Failure to mark and identify utilities or
power cables. Damage to utilities and
power cables during construction activity
can result in the loss of runway / taxiway
lighting; loss of navigation, visual, or
approach aids; disruption of weather
reporting services; and/or loss of
communications.

Restrictions on ARFF access from fire
stations to the runway I taxiway system or
airport buildings.

Lack of radio communications with
construction vehicles in airport movement
areas.

Objects, regardless of whether they are

marked or flagged, or activities anywhere
on or near an airport that could be
distracting, confusing, or alarming to pilots
during aircraft operations.

Water, snow, dirt, debris, or other
contaminants that temporarily obscure or
derogate the visibility of runway/taxiway
marking, lighting, and pavement edges.

Any condition or factor that obscures or
diminishes the visibility of areas under
construction.

Spillage from vehicles (gasoline, diesel
fuel, oil) on active pavement areas, such as

runways, taxiways, aprons, and airport
roadways.

Failure to maintain drainage system
integrity during construction (for example,
no temporary drainage provided when
working on a drainage system).

D-3



t2lt3l20t7 AC 1s015370-2G
Appendix D

Item Action Required @escribe)
No Action
Required
(Check)

Failure to provide for proper electrical
lockout and tagging procedures. At larger
airports with multiple maintenance
shifts/workers, construction contractors
should make provisions for coordinating
work on circuits.

Failure to control dust. Consider limiting
the amount of area from which the
contractor is allowed to strip turf.

Exposed wiring that creates an
electrocution or fue ignition hazard.
Identify and secure wiring, and place it in
conduit or bury it.

Site burning, which can cause possible
obscuration.

Construction work taking place outside of
designated work areas and out ofphase.

D4



12/1312017

E.1

E.1.1

AC15015370-2G
Appendix E

APPENDIX E. SAMPLE OPERATIONAL EFFECTS TABLE

Project Description.

Runway 15-33 is currently 7820 feet long, with a 500 foot stopway on the north end.

This project will remove the stopway and extend the runway 1000 feet to the north and
500 feet to the south. Finally, the existing portion of the runway will be repaved. The
nrnway 33 glide slope will be relocated. The new runway 33 localizer has already been
installed by FAA Technical Operations and only needs to be switched on. Runway 15 is
currently served only by alocalizer, which will remain in operation as it will be beyond
the future RSA. Appropriate NOTAMS will be issued throughout the project.

During Phase I, the runway 15 threshold will be displaced 1000 feet to keep
construction equipment below the approach surface. The start of runway 15 takeoff and
the departure end of runway 33 will also be moved 500 feet to protect workers from jet
blast. Declared distances for runway 33 will be adjusted to provide the required RSA
and applicable departure surface. Excavation near Taxiway G will require its ADG to be
reduced from IV to III. See Fizure E-l.

Figure E-1.. Phase I Example

Note 1: Where hold signs are installed on both sides of a taxiway, install the TORA sign on the left side of
the taxiway before the flrnal tum to the runway intersection.

Note 2: Based on the declared distances for Runway 33 departures, the maximum equipment height in the
construction area is 12.5 feet (500/40 : 12.5).

,320 (TOM, TODA)

7,320 (TOM, TODA, ASDA)

6,820 (ASDA, LDA)

1,000 (LDA)

500

H TAXIWAY
J

(sEcuRED TO BARRTCADES)

NORTH

NEW CONSTRUCTION ffi CLOSED CLOSED FOR
LANDING - DISPLACED THRESHOLD

LEGEND

E-l



L2l13/2017 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix E

During Phase II, the runway 33 threshold will be displaced 1000 feet to keep
construction equipment below the approach surface. The start of runway 33 takeoff and
the departure end of runway 15 will also be moved 500 feet to protect workers from jet
blast. Declared distances for runway 15 will be adjusted to provide the required RSA
and applicable departure surface. See Fieure E-2.

Figure E-2. Phase II Example

Note 1: Where hold signs are installed on both sides of a taxiway, install the TORA sign on the left side of
the taxiway before the frnal tum to the runway intersection.

Note 2: Based on the declared distances for Runway 15 departures, the maximum equipment height in the
construction area is 12.5 feet (500/40 -- 12.5).

F..2

500

RUNWAY 15.33

TAXIWAY G -rhlIt il

7,820 FEET (ASDA, LDA)

(TORA, TODA, ASDA)

8,320 (TOM, TODA)

7,820 (LDA) 500

500

I
H

NORTH (SECURED TO BARRICADE)

I NEW CONSTRUCTION CLOSED CLOSED FOR
LANDING. DISPLACED THRESHOLD

LEGEND

E-2



E.3

t2/t3/2017 AC ts015370-2c
Appendix E

During Phase III, the existing portion of the nrnway will be repaved with Hot Mix
Asphalt (HMA) and the runway 33 glide slope will be relocated. Construction will be
accomplished between the hours of 8:00 pm and 5:00 am, during which the runway will
be closed to operations.

Figure E-3. Phase III Example

9,320 (TORA, TODA, ASDA, LDA)

(TORA, TODA, ASDA, LDA)

RAMP \ tro**,"oDEs wlrH srcN TN.TALLED

\ DUR|NGHouRsoFcoNsrRucfloN)-H
(SECURED TO BARRICADE)

NORTH

NOTE: INSTALL LIGHTED 'X' OR YELLOW 'X' ON NUMBERS AND REMOVE WHEN RUNWAYS ARE OPEN FOR OPERATIONS.

NEW CONSTRUCTION CLOSED CLOSED FOR
LANDING - DISPLACED THRESHOLD

LEGEND

E-3



t2lt3l20t7 AC 1501s370-2G
Appendix E

Table E-1. Operational Effects Table

Note: Proper coordination with Flight Procedures group is necessary to maintain
instrument approach procedures during construction.

Project Runway 15-33 Extension and Repaving

Phase Normal
@xisting)

Phase I: Extend
Runway 15 End

Phase II: Extend
Runway 33 End

Phase III: Repave
Runway

Scope of Work N/A Extend Runway
15-33 1,000 ft on

north end with Hot
Mix Asphaltic

Concrete (HMA).

Extend Runway
15-33 500 ft on
south end with

Hot Mix Asphaltic
Concrete (HMA).

Repave existing
nrnway with HMA
Relocate Runway

33 Glide Slope

Effects of
Construction
Operations

N/A Existing North
500 ft closed

Existing South
500 ft closed

Runway closed
between 8:00 pm

and 5:00 am

Edge lighting out of
service

Construction Phase N/A Phase I
(Anticipated)

Phase II
(Anticipated)

Phase III
(Anticipated)

Runway 15 Average
Aircraft Operations

Carier:52
/day

GA:26
/day

Military: 11

lday

Ca:rier: 40 lday
GA:26 /day

Military: 0 /day

Carrier: 45 /day
GA:26lday

Military: 5 /day

Carrier: 451 day
GA:20 / day

Military: 0 lday

Runway 33 Average
Aircraft Operations

Carrier: 40
/day

GA: 18

lday
Military: 10

/day

Carrier: 30 /day
GA: 18 /day

Military: 0 lday

Carier: 25 lday
GA: 18 /day

Military: 5 /day

Carrier: 20 /day
GA: 5 /day

Military: 0 lday

Runway 15-33
Aircraft Category

c-w c-ry c-rv C-TV

Runway 15
Approach Visibility

Minimums

l mile l mile I mile l mile

Runway 33
Approach Visibility

Minimums

3/t mile %mile 3/+ mlle l mile

E-4



t2lt3l20r7 AC t5015370-2G
Appendix E

Project Runway 15-33 Extension and Repaving

Phase Normal
@xisting)

Phase I: Extend
Runway 15 End

Phase II: Extend
Runway 33 End

Phase III: Repave
Runway

Runway 15
Declared
Distances

TORA 7,820 7 320 8,320 9,320

TODA 7,820 7 )320 8,320 9,320

ASDA 7,820 7 ) 320 7 , 820 9,320

LDA 7,820 6,820 7,820 9,320

Runway 33
Declared
Distances

TORA 7,820 7,320 8 )320 9 320

TODA 7,820 7,320 8,320 9 ,320

ASDA 8,320 6,820 8,320 9,320

LDA 7,820 6,820 7,820 9,320

Runway 15
Approach
Procedures

LOC only LOC only LOC only LOC only

RNAV RNAV RNAV RNAV

VOR VOR VOR VOR

Runway 33
Approach

Procedures

ILS ILS ILS LOC only

RNAV RNAV RNAV RNAV

VOR VOR VOR VOR

Runway 15

NAVAIDS
LOC LOC LOC LOC

Runway 33
NAVAIDS

ILS,
MALSR ILS, MALSR ILS, MALSR LOC, MALSR

Taxiway G ADG rV ilI rV IV

Taxiway G TDG 4 4 4 4

ATCT (hours open) 24 hours 24 hours 24 hours 0s00 - 2000

ARFF Index D D D D

E-5



t2lt3l20t7 AC r5015370-2G
Appendix E

Project Runway 15-33 Extension and Repaving

Phase Normal
@xisting)

Phase I: Extend
Runway L5 End

Phase II: Extend
Runway 33 End

Phase III: Repave
Runway

Special Conditions Air
National
Guard
(ANG)
military

operations

All military aircraft
relocated to

alternate ANG
Base

Some large
military aircraft

relocated to
alternate ANG

Base

All military aircraft
relocated to

alternate ANG
Base

Information for
NOTAMS

Refer above for
applicable

declared distances.

Taxiway G
limited to 118 ft

wingspan

Refer above for
applicable

declared distances.

Refer above for
applicable

declared distances.

Airport closed
2000 - 0500.

Runway 15 glide
slope OTS.

Note: This table is one example. It may be advantageous to develop a separate table for each
project phase and/or to address the operational status of the associated NAVAIDs per
construction phase.

Complete the following chart for each phase to determine the area that must be protected along
the runway and taxiway edges:

Table E-2. Runway and Taxiway Edge Protection

*See AC 150/5300-13 to complete the chart for a specific runway/taxiway

Runway/Taxiway
Aircraft Approach

Category*

ArBrCrorD

Airplane Design
Group*

I, II, III, oT IV

Safety Area Width in
Feet Divided by 2*

E-6



tzlt3/2017

Complete the following chart for each phase to determine the area that must be protected before
the runway threshold:

Table E-3. Protection Prior to Runway Threshold

*See AC 150/5300-13 to complete the chart for a specific nrnway

AC 1s015370-2G
Appendix E

Runway End
Number

Airplane
Design
Group*

r, Ir, III, or
IV

Aircraft
Approach
Category*

ArBrCrorD

Minimum
Safety Area
Prior to the
Threshold*

Minimum Distance to
Threshold Based on

Required Approach Slope*

ft ft 1

ft ft I

ft ft 1

ft ft 1

E-7



tzlt3l20t7 AC 15015370-2G
Appendix E

Page Intentionally Blank

E-8



tzlt3l20t7 AC 150/5370-2G
Appendix F

APPENDIX F. ORANGE CONSTRUGTION SIGNS

tr'igure F-1. Approved Sign Legends

F-l



tzl13l20t7 AC 150/5370-2G
Appendix F

Figure F-2. Orange Construction Sign Example 1

NO ENTRYSIGN

LOW PROFILE
BARRICADE WITH
FLASHERS

INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
POSITION MARKING

 eB+ IT II

Note: For proper placement of signs, refer to EB 93

F-2



t2lt3l20t7

Figure F-3. Orange Construction Sign Example 2

CONSTRUCTION
AREA

TAXIWAY CENTERLINE
TEMPOMRILY RELOCATED

Note: For proper placement of signs, refer to EB 93.

AC rs0/s370-2c
Appendix F

F-3



12/t3120t7 AC tsjls370-2G
Appendix F

Page Intentionally Blank

F-4



Advisory Circular Feedback

If you find an error in this AC, have recommendations for improving it, or have suggestions for
new items/subjects to be added, you may let us know bV (1) mailing this form to Manager,
Airport Engineering Division, Federal Aviation Administration ATTN: AAS-100, 800
Independence Avenue SW, Washington DC 2059I or (2) faxing it to the attention of the Office
of Airport Safety and Standards at (202) 267-5383.

Subject: AC l50l 537 0-2G Date:

Please check all appropriate line items:

n An error (procedural or typographical) has been noted in paragraph

Recommend paragraph on page

on page

be changed as follows:

n In a future change to this AC, please cover the following subject:
(Briefly describe what you want added.)

Other comments:

n I would like to discuss the above. Please contact me at (phone number, email address)

Submitted by: Date:



Page Intentionally Blank



TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
RU NWAY PAVEM ENT REHABI LITATION
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

FAA AtP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-13-2018 DESIGN
FAA Afp PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-14-2019 CONSTRUCTION

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-l9-004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

c-100

c-105

c-110

D-701

P-101

P-151

P-152

P-153

P-207

P-403

P-602

P-603

P-610

P-620

c-100-1

c-105-1

c-110-1

D-701-1

P-101-'1

P-151-1

P-152-1

P-1 53-1

P-207-1

P-403-1

P-602-1

P-603-1

P-610-1

P-620-1

Contractor Quality Control Program (CCP)

Mobilization

Method of Estimating Percentage of MaterialWithin Spec. Limits (PWL).

Pipe for Storm Drains and Cu|verts................

Preparation/Removal of Existing Pavements

Clearing and Grubbing..............

Excavation, Subgrade, and Embankment......

Controlled Low Strength Material (CLSM)

ln-place Full Depth Reclamation Recycled Asphalt Aggregate Base Course

Asphalt Mix Pavement .............

Bituminous Prime Coat...

Bituminous Tack Coat.

Concrete for Miscellaneous Structures

Runway and Taxiway Marking.



Item C-100 Contractor Quality Control Program (CQCP)

100-l General. Quality is more than test results. Quality is the combination of proper materials, testing,
workmanship, equipment, inspection, and documentation of the project. Establishing and maintaining a

culture of quality is key to achieving a quality project. The Contractor shall establish, provide, and maintain
an effective Contractor Quality Control Program (CQCP) that details the methods and procedures that will
be taken to assure that all materials and completed construction required by this contract conform to contract
plans, technical specifications and otherrequirements, whethermanufacturedbythe Contractor, orprocured
from subcontractors or vendors. Although guidelines are established and certain minimum requirements
are specified here and elsewhere in the contract technical specifications, the Contractor shall assume full
responsibility for accomplishing the stated purpose.

The Contractor shall establish a CQCP that will:

a. Provide qualified personnel to develop and implement the CQCP.

b. Provide for the production of acceptable quality materials.

c. Provide sufficient information to assure that the specification requirements can be met.

d. Document the CQCP process.

The Contractor shall not begin any construction or production of materials to be incorporated into the
completed work until the CQCP has been reviewed and approved by the Resident Project Representative
(RPR). No partial payment will be made for materials subject to specific quality control (QC) requirements

until the CQCP has been reviewed and approved.

The QC requirements contained in this section and elsewhere in the contract technical specifications are in
addition to and separate from the quality assurance (QA) testing requirements. QA testing requirements are

the responsibility of the RPR or Contractor as specifred in the specifications.

A Quality Control (Qc)/Quality Assurance (QA) workshop with the Engineer, Resident Project
Representative (RPR), Contractor, subcontractors, testing laboratories, and Owner's representative must be

held prior to start of construction. The QC/QA workshop will be facilitated by the Contractor. The
Contractor shall coordinate with the Airport and the RPR on time and location of the QC/QA workshop.
Items to be addressed, at a minimum, will include:

a. Review of the CQCP including submittals, QC Testing, Action & Suspension Limits for Production,

Corrective Action Plans, Distribution of QC reports, and Control Charts.

b. Discussion of the QA program.

c. Discussion of the QC and QA Organization and authority including coordination and information
exchange between QC and QA.

d. Establish regular meetings to discuss control of materials, methods and testing.

e. Establishment of the overall QC culture.

100-2 Description of program.

a. General description. The Contractor shall establish a CQCP to perform QC inspection and testing

of all items of work required by the technical specifications, including those performed by subcontractors.
The CQCP shall ensure conformance to applicable specifications and plans with respect to materials, off-

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C-IOO-I



site fabrication, workrnanship, construction, finish, and functional performance. The CQCP shall be
effective for control of all construction work performed under this Contract and shall specifically include
surveillance and tests required by the technical specifications, in addition to other requirements of this
section and any other activities deemed necessary by the Contactor to establish an effective level of QC.

b. Contractor Quality Control Program (CQCP). The Contractor shall describe the CQCP in a
written document that shall be reviewed and approved by the RPR prior to the start of any production,
construction, or off-site fabrication. The written CQCP shall be submitted to the RPR for review and
approval at least l0 calendar days before the CQCP Workshop. The Contractor's CQCP and QC testing
laboratory must be approved in writing by the RPR prior to the Notice to Proceed (NTP).

The CQCP shall be organized to address, as a minimum, the following:

l. QC organization and resumes of key staff

2. Projectprogress schedule

3. Submittals schedule

4. Inspection requirernents

5. QC testing plan

6. Documentation of QC activities and distribution of QC reports

7. Requirements for corrective action when QC and/or QA acceptance criteria are not met

8. Material quality and construction means and methods. Address all elements applicable to the
project that affect the quality ofthe pavement structure including subgrade, subbase, base, and
surface course. Some elements that must be addressed include, but is not limited to mix desigrr,
aggregate grading, stockpile management, mixing and transporting, placing and finishing,
quality control testing and inspection, smoothness, laydown plan, equipment, and temperature
management plan.

The Contractor must add any additional elements to the CQCP that is necessary to adequately control all
production and/or construction processes required by this contract.

100-3 CQCP organization. The CQCP shall be implunented by the establishment of a QC organization.
An organizational chart shall be developed to show all QC personnel, their authority, and how these
personnel integrate with other management/production and construction functions and personnel.

The organizational chart shall idenfifu all QC staff by name and function, and shall indicate the total staff
required to implernent all elements of the CQCP, including inspection and testing for each item of work. If
necessary, different technicians can be used for specific inspection and testing functions for different items
of work. If an outside organization or independent testing laboratory is used for implementation of all or
part of the CQCP, the personnel assigned shall be subject to the qualification requirements of paragraphs
100-03a and 100-03b. The organizational chart shall indicate which personnel are Contractor employees
and which are provided by an outside organization.

The QC organization shall, as a minimum, consist of the following personnel:

a. Program Administrator. The Contractor Quality Control Program Administrator (CQCPA) must
be a fulltime on-site employee of the Contractor, or a consultant engaged by the Contractor. The CQCPA
must have a minimum of five (5) years of experience in QC pavement construction with prior QC
experience on a project ofcomparable size and scope as the contract.

Included in the five (5) years of paving/QC experience, the CQCPA must meet at least one of the
following requirements :

(1) Professional Engineer with one (l) year ofairport paving experience.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C-IOO-2



(2) Engineer-in-training with two (2) years of airport paving experience.

(3) National Institute for Certification in Engineering Technologies (NICET) Civil Engineering
Technology Level IV with three (3) years of airport paving experience.

(4) An individual with four (4) years of airport paving experience, with a Bachelor of Science

Degree in Civil Engineering, Civil Engineering Technology or Construction.

The CQCPA must have full authority to institute any and all actions necessary for the successful

implanentation of the CQCP to ensure compliance with the contract plans and technical specifications. The

CQCPA authority must include the ability to immediately stop production until materials and/or processes

are in compliance with contract specifications. The CQCPA must report directly to a principal officer of
the construction firm. The CQCPA may supervise the Quality Control Program on more than one project
provided that person can be at the job site within trvo (2) hours after being notified of a problem.

b. QC technicians. A sufficient number of QC technicians necessary to adequately implement the

CQCP must be provided. These personnel must be either Engineers, engineering technicians, or
experienced craftsman with qualifications in the appropriate field equivalent to NICET Level II in Civil
Engineering Technology or higher, and shall have a minimum of two (2) years of experience in their area

ofexpertise.

The QC technicians must report directly to the CQCPA and shall perform the following functions:

(1) Inspection of all materials, construction, plant, and equipment for conformance to the technical

specifi cations, and as required by paragraph 1 00-6.

(2) Performance ofall QC tests as required by the technical specifications and paragraphlO0-8.

(3) Performance of tests for the RPR when required by the technical specifications.

Certification at an equivalent level ofqualification and experience by a state or nationally recognized

organization will be acceptable in lieu of NICET certification.

c. Staffing levels. The Contractor shall provide sufficient qualified QC personnel to monitor each work
activity at all times. Where material is being produced in a plant for incorporation into the work, separate
plant and field technicians shall be provided at each plant and field placement location. The scheduling and

coordinating of all inspection and testing must match the type and pace of work activity. The CQCP shall
state where different technicians will be required for different work elernents.

100-4 Project progress schedule. Critical QC activities must be shown on the project schedule as required

by Section 80, paragraph 80-03, Execution and Progress.

100-5 Submittals schedule. The Contractor shall submit a detailed listing of all submiuals (for example,
mix designs, material certifications) and shop drawings required by the technical specifrcations. The listing
can be developed in a spreadsheet format and shall include as a minimum:

a. Specification item number

b. Item description

c. Description of submittal

d. Specification paragraph requiring submittal

e. Scheduled date of submittal

100-6Inspection requirements. QC inspection functions shall be organized to provide inspections for all
definable features of work, as detailed below. All inspections shall be documented by the Contractor as

specified by paragraph 100-9.

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C-IOO-3



Inspections shall be performed as needed to ensure continuing compliance with contract requirements until
completion of the particular feature of work. Inspections shall include the following minimum
requirements:

a. During plant operation for material production, QC test results and periodic inspections shall be used
to ensure the quality of aggregates and other mix components, and to adjust and control mix proportioning
to meet the approved mix design and other requirements of the technical specifications. All equipment used
in proportioning and mixing shall be inspected to ensure its proper operating condition. The CQCP shall
detail how these and other QC functions will be accomplished and used.

b. During field operations, QC test results and periodic inspections shall be used to ensure the quality
of all materials and workmanship. All equipment used in placing, finishing, and compacting shall be
inspected to ensure its proper operating condition and to ensure that all such operations are in conformance
to the technical specifications and are within the plan dimensions, lines, grades, and tolerances specified.
The CQCP shall document how these and other QC functions will be accomplished and used.

100-7 Contractor QC testing facility.

a. For projects that include Item P-401, Itern P-403, and Item P404, the Contractor shall ensure
facilities, including all necessary equipment, materials, and current reference standards, are provided that
meet requirements in the following paragraphs of ASTM D3666, Standqrd Specification for Minimum
Requirementsfor Agencies Testing and Inspecting Road and Paving Materials:

8.1.3 Equipment Calibration and Checks;

8.1.9 Equipment Calibration, Standardization, and Check Records;

8.1.12 Test Methods and Procedures

b. For projects that include P-501, the Contractor shall ensure facilities, including all necessary
equipment, materials, and current reference standards, are provided that meet requirements in the following
paragraphs of ASTM C1077, Standard Practice for Agencies Testing Concrete and Concrete Aggregates
for Use in Construction and Criteria for Testing Agency Evaluation:

7 Test Methods and Procedures

8 Facilities, Equipment, and Supplemental Procedures

100-8 QC testing plan. As a part of the overall CQCP, the Contractor shall implement a QC testing plan,
as required by the technical specifications. The testing plan shall include the minimum tests and test
frequencies required by each technical specification Item, as well as any additional QC tests that the
Contractor deems necessary to adequately control production and/or construction processes.

The QC testing plan can be developed in a spreadsheet fashion and shall, as a minimum, include the
following:

a. Specification item number (e.g., P-401)

b. Item description (e.g., Hot Mix Asphalt Pavernents)

c. Test type (e.g., gradation, grade, asphalt content)

d. Test standard (e.g., ASTM or American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
(AASHTO) test number, as applicable)

e. Test frequency (e.g., as required by technical specifications or minimum frequency when
requiranents are not stated)

f. Responsibility (e.g., plant technician)

g. Control requirements (e.g., target, permissible deviations)

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C-IOO4



The QC testing plan shall contain a statistically-based procedure of random sampling for acquiring test
samples in accordance with ASTM D3665. The RPR shall be provided the opportunity to witness QC
sampling and testing.

All QC test results shall be documented by the Contractor as required by paragraph 100-9.

100-9 Documentation. The Contractor shall maintain current QC records of all inspections and tests
performed. These records shall include factual evidence that the required QC inspections or tests have been
performed, including type and number of inspections or tests involved; results of inspections or tests; nature
ofdefects, deviations, causes for rejection, etc.; proposed remedial action; and corrective actions taken.

These records must cover both conforming and defective or deficient features, and must include a staternent

that all supplies and materials incorporated in the work are in full compliance with the terms of the contract.
Legible copies of these records shall be furnished to the RPR daily. The records shall cover all work placed

subsequent to the previously furnished records and shall be verified and sigrred by the CQCPA.

Contractor QC records required for the contract shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, the

following records:

a. Daily inspection reports. Each Contractor QC technician shall maintain a daily log of all inspections
performed for both Contractor and subcontractor operations. These technician's daily reports shall provide
factual evidence that continuous QC inspections have been performed and shall, as a minimum, include the
following:

(1) Technical specification item number and description

(2) Compliance with approved submittals

(3) Proper storage of materials and equipment

(4) Proper operation of all equipment

(5) Adherence to plans and technical specifications

(6) Summary of any necessary corrective actions

(7) Safetyinspection.

(8)Photographs and/or video

The daily inspection reports shall identify all QC inspections and QC tests conducted, results of inspections,
location and nature of defects found, causes for rejection, and remedial or corrective actions taken or
proposed.

The daily inspection reports shall be sigrred by the responsible QC technician and the CQCPA. The RPR
shall be provided at least one copy of each daily inspection report on the work day following the day of
record. When QC inspection and test results are recorded and transmitted electronically, the results must be
archived.

b. Daity test reports. The Contractor shall be responsible for establishing a system that will record all

QC test results. Daily test reports shall document the following information:

(l) Technical specification item number and description

(2) Test designation

(3) Location

(4) Date of test

(5) Control requirernents

(6) Test results

(7) Causes for rejection

(8) Recommended remedial actions

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT RETIABILITATION C-1OO-5



(9) Retests

Test results from each day's work period shall be submitted to the RPR prior to the start of the next day's
work period. When required by the technical specifications, the Contractor shall maintain statistical QC
charts. When QC daily test results are recorded and transmitted electronically, the results must be archived.

100-10 Corrective action requirements. The CQCP shall indicate the appropriate action to be taken when
a process is deemed, or believed, to be out of conffol (out of tolerance) and detail what action will be taken
to bring the process into control. The requirements for corrective action shall include both general
requirements for operation of the CQCP as a whole, and for individual items of work contained in the
technical specifi cations.

The CQCP shall detail how the results of QC inspections and tests will be used for determining the need
for corrective action and shall contain clear rules to gauge when a process is out of control and the type of
correction to be taken to regain process control.

When applicable or required by the technical specifications, the Contractor shall establish and use statistical

QC charts for individual QC tests. The requirements for corrective action shall be linked to the control
charts.

100-11 Inspection and/or observations by the RPR All items of material and equipment are subject to
inspection and/or observation by the RPR at the point of production, manufacture or shipment to determine
if the Contractor, producer, manufacturer or shipper maintains an adequate QC systun in conformance with
the requirements detailed here and the applicable technical specifications and plans. In addition, all items
of materials, equipment and work in place shall be subject to inspection and/or observation by the RPR at
the site for the same purpose.

Inspection and/or observations by the RPR does not relieve the Contractor of performing QC inspections
of either on-site or off-site Contractor's or subcontractor's work.

100-12 Noncompliance.

a. The Resident Project Representative (RPR) will provide written notice to the Contractor of any
noncompliance with their CQCP. After receipt of such notice, the Contractor must take corrective action.

b. When QC activities do not comply with either the CQCP or the contract provisions or when the
Contractor fails to properly operate and maintain an effective CQCP, and no effective corrective actions
have been taken after notification of non-compliance, the RPR will recommend the Owner take the
following actions:

(1) Order the Contractor to replace ineffective or unqualified QC personnel or subcontractors and/or

(2) Order the Contractor to stop operations until appropriate corrective actions are taken.

METHOD OF MEAST]REMENT

100-13 Basis of measurement and payment. Contractor Quality Control Program (CQCP) is for the
personnel, tests, facilities and documentation required to implement the CQCP. The CQCP will be paid as

a lump sum with the following schedule of partial payments:

a. With first pay request, 25Yo with approval of CQCP and completion of the Quality Control
(Qc)iQuality Assurance (QA) workshop.

b. When 25Yo or more of the original contract is earned, an additional 25%o.

c. When 500/o or more of the original contract is earned, an additional20Yo.

d. When 7 SYo or more of the original contract is earned, an additional 20Yo

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C.1OO-6



e. After final inspection and acceptance ofproject, the final 10%

BASIS OF PAYMENT

100-14 Paymentwill be made under:

Item C-100 Contractor Quality Control Program (CQCP) -Lump Sum

REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are
referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

National Institute for Certification in Engineering Technologies (NICET)

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM C1077 Standard Practice for Agencies Testing Concrete and Concrete Aggregates
for Use in Construction and Criteria for Testing Agency Evaluation

ASTM D3665 Standmd Practice for Random Sampling of Construction Materials

ASTM D3666 Standard Specification for Minimum Requirements for Agencies Testing
and Inspecting Road and Paving Materials

EI\D OF ITEM C.IOO

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C-1OO-7



Item C-105 Mobilization

105-1 Description. This item of work shall consist of, but is not limited to, work and operations necessary
for the movement of personnel, equipment, material and supplies to and from the project site for work on
the project except as provided in the contract as separate pay items. Mobilization includes the procurement,
installation, maintenance, removal and storage on site of two fabric yellow nrnway closure crosses and 8
water filled barricades with flags and flashers.

105-2 Mobilization limit. Mobilization shall be limited to 5 percent of the total project cost.

105-3 Posted notices. Prior to commencement of construction activities, the Contractor must post the
following documents in a prominent and accessible place where they may be easily viewed by all
ernployees of the prime Contractor and by all employees of subcontractors engaged by the prime
Contractor: Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Poster "Equal Employment Opporfunity is the Law" in
accordance with the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs Executive Order I 1246, as amended;
Davis Bacon Wage Poster (WH l32l) - DOL "Notice to All Employees" Poster; and Applicable Davis-
Bacon Wage Rate Determination. These notices must remain posted until final acceptance of the work by
the Owner.

105-4 Engineer/RPR field office. An Engineer/RPR field oflice is not required.

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

105-5 Basis of measurement and payment. Based upon the contract lump sum price for "Mobilization"
partial payments will be allowed as follows:

a. With first pay request,21Yo.

b. When 25Yo or more of the original contract is earned, an additional2l%o.

c. When 500/o or more of the original contract is earned, an additional 40%.

d. After Final Inspection, Staging area clean-up and delivery of all Project Closeout materials as

required by Section 90, paragraph 90-l l, Contractor Final Project Documentation, the final llYo.

BASIS OFPAYMENT

105-6 Payment will be made under:

Item C-105 Mobilization-Lump Sum

REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic desigrration only.

Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP)

Executive Order 11246, as amended

EEOC-P/E-I - Equal Employment Opportunity is the Law Poster

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C-105.1



United States Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division (WHD)

WH 1321 - Employee Rights under the Davis-Bacon Act Poster

EI\D OF ITEM C.105

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION C-IO5-2



Item C-110 Method of Estimating Percentage of Material Within Specification Limits (PWL)

110-1 General. When the specifications provide for acceptance of material based on the method of
estimating percentage of material within specification limits (PWL), the PWL will be determined in
accordance with this section. All test results for a lot will be analyzed statistically to determine the total
estimated percent of the lot that is within specification limits. The PWL is computed using the sample
average (X) and sample standard deviation (Sf of the specified number (n) of sublots for the lot and the
specification tolerance limits, L for lower and U for upper, for the particular acceptance parameter. From
these values, the respective Quality index, Qr- for Lower Quality lndex and/or Qu for Upper Quality Index,
is computed and the PWL for the lot for the specified n is determined from Table 1. All specification limits
specified in the technical sections shall be absolute values. Test results used in the calculations shall be to
the significant figure given in the test procedure.

There is some degree of uncertainty (risk) in the measurement for acceptance because only a small fraction
of production material (the population) is sampled and tested. This uncertainty exists because all portions
of the production material have the same probability to be randomly sampled. The Contractor's risk is the
probability that material produced at the acceptable quality level is rejected or subjected to a pay adjustment.
The Owner's risk is the probability that material produced at the rejectable quality level is accepted.

It is the intent of this section to inform the Contractor that, in order to consistently offset the Contractor's
risk for material evaluated, production quality (using population average and population standard deviation)
must be maintained at the acceptable quality specified or higher. In all cases, it is the responsibility of the
Contractor to produce at quality levels that will meet the specified acceptance criteria when sampled and
tested at the frequencies specified.

110-2 Method for computing PWL. The computational sequence for computing PWL is as follows:

a. Divide the lot into n sublots in accordance with the acceptance requirernents of the specification.

b. Locate the random sampling position within the sublot in accordance with the requirements of the
specification.

c. Make a measurement at each location, or take a test portion and make the measurement on the test
portion in accordance with the testing requirernents of the specification.

d. Find the sample average (X) for all sublot test values within the lot by using the following formula:

X=(*t*xz*xt+...to)/o
Where: X: Sample average of all sublot test values within a lot

xt>xzz.. .x": lndividual sublot test values

n: Number of sublot test values

e. Find the sample standard deviation (S,) bV use of the following formula:

So = [(dr2 + dzz * dr2 + . . .d"2y(n-1)]r/2

Where: Sn: Sample standard deviation of the number of sublot test values in the set

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION c-l l0-l



dr, dz, .. .dn: Deviations of the individual sublot test values Xl, X2, ... from the average

value X
that is: dr : (xr - X), dz : (xz - X) ... d. : (x, - X)
n: Number of sublot test values

f. For single sided specification limits (i.e., L only), compute the Lower Quality Index Qr by use of the
following formula:

Qr=(X-L)/S"
Where: L: specification lower tolerance limit

Estimate the percentage of material within limits (PWL) by entering Table 1 with Qr,, using the column
appropriate to the total number (n) of measurernents. If the value of Qr- falls between values shown on the
table, use the next higher value of PWL.

g. For double-sided specification limits (i.e., L and U), compute the Quality lndexes Qr and Qu by use

of the following formulas:

Qr=(X_L)/S"
and

eu=(U_X)/S.
Where: L and U: specification lower and upper tolerance limits

Estimate the percentage of material between the lower (L) and upper (U) tolerance limits (PWL) by
entering Table 1 separately with Qr and Qu, using the column appropriate to the total number (n) of
measurements, and determining the percent of material above Pr, and percent of material below Pu for each

tolerance limit. If the values of Qr- fall between values shown on the table, use the next higher value of Pr.

or Pu. Determine the PWL by use of the following formula:

PWL=(Pu+Pr)-100

Where: PL: percent within lower specification limit
Pu: percent within upper specification limit

EXAMPLE OF PWL CALCTJLATION

Projecfi Example Project

Test Item: Item P-401, Lot A.

A. PWL Determination for Mat Density.

1. Density of four random cores taken from Lot A.

A-l :96.60

A-2:97.55
A-3:99.30
A-4 = 98.35

n:4

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION c-tL0-2



2. Calculate average density for the lot.

X:(xr+x2+x3+...xo)/n
x : (96.60 + 97.ss + 99.30 + 98.35) I 4

X:97.95% density

3. Calculate the standard deviation for the lot.

s":[((96.60 -97.9r2 +(97.ss -97.9r2+(e9.30 -97.9r2+(98.35 -97.9r\)t(4-D]t/z
sll: [(1.82+ 0.16 + t.82+0.16) t3ln
S':1.15

4. Calculate the Lower Quality Index Qr for the lot. (L:96.3)

Q": (x -L) / S'

Qr,: (97.95 - 96.30) I t.rs
Qr: 1.4348

5. Determine PWL by entering Table I with Qs: 1.44 and,n:4.

PWL = 98

B. PWL Determination for Air Voids.

1. Air Voids of four random samples taken from Lot A.

A-l :5.00

A-2=3.74
A-3:2.30
A-4:3.25

2. Calculate the average air voids for the lot.

X:(xr*xz*x:...n)/n
x: (5.00 + 3.74 + 2.30 + 3.25) I 4

x:3.57%
3. Calculate the standard deviation Sn for the lot.

s. : [((3.s7 - s.00F + (3.s7 - 3.7 q2 + Q.s7 - 2s0)2 + (3.s7 -3.211 I (4 - t)lLD

s,: [(2.04 + 0.03 + 1.62 + 0.10) / 3lt2

So= 1.12

4. Calculate the Lower Quality Index Qp for the lot. (L= 2.0)

er,=(X_L)/S,
Qr=(3.57-2.00)ll.l2
Qr": 1.3992

5. Determine Pr by entering Table I with Qr : l.4l and n: 4.

Pu:97

6. Calculate the Upper Quality Index Qu for the lot. (U: 5.0)

Qu=(U-X)/S'
Qu: (5'00 -3.s7) / t.r2

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION c-t l0-3



Qu:1.2702

7. Determine Pu by entering Table 1 with Qu : 1.29 and n : 4.

Pu: 93

8. Calculate AirVoids PWL

pWL: (pr, + pu) _ 100

PWL: (97 + 93) - 100: 90

EXAMPLE OF OUTLIER CALCULATTON (REFERENCE ASTM E178)

Project: Example Project

Test Item: Item P-401, Lot A.

A. Outlier Determination for Mat Density.

1. Density offour random cores taken from Lot A aranged in descending order.

A-3 :99.30

A-4:98.3s
A-2:97.s5
A-1 :96.60

2. From ASTM E178, Table 1, for n4 an upper 5% sipificance level, the critical value for test

criterion :1.463.

3. Use average density, standard deviation, and test criterion value to evaluate density measurements

a. For measurements greater than the average:

If (measurement - average)/(standard deviation) is less than test criterion,
then the measurernent is not considered an outlier.

For A-3, check if (99.30 -97.95) / 1.15 is greater thanl.463.
Since 1 . 174 is less than I .463, the value is not an outlier.

b. For measurements less than the average:

If (average - measurement)/(standard deviation) is less than test criterion,
then the measurernent is not considered an outlier.

For A-1, check if (97.95 - 96.60) / 1.15 is greater thanl.463.
Since 1.435 is less than l.463,the value is not an outlier.

Note: In this example, a measurement would be considered an outlier if the density were:

Greater than (97.95 + 1.463 x 1.15) :99.63%

OR

less than (97.95 - 1.463 x l.l5) : 96.27%.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION c-110-4



Percent Within
Limits

(Pr and Pu)

Positive Values of Q (Qr, and Qu)

n=3 n=4 n=5 n=6 n4 n=8 n4 n=l0

99 1.1541 1.4700 1.6714 1.8008 1.8888 1.9520 1.9994 2.0362
g8 1.1524 L4400 1.6016 1.6982 1.7612 l.80s3 1.8379 1.8630
97 1.1496 I .4100 1 s427 1.6181 1.6661 1.6993 1.7235 1.7420

96 1'l456 | .3800 1.4897 1.5497 I 5871 1.6127 I 6it3 1 6454

95 I .1405 1.3s00 1.440'7 1.4887 I.5t8l 1.5381 I .s525 I.5635
94 1,1342 1.3200 1.3946 1.4329 t.4s6t 1.47t7 1.4829 1.4914
93 |.t269 1.2900 1.3508 1.3810 L3991 1.4112 1.4199 1.426s
92 l.ll84 1.2600 I i088 1.3323 1.3461 1.3554 1.3620 1.3670
91 1 .1 089 1.2300 1.2681 r.2850 1.2964 t.3032 1.3081 l.3l't8
90 1.0982 r.2000 1.2290 1.2419 1.2492 1.2s4t 1.2s76 1.2602
89 1.0864 1.1700 1.1909 1.1995 1.2043 1.2075 1.2098 1.2115
88 1,0116 I 1400 I 15i7 l.1587 L l613 1. I 630 1.1643 1.1653
87 1.0s97 l.|00 I .1 t'71 1 t1S2 I l lSg 1 1),04 r l20R 1 1).1),

86 1.0448 1.0800 1.0817 1.080R r.0800 1.0794 1.0791 1.0789

85 1.0288 1.0500 1.046'7 1.0435 I .0413 1.0399 I.0389 1.0382
&4 1.0119 1.0200 1.0t24 1.0071 1.0037 1.0015 1.0000 0.9990
83 0.9s39 0 ss00 0.978s 0.9715 0.9671 0.9643 0.9624 0.9610
82 0.9749 0.9600 0 9452 0 9157 0 si't5 0 g?Rl 0 q25R o 9)41

81 0.9s50 0.9300 0.9123 0_9025 0.8966 0.8928 0.8901 0.8882

80 0.9342 0.9000 0.8799 0.8690 0.8625 0.8583 0.8554 0.8533
79 0.9124 0.8700 0.8478 0.8360 0.8291 0.8245 0.8214 0.8 I 92

78 0.8897 0.8400 0 8160 0.8036 0.7962 0.7915 0.7882 0.7858
77 0.8662 0.8100 0.7846 0.7716 o.7640 0.75S0 0.7556 0 Tsit
76 0.8417 0.7800 0.7535 0,7401 0.7322 0.7271 0.7236 0.7211
75 0.8165 0.7s00 0.7226 0.7089 0.7009 0.6958 0.6922 0.6896
74 0.7904 0.7200 0.6921 0.6781 0.6701 0.6649 0.6613 0.6587
'13 0.7(136 0 6900 0 6517 0.6477 0.6396 0.6344 0.6308 0.6282
'72 0.7360 0.6500 0.53r 6 o.61',76 0 60ss 0 6044 0 600R 0 5982

7l 0.7077 0.6300 0.6016 0.5878 0.57S8 0.5747 0.5712 0.s586
70 0.6'787 0.6000 0.5719 0.s582 0.s504 0.s4s4 0.s4r 9 0.5394
69 0.6490 0.5700 0.5423 0.5290 0.5213 0.5164 0.5130 0.5105
68 0.5187 0 5400 0.s129 0.4999 0.4924 0.4877 0.4844 0.4820
67 0.5878 0.5 100 0.4836 o.4710 0.4618 o.4592 0 4560 o 4577

66 0.5563 0.4800 0_4545 0.4424 0.435s 0.4310 0.4280 0.4257
65 0.5242 0.4500 0.4255 0.4139 0.40'73 0.4030 0.4001 0.3980
64 0.4916 0.4200 0.3967 0.3856 0.3793 0.37s3 0.3725 0.3705
63 0.4sR5 0.3900 0.3679 0.3575 0.3515 0.3477 0.3451 0.3432
62 0.4251 0.3600 0.1792 0.32S5 0.i239 0.3203 0.3179 0 3l6t
6l 0.391 I 0.3300 0.3107 0.3016 0.2964 0.2931 0.2908 0.2852
60 0.3568 0.3000 0.2822 0.2738 0.2691 0.2660 0.2639 0.2624
5g 0.3222 0.2700 0.2s37 0.2461 0.2418 0.2391 0.2372 0.2358
58 0.2R12 o ).40n 0.2254 0.2t86 0.2147 0.2122 0.2105 0.2093
57 0.2519 0.2100 0.197'l 0 t9tI 018'7',7 0 1855 0 tR40 0 lR2g

56 0.2164 0.1 800 0.1 688 0-t 636 0. t 607 0. I 588 0.1 575 0. t s65
55 0. I 806 0.1 500 0.1406 0.1 363 0.1 338 0.1322 0.1312 0.1 304
54 0.1447 0.1200 0.1 l2s 0. l 090 0.1070 0. I 057 0.1049 0.1042
53 0. I 087 0 0900 0.0843 0.0817 0.0802 0.0793 0.0786 0.0781
52 0.0725 0.0500 0.0562 0 0544 0 05i4 0 0528 o os24 0.0521

51 0.0363 0.0300 0.0281 0.0272 0 0261 0.0264 o.0262 0 0260

50 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Table l. Table for Estimating Percent of Lot Within Limits (PWL)

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION c-l10-5



Percent
Within
Limits

(Pr and Pu)

Negative Values of Q (Qr- and Qu)

n=3 n=4 n:5 n=6 n:7 n=8 n:9 n=10

49 -0 036i -0.0300 -0.0281 -0.0272 -0.0267 -0.0264 -0.0262 -0 0260

48 -0.0725 -0.0600 -0.0562 -0.0544 -0.0534 -0.0528 -0 0524 -0.0521

47 -0. I 087 -0.0900 -0.0843 -0 0R1 7 -0 0802 -0.0793 -0.0786 -0.078 1

46 -0.1447 -0 I 200 -0 I 125 -0.1 0s0 -0. I 070 -0. I 057 -0.1 049 -0.1042

45 -0 I 806 -0. I 500 -0.1406 -0. I 363 -0.1338 -0.1322 -0.1312 -0. I 304

44 -0.2164 -0. I 800 -0. I 688 -0.1 636 -0. I 607 -0 I s88 -0. I 575 -0. I 566

43 -0.2519 -0.2100 -0.1971 -0 tgl I -0.1877 -0. I 85s -0. I 840 -0.1 829

42 -0.2872 -0.2400 -0.22s4 -0.2186 -0.2147 -0.2122 -0.2105 -0.2093

41 -0.1222 -0.2700 -0.2s37 -0.246r -0.2418 -0.2391 -0.2372 -0.235R

40 -0.3568 -0.3000 -0.2822 -0.2738 -o 2691 -0 2660 -0.2539 -0.2624

39 -0.3911 -0.3300 -0 il07 -0 iOr6 -o.2964 -0.2911 -0.2908 -0.2892

38 -0.4251 -0 i600 -0.1392 -0.129s -0.3239 -0.3203 -0.3r79 -0.3161

3t -0.4586 -0.3900 -0.36',79 -0.3s75 -0.3515 -u.54 t I -0.345 1 -0.1432

16 -0.4916 -0.4200 -0.3967 -0.3856 -0.3793 -0 iTsi -0.1725 -0.3705

35 -0.5242 -0.4500 -0.42ss -0 4t 39 -0.4071 -0.4030 -0.400 I -0.3980

34 -0 ss6i -0.4800 -0.4545 -0.4424 -0.4355 -0.4310 -0.4280 -o 4257
jj -0.5878 -0.5100 -0.4836 -0.4710 -0.4638 -0.4592 -0 4560 -0.4537

32 -0.61 87 -0.5400 -0.5129 -0 4sgg -o 4924 -0.48'77 -0.4844 -0.4820

3l -0.6490 -0 5700 -0 5427 -0.5290 -0.5213 -0.5 I 64 -0.5 130 -0.5105

30 -0 6'787 -0.6000 -0.5719 -0.5582 -0.5504 -0.5454 -0.5419 -0.s394

29 -0.7077 -0.6300 -0.6016 -0.5878 -0.5798 -0.5747 -o 5112 -0.5686

28 -0.7360 -0.6600 -0.6316 -0.6176 -0.6095 -o.6044 -0.6008 -0.5982

27 -0.7636 -0 6900 -o.6617 -0.5477 -0.6396 -0.6344 -0.6308 -0.6282

26 -o.7904 -0.7200 -0.6921 -0.6781 -0.6701 -0.6649 -0.6613 -0.6587

2s -0.81 65 -0.7s00 -0.7226 -0.7089 -0.7009 -0 6s5R -0 6922 -0.6896

24 -0.8417 -0.7800 -0.7535 -o'7401 -0 7122 -0.'7271 -0.72\6 -0.7211

23 -o &662. -0.8100 -0.7846 -0.7716 -0.7640 -0.7590 -0.7556 -0.7531

22 -0.8897 -0.8400 -0.8160 -0.8036 -0.7962 -0.7915 -0.7882 -0.7858

2t -0.9124 -0.8700 -0.8478 -0.8360 -0.8291 -0 8245 -0.8214 -0.8 192

20 -0.9342 -0.9000 -0 87gg -0.8690 -0.852s -0.8583 -0.8554 -0.8s33

19 -0 gssO -0.9300 -0.9123 -0.9025 -0.8966 -0.8928 -0.8901 -0.8882

IR -0.9149 -0.9600 -0.9452 -0.9367 -0.93 1 5 -0.928 I -0.9258 -0 9241

t7 -0.9s39 -0.9900 -0.9785 -0.9715 -o 95"71 -0 9641 -o.9624 -0.9610

16 -1.01 l9 -1.0200 1 fi1).4 -l 0071 -t.00i7 -l.00ls -1.0000 -0.9990

15 -1.0288 -l .0500 -1.0467 -1.043s -l .0413 -1.0399 -1.0389 -1.0382

14 -1.0448 -1.0800 -1.0817 -1.0808 -1.0800 -t.0794 -1,0791 -1.078s

ti -1.0597 -1. I 100 -t.1173 -1.n92 1.1 199 -'t 1204 -1.1208 -1.1212

t2 -t.0736 -1. l 400 -t 1511 -1.1587 I .l61 3 -1 .1 630 -1.1643 -1.1653

ll - 1.0864 -r.t700 -l.lg09 -1 .1 995 -1.2043 -1.2075 1.2098 -1.21l5

10 -1.0982 1.2000 -1.2290 -1.2419 -1.2492 -t.2s41 1.2576 -1 2602
g -1 .1 089 1.2300 -1.2683 -1.2860 -1.2964 -r i032 l .i08l -1.31l8

8 -1.1 I 84 -1.2600 -1 30R8 -1 1121 -1 7461 -1.3554 -1.3620 -1.3670

7 -t.1269 -l 2900 -1.3508 -r.3810 -1.3991 -t.4112 -1.4199 -1.4265

6 -t 1742 -r.3200 -1.3946 -1.4329 -t.4s6l -1.4717 -1.4829 -1.4914

5 -t .1 405 -1.3s00 -1.4407 -1.4887 -1.5181 -1.538 I -l s525 -t.s635

4 -1.1456 -1.3800 -1.4897 -1.5497 -l.5871 -1 .6127 -1.6313 -1.64s4

3 -1.t496 -1.4100 -t 5427 -t .61 8l -1.5661 -1.6993 -1.7235 -1.7420

2 -1.1524 -1 4400 -l .6016 -1.5982 -'t.7612 - I .8053 -1.8379 -l.8630
1 -t.l54l -1.4700 -1.6714 -1.8008 -1.8888 -1.9520 -1.9994 -2.0362

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION c-l 10-6



REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications af,e

referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM El78 Standard Practice for Dealing with Outlying Observations

EI\D OF ITEM C-110

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION c-l10-7



Item D-701 Pipe for Storm Drains and Culverts

DESCRIPTION

701-1.1 This item shall consist ofthe construction ofpipe culverts and storm drains in accordance with
these specifications and in reasonably close conformity with the lines and grades shown on the plans.

MATERIALS

701-2.1Materials shall meet the requiranents shown on the plans and specified below. Underground piping
and components used in drainage systems for terminal and aircraft fueling ramp drainage shall be
noncombustible and inert to fuel in accordance with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 415.

701-2.2 Pipe. The pipe shall be of the type called for on the plans or in the proposal and shall be in
accordance with the following appropriate requirements:

ASTM C76 Standard Specification for Reinforced Concrete Culvert, Storm Drain,
and Sewer Pipe

ASTM C655 Standard Specification for Reinforced Concrete D-Load Culvert, Storm
Drain, and Sewer Pipe

ASTM C1433 Standard Specification for Precast Reinforced Concrete Monolithic Box
Sections for Culverts, Storm Drains, and Sewers

ASTM C1479 Standard Practice for Installation of Precast Concrete Sewer, Storm
Drain, and Culvert Pipe Using Standard Installations

ASTM C1577 Standard Specification for Precast Reinforced Concrete Monolithic Box
Sections for Culverts, Storm Drains, and Sewers Designed According to
AASHTO LRFD

ASTM Cl840 Standard Practice for lnspection and Acceptance of lnstalled Reinforced
Concrete Culvert, Storm Drain, and Storm Sewer Pipe

70L-2.3 Concrete. Concrete for pipe cradles shall have a minimum compressive strength of 2000 psi at 28

days and conform to the requirements of ASTM C94.

701-2.4 Rubber gaskets. Rubber gaskets for rigid pipe shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C443.
Rubber gaskets for PVC pipe, polyethylene, and polypropylene pipe shall conform to the requirements of
ASTM F477. Rubber gaskets for zinc-coated steel pipe and precoated galvanized pipe shall conform to the
requirements of ASTM D1056, for the "RE" closed cell grades. Rubber gaskets for steel reinforced
thermoplastic ribbed pipe shall conform to the requirements of ASTMF477.

701-2.5 Joint mortar. Pipe joint mortar shall consist of one part Portland cement and two parts sand. The

Portland cement shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C150, Tlpe I. The sand shall conform to the
requirements of ASTM C144.

701-2.6 Joint fillers. Poured filler for joints shall conform to the requirements of ASTM D6690.

701-2.7 Plastic gaskets. Plastic gaskets shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C6990.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION D-701-1



701-2.8. Controlled low-strength material (CLSiVt). Confrolled low-strength material shall conform to
the requirements of Item P-153. When CLSM is used, all joints shall have gaskets.

701-2.9 Precast box culverts. Manufactured in accordance with and conforming to ASTM C1433.

70L-2.10 Precast concrete pipe. Precast concrete structures shall be furnished by a plant meeting National
Precast Concrete Association Plant Certification Program or another RPR approved third party certification
program.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

701-3.1 Excavation. The width of the pipe trench shall be sufficient to permit satisfactory jointing of the
pipe and thorough tamping of the bedding material under and around the pipe, but it shall not be less than
the external diameter of the pipe plus 12 inches on each side. The trench walls shall be approximately
vertical.

The Contactor shall comply with all current federal, state and local rules and regulations governing the
safety of men and materials during the excavation, installation and backfilling operations. Specifically, the
Contractor shall observe that all requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration
(OSHA) relating to excavations, trenching and shoring are strictly adhered to. The width of the trench shall
be sufficient to permit satisfactorily jointing of the pipe and thorough compaction of the bedding material
under the pipe and backfill material around the pipe, but it shall not be greater than the widths shown on
the plans trench detail.

Where rock, hardpan, or other unyielding material is encountered, the Contractor shall remove it from
below the foundation grade for a depth of at least 8 inch (200 mm) or ll2 inch (12 mm) for each foot of fill
over the top of the pipe (whichever is greater) but for no more than three-quarters of the nominal diameter
of the pipe. The excavation below grade should be filled with granular material to form a uniform
foundation.

Where a firm foundation is not encountered at the grade established, due to soft, spongy, or other unstable
soil, the unstable soil shall be rernoved and replaced with approved granular material for the full trench
width. The RPR shall determine the depth of removal necessary. The granular material shall be compacted
to provide adequate support for the pipe.

The excavation for pipes placed in embankrnent fill shall not be made until the embankment has been
completed to a height above the top of the pipe as shown on the plans.

701-3.2 Bedding. The bedding surface for the pipe shall provide a foundation of uniform density to support
the pipe throughout its entire length.

a. Rigid pipe. The pipe bedding shall be constructed uniformly for the full length of the pipe barrel, as

required on the plans. The maximum aggregate size shall be I in when the bedding thickness is less than 6
inches, and,l-ll2 in when the bedding thickness is greater than 6 inches. Bedding shall be loosely placed
uncompacted material under the middle third of the pipe prior to placement of the pipe.

b. Flexible pipe. Not Used.

c. Other pipe materials. Not Used.

701-3.3 Layrng pipe. The pipe laying shall begin at the lowest point of the tench and proceed upgrade.
The lower segment of the pipe shall be in contact with the bedding throughout its full length. Bell or groove
ends of rigid pipes and outside circumferential laps of flexible pipes shall be placed facing upgrade.

Paved or partially lined pipe shall be placed so that the longitudinal center line of the paved segment
coincides with the flow line.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION D-7OL-2



Elliptical and elliptically reinforced concrete pipes shall be placed with the manufacturer's reference lines
desigrating the top of the pipe within five degrees of a vertical plane through the longitudinal axis of the
pipe.

701-3.4 Joining pipe. Joints shall be made with (l) cement mortar, (2) cement grout, (3) rubber gaskets,

(4) plastic gaskets, (5) coupling bands.

Mortar joints shall be made with an excess of mortar to form a continuous bead around the outside of the
pipe and shall be finished smooth on the inside. Molds or runners shall be used for grouted joints to retain
the poured grout. Rubber ring gaskets shall be installed to form a flexible watertight seal.

a. Concrete pipe. Concrete pipe may be either bell and spigot or tongue and groove. Pipe sections at
joints shall be fully seated and the inner surfaces flush and even. Concrete pipe joints shall be sealed with
rubber gaskets meeting ASTM C443 when leak resistant joints are required. Concrete pipe joints shall be

sealed with butyl mastic meeting ASTM C990 or mortar when soil tight joints are required. Joints shall be

thoroughly wetted before applying mortar or grout.

b. Metal pipe. Not Used.

c. PVC, Polyethylene, or Polypropylene pipe. Not Used

d. Fiberglass pipe. Not Used.

701-3.5 Embedment and Overfill. Pipes shall be inspected before any fill material is placed; any pipes
found to be out of alignment, unduly settled, or damaged shall be removed and re-laid or replaced at the

Contractor's expense.

701-3.5-1 Embedment Material Requirements

a. Concrete Pipe. Embedment material and compaction requirements shall be in accordance with the

applicable Type of Standard Installation (Types 1,2,3, or 4) per ASTM C1479. If a concrete cradle or
CLSM embedment material is used, it shall conform to the plan details.

b. Plastic and fiberglass Pipe. Not Used.

c. Metal Pipe. Not Used.

701-3.5-2 Placement of Embedment Material

The embedment material shall be compacted in layers not exceeding 6 inches (150 mm) on each side of the
pipe and shall be brought up one foot (30 cm) above the top of the pipe or to natural ground level, whichever
is greater. Thoroughly compact the embedment material under the haunches of the pipe without displacing
the pipe. Material shall be brought up evenly on each side of the pipe for the full length of the pipe.

When the top of the pipe is above the top of the trench, the embedment material shall be compacted in
layers not exceeding 6 inches (150 mm) and shall be brought up evenly on each side ofthe pipe to one foot
(30 cm) above the top of the pipe. All embedment material shall be compacted to a density required under
Item P-l52.

Concrete cradles and flowable fills, such as controlled low sfrength material (CLSM) or controlled density
fill (CDF), may be used for ernbedment provided adequate flotation resistance can be achieved by restraints,
weighing, or placement technique.

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to protect installed pipes and culverts from damage due to
construction equipment operations. The Contractor shall be responsible for installation of any extra
strutting or backfill required to protect pipes from the construction equipment.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RLINWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION D-701-3



701-3.6 Overfill

Pipes shall be inspected before any overfill is in place. Any pipes found to be out of alignment, unduly
settled, or damaged shall be removed and relaid or replaced at the Contractor's expense. Evaluation of any
damage to RCP shall be evaluated based on AASHTO R73.

Overfill material shall be place and compacted in layers as required to achieve compaction to at least 95
percent standard proctor per ASTM D698. The soil shall contain no debris, organic matter, frozen material,
or stones with a diameter greater than one half the thickness of the compacted layers being placed.

7 0l-3.7 Inspection Requirements

An initial post installation inspection shall be performed and paid for by the Contractor in the presence of
the RPR no sooner than 30 days after completion of installation and final backfill. Clean or flush all lines
prior to inspection.

Use a camera with lighting suitable to allow a clear picture of the entire periphery of the pipe interior.
Center the camera in the pipe both vertically and horizontally and be able to pan and tilt to a 90 degree
angle with the axis of the pipe rotating 360 degrees. Use equipment to move the camera through the pipe
that will not obstruct the camera's view or interfere with proper documentation of the pipe's condition. The
video image shall be clear, focused, and relatively free from roll, static, or other image distortion qualities
that would prevent the reviewer from evaluating the condition of the pipe.

For pipe sizes larger than 48 inches, a walk-through visual inspection shall be performed.

Reinforced concrete pipe shall be inspected, evaluated, and reported on in accordance with ASTM Cl840,
"Standard Practice for Inspection and Acceptance of Installed Reinforced Concrete Culvert, Storm Drain,
and Storm Sewer Pipe." Any issues reported shall include still photo and video documentation. The zoom
ratio shall be provided for all still or video images that document any issues of concern by the inspection
firm.

The inspection report shall include: a copy of all video taken, pipe location identification, equipment used
for inspection, inspector name, deviation from design line and grade, and inspector's notes.

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

701-4.L The length of pipe shall be measured in linear feet of pipe in place, completed, and accepted. It
shall be measured along the centerline of the pipe from end or inside face of structure to the end or inside
face ofstructure, whichever is applicable. The several classes, types and sizes ofpipe shall be measured
separately. All fittings shall be included in the footage as typical pipe sections in the pipe being measured.

701-4.2. Precast box culverts shall be measured by individual unit and size.

701-4.3 The volume of concrete for pipe cradles shall be the number of cubic yards of concrete that is
completed in place and accepted.

701-4.4 The volume of rock, hardpan, or other unyielding material shall be the number of cubic yards (cubic
meters) excavated. No payment shall be made for the cushion material placed for the bed of the pipe.

BASIS OF PAYMENT

701-5.0 These prices shall fully compensate the Contractor for furnishing all materials and for all
preparation, excavation, and installation of these materials; and for all labor, equipment, tools, and
incidentals necessary to complete the item, and camera inspection services and reports.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION D-7OL-4



701-5.1 Payment will be made at the contract lump sum amount for each culvert installation including
removal and disposal of the existing pipe (off-site), fumishing and installing the desigrrated pipe with
earthwork, backfill and shaping the inlet and outlet terrain to achieve drainage.

Payment will be made under:

Item 701-5.1 15 inch Reinforced T&G Concrete Pipe, Class V, D rating 3000
per installation - Lump Sum

REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO)

AASHTO M167 Standard Specification for Comrgated Steel Structural Plate,Zinc-
Coated, for Field-Bolted Pipe, Pipe-Arches, and Arches

AASHTO M190 Standard Specification for Bituminous-Coated Comrgated Metal Culvert
Pipe and Pipe Arches

AASHTO M196 Standard Specification for Comrgated Aluminum Pipe for Sewers and
Drains

AASHTO M2l9 Standard Specification for Comrgated Aluminum Alloy Structural Plate
for Field-Bolted Pipe, Pipe-Arches, and Arches

AASHTO M243 Standard Specification for Field Applied Coating of Comrgated Metal
Structural Plate for Pipe, Pipe-Arches, and Arches

AASHTO M252 Standard Specification for Comrgated Polyethylene Drainage Pipe

AASHTO M294 Standard Specification for Comrgated Polyethylene Pipe, 300- to 1500-
mm (12- to 60-in.) Diameter

AASHTO M304 Standmd Specification for Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Profile Wall
Drain Pipe and Fittings Based on Controlled Inside Diameter

AASHTO MP20 Standard Specification for Steel Reinforced Polyethylene (PE) Ribbed
Pipe, 300- to 900-mm (12- to 36-in.) Diameter

ASTM lnternational (ASTM)

ASTM A760 Standard Specification for Comrgated Steel Pipe, Metallic Coated for
Sewers and Drains

Standard Specification for Comrgated Steel Structural Plate,Zinc
Coated, for Field-Bolted Pipe, Pipe-Arches, and Arches

Standard Specification for Comrgated Steel Pipe, Polymer Precoated for
Sewers and Drains

Standard Specification for Post-Applied Coatings, Pavings, and Linings
for Comrgated Steel Sewer and Drainage Pipe

Standard Specification for Comrgated Aluminum Pipe for Sewers and
Drains

ASTM 4'76I

ASTM 4762

ASTM A849

ASTM 8745

LONEPINE/DEATHVALLEYAIRPORTRUNWAYPAVEMENTREHABILITATION D-701-5



ASTM C14

ASTM C76

ASTM C94

ASTM CI44

ASTM CI5O

ASTM C443

ASTM C5O6

ASTM C5O7

ASTM C655

ASTM C99O

ASTM C1433

ASTM D1056

ASTM D3034

ASTM D3212

ASTMD3262

ASTM D3282

ASTM D4161

ASTM D6690

ASTM F477

ASTM F667

ASTM F714

ASTM F794

Standard Specification for Nonreinforced Concrete Sewer, Storm Drain,
and Culvert Pipe

Standard Specification for Reinforced Concrete Culvert, Storm Drain,
and Sewer Pipe

Standard Specification for Ready Mixed Concrete

Standard Specification for Aggregate for Masonry Mortar

Standard Specification for Portland Cement

Standard Specification for Joints for Concrete Pipe and Manholes, Using
Rubber Gaskets

Standard Specification for Reinforced Concrete Arch Culvert, Storm
Drain, and Sewer Pipe

Standard Specification for Reinforced Concrete Elliptical Culvert, Storm
Drain and Sewer Pipe

Standard Specification for Reinforced Concrete D-Load Culvert, Storm
Drain and Sewer Pipe

Standard Specification for Joints for Concrete Pipe, Manholes, and
Precast Box Sections Using Preformed Flexible Joint Sealants

Standard Specification for Precast Reinforced Concrete Monolithic Box
Sections for Culverts, Storm Drains, and Sewers

Standard Specification for Flexible Cellular Materials Sponge or
Expanded Rubber

Standard Specification for Type PSM Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC)
Sewer Pipe and Fittings

Standard Specification for Joints for Drain and Sewer Plastic Pipes Using
Flexible Elastomeric Seals

Standard Specification for "Fiberglass" (Glass-Fiber Reinforced
Thermosetting Resin) Sewer Pipe

Standard Practice for Classification of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures
for Highway Construction Purposes

Standard Specification for "Fiberglass" (Glass-Fiber Reinforced
Thermosetting Resin) Pipe Joints Using Flexible Elastomeric Seals

Standard Specification for Joint and Crack Sealants, Hot Applied, for
Concrete and Asphalt Pavements

Standard Specification for Elastomeric Seals (Gaskets) for Joining
Plastic Pipe

Standard Specification for 3 through 24 in. Comrgated Polyethylene Pipe
and Fitfings

Standard Specification for Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (DR PR)
Based on Outside Diameter

Standard Specification for Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Profile Gravity
Sewer Pipe & Fittings Based on Controlled Inside Diameter

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION D-701-5



ASTM F894 Standard Specification for Polyethylene (PE) Large Diameter Profile
Wall Sewer and Drain Pipe

ASTM F949 Standard Specification for Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Comrgated
Sewer Pipe with a Smooth Interior and Fittings

ASTM F2435 Standard Specification for Steel Reinforced Polyethylene (PE)

Comrgated Pipe

ASTM F2562 Specification for Steel Reinforced Thermoplastic Ribbed Pipe and
Fittings for Non-Pressure Drainage and Sewerage

ASTM F2736 Standard Specification for 6 to 30 in. (152 to762 mm) Polypropylene
(PP) Comrgated Single Wall Pipe and Double Wall Pipe

ASTM F2764 Standard Specification for 30 to 60 in. (750 to 1500 mm) Polypropylene
(PP) Triple Wall Pipe and Fittings for Non-Pressure Sanitary Sewer
Applications

ASTM F2881 Standard Specification for 12 to 60 in. (300 to 1500 mm) Polypropylene
(PP) Dual Wall Pipe and Fittings for Non-Pressure Storm Sewer
Applications

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)

NFPA 415 Standard on Airport Terminal Buildings, Fueling Ramp Drainage, and
Loading Walkways

EI\D ITEMD-701

LONEPINE/DEATHVALLEYAIRPORTRUNWAYPAVEMENTREHABILITATION D-7OL-7



Item P-101 Preparation/Removal of Existing Pavements

DESCRIPTION

101-1 This item shall consist of preparation of existing pavement surfaces for overlay, surface treatments,
removal of existing pavement, and other miscellaneous iterns. The work shall be accomplished in
accordance with these specifications and the applicable plans.

EQTIIPMENT AND MATERIALS

101-2 All equipment and materials shall be specified here and in the following paragraphs or approved by
the Resident Project Representative (RPR). The equipment shall not cause damage to the pavement to
remain in place.

CONSTRUCTION

101-3.1 Removal of existing pavement.

The Contractor's removal operation shall be controlled to not damage adjacent pavement structure, and
base material, cables, utility ducts, pipelines, or drainage structures which are to remain under the pavement.

a. Concrete pavement removal. Full depth saw cuts shall be made perpendicular to the slab surface.
The Contractor shall saw through the full depth of the slab including any dowels at the joint, removing the
pavement and installing new dowels as shown on the plans and per the specifications. Where the perimeter
of the removal limits is not located on the joint and there are no dowels present, the perimeter shall be saw
cut the full depth of the pavement. The pavement inside the saw cut shall be removed by methods which
will not cause distress in the pavement which is to remain in place. If the material is to be wasted on the
airport site, it shall be reduced to a maximum size of 12". Concrete slabs that are damaged by under breaking
shall be repaired or removed and replaced as directed by the RPR.

The edge of existing concrete pavement against which new pavement abuts shall be protected from
damage at all times. Spall and underbreak repair shall be in accordance with the plans. Any underlaying
material that is to remain in place, shall be recompacted and/or replaced as shown on the plans. Adjacent
areas damaged during repair shall be repaired or replaced at the Contractor's expense.

b. Asphalt pavement removal. Asphalt pavement to be removed shall be cut to the full depth of the
asphalt pavement around the perimeter of the area to be removed. If the material is to be used for FDR
balance, or wasted on the airport site, it shall be broken to a maximum size of 2 inches.

The pavement shall be removed so the joint for each layer of pavement replacement is offset I foot (30
cm) from the joint in the preceding layer. This does not apply if the removed pavement is to be replaced
with concrete or soil.

c. Repair or removal of Base, Subbase, and/or Subgrade. All failed material including surface, base
course, subbase course, and subgrade shall be removed and repaired as shown on the plans or as directed
by the RPR. Materials and methods of construction shall comply with the applicable sections of these
specifications. Any damage caused by Contractor's removal process shall be repaired at the Contractor's
expense.

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-lOI-l



101-3.2 Preparation of joints and cracks prior to overlay/surface treatment. Remove all vegetation and

debris from cracks to a minimum depth of I inch (25 mm). If extensive vegetation exists, treat the specifrc

area with a concentrated solution of a water-based herbicide approved by the RPR. Fill all cracks greater

than ll4 inch (6 mm) wide) with a crack sealant per ASTM D6690. The crack sealant, preparation, and

application shall be compatible with the surface treatmenVoverlay to be used. To minimize contamination
of the asphalt with the crack sealant, underFrll the crack sealant a minimum of l/8 inch, not to exceed %
inch. Any excess joint or crack sealer shall be removed from the pavement surface.

Wider cracks (over l-ll2 inch wide (38 mm)), along with soft or sunken spots, indicate that the pavement

or the pavement base should be repaired or replaced as stated below.

Cracks and joints may be filled with a mixture of ernulsified asphalt and aggregate. The aggregate shall
consist of limestone, volcanic ash, sand, or other material that will cure to form a hard substance. The

combined gradation shall be as shown in the following table.

Gradation

Sieve Size Percent Passing

No.4 (4.75 mm) r00

No. 8 (2.36 mm) 90-100

No. l6 (1.18 mm) 6s-90

No. 30 (600 pm) 40-60

No. 50 (300 pm) 25-42

No. 100 (150 pm) l5-30

No.200 (75 pm) l0-20

IJp Io 3%o cement can be added to accelerate the set time. The mixture shall not contain more than 20Yo

natural sand without approval in writing from the RPR.

The proportions of asphalt emulsion and aggregate shall be determined in the field and may be varied to
facilitate construction requirements. Normally, these proportions will be approximately one part asphalt

ernulsion to five parts aggregate by volume. The material shall be poured or placed into the joints or cracks

and compacted to form a voidless mass. The joint or crack shall be filled to within +0 to -1l8 inches (+0 to
-3 mm) of the surface. Any material spilled outside the width of the joint shall be removed from the
pavement surface prior to constructing the overlay. Where concrete overlays are to be constructed, only the

excess joint material on the pavement surface and vegetation in the joints need to be removed.

101-3.3 Removal of Foreign Substances/contaminates prior to overlay, seal-coat, or remarking.
Removal of foreign substances/contaminates from existing pavement that will affect the bond of the new

treatment shall consist of removal of rubber, fuel spills, oil, crack sealer, at least 90% of paint, and other
foreigr substances from the surface of the pavement. Areas that require removal are desigrrated on the

plans and as directed by the RPR in the field during construction.

Chemicals, high-pressure water, cold milling, rotary grinding and sandblasting may be used. If chemicals

are used, they shall comply with the state's environmental protection regulations. Removal methods used

shall not cause major damage to the pavement, or to any structure or utility within or adjacent to the work
area. Major damage is defined as changing the properties of the pavement, removal of asphalt causing the

aggregate to ravel, or removing pavement over 1/8 inch deep. If it is deemed by the RPR that damage to

the existing pavement is caused by operational error, such as permitting the application method to dwell in
one location for too long, the Contractor shall repair the damaged area without compensation and as directed

by the RPR.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P.IOI-2



Removal of foreign substances shall not proceed until approved by the RPR. Water used for high-pressure
water equipment shall be provided by the Confractor at the Contractor's expense. No material shall be
deposited on the pavement shoulders. All wastes shall be disposed of in areas indicated in this specification
or shown on the plans.

101-3.4 Concrete spall or failed asphaltic concrete pavement repair.

a. Repair of concrete spalls in areas to be overlaid with asphalt. The Contractor shall repair all
spalled concrete as shown on the plans or as directed by the RPR. The perimeter of the repair shall be saw
cut a minimum of 2 inches (50 mm) outside the affected area and 2 inches (50 mm) deep. The deteriorated
material shall be removed to a depth where the existing material is firm or cannot be easily removed with
a geologist pick. The removed area shall be filled with asphalt mixture with aggregate sized appropriately
for the depth of the patch. The material shall be compacted with equipment approved by the RPR until the
material is dense and no movement or marks are visible. The material shall not be placed in lifts over 4
inches (100 mm) in depth. This method of repair applies only to pavement to be overlaid.

b. Asphalt pavement repair. The Contractor shall repair all spalled concrete as shown on the plans or
as directed by the RPR. The failed areas shall be removed as specified in paragraph 101-3.1b. All failed
material including surface, base course, subbase counie, and subgrade shall be removed. Materials and
methods of construction shall comply with the applicable sections of these specifications.

f01-3.5 Cold milling. Milling shall be performed with a power-operated milling machine or grinder,
capable of producing a uniform finished surface. The milling machine or grinder shall operate without
tearing or gouglng the underlaying surface. The milling machine or grinder shall be equipped with grade
and slope controls, and a positive means of dust control. All millings shall be removed and disposed in
areas desigrrated on the plans. If the Contractor mills or grinds deeper or wider than the plans speciff, the
Contractor shall replace the material removed with new material at the Contractor's Expense.

The Contractor shall consider the overall weight of milling equipment proposed by the Contractor to ensure
there is no damage to the existing pavements and pavernent remaining after milling due to the weight of the
equipment.

a. Patching. The milling machine shall be capable of cutting a vertical edge without chipping or
spalling the edges of the remaining pavement and it shall have a positive method of controlling the depth
of cut. The RPR shall layout the area to be milled with a straightedge in incrernents of l-foot (30 cm)
widths. The area to be milled shall cover only the failed area. Any excessive area that is milled because the
Contractor doesn't have the appropriate milling machine, or areas that are damaged because of his
negligence, shall be repaired by the Contractor at the Contractor's Expense.

b. Profiling, grade correction, or surface correction. The milling machine shall have a minimum
width of 7 feet and it shall be equipped with electronic grade control devices that will cut the surface to the
grade specified. The tolerances sha{ be maintained within +0 inch and -ll4 inch (+0 mm and -6mm) of the
specified grade. The machine must cut vertical edges and have a positive method of dust control. The
machine must have the ability to windrow the millings or cuttings and to remove the millings or cuttings
from the pavement and load them into a truck. All millings shall be incorporated in the mix design for FDR
processing or be removed and disposed of off-site or in areas designated on the plans as directed by the
RPR.

c. Clean-up. The Contractor shall sweep the milled surface daily and immediately after the milling
until all residual materials are removed from the pavement surface. Prior to paving, the Contractor shall
wet down the milled pavement and thoroughly sweep and/or blow the surface to remove loose residual
material. Waste materials shall be collected and removed from the pavement surface and adjacent areas by
sweeping or vacuuming. Waste materials shall be removed and disposed off-site or in areas desigrated on
the plans as directed by the RPR.

LONEPINE/DEATHVALLEYAIRPORTRUNWAYPAVEMENTREHABILITATION P-IO1-3



101-3.6. Preparation of asphalt pavement surfaces prior to surface treatment. Existing asphalt
pavements to be treated with a surface treatment shall be prepared as follows:

a. Patch asphalt pavement surfaces that have been softened by petroleum derivatives or have failed due

to any other cause. Rernove damaged pavement to the full depth ofthe damage and replace with new asphalt

pavement similar to that of the existing pavement in accordance with paragraph 101-3.4b.

b. Repair joints and cracks in accordance with paragraph l0l-3.2.

c. Remove oil or grease that has not penetrated the asphalt pavement by scrubbing with a detergent and

washing thoroughly with clean water. After cleaning, treat these areas with an oil spot primer.

d. Clean pavement surface immediately prior to placing the surface treatment so that it is free of dust,

dirt, grease, vegetation, oil or any type of objectionable surface film.

101-3.7 Maintenance. The Contractor shall perform all maintenance work necessary to keep the pavernent

in a satisfactory condition until the full section is complete and accepted by the RPR. The surface shall be

kept clean and free from foreign material. The pavement shall be properly drained at all times. If cleaning
is necessary or if the pavement becomes disturbed, any work repairs necessary shall be performed at the

Contractor's expense.

101-3.8 Preparation of Joints in Rigid Pavement prior to resealing. Not used.

101-3.9 Preparation of Cracks in Flexible Pavement prior to sealing. Prior to application of sealant

material, clean and dry the joints of all scale, dirt, dust, old sealant, curing compound, moisture and other
foreign matter. The Contractor shall danonstrate, in the presence of the RPR, that the method used cleans

the cracks and does not damage the pavement.

101-3.9.1 Preparation of Crack. Widen crack with router by removing a minimum of 1116 inch (2 mm)
from each side of crack. Immediately before sealing, cracks will be blown out with a hot air lance combined
with oil and water-free compressed air.

l0l-3.9.2 Removal of Existing Crack Sealant. Existing sealants will be removed by routing. Following
routing any remaining debris will be removed by use of a hot lance combined with oil and water-free

compressed air.

101-3.9.3 Crack Sealant. Crack sealant material and installation will be in accordance with Item P-605.

101-3.9.4 Removal of Pipe and other Buried Structures.

a. Removal of Existing Pipe Material. Remove the types of pipe as indicated on the plans. The pipe
material shall be legally disposed of off-site in a timely manner following removal. Trenches shall be
backfrlled with material equal to or better in quality than adjacent ernbankrnent. Trenches under paved

areas must be compacted to 100% of ASTM D698.

b. Removal of Inlets/lVlanholes. Where indicated on the plans or as directed by the RPR, inlets and/or
manholes shall be removed and legally disposed of off-site in a timely fashion after removal. Excavations

after removal shall be backfilled with material equal or better in quality than adjacent embankment. When
under paved areas must be compacted to 100% of ASTM D698, when outside of paved areas must be

compacted to95Yo of ASTM D698.

METHOD OF MEASTJREMENT

101-4.1 Pavement removal . The unit of measursment for pavement removal shall be the number of
square yards removed by the Contractor. Any pavonent removed outside the limits of rernoval because the
pavement was damaged by negligence on the part of the Contractor shall not be included in the
measurement for payment. No direct measurement or payment shall be made for saw cutting. Saw cutting
shall be incidental to pavernent removal. Dowel bar installation shall be incidental to pavement removal.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P.1OI-4



l0l-4.2 Joint and crack repair. The unit of measurement for joint and crack repair shall be the linear foot
ofjoint.

101-4.3 Removal of Foreign Substances/contaminates. The unit of measwement for foreigrr
Substances/contaminates removal shall be the square foot.

l0l-4.4 Spalled and failed asphalt pavement repair. The unit of measure for failed asphalt pavement
repair shall be square foot.

101-4.5 Concrete Spall Repair. The unit ofmeasure for concrete spall repair shall be the number of square
feet. The location and average depth of the patch shall be determined and agreed upon by the RPR and the
Contractor.

101-4.6 Cold milling. The unit of measure for cold milling shall be per square yard. The location and
average depth of the cold milling shall be as shown on the plans. If the initial cut does not correct the
condition, the Contractor shall re-mill the area and will be paid for the total depth of milling.

l0l-4.7 Removal of Pipe and other Buried Structures. The unit of measurement for removal of pipe and
other buried structures will be made at the contract unit price for each completed and accepted item. This
price shall be full compensation for all labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete this
item in accordance with paragraph 101-3.9.4.

BASIS OF PAYMENT

101-5.1 Payment. Payment for removal of asphalt pavements and drainage pipe and structures shall not be
paid separately. The price is included in the cost of work items P-207 In-place Full Depth Reclamation
(FDR) Recycled Asphalt Aggregate Base Course and D-701 Pipe for Storm thains and Culverts and shall
be full compensation for furnishing all materials including reinforcement and embedded items and for all
preparation, delivery, installation, and curing of these materials, and for all labor, equipment, tools, and

incidentals necessary to complete the item.

REF'ERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are
referred to within the text by the basic desigrration only.

AdvisoryCirculars (AC): AC 150/5380-6Guidelines and Procedures for Maintenance of Airport
Pavements.

ASTM lnternational (ASTM): ASTM D6690 Standard Specification for Joint and Crack Sealants, Hot
Applied, for Concrete and Asphalt Pavements

END OF ITEM P.101

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-1OI-5



Item P-151 Clearing and Grubbing

DESCRIPTION

151-1.1 This item shall consist of clearing or clearing and grubbing, including the disposal of materials, for
all areas within the limits desigrrated on the plans or as required by the Resident Project Representative
(RPR).

a. Clearing shall consist of the cutting and removal of all trees, stumps, brush, logs, hedges, the removal
of fences and other loose or projecting material from the desigrated areas. The grubbing of stumps and
roots will not be required.

b. Clearing and grubbing shall consist of clearing the surface of the ground of the designated areas of
all trees, stumps, down timber, logs, snags, brush, undergrowth, hedges, heavy growth of grass or weeds,

fences, structures, debris, and rubbish of any nature, natural obstructions or such material which in the
opinion of the RPR is unsuitable for the foundation of strips, pavements, or other required structures,
including the grubbing of stumps, roots, matted roots, foundations, and the disposal from the project of all
spoil materials resulting from clearing and grubbing.

c. Tree Removal. Tree Removal shall consist of the cutting and removal of isolated single trees or
isolated groups of trees, and the grubbing of stumps and roots. The removal of all the frees of this
classification shall be in accordance with the requirements for the particular area being cleared.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

l5L-2.L General. The areas denoted on the plans to be cleared or cleared and grubbed shall be staked on

the ground by the Contractor as indicated on the plans.

The removal of existing structures and utilities required to permit orderly progress of work shall be
accomplished by local agencies, unless otherwise shown on the plans. Whenever a telephone pole, pipeline,
conduit, sewer, roadway, or other utility is encountered and must be removed or relocated, the Contractor
shall advise the RPR who will notifu the proper local authority or owner to secure prompt action.

1.51.-2.1..1 Disposal. All materials removed by clearing or by clearing and grubbing shall be disposed of
outside the Airport's limits at the Contractor's responsibility or by burning, except when otherwise directed
by the RPR. When burning of material is permitted, it shall be burned under the constant overseeing of a
watchman to assure the surrounding vegetation and other adjacent property is not jeopardized. Burning
shall be done in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, and regulations.
The Confractor shall notify the agency having jurisdiction and obtain all approvals in writing before starting
any buming operations.

As far as practicable, waste concrete and masonry shall be placed on slopes of embankments or channels.

When ernbankments are constructed of such material, this material shall be placed in accordance with
requirernents for formation of embankments. Any broken concrete or masonry that cannot be used in
construction and all other materials not considered suitable for use elsewhere, shall be disposed of by the
Contractor. In no case, shall any discarded materials be left in windrows or piles adjacent to or within the

airport limits. The manner and location of disposal of materials shall be subject to the approval of the RPR

and shall not create an unsightly or objectionable view. When the Contractor is required to locate a disposal

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-151-I



area outside the airport property limits, the Contractor shall obtain and file with the RPR permission in
writing from the property owner for the use of private property for this pu{pose.

l5l-2.1.2 Blasting. Blasting shall not be allowed.

l5l-2.2 Clearing. The Contractor shall clear the staked or indicated area of all materials as indicated on
the plans. Trees unavoidably falling outside the specified clearing limits must be cut up, runoved, and
disposed of in a satisfactorymanner. To minimize damage to trees that are to be left standing, trees shall be
felled toward the center ofthe area being cleared. The Contractor shall preserve and protect from injury all
trees not to be removed. The trees, stumps, and brush shall be cut flush with the original ground surface.
The grubbing of stumps and roots will not be required.

Fences shall be removed and disposed of as directed by the RPR. Fence wire shall be neatly rolled and the
wire and posts stored on the airport ifthey are to be used again, or stored at a location designated by the
RPR if the fence is to remain the property of a local owner or authority.

l5l-2.3 Clearing and grubbing. In areas designated to be cleared and grubbed, all stumps, roots, buried
logs, brush, grass, and other unsatisfactory materials as indicated on the plans, shall be removed, except
where embankrnents exceeding3-U2 feet (105 cm) in depth will be constructed outside of paved areas. For
embankments constructed outside of paved areas, all unsatisfactory materials shall be removed, but sound
trees, stumps, and brush can be cut off flush with the original ground and allowed to remain. Tap roots and
other projections over 1-ll2 inches (38 mm) in diameter shall be grubbed out to a depth of at least l8 inches
(0.5 m) below the finished subgrade or slope elevation.

Any buildings and miscellaneous structures that are shown on the plans to be removed shall be demolished
or removed, and all materials shall be disposed of by removal from the site. The cost of removal is incidental
to this item. The remaining or existing foundations, wells, cesspools, and like structures shall be destroyed
by breaking down the materials of which the foundations, wells, cesspools, etc., are built to a depth at least
2 feet (60 cm) below the existing surrounding ground. Any broken concrete, blocks, or other objectionable
material that cannot be used in backfill shall be removed and disposed ofat the Contractor's expense. The
holes or openings shall be backfrlled with acceptable material and properly compacted.

All holes in embankrnent areas remaining after the grubbing operation shall have the sides of the holes
flattened to facilitate filling with acceptable material and compacting as required in Item P-152. The same
procedure shall be applied to all holes remaining after grubbing in areas where the depth of holes exceeds
the depth of the proposed excavation.

Prior to grading, the Contractor shall strip vegetation within the grading limits shown on the plans to a
depth of 6 inches and shall separate manmade materials which shall become the property of the Contractor
and shall be disposed or recycled elsewhere.

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

151-3.1 The quantities of clearing as shown by the limits on the plans..

BASIS OF PAYMENT

151-4.1 There shall be no additional payment for clearing. Payment shall be considered included in the
work items requiring clearing, and therefore is considered to be part of the cost of unclassified excavation
and drainage systems.

END OF ITEM P-151

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-I51-2



Item P-152 Excavation, Subgrade, and Embankment

DESCRIPTION

152-1.1 This item covers excavation, disposal, placement, and compaction of all materials within the limits
of the work required to construct safety areas, runways, taxiways, aprons, and intermediate areas as well as

other areas for drainage, building construction, parking, or other purposes in accordance with these

specifications and in conformity to the dimensions and typical sections shown on the plans.

152-1.2 Classification. All material excavated shall be classified as defined below:

a. Unclassified excavation. Unclassified excavation shall consist of the excavation and disposal of all
material, regardless of its nature.

152-1.3 Unsuitable excavation. Unsuitable material shall be disposed in designated waste areas as shown
on the plans. Materials containing vegetable or organic matter, such as muck, peat, organic silt, or sod shall
be considered unsuitable for use in embanlanent construction. Material suitable for topsoil may be used on
the embanlcnent slope when approved by the RPR.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

152-2.1General. Before beginning excavation, grading, and embankrnent operations in any area, the area

shall be cleared or cleared and grubbed in accordance with Item P-151.

The suitability of material to be placed in ernbankments shall be subject to approval by the RPR. All
unsuitable material shall be disposed of in waste areas as shown on the plans. All waste areas shall be
graded to allow positive drainage ofthe area and adjacent areas. The surface elevation ofwaste areas shall
be specified on the plans or approved by the RPR.

When the Contractor's excavating operations encounter artifacts of historical or archaeological
significance, the operations shall be temporarily discontinued and the RPR notified per Section 70,
paragraph 70-20. At the direction of the RPR, the Contractor shall excavate the site in such a manner as to
preserve the artifacts encountered and allow for their removal. Such excavation will be paid for as extra
work.

Areas outside the limits of the pavement areas where the top layer of soil has become compacted by hauling
or other Contractor activities shall be scarified and disked to a depth of 4 inches (100 mm), to loosen and
pulverize the soil. Stones or rock fragments larger than 4 inches (100 mm) in their greatest dimension will
not be permitted in the top 6 inches (150 mm) of the subgrade.

If it is necessary to interrupt existing surface drainage, sewers or under-drainage, conduits, utilities, or
similar underground structures, the Contractor shall be responsible for and shall take all necessary
precautions to preserve them or provide temporary services. When such facilities are encountered, the
Contractor shall notifu the RPR, who shall arrange for their removal if necessary. The Contractor, at their
own expense, shall satisfactorily repair or pay the cost of all damage to such facilities or structures that may
result from any ofthe Contractor's operations during the period ofthe contract.

a. Blasting. Blasting shall not be allowed.

152-2.2 Excavation. No excavation shall be started until the work has been staked out by the Contractor
and the RPR has obtained from the Contractor, the survey notes of the elevations and measurements of the

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-152-I



ground surface. The Contractor and RPR shall agree that the original ground lines shown on the original
topographic mapping are accurate, or agree to any adjustments made to the original ground lines.

Digital terrain model (DTM) files of the existing surfaces, finished surfaces and other various surfaces were
used to develop the design plans.

All areas to be excavated shall be stripped of vegetation and topsoil. Topsoil shall be stockpiled for future
use in areas designated on the plans or by the RPR. All suitable excavated material shall be used in the
formation of embanlcnent, subgrade, or other purposes as shown on the plans. All unsuitable material shall
be disposed of as shown on the plans.

The grade shall be maintained so that the surface is well drained at all times.

When the volume of the excavation exceeds that required to construct the embankments to the grades as

indicated on the plans, the excess shall be used to grade the areas of ultimate development or disposed as

directed by the RPR. When the volume of excavation is not sufficient for constructing the embankrnents to
the grades indicated, the deficiency shall be obtained from borrow areas.

a. Selective grading. When selective grading is indicated on the plans, the more suitable material
designated by the RPR shall be used in constructing the embankment or in capping the pavement subgrade.
If, at the time of excavation, it is not possible to place this material in its final location, it shall be stockpiled
in approved areas until it can be placed. The more suitable material shall then be placed and compacted as

specified. Selective grading shall be considered incidental to the work involved. The cost of stockpiling and
placing the material shall be included in the various pay ituns of work involved.

b. Undercutting. Rock, shale, hardpan, loose rock, boulders, or other material unsatisfactory for safety
areas, subgrades, roads, shoulders, or any areas intended for turfshall be excavated to a minimum depth of
12 inches (300 mm) below the subgrade or to the depth specified by the RPR. Muck, peat, matted roots, or
other yielding material, unsatisfactory for subgrade foundation, shall be removed to the depth specified.
Unsuitable materials shall disposed off the airport. The cost is incidental to this item. This excavated
material shall be paid for at the contract unit price per cubic yard for unclassified excavation. The excavated
area shall be backfilled with suitable material obtained from the grading operations or borrow areas and
compacted to specified densities. The necessary backfill will constitute apart of the embankment. Where
rock cuts are made, backfill with select material. Any pockets created in the rock surface shall be drained
in accordance with the details shown on the plans. Undercutting will be paid as unclassified excavation.

c. Over-break. Over-break, including slides, is that portion of any material displaced or loosened
beyond the finished work as planned or authorized by the RPR. All over-break shall be graded or removed
by the Contractor and disposed of as directed by the RPR. The RPR shall determine if the displacement of
such material was unavoidable and their own decision shall be final. Payment will not be made for the
removal and disposal of over-break that the RPR determines as avoidable. Unavoidable over-break will be
classified as "Unclassified Excavation."

d. Removal of utilities. The removal of existing structures and utilities required to permit the orderly
progress of work will be accomplished by someone other than the Contractor. All existing foundations
shall be excavated at least 2 feet (60 cm) below the top ofsubgrade or as indicated on the plans, and the
material disposed of as directed by the RPR. All foundations thus excavated shall be backfilled with suitable
material and compacted as specified for embankment or as shown on the plans.

152-2.3 Borrow excavation. Borrow areas are not required.

152-2.4 Drainage excavation. Drainage excavation shall consist of excavating drainage ditches including
intercepting, inlet, or outlet ditches; or other types as shown on the plans. The work shall be performed in
sequence with the other construction. Ditches shall be constructed prior to starting adjacent excavation
operations. All satisfactory material shall be placed in embankment fills; unsuitable material shall be placed
in designated waste areas or as directed by the RPR. All necessary work shall be performed tnre to find

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-152-2



line, elevation, and cross-section. The Contractor shall maintain ditches constructed on the project to the

required cross-section and shall keep them free ofdebris or obstructions until the project is accepted.

152-2.5 Preparation of cut areas or areas where existing pavement has been removed. In those areas

on which a subbase or base course is to be placed, the top 12 inches ofsubgrade shall be compacted to not
less than 100% of maximum density for non-cohesive soils, and 95Yo of maximum density for cohesive
soils as determined by ASTM 698. As used in this specification, "non-cohesive" shall mean those soils

having a plasticity index (PI) of less than 3 as determined by ASTM D4318.

152-2.6 Preparation of embankment area. All sod and vegetative matter shall be removed from the

surface upon which the embankment is to be placed. The cleared surface shall be broken up by plowing or
scarifring to a minimum depth of 6 inches (150 mm) and shall then be compacted per paragraph 152-2.10.

Sloped surfaces steeper than one (1) vertical to four (4) horizontal shall be plowed, stepped, benched, or
broken up so that the fill material will bond with the existing material. When the subgrade is part fill and

part excavation or natural ground, the excavated or natural ground portion shall be scarified to a depth of
12 inches (300 mm) and compacted as specified for the adjacent fill.

No direct payment shall be made for the work performed under this section. The necessary clearing and

grubbing and the quantity of excavation removed will be paid for under the respective items of work.

L52-2.7 Control Strip. The first half-day of construction of subgrade and/or embankment shall be

considered as a control strip for the Contractor to demonstrate, in the presence of the RPR, that the materials,
equipment, and construction processes meet the requirements of this specification. The sequence and

manner of rolling necessary to obtain specified density requirements shall be determined. The maximum
compacted thickness may be increased to a maximum of 12 inches (300 mm) upon the Contractor's
demonstration that approved equipment and operations will uniformly compact the lift to the specified
density. The RPR must witness this demonstration and approve the lift thickness prior to full production.

Control strips that do not meet specification requirements shall be reworked, re-compacted, or removed and

replaced at the Contractor's expense. Full operations shall not begin until the control strip has been accepted

by the RPR. The Contractor shall use the same equipment, materials, and construction methods for the

remainder of construction, unless adjustments made by the Contractor are approved in advance by the RPR.

152-2.8 Formation of embankments. The material shall be constructed in lifts as established in the control
strip, but not less than 6 inches nor more than 12 inches of compacted thickness.

When more than one lift is required to establish the layer thickness shown on the plans, the construction
procedure described here shall apply to each lift. No lift shall be covered by subsequent lifts until tests

verify that compaction requirements have been met. The Contractor shall rework, re-compact and retest

any material placed which does not meet the specifications.

The lifts shall be placed, to produce a soil structure as shown on the typical cross-section or as directed by
the RPR. Materials such as brush, hedge, roots, stumps, grass and other organic matter, shall not be

incorporated or buried in the embankment.

Earthwork operations shall be suspended at any time when satisfactory results cannot be obtained due to
rain, freezing, or other unsatisfactory weather conditions in the field. Frozen material shall not be placed in
the embankment nor shall embankment be placed upon frozen material. Material shall not be placed on

surfaces that are muddy,frozen,or contain frost. The Contractor shall drag, blade, or slope the embankrnent
to provide surface drainage at all times.

The material in each lift shall be within +2Yo of optimum moisture content before rolling to obtain the
prescribed compaction. The material shall be moistened or aerated as necessary to achieve a uniform
moisture content throughout the lift. Natural drying may be accelerated by blending in dry material or
manipulation alone to increase the rate of evaporation.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-152-3



The Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and adjustments in methods, materials or moisture
content to achieve the specified embankment density.

The RPR will take samples of excavated materials which will be used in embankment for testing to obtain
a Moisture-Density Relations of Soils Report (Proctor) in accordance with ASTM D698. A new Proctor
shall be obtained for each soil rype based on visual classification.

Density tests will be taken by the RPR for every 3,000 squaxe yards of compacted embankment for each
lift which is required to be compacted, or other appropriate frequencies as determined by the RPR.

If the material has greater than30%o retained on the 314-inch (19.0 mm) sieve, follow AASHTO T-180
Annex Correction of maximum dry density and optimum moisture for oversized particles.

Rolling operations shall be continued until the ernbankment is compacted to not less than 100% of
maximum density for non-cohesive soils, and 95% of maximum density for cohesive soils as determined
by ASTM 698. Under all areas to be paved, the embankments shall be compacted to a depth of 12" and to
a density of not less than 100 percent of the maximum density as determined by ASTM 698. As used in
this specification, "non-cohesive" shall mean those soils having a plasticity index (PI) of less than 3 as

determined by ASTM D4318.

On all areas outside of the pavement areas, no compaction will be required on the top 4 inches which shall
be prepared for a seedbed ifspecified.

The in-place field density shall be determined in accordance with ASTM D1556 using Procedure A, the
direct transmission method, and ASTM D6938 shall be used to determine the moisture content of the
material. The machine shall be calibrated in accordance with ASTM D6938. l. The Contractor's laboratory
shall perform all density tests in the RPR's presence and provide the test results upon completion to the
RPR for acceptance. If the specified density is not attained, the area represented by the test or as designated
by the RPR shall be reworked and/or re-compacted and additional random tests made. This procedure shall
be followed until the specified density is reached.

Compaction areas shall be kept separate, and no lift shall be covered by another lift until the proper density
is obtained.

During construction of the embankment, the Contractor shall route all construction equipment evenly over
the entire width of the embankment as each lift is placed. Lift placement shall begin in the deepest portion
of the embankment fill. As placement progresses, the lifts shall be constructed approximately parallel to
the finished pavement grade line.

When rock, concrete pavement, asphalt pavement, and other embankment material are excavated at
approximately the same time as the subgrade, the material shall be incorporated into the outer portion of
the embankrnent and the subgrade material shall be incorporated under the future paved areas. Stones,
fragmentary rock, and recycled pavement larger than 4 inches in their greatest dimensions will not be
allowed in the top 12 inches of the subgrade. Rockfill shall be brought up in lifts as specified or as directed
by the RPR and the finer material shall be used to fill the voids forming a dense, compact mass. Rock,
cement concrete pavement, asphalt pavement, and other embankment material shall not be disposed of
except at places and in the manner desigrrated on the plans or by the RPR.

When the excavated material consists predominantly of rock fragments of such size that the material cannot
be placed in lifts of the prescribed thickness without crushing, pulverizing or further breaking down the
pieces, such material may be placed in the ernbankment as directed in lifts not exceedin 92 feet in thickness.
Each lift shall be leveled and smoothed with suitable equipment by distribution of spalls and finer fragments
ofrock. The lift shall not be constructed above an elevation 4 feet below the finished subgrade.

There will be no separate measurement of payment for compacted embankrnent. All costs incidental to
placing in lifts, compacting, discing, watering, mixing, sloping, and other operations necessary for
construction of embankments will be included in the contract price for excavation, borrow, or other items.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-152-4



152-2.9 Proof rolling. The purpose of proof rolling the subgrade is to identi$ any weak areas in the
subgrade and not for compaction of the subgrade. After compaction is completed, the subgrade area shall
be proof rolled with a 15 ton Proof Roller with tires spaced not more than 32 inches on-center with tires
inflated to 125 in the presence of the RPR. Apply a minimum of 2 coverage, or as specified by the RPR,
under pavement areas. A coverage is defined as the application ofone tire print over the designated area.

Soft areas of subgrade that deflect more than 1 inch or show permanent deformation greater than I inch
shall be removed and replaced with suitable material or reworked to conform to the moisture content and

compaction requirements in accordance with these specifications. Removal and replacement of soft areas

is incidental to this item.

152-2.L0 Compaction requirements. The subgrade under areas to be paved shall be compacted to a depth
of 12 inches and to a density of not less than I 00 percent of the maximum dry density as determined by
ASTM D698. The subgrade in areas outside the limits of the pavement areas shall be compacted to a depth
of 12 inches and to a density of not less than 95 percent of the maximum density as determined by ASTM
D698.

The material to be compacted shall be within +2%o of optimum moisture content before being rolled to
obtain the prescribed compaction (except for expansive soils). When the material has greater than 30
percent retained on the % inch (19.0 mm) sieve, follow the methods in ASTM D698 procedures in
AASHTO Tl80 Annex for correction of maximum dry density and optimum moisture for oversized
particles. Tests for moisture content and compaction will be taken at a minimum of 600 S.Y. of subgrade.

All quality assurance testing shall be done by the Contractor's laboratory in the presence of the RPR, and

density test results shall be fumished upon completion to the RPR for acceptance determination.

The in-place field density shall be determined in accordance with ASTM D6938 using Procedure A, the

direct transmission method, and ASTM D2216 (ASTM D4643 Microwave or ASTM D4959 Direct Heat

can be used if Laboratory Facilities are not readily available) shall be used to determine the moisture content

of the material. The machine shall be calibrated in accordance with ASTM D6938 within 12 months prior
to its use on this contract. The gage shall be field standardized daily.

Density tests will be taken by the RPR for every 600 square yards of completed subgrade. If a nuclear gage

is used for density determination, two random readings shall be made for each 600 square yards.

Maximum density refers to maximum dry density at optimum moisture content unless otherwise specifred.

If the specified density is not attained, the entire lot shall be reworked and/or re-compacted and additional
random tests made. This procedure shall be followed until the specified density is reached.

All cut-and-fill slopes shall be uniformly dressed to the slope, cross-section, and alignment shown on the
plans or as directed by the RPR and the finished subgrade shall be maintained.

152-2.11Finishing and protection of subgrade. Finishing and protection of the subgrade is incidental to
this itern. Grading and compacting of the subgrade shall be performed so that it will &ain readily. All low
areas, holes or depressions in the subgrade shall be brought to grade. Scarifying, blading, rolling and other
methods shall be performed to provide a thoroughly compacted subgrade shaped to the lines and grades

shown on the plans. All ruts or rough places that develop in the completed subgrade shall be graded, re-
compacted, and retested. The Contractor shall protect the subgrade from damage and limit hauling over the

finished subgrade to only traffic essential for construction purposes.

The Contractor shall maintain the completed course in satisfactory condition throughout placement of
subsequent layers. No subbase, base, or surface course shall be placed on the subgrade until the subgrade

has been accepted by the RPR.

152-2,L2Haul. All hauling will be considered a necessary and incidental part of the work. The Contractor
shall include the cost in the contract unit price for the pay of items of work involved. No payment will be
made separately or directly for hauling on any part of the work.

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-I52-5



The Contractor's equipment shall not cause damage to any excavated surface, compacted lift or to the
subgrade as a result of hauling operations. Any damage caused as a result of the Contractor's hauling
operations shall be repaired at the Contractor's expense.

The Contractor shall be responsible for providing, maintaining and removing any haul roads or routes
within or outside of the work area, and shall retum the affected areas to their former condition, unless
otherwise authorized in writing by the Owner. No separate payment will be made for any work or materials
associated with providing, maintaining and removing haul roads or routes.

152-2.13 Surface Tolerances. In those areas on which a subbase or base course is to be placed, the surface
shall be tested for smoothness and accuracy of grade and crown. Any portion lacking the required
smoothness or failing in accuracy ofgrade or crown shall be scarified to a depth ofat least 3 inches, reshaped
and re-compacted to grade until the required smoothness and accuracy are obtained and approved by the
RPR. The Contractor shall perform all final smoothness and grade checks in the presence of the RPR. Any
deviation in surface tolerances shall be corrected by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.

a. Smoothness. The finished surface shall not vary more than +/- % inch when tested with a l2-foot
straightedge applied parallel with and at right angles to the centerline. The straightedge shall be
moved continuously forward at half the length of the 12-foot straightedge for the full length of each
line on a 50-foot grid.

b. Grade. The grade and crown shall be measured on a SO-foot grid and shall be within +/-0.05 feet
ofthe specified grade.

On safety areas, turfed areas and other desigrrated areas within the grading limits where no subbase or base
is to placed, grade shall not vary more than 0. 10 feet (30 mm) from specified grade. Any deviation in excess

of this amount shall be corrected by loosening, adding or removing materials, and reshaping.

152-2.14 Topsoil. When topsoil is specified or required as shown on the plans or under Item T-905, it shall
be salvaged from stripping or other grading operations. The topsoil shall meet the requirements of Item T-
905. Iq at the time of excavation or stripping, the topsoil cannot be placed in its final section of finished
construction, the material shall be stockpiled at approved locations. Stockpiles shall be located as shown
on the plans and the approved CSPP and shall not be placed on areas that subsequently will require any
excavation or ernbankment fill. If, in the judgment of the RPR, it is practical to place the salvaged topsoil
at the time of excavation or stripping, the material shall be placed in its final position without stockpiling
or further re-handling.

Upon completion of grading operations, stockpiled topsoil shall be handled and placed as shown on the
plans and as required in Item T-905. Topsoil shall be paid for as provided in Item T-905. No direct payment
will be made for topsoil under Item P-152.

METHOD OF'MEASUREMENT

1523.1Measurement for payment specified by the cubic yard shall be computed by the comparison of
digital terrain model (DTM) surfaces. The end area is that bound by the original ground line established by
field cross-sections and the final theoretical pay line established by cross-sections shown on the plans,

subject to verification by the RPR.

152-3.L The quantity of unclassified excavation to be paid for shall be the number of cubic yards measured
in its original position. Measurement shall not include the quantity of materials excavated without
authorization beyond normal slope lines, or the quantity of material used for purposes other than those
directed.

152-3.2 The quantity of embankment in place shall be the number of cubic yards measured in its final
position.

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-152-6



152-3.3 Stockpiled material shall not be measured for payment in the stockpiled position.

BASIS OF PAYMENT

152-4.1 Unclassified payment shall be made at the contract unit price per cubic yard, or contract unit price
per square yard for a given thickness in place or shoulder shaping and grading. The cubic yard payment

includes cut, subgrade compaction, haul to disposal, and embankment with compaction at the disposal
location on the plans. This price shall be fulI compensation for furnishing all materials, labor, equipment,
tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the item, including subgrade compaction, hauling and

placement as fill. There shall be no separate payment for embanlcnent.

Payment will be made under:

Item P-l 52-4. I Unclassified Excavation per square yard for shoulder shaping and grading.

RBFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO)

AASHTO T-180 Standard Method of Test for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils Using a
4.54-kg(1O-lb) Rammer and a 457-mm (18-in.) Drop

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM D698 Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil
Using Standard Effort (12,400 ft-Ibflft3 (600 kN-m/m))

Standard Test Method for Density and Unit Weight of Soil in Place by the
Sand-Cone Method

Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil
Using Modified Effort (56,000 ft-Ibflft3 (2700 kN-m/m))

Standard Test Methods for In-Place Density and Water Content of Soil
and Soil-Aggregate by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth)

ASTM D1556

Advisory Circulars (AC)

AC 15015370-2 Operational Safety on Airports During Construction Software

Software

FAr{I{FIELD - FAA Rigid and Flexible Iterative Elastic Layered Design

U.S. Department of Transportation

FAA RD-76-66 Design and Construction of Airport Pavements on Expansive Soils

Ei\D OF ITEM P.152

ASTM DI557

ASTM D6938

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RIAIWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P.152-7



Item P-153 Controlled Low-Strength Material (CLSM)

DESCRIPTION

153-1.1 This item shall consist of furnishing, transporting, and placing a controlled low-strength material
(CLSM) as flowable backfill in trenches or at other locations shown on the plans or as directed by the
Resident Project Representative (RPR).

MATERIALS

L53-2.1Materials.

a. Cement. Cement shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C150 Type I, II.

b. Fly ash. Fly ash shall conform to ASTM C618, Class C or F.

c. Fine aggregate (sand). Fine aggregate shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C33 except for
aggregate gradation. Any aggregate gradation which produces the specified performance characteristics of
the CLSM and meets the following requirements, will be accepted.

Sieve Size Percent Passing by weight

3l4inch (19.0 mm) r00

No.200 (75 pm) 0-12

d. Water. Water used in mixing or curing shall be from potable water sources. Other sources shall be
tested in accordance with ASTM C1602 prior to use.

MIXDESIGN

153-3.1 Proportions. The Contractor shall submit, to the RPR, a mix desigrr including the proportions and
source of aggregate, fly ash, cement, water, and approved admixtures. No CLSM mixture shall be produced
for payment until the RPR has given written approval of the proportions. The proportions shall be prepared

by a laboratory and shall remain in effect for the duration of the project. The proportions shall establish a
single percentage or weight for aggregate, fly ash, cement, water, and any admixtures proposed. Laboratory
costs are incidental to this item.

a. Compressive strength. CLSM shall be designed to achieve a28-day compressive strength of 100

to 200 psi when tested in accordance wittr ASTM D4832, with no sigrrificant strength gain after 28 days.

b. Consistency. Design CLSM to achieve a consistency that will produce an approximate 8-inch
diameter circular-type spread without segregation. CLSM consistency shall be determined per ASTM
D6103.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-153-I



CONSTRUCTION METHODS

153-4.1 Placement.

a. Placement. CLSM may be placed by any reasonable means from the mixing unit into the space to
be filled. Agitation is required during transportation and waiting time. Placement shall be performed so

structures or pipes are not displaced from their final position and intrusion of CLSM into unwanted areas

is avoided. The material shall be brought up uniformly to the fill line shown on the plans or as directed by
the RPR. Each placement of CLSM shall be as continuous an operation as possible. If CLSM is placed in
more than one lift, the base lift shall be free of surface water and loose foreign material prior to placernent

of the next lift.

b. Contractor Quality Control. The Contractor shall collect all batch tickets to verify the CLSM
delivered to the project conforms to the mix design. The Contractor shall verify daily that the CLSM is
consistent with 153-3.1a and 153-3.Ib. Adjustments shall be made as necessary to the proportions and

materials as needed. The Contractor shall provide all batch tickets to the RPR.

c. Limitations of placement. CLSM shall not be placed on frozen ground. Mixing and placing may
begin when the air or ground temperature is at least 35'F (2"C) and rising. Mixing and placement shall stop

when the air tanperature is 40oF (4"C) and falling or when the anticipated air or ground temperature will
be 35oF (2oC) or less in the 24-hour period following proposed placement. At the time ofplacement, CLSM
shall have a temperatffe of at least 40'F (4"C).

153-4.2 Curing and protection

a. Curing. The air in contact with the CLSM shall be maintained at temperatures above freezing for a
minimum of 72 hours. If the CLSM is subjected to temperatures below 32'F (0'C), the material may be

rejected by the RPR if damage to the material is observed.

b. Protection. The CLSM shall not be subject to loads and shall remain undisturbed by construction
activities for a period of 48 hours oruntil a compressive strength of 15 psi (105 kPa) is obtained. The
Contractor shall be responsible for providing evidence to the RPR that the material has reached the desired

strength. Acceptable evidence shall be based upon compressive tests made in accordance with paragraph

153-3.1a.

153-4.3 Quatity Assurance (QA) Acceptance. CLSM QA acceptance shall be based upon batch tickets
provided by the Contractor to the RPR to confirm that the delivered material conforms to the mix design.

METHOD OF MEAST]REMENT

153-5.1 Measurement.

No separate measurement for payment shall be made for controlled low strength material (CLSM). CLSM
shall be considered necessary and incidental to the work of this Contract.

BASIS OF PAYMENT

153-6.1Payment.

No payment will be made separately or directly for controlled low strength material (CLSM). CLSM shall
be considered necessary and incidental to the work ofthis Contract.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-153-2



REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are
referred to within the text by the basic desigrration only.

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM C33 Standard Specification for Concrete Aggregates

ASTM Cl50 Standard Specification forPortland Cement

ASTM C6l8 Standard Specification for Coal Fly Ash and Raw or Calcined Natural
Pozzolan for Use in Concrete

ASTM C595 Standard Specification for Blended Hydraulic Cements

ASTM C1602 Standard Specification for Mixing Water Used in the Production of
Hydraulic Cement Concrete

ASTM D4832 Standard Test Method for Preparation and Testing of Controlled Low-
Strength Material (CLSM) Test Cylinders

ASTM D6103 Flow Consistency of Controlled Low Strength Material (CLSM)

END OF ITEM P.153

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-153-3



Item P-207In-place Full Depth Reclamation (FDR) Recycled Asphalt Aggregate Base Course

DESCRIPTION

207-l.l This item consists of a recycled asphalt aggregate base course resulting from the in-place full depth
reclamation (FDR) of the existing pavement section (asphalt wearing surface and aggregate base), plus

mechanical stabilization with additional aggregate or chemical stabilization with cement, or bituminous
stabilization with asphalt emulsion when required, including microcracking and curing seal.

MATERIALS

207-2.1Aggregate. The FDR shall consist of materials produced by recycling (pulverizing and mixing)
the existing asphalt pavernent, aggregate base, subgrade, and any additional aggregale as necessary.

Material larger than 2 inches in any dimension shall not be permitted in the recycle asphalt aggregate base

course.

The FDR shall meet the gradation in the table below.

FDR Gradation

Sieve Minimum Percentage by weight
passing sieves

2 inch (51 mm) 100

No.4 (4.75 mm) 55

No.200 (75 pm) 0-ls

a. Deleterious substances. Materials for aggregate base shall be kept free from weeds, sticks, grass,

roots and other foreign matter.

b. Uniformity. The materials shall be thoroughly recycled (pulverized and mixed) to ensure a

uniform gradation.

207 -2.2 Stabilization.

a. Mechanical stabilization. Addition of corrective aggregate material to adjust gradation shall be

equivalent to P-208 or better.

b. Chemical/Bituminous $lslilization. Cement shall meet the requirements of ASTM C150 or
ASTM C595. Fly ash shall meet the requirements of ASTM C618. Emulsified asphalt cement shall meet

the requirements of ASTM D977. . Materials shall be handled, stored, and applied in accordance with all
federal, state, and local requirements.

207-2.3 Water. Water used in mixing or curing shall be from potable water sources. Other sources shall

be tested in accordance with ASTM C1602 prior to use.

207-2.4 Quality Control (QC) Sampling and testing. The Contractor shall take at least two FDR samples

per day ofproduction in the presence ofthe Resident Project Representative (RPR) to check the gradation.

Sampling shall be per ASTM D75. Material shall meet the requirements in paragraph 207-2.1. Samples

shall be taken from the in-place, un-compacted material at random sampling locations per ASTM D3665.

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-207-I



CONSTRUCTION METHODS

207-3.1Milling. Milling is not required.

207-3.2 Control Strip. The first half-day of construction shall be considered the control strip. The
Contractor shall demonstrate, in the presence of the RPR, that the materials, equipment, and construction
processes meet the requirements of the specification. The sequence and manner of rolling necessary to
obtain specified density requirements shall be determined. Control strips that do not meet specification
requirements shall be reworked, re-compacted, or removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense. Full
operations shall not begin until the control strip has been accepted by the RPR. Upon acceptance of the
control strip by the RPR, the Contractor shall use the same equipment, materials, and construction methods
for the remainder of construction, unless adjustments made by the Contractor are approved in advance by
the RPR.

207-3.3 Recycling (Pulverization and mixing). The asphalt pavement, aggregate base and subgrade shall
be recycled (pulverized and mixed) into a uniformly blended mixture with cement by dry unit weight and
water to the depth indicated on the plans. All material over approximately 2 inches (50 mm) shall be
removed by the Contractor. The mixture shall be brought to the desired moisture content.

The maximum lift thickness of the recycled aggregate base course material to be compacted shall be 8
inches.

207-3.4 Grading and compaction. Immediately upon completion of recycling (pulverization and mixing),
the material shall be shaped and graded in accordance with the project plans. The recycled asphalt aggregate
base course shall be compacted within the same day to an in-place density of 95%o as determined by ASTM
D1557. The moisture content of the material during compaction shall be within *2Yo of the optimum
moisture content as determined by ASTMD22I6. The number, type and weight ofrollers shall be sufficient
to compact the material to the required density. Maximum density refers to maximum dry density at
optimum moisture content unless otherwise specified.

207-3.5 Finishing. The surface of the aggregate base course shall be finished by blading or with automated
equipment designed for this purpose. If the top layer is ll2 inch (12 mm) or more below grade, the top
layer shall be scarifred to a depth of at least 3 inches (75mm), new material added, and the layer blended
and re-compacted to bring it to grade. The addition of layers less than 3 inches (75mm) shall not be allowed.
The surface shall be microcracked and sealed to cure as approved by the RPR.

207-3.6 Proof rolling. Compacted asphalt aggregate base course shall be proof rolled with a tandern axle
dual wheel dump truck loaded to the legal limit with tires inflated to 80 psi in the presence of the RPR. Soft
areas that deflect greater than 0.5 inch (12 mm) or show permanent deformation greater than 0.5 inch (12
mm) shall be removed and reworked at the Contractor's expense.

2073.7 Weather limitations. When weather conditions detrimentally affect the construction process

and/or quality of the materials, the Contractor shall stop construction. Cement or fly ash shall not be applied
when wind conditions affect the distribution of the materials. When the aggregates contain frozen materials
or when the underlying course is frozen or wet, the construction shall be stopped. Construction shall not
be performed unless the atrnospheric temperature is above 35'F (2'C) and rising or approved by the RPR.
When the temperature falls below 35'F (2"C), protect all completed areas against detrimental effects of
freezing by approved methods. Correct completed areas damaged by freezing, rainfall, or other weather
conditions to meet specified requirements.

207-3.8 Maintenance. The asphalt aggregate base course shall be maintained in a satisfactory condition
until the work is accepted by the RPR. Equipment used in the construction of an adjoining section may be
routed over completed sections of asphalt aggregate base course, provided that no damage results and
equipment is routed over the full width of the completed asphalt aggregate base course. Any damage to the
recycled asphalt aggregate base course shall be repaired by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-207.2



2073.9 Surface tolerances. The finished surface shall be tested for smoothness and accuracy of grade.

Any area failing smoothness or grade shall be scarified to a depth of at least 3 inches (75 mm), reshaped

and re-compacted by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.

a. Smoothness. The finished surface shall not vary more than 3/8-inch (9 mm) when tested with a 12-

foot (3.7-m) straightedge applied parallel with and at right angles to the centerline. The straightedge shall
be moved continuously forward at half the length of the l2-foot (3.7-m) straightedge for the full length of
each line on a 50-foot (15-m) grid.

b. Grade. The grade shall be measured on a 50-foot (15-m) grid and shall be within +0 and -112 inch
(12 mm) of the specified grade.

207-3.10 Acceptance sampling and testing for density. FDR base course shall be accepted for density
and thickness on an area basis. One (1) test for density and thickness will be made for each 1200 square

yds. Sampling locations will be determined on a random basis in accordance with ASTM D3665.

a. Density. The Contractor's laboratory shall perform all density tests in the RPR's presence and
provide the test results upon completion to the RPR for acceptance.

Each area will be accepted for density when the field density is at least 95%o of the maximum density
of the FDR base course in accordance with ASTM Dl557. The in-place field density shall be determined
in accordance with ASTM D6938 using Procedure A, the direct transmission method, and ASTM D6938
shall be used to determine the moisture content of the material. The machine shall be calibrated in
accordance with ASTM D6938. If the specified density is not attained, the area represented by the failed
test must be reworked and/or recompacted and two additional random tests made. This procedure shall be

followed until the specified density is reached. Maximum density refers to maximum dry density at

optimum moisture content unless otherwise specified.

b. Thickness. The thickness of the base course shall be within +0 and -ll2inch (12 mm) of the specified
thickness as determined by depth tests taken by the Contractor in the presence of the RPR for each area.

Where the thickness is deficient by more than l/2-inch (12 mm), the Contractor shall correct such areas at

no additional cost by scarifying to a depth of at least 3 inches (75 mm), adding new material, and

recompacted to grade. The Contractor shall replace, at his expense, base material where depth tests have
been taken.

METHOD OF MEAST]REMENT

207-4.1The quantity of FDR asphalt aggregate base course shall be measured by the number of square

yards of material in compliance with the plans and specifications.

207-4.2 The quantity of corrective aggregate material or additive material (P-208) shall be measured by
cubic yards

207-4.3 The quantity of cement shall be measured by the ton.

BASIS OF PAYMENT

207-5.1Payment shall be made at the contract unit price for recycling the existing asphalt pavement,

aggregate base course, subgrade and mixing with stabilizing agent, if required, spreading, compacting,
microcracking and cure sealing, and maintaining the recycled material to the compacted thickness as

indicated on the drawings. This price for FDR shall be full compensation for furnishing all materials, for
preparing and placing these materials, and for all labor, equipment tools and incidentals to complete the
item. Payment shall be made at the contract unit price for FDR per square yard.

207-5.2 Payment shall be made at the contract unit price corrective aggregate material per cubic yard.

207-5.3 Payment shall be made at the contract unit price per ton for the cement stabilizing agent per ton.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RI.AIWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-207-3



REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are
referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

ASTM lntemational (ASTM)

ASTM C29 Unit Weight of Aggregate

ASTM C88 Soundness of Aggregates by Use of Sodium or Magnesium Sulfate

ASTMCIIT Materials Finer than 75-pm (No.200) Sieve in Mineral Aggregate by
Washing

ASTM C131 Resistance to abrasion of Small Size Coarse Aggregate by Use of Los
Angeles Machine

ASTM C136 Sieve or Screen Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregate

ASTM C150 Standard Specification for Portland Cement

ASTM C595 Standard Specification for Blended Hydraulic Cements

ASTM C1602 Standard Specification for Mixing Water Used in the Production of
Hydraulic Cement Concrete

ASTM D75 Sampling Aggregate

ASTM D558 ASTM D558 Standard Test Methods for Moisture-Density (Unit
Weight) Relations of Soil-Cement Mixtures

ASTM D698 Moisture Density Relations of Soils and Aggregate using 5.5 lb Rammer
and 12 in drop

ASTM D977 Standard Specification forEmulsified Asphalt

ASTM D1556 Test Method for Density and Unit Weight of Soil in Place by the Sand
Cone Method

ASTM D1557 Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using
Modified Effort

ASTM D2216 Test Methods for Laboratory Determination of Water (Moisture) Soil and
Rock by Mass

ASTM D2419 Test Method for Sand Equivalent Value of Soils and Fine Aggregate

ASTM D2487 Standard Practice for Classification of Soils for Engineering Purposes
(Unified Soil Classification System)

ASTM D3665 Standard Practice for Random Sampling of Construction Materials

ASTMD4318 Standard Test Methods for Liquid Limit, Plastic Limit, and Plasticity
Index of Soils

ASTM D4491 Standard Test Methods for Water Permeability of Geotextiles by
Permittivity

ASTM D4751 Standard Test Methods for Determining Apparent Opening Size of a

Geotextile

ASTMD582I Standard Test Method for Determining the Percentage of Fractured
Particles in Coarse Aggregate

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-207-4



ASTM D6938 Standard Test Method for In-Place Density and Water Content of Soil and

Soil Aggregate by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth)

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Offrcials (AASHTO)

M288 Standard Specification for Geosynthetic Specification for Highway
Applications

END OF ITEM P-207

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P.207-5



Item P-403 Asphalt Mix Pavement Surface Course

DESCRIPTION

403-1.1 This item shall consist of pavement courses composed of mineral aggregate and asphalt binder
mixed in a cenfal mixing plant and placed on a prepared course in accordance with these specifications
and shall conform to the lines, grades, thicknesses, and tlpical cross-sections shown on the plans. Each
course shall be constructed to the depth, typical section, and elevation required by the plans and shall be
rolled, finished, and approved before the placement of the next courue.

MATERIALS

403-2.1Aggregate. Aggregates shall consist of crushed stone, crushed gravel, crushed slag, screenings,
nahral sand and mineral filler, as required. The aggregates should have no known history of detrimental
pavement staining due to ferrous sulfides, such as pynte. Coarse aggregate is the material retained on the
No. 4 (4.75 mm) sieve. Fine aggregate is the material passing the No. 4 (4.75 mm) sieve.

a. Coarse aggregate. Coarse aggregate shall consist of sound, tough, durable particles, free from films
of matter that would prevent thorough coating and bonding with the asphalt material and free from organic
matter and other deleterious substances. Coarse aggregate material requirements are given in the table
below.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REIIABILITATION P-403-1



Material Test Requirement Standard

Resistance to Degradation Loss: 40% maximum for surface, asphalt
binder, and leveling course

Loss: 50% maximum for base course

ASTMCI3I

Soundness of Aggregates

by Use of Sodium Sulfate or
Magnesium Sulfate

Loss after 5 cycles:

l2Yomaximumusing Sodium sulfate - or -

18% maximum using magnesium sulfate

ASTM C88

Clay lumps and friable
particles

0.3% maximum ASTM CI42

Percentage of Fractured
Particles

For pavements desigrred for aircraft gross

weights of 60,000 pounds (27200 kg) or more:

Minimum 75%by weight of particles with at
least two fractured faces and 85% with at least
one fractured facel

ASTM D582I

For pavements designed for aircraft gross

weights less than 60,000 pounds (27200kg)

Minimum 50% by weight of particles with at
least two fractured faces and 65% with at least
one fractured facel

Flat, Elongated, or Flat and
Elongated Particles

8olo maximum, by weight, of flat, elongated, or
flat and elongated particles with a value of 5:l 2

ASTM D4791

Bulk density of slagl Weigh not less than 70 pounds per cubic foot
(1.12 Mg/cubic meter)

ASTM C29

Coarse Aggregate Material Requirements

I The area of each face shall be equal to at least 75o/o of the smallest mid-sectional area of the piece.

When two fractured faces are contiguous, the angle between the planes of fractures shall be at least 30

degrees to count as two fractured faces.
2 A flat particle is one having a ratio of width to thickness greater than five (5); an elongated particle is

one having aratio of length to width greater than five (5).
3 Only required if slag is specified.

b. Fine aggregate. Fine aggregate shall consist ofclean, sound, tough, durable, angular shaped particles
produced by crushing stone, slag, or gravel and shall be free from coatings of clay, silt, or other
objectionable matter. Natural (non-manufactured) sand may be used to obtain the gradation of the
aggregate blend or to improve the workability of the mix. Fine aggregate material requirements are listed
in the table below.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-2



Fine Aggregate Material Requirements

Material Test Requirement Standard

Liquid limit 25 maximum ASTM D4318

Plasticity Index 4 maximum ASTM D4318

Soundness of Aggregates

by Use of Sodium Sulfate or
Magnesium Sulfate

Loss after 5 cycles:

10% maximum using Sodium sulfate - or -

15% maximum using magnesium sulfate

ASTM C88

Clay lumps and friable particles 0.3% maximum ASTM C142

Sand equivalent 45 minimum ASTMD24I9

Natural Sand 0 to 15% maximum by weight of total
aggregate

ASTM D1073

c. Sampling. ASTM D75 shall be used in sampling coarse and fine aggregate, and ASTM C183 shall
be used in sampling mineral filler.

403-2.2 Mineral filler. Mineral filler (baghouse fines) may be added in addition to material naturally
present in the aggregate. Mineral filler shall meet the requirements of ASTM D242.

Mineral filler Requirements

Material Test Requirement Standard

Plasticity Index 4 maximum ASTM D43I8

403-2.3 Asphalt binder. Asphalt binder shall conform to ASTM D6373 Performance Grade (PG) 70-10.

403-2.4 Anti-stripping agent. Any anti-stripping agent or additive (anti-strip) shall be heat stable and shall
not change the asphalt binder grade beyond specifications. Anti-strip shall be an approved material of the
Department of Transportation of the State in which the project is located.

COMPOSITION

403-3.1 Composition of mixture. The asphalt plant mix shall be composed of a mixture of well-graded
aggregate, filler and anti-strip agent ifrequired, and asphalt binder. The several aggregate fractions shall be
sized, handled in separate size groups, and combined in such proportions that the resulting mixture meets
the grading requirements of the job mix formula (JMF).

403-3.2 Job mix formula (JUfl hboratory. The laboratory used to develop the JMF shall possess a

current certificate of accreditation, listing D3666 from a national accrediting authority and all test methods
required for developing the JMF, and listed on the accrediting authority's website. A copy of the
laboratory's current accreditation and accredited test methods shall be submitted to the RPR prior to start
ofconstruction.

403-3.3 Job mix formula (JN,m). No asphalt mixture shall be placed until an acceptable mix desigrr has

been submitted to the RPR for review and accepted in writing. The RPR's review shall not relieve the
Contractor of the responsibility to select and proportion the materials to comply with this section.

When the proj ect requires asphalt mixtures of differing aggregate gradations and/or binders, a separate JMF
shall be submitted for each mix. Add anti-stripping agent to meet tensile strength requirements.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RTINWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-3



The JMF shall be prepared by an accredited laboratory that meets the requirements of paragraph 403-3.2.
The asphalt mixture shall be designed using procedures contained in Asphalt Institute MS-2 Mix Desigrr
Manual, 7th Edition. Samples shall be prepared and compacted using a Marshall compactor in accordance

with ASTM D6926.

Should a change in sources of materials be made, a new JMF must be submitted to the RPR for review and
accepted in writing before the new material is used. After the initial production JMF has been approved by
the RPR and a new or modified JMF is required for whatever reason, the subsequent cost of the new or
modified JMF, including a new control strip when required by the RPR, will be borne by the Contactor.

The RPR may request samples at any time for testing, prior to and during production, to verify the quality
of the materials and to enswe conformance with the applicable specifications.

The JMF shall be submitted in writing by the Contractor at least 30 days prior to the start of paving
operations. The JMF shall be developed within the same construction season using aggregates proposed

for project use.

The submitted JMF shall be dated, and stamped or sealed by the responsible professional Engineer of the
laboratory and shall include the following items as a minimum:

r Manufacturer's Certificate of Analysis (COA) for the asphalt binder used in the JMF in accordance

with paragraph 403-2.3. Certificate of asphalt performance grade is with modifier already added,

if used and must indicate compliance with ASTM D6373. For plant modified asphalt binder,
certified test report indicating grade certifrcation of modified asphalt binder.

o Manufacturer's Certificate of Analysis (COA) for the anti-stripping agent if used in the JMF in
accordance with paragraph 403 -2.4.

o Certified material test reports for the course and fine aggregate and mineral filler in accordance

with paragraphs 403-2.1 and 403-2.2.

r Percent passing each sieve size for individual gradation ofeach aggregate cold feed and/or hot bin;
percent by weight of each cold feed and/or hot bin used; and the total combined gradation in the
JMF.

. Specific Gravity and absorption ofeach course and fine aggregate.

e Percent natural sand.

r Percent fractured faces.

r Percent by weight of flat particles, elongated particles, and flat and elongated particles (and

criteria).

r Percent ofasphalt.

o Number of blows or gyrations.

o Laboratory mixing and compaction temperatures.

. Supplier recommended mixing and compaction ternperatures.

o Plot of the combined gradation on the 0.45 power gradation curve.

o Graphical plots of air voids, voids in the mineral aggregate (VMA), and unit weight versus asphalt
content. To achieve minimum VMA during production, the mix design needs to account for
material breakdown during production.

o Tensile Strength Ratio (TSR).

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-4



. Type and amount of Anti-strip agent when used.

r Asphalt Pavement Analyzer (APA) results.

o Date the JMF was developed. Mix desigrs that are not dated or which are from a prior construction
season shall not be accepted.

Table 1. Asphalt Design Criteria

I Test specimens for TSR shall be compacted at7 + 1.0 % air voids. In areas subject to freeze-thaw,
use freeze-thaw conditioning in lieu of moisture conditioning per ASTM D4867.

2 AASHTO T340 at 100 psi hose pressure at 64"C test temperature may be used in the interim. If this
method is used the required Value shall be less than 5 mm @ 8000 passes

The mineral aggregate shall be of such size that the percentage composition by weight, as determined by
laboratory sieves, will conform to the gradation or gradations specified in Table 2 when tested in accordance
with ASTM C136 and ASTM CI17.

The gradations in Table 2 represent the limits that shall determine the suitability of aggregate for use from
the sources of supply, be well graded from coarse to fine and shall not vary from the low limit on one sieve
to the high limit on the adjacent sieve, or vice versa.

Test Property Value Test Method

Number of blows/gyrations 50

Air voids (%) 3.5 ASTMD32O3

Percent voids in mineral
aggregate (VMA), minimum

See Table 2 ASTM D6995

TSR'
not less than 80 at a saturation of

70-80%
ASTM D4867

Asphalt Pavement Analy zer
(APAF Less than 10 mm @4000 passes

AASHTO T340 at 250 psi hose
pressure at 64"C test temperature

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-s



Table 2. Aggregate - Asphalt Pavements

Sieve Size

Percentage by Weight
Passing Sieve

Surface Course Leveling Course

1 inch (25.0 mm) 100

314 inch (19.0 mm) 90-100

ll2inch(l2.5 mm) 68-88 100

3/8 inch (9.5 mm) 60-82 90-100

No.4 (4.75 mm) 45-67 58-78

No. 8 (2.36 mm) 32-54 40-60

No. 16 (1.18 mm) 22-44 28-48

No. 30 (600 pm) l5-35 18-38

No. 50 (300 pm) 9-25 tt-27

No. 100 (150 pm) 6-18 6-18

No.200 (75 pm) 3-6 3-6

Voids in Mineral Aggregate (VMA)I t4 16

Asphalt Percent:

Stone or gtavel 4.5-7.0 5.5-8.0

Slag 5.0-7.5 7.0-10.5

Recommended Minimum Construction Lift
Thickness

3 inch 1.5 inch

rTo achieve minimum VMA during production, the mix desigr needs to account for
material breakdown during production.

The aggregate gradations shown are based on aggregates of uniform specific Savity. The percentages

passing the various sieves shall be corrected when aggregates of varying specific gravities ate used, as

indicated in the Asphalt Institute MS-2 Mix Design Manual, 7th Edition.

403-3.5 Control strip. Full production shall not begin until an acceptable control strip has been constructed
and accepted in writing by the RPR. The Contractor shall prepare and place a quantity of asphalt according
to the JMF. The underlying grade or pavement structure upon which the control strip is to be constructed
shall be the same as the remainder of the course represented by the control strip.

The Contractor will not be allowed to place the control sfip until the Contractor quality control program
(CQCP), showing conformance with the requirements of paragraph 403-5.1, has been accepted, in writing,
bythe RPR.

The control strip will consist of at least 250 tons (227 mefrc tons) or l/2 sublot, whichever is greater. The
control strip shall be placed in two lanes of the same width and depth to be used in production with a
longitudinal cold joint. The cold joint must be cut back in accordance with paragraph 403-4.13 using the

same procedure that will be used during production. The cold joint for the control strip will be an exposed
construction joint at least four (4) hours old or when the mat has cooled to less than 160'F (71"C). The
equipment used in construction of the control strip shall be the same type, configuration and weight to be

used on the project.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-6



The contol strip shall be evaluated for acceptance as a single lot in accordance with the acceptance criteria
in paragraph 403-6.1 and403-6.2. The control strip shall be divided into equal sublots. As a minimum, the
control strip shall consist ofthree (3) sublots.

The control strip will be considered acceptable by the RPR if the gradation, asphalt content, and VMA are
within the action limits specified in paragraph 403-5.5a; and Mat density, air voids, and joint density meet
the requirements specified in paragraphs 403-6.2.

If the control sfip is unacceptable, necessary adjustments to the JMF, plant operation, placing procedures,
and/or rolling procedures shall be made and another control strip shall be placed. Unacceptable control
strips shall be removed at the Contractor's expense.

Payment will only be made for an acceptable control strip in accordance with paragraph 403-8.1

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

403-4.1Weather limitations. The asphalt shall not be placed upon a wet surface or when the surface
temperature of the underlying course is less than specified in Table 4. The temperature requirements may
be waived by the RPR, if requested; however, all other requirements including compaction shall be met.

Table 4. Surface Temperature Limitations of Underlying Course

Mat Thickness
Base Temperature (Minimum)

Degrees F Degrees C

3 inches (7.5 cm) or greater 40 4

Greater than2 inches (50 mm)

but less than 3 inches (7.5 cm)
45 7

403-4.2 Asphalt plant. Plants used for the preparation of asphalt shall conform to the requirements of
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Offrcials (AASHTO) M156 including the
following items:

a. Inspection of plant. The RPR, or RPR's authorized representative, shall have access, at all times, to
all areas of the plant for checking adequacy of equipment; inspecting operation of the plant: verifring
weights, proportions, and material properties; and checking the temperatures maintained in the preparation
of the mixtures.

b. Storage bins and surge bins. The asphalt mixture stored in storage and/or surge bins shall meet the
same requirements as asphalt mixture loaded directly into trucks. Asphalt mixture shall not be stored in
storage and/or surge bins for a period greater than twelve (12) hours. If the RPR determines there is an
excessive heat loss, segregation or oxidation of the asphalt mixture due to temporary storage, temporary
storage shall not be allowed.

403-4.3 Aggregate stockpile management. Aggregate stockpiles shall be constructed in such a manner
that prevents segregation and intermixing of deleterious materials. Aggregates from different sources shall
be stockpiled, weighed and batched separately at the concrete batch plant. Aggregates that have become
segregated or mixed with earth or foreigr material shall not be used.

A continuous supply of materials shall be provided to the work to ensure continuous placement.

403-4.4 Hauling equipment. Trucks used for hauling asphalt shall have tight, clean, and smooth metal
beds. To prevent the asphalt from sticking to the truck beds, the truck beds shall be lightly coated with a
minimum amount of paraffin oil, lime solution, or othermaterial approved by the RPR. Petroleum products

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-7



shall not be used for coating truck beds. Each truck shall have a suitable cover to protect the mixture from
adverse weather. When necessary, to ensure that the mixture will be delivered to the site at the specified
temperature, truck beds shall be insulated or heated and covers shall be securely fastened.

403-4.4.1Material transfer vehicle CMTV). Material transfer Vehicles shall be required due to the

improvement in smoothness and decrease in both physical and thermal segregation. To transfer the material
from the hauling equipment to the paver, use a self-propelled, material transfer vehicle with a swing
conveyor that can deliver material to the paver without making contact with the paver. The MTV shall be
able to move back and forth between the hauling equipment and the paver providing material transfer to
the paver, while allowing the paver to operate at a constant speed. The Material Transfer Vehicle will have

remixing and storage capability to prevent physical and thermal segregation.

403-4.5 Asphalt pavers. Asphalt pavers shall be self-propelled with an activated heated screed, capable

of spreading and finishing courses of asphalt that will meet the specified thickness, smoothness, and grade.

The paver shall have sufficient power to propel itself and the hauling equipment without adversely affecting
the finished surface. The asphalt paver shall be equipped with a control system capable of automatically
maintaining the specified screed grade and elevation.

Ifthe spreading and finishing equipment in use leaves tracks or indented areas, or produces other blemishes
in the pavernent that are not satisfactorily corrected by the scheduled operations, the use ofsuch equipment
shall be discontinued.

The paver shall be capable of paving to a minimum width specified in paragraph 401-4.11.

403-4.6 Rollers. The number, type, and weight of rollers shall be suflicient to compact the asphalt to the
required density while it is still in a workable condition without crushing of the aggregate, depressions or
other damage to the pavement surface. Rollers shall be in good condition, capable of operating at slow
speeds to avoid displacement of the asphalt. All rollers shall be specifically designed and suitable for
compacting asphalt concrete and shall be properly used. Rollers that impair the stability of any layer of a
pavement structure or underlying soils shall not be used.

403-4.6.1Density device. The Contractor shall have on site a density gauge during all paving operations
in order to assist in the determination of the optimum rolling pattern, type of roller and frequencies, as well
as to monitor the effect of the rolling operations during production paving. The Contractor shall also supply
a qualified technician during all paving operations to calibrate the density gauge and obtain accurate density
readings for all new asphalt. These densities shall be supplied to the RPR upon request at any time during
construction. No separate payment will be made for supplying the density gauge and technician.

403-4.7 Preparation of asphalt binder. The asphalt binder shall be heated in a manner that will avoid
local overheating and provide a continuous supply of the asphalt material to the mixer at a uniform
temperature. The temperature of the unmodified asphalt binder delivered to the mixer shall be suflicient to
provide a suitable viscosity for adequate coating of the aggregate particles, but shall not exceed 325oF
(160"C) when added to the aggregate. The temperature of modified asphalt binder shall be no more than
350"F (175"C) when added to the aggregate.

403-4.8 Preparation of mineral aggregate. The aggregate for the asphalt shall be heated and dried. The
maximum temperature and rate of heating shall be such that no damage occurs to the aggregates. The
temperature of the aggregate and mineral filler shall not exceed 350"F (175"C) when the asphalt binder is
added. Particular care shall be taken that aggregates high in calcium or magnesium content are not damaged

by overheating. The temperature shall not be lower than is required to obtain complete coating and uniform
dishibution on the aggregate particles and to provide a mixture of satisfactory workability.

403-4.9 Preparation of asphalt mixture. The aggregates and the asphalt binder shall be weighed or
metered and introduced into the mixer in the amount specified by the JMF. The combined materials shall
be mixed until the aggregate obtains a uniform coating of asphalt binder and is thoroughly distributed

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-8



throughout the mixture. Wet mixing time shall be the shortest time that will produce a satisfactory mixture,
but not less than 25 seconds for batch plants. The wet mixing time for all plants shall be established by the
Contractor, based on the procedure for determining the percentage of coated particles described in ASTM
D2489, for each individual plant and for each type of aggregate used. The wet mixing time will be set to
achieve 95Yo of coated particles. For continuous mix plants, the minimum mixing time shall be determined
by dividing the weight of its contents at operating level by the weight of the mixture delivered per second
by the mixer. The moisture content of all asphalt upon discharge shall not exceed 0.5%.

403-4.10 Application of Prime and Tack Coat. Immediately before placing the asphalt mixture, the
underlying course shall be cleaned ofall dust and debris.

A prime coat in accordance with Item P-602 shall be applied to aggregate base prior to placing the asphalt
mixture.

A tack coat shall be applied in accordance with Item P-603 to all vertical and horizontal asphalt and concrete
surfaces prior to placement of the first and each subsequent lift of asphalt mixture.

403-4.11Laydown plan, transporting, placing, and finishing. Prior to the placement of the asphalt, the
Contractor shall prepare a laydown plan with the sequence of paving lanes and width to minimize the
number of cold joints; the location of any temporary ramps; laydown temperature; and estimated time of
completion for each portion of the work (milling, paving, rolling, cooling, etc.). The laydown plan and any
modifications shall be approved by the RPR.

Deliveries shall be scheduled so that placing and compacting of asphalt is uniform with minimum stopping
and starting of the paver. Hauling over freshly placed material shall not be permitted until the material has
been compacted, as specified, and allowed to cool to approximately ambient temperature. The Contractor,
at their expense, shall be responsible for repair of any damage to the pavunent caused by hauling operations.

Contractor shall survey each lift of asphalt surface counie and certify to RPR that every lot of each lift meets
the grade tolerances ofparagraph 401-6.2e before the next lift can be placed.

Edges of existing asphalt pavement abutting the new work shall be saw cut and the cut off material and
laitance removed. Apply a tack coat in accordance with P-603 before new asphalt material is placed against
it.

The speed of the paver shall be regulated to eliminate pulling and tearing of the asphalt mat. Placement of
the asphalt mix shall begin along the centerline of a crowned section or on the high side of areas with a one
way slope unless shown otherwise on the laydown plan as accepted by the RPR. The asphalt mix shall be
placed in consecutive adjacent lanes having a minimum width of 15.0 feet except where edge lanes require
less width to complete the area. Additional screed sections attached to widen the paver to meet the
minimum lane width requirements must include additional auger sections to move the asphalt mixtue
uniformly along the screed extension.

The longitudinal joint in one course shall offset the longitudinal joint in the course immediately below by
at least I foot (30 cm); however, the joint in the surface top course shall be at the centerline of crowned
pavements. Transverse joints in one course shall be offset by at least l0 feet (3 m) from transverse joints in
the previous course. Transverse joints in adjacent lanes shall be offset a minimum of 10 feet (3 m).On areas

where irregularities or unavoidable obstacles make the use of mechanical spreading and finishing
equipment impractical, the asphalt may be spread and luted by hand tools.

The RPR may at any time, reject any batch of asphalt, on the truck or placed in the mat, which is rendered
unfit for use due to contamination, segregation, incomplete coating of aggregate, or overheated asphalt
mixture. Such rejection may be based on only visual inspection or temperature measurements. In the event
of such rejection, the Contractor may take a representative sample of the rejected material in the presence

of the RPR, and if it can be demonstrated in the laboratory, in the presence of the RPR, that such material
was eroneously rejected, payment will be made for the material at the contract unit price.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-9



Areas of segregation in the surface course, as determined by the RPR, shall be removed and replaced at the

Contractor's expense. The area shall be removed by saw cutting and milling a minimum of the construction
lift thickness as specified in paragraph 401-3.3, Table 2 for the approved mix design. The area to be

removed and replaced shall be a minimum width of the paver and a minimum of 10 feet (3 m) long.

403-4.12 Compaction of asphalt mixture. After placing, the asphalt mixture shall be thoroughly and

uniformly compacted by self-propelled rollers. The surface shall be compacted as soon as possible when
the asphalt has attained suffrcient stability so that the rolling does not cause undue displacement, cracking
or shoving. The sequence ofrolling operations and the type ofrollers used shall be at the discretion ofthe
Contractor. The speed of the roller shall, at all times, be sufficiently slow to avoid displacement of the hot
mixture and be effective in compaction. Any surface defects and/or displacement occurring as a result of
the roller, or from any other cause, shall be corrected at the Contractor's expense.

Sufficient rollers shall be furnished to handle the output of the plant. Rolling shall continue until the surface

is of uniform texture, true to grade and cross-section, and the required field density is obtained. To prevent

adhesion of the asphalt to the roller, the wheels shall be equipped with a scraper and kept moistened with
water as necessary.

In areas not accessible to the roller, the mixture shall be thoroughly compacted with approved power
tampers.

Any asphalt that becomes loose and broken, mixed with dirt, contains check-cracking, or in any way
defective shall be removed and replaced with fresh hot mixture and immediately compacted to conform to
the surrounding area. This work shall be done at the Contractor's expense. Skin patching shall not be

allowed.

403-4.13 Joints. The formation of all joints shall be made in such a manner as to ensure a continuous bond
between the courses and obtain the required density. All joints shall have the same texture as other sections

of the course and meet the requirements for smoothness and grade.

The roller shall not pass over the unprotected end ofthe freshly laid asphalt except when necessary to form
a transverse joint. When necessary to form a transverse joint, it shall be made by means of placing a

bullhead or by tapering the course. The tapered edge shall be cut back to its full depth and width on a
straight line to expose a vertical face prior to placing the adjacent lane. In both methods, all contact surfaces

shall be coated with an asphalt tack coat before placing any fresh asphalt against the joint.

Longitudinal joints which are have been left exposed for more than four (4) hours; the surface ternperature
has cooled to less than l75oF (80"C); or are irregular, damaged, uncompacted or otherwise defective shall
be cut back with a cutting wheel or pavement saw a maximum of 3 inches (75 mm) to expose a clean,

sound, uniform vertical surface for the full depth of the course. All cutback material and any laitance
produced from cutting joints shall be removed from the project. An asphalt tack coat or other product
approved by the RPR shall be applied to the clean, dryjoint prior to placing any additional fresh asphalt
against the joint. The cost of this work shall be considered incidental to the cost of the asphalt.

403-4.14 Saw-cut grooving. Saw-cut grooving is not required.

403-4.15 Diamond grinding. Diamond grinding shall be completed prior to pavement grooving. Diamond
grinding shall be accomplished by sawing with saw blades impregnated with industrial diamond abrasive.

Diamond grinding shall be performed with a machine designed specifically for diamond grinding capable

of cutting a path at least 3 feet (0.9 m) wide. The saw blades shall be l/8-inch (3-mm) wide with a minimum
of 55 to 60 blades per 12 inches (300 mm) of cutting head width; grooves between 0.090 and 0.130 inches
(2 and 3.5 mm) wide; and peaks and ridges approximately ll32 inch (l mm) higher than the bottom of the
grinding cut. The actual number of blades will be determined by the Contractor and depend on the hardness

of the aggregate. Equipment or grinding procedures that causes ravels, aggregate fractures, spalls or
disturbance to the pavement will not be permitted.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RLINWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-10



Grinding will be tapered in all directions to provide smooth transitions to areas not requiring grinding. The
slurry resulting from the grinding operation shall be continuously removed and the pavement left in a clean
condition. The Contractor shall apply a surface treatment per P-608 to all areas that have been subject to
gnnding.

403-4.L6 Nighttime Paving Requirements. The Contractor shall provide adequate lighting during any
nighttime construction. A lighting plan shall be submitted by the Contractor and approved by the RPR
prior to the start of any nighttime work. All work shall be in accordance with the approved CSPP and
lighting plan.

403-5.1 General. The Contractor shall develop a CQCP in accordance with Item C-100. No partial
payment will be made for materials that are subject to specific QC requirements without an approved
CQCP.

403-5.2 Contractor quality control (QC) facilities. The Contractor shall provide or contract for testing
facilities in accordance with Item C-100. The RPR shall be permitted unrestricted access to inspect the
Contractor's QC facilities and witness QC activities. The RPR will advise the Contractor in writing of any
noted deficiencies concerning the QC facility, equipment, supplies, or testing personnel and procedures.
When the deficiencies are serious enough to be adversely affecting the test results, the incorporation of the
materials into the work shall be suspended immediately and will not be permitted to resume until the
defi ciencies are satisfactorily corrected.

403-5.3 Quality Control (QC) testing. The Contractor shall perform all QC tests necessary to control the
production and construction processes applicable to these specifications and as set forth in the approved
CQCP. The testing program shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, tests for the control of asphalt
content, aggregate gradation, temperahres, aggregate moisture, and field compaction, and surface
smoothness. A QC Testing Plan shall be developed as part of the CQCP.

a. Asphalt content. A minimum of two tests shall be performed per day in accordance with ASTM
D6307 or ASTM D2172 for determination of asphalt content. When using ASTM D6307, the correction
factor shall be determined as part of the first test performed at the beginning of plant production; and as

part of every tenth test performed thereafter. The asphalt content for the day will be determined by averaging
the test results.

b. Gradation. Aggregate gradations shall be determined a minimum of twice per lot from mechanical
analysis of extracted aggregate in accordance with ASTM D5444 and ASTM C136, and ASTM Cl17.

c. Moisture content of aggregate. The moisture content of aggregate used for production shall be
determined a minimum of once per lot in accordance with ASTM C566.

d. Moisture content of asphalt. The moisture content of the asphalt shall be determined once per lot
in accordance with AASHTO T329 or ASTM D1461.

e. Temperatures. Tanperatures shall be checked, at least four times per lot, at necessary locations to
determine the ternperahres of the dryer, the asphalt binder in the storage tank, the asphalt at the plant, and
the asphalt at the job site.

f. In-place density monitoring. The Contractor shall conduct any necessary testing to ensure that the
specified density is being achieved. A nuclear gauge may be used to monitor the pavement density in
accordance with ASTM D2950.

g. Smoothness for Contractor Quality Control.

The Conhactor shall perform smoothness testing in transverse and longitudinal directions daily to
verify that the construction processes are producing pavement with variances less than Yq inch in 12 feeI,
identiffing areas that may pond water which could lead to hydroplaning of aircraft. If the smoothness

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-l I



criteria is not met, appropriate changes and corrections to the construction process shall be made by the
Contractor before construction continues

The Contractor may use a l2-foot (3.7 m) straightedge or a rolling inclinometer meeting the

requirements of ASTM 82133. Straight-edge testing shall start with one-half the length of the straightedge
at the edge of pavement section being tested and then moved ahead one-half the length of the straightedge
for each successive measurement. Testing shall be continuous across all joints. The surface irregularity
shall be determined by placing the freestanding (unleveled) straightedge on the pavement surface and

allowing it to rest upon the fwo highest spots covered by its length, and measuring the maximum gap

between the straightedge and the pavement surface in the area between the two high points. If the rolling
inclinometer is used, the data may be evaluated using the FAA profile program, ProFAA, using the l2-foot
strai ghtedge simulation fu nction.

Smoothness readings shall not be made across grade changes or cross slope transitions. The transition
between new and existing pavement shall be evaluated separately for conformance with the plans.

(1) Transverse measurements. Transverse measurements shall be taken for each day's
production placed. Transverse measurements will be taken perpendicular to the payement centerline each

50 feet ( I 5 m) or more often as determined by the RPR. The joint between lanes shall be tested separately
to facilitate smoothness between lanes.

(2) Longitudinal measurements. Longitudinal measurements shall be taken for each day's
production placed. Longitudinal tests will be parallel to the centerline of paving; at the center of paving
lanes when widths of paving lanes are less than 20 feet (6 m); and at the third points of paving lanes when
widths of paving lanes are 20 ft(6 m) or greater.

Deviations on the final surface course in either the transverse or longitudinal direction that will trap
water greater than l/4 inch (6 mm) shall be corrected with diamond grinding per paragraph 403-4.15 or by
removing and replacing the surface course to full depth. Grinding shall be tapered in all directions to
provide smooth transitions to areas not requiring grinding. All areas in which diamond grinding has been
performed shall be subject to the final pavement thickness tolerances specified in paragraph 401-6.1d(3)
Areas that have been ground shall be sealed with a surface teatment in accordance with Item P-608. To
avoid the surface treatment creating any conflict with runway or taxiway markings, it may be necessary to
seal a larger area.

Control charts shall be kept to show area ofeach day's placement and the percentage ofcorrective
grinding required. Corrections to production and placement shall be initiated when corrective grinding is

required. Ifthe Contractor's machines and/or methods produce significant areas that need corrective actions
in excess of l0 percent ofa day's production, production shall be stopped until corrective measures are

implunented by the Contractor.

h. Grade. Grade shall be evaluated daily to allow adjustments to paving operations when grade

measurements do not meet specifications. As a minimum, grade shall be evaluated prior to the placement

of the first lift and then prior to and after placement of the surface lift.

Measurernents will be taken at appropriate gradelines (as a minimum at center and edges of paving
lane) and longitudinal spacing as shown on cross-sections and plans. The final surface ofthe pavernent

will not vary from the gradeline elevations and cross-sections shown on the plans by more than ll2 inch
(12 mm) vertically and 0.1 feet (30 mm) laterally. The documentation will be provided by the Contractor
to the RPR within 24 hours.

Areas with humps or depressions that exceed grade or smoothness criteria and that retain water on the

surface must be ground off provided the course thickness after grinding is not more than ll2 inch (12 mm)
less than the thickness specified on the plans. Grinding shall be in accordance with paragraph 403-4.15.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-t2



The Contractor shall repair low areas or areas that cannot be corrected by grinding by removal of
deficient areas to the depth of the final course plusYz inch and replacing with new material. Skin patching
is not allowed.

403-5.4 Sampling. When directed by the RPR, the Contractor shall sample and test any material that
appears inconsistent with similar material being sampled, unless such material is voluntarily removed and
replaced or deficiencies corrected by the Contractor. All sampling shall be in accordance with standard
procedures specified.

403-5.5 Control charts. The Contractor shall maintain linear control charts both for individual
measurements and range (i.e., difference between highest and lowest measurements) for aggregate
gradation, asphalt content, and VMA. The VMA for each day shall be calculated and monitored by the QC
laboratory.

Control charts shall be posted in a location satisfactory to the RPR and kept current. As a minimum, the
control charts shall identiff the project number, the contact item number, the test number, each test
parameter, the Action and Suspension Limits applicable to each test parameter, and the Contractor's test
results. The Contractor shall use the control charts as part of a process control system for identifring
potential problems and assignable causes before they occur. If the Contractor's projected data during
production indicates a problern and the Contractor is not taking satisfactory corrective action, the RPR may
suspend production or acceptance of the material.

a. Individual measurements. Control charts for individual measurements shall be established to
maintain process control within tolerance for aggregate gradation, asphalt content, and VMA. The control
charts shall use the JMF target values as indicators of central tendency for the following test parameters
with associated Action and Suspension Limits:

Control Chart Limits for Individual Measurements

Sieve Action Limit Suspension Limit

3/4inch (19.0 mm) +60/0 +goA

l/2inch(I2.5 mm) +6yo *gyo

3/8 inch (9.5 mm) +6yo +gYo

No.4 (4.75 mm) +6yo +9%

No. 16 (1.18 mm) *sYo +7.50

No. 50 (300 pm) +3yo +4.syo

No.200 (75 pm) *zyo +3yo

Asphalt Content +0.45% +0.70%

Minimum VMA -0.5% -t.0%

b. Range. Control charts for range shall be established to control process variability for the test
parameters and Suspension Limits listed below. The range shail be computed for each lot as the difference
between the two test results for each control parameter. The Suspension Limits specified below are based
on a sample size of n: 2. Should the Confractor elect to perform more than two tests per lot, the Suspension
Limits shall be adjusted by multiplying the Suspension Limit by I .18 for n : 3 and by 1.27 for n: 4.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-13



Control Chart Limits Based on Range
(n=2)

Sieve Susnension Limit
ll2inch(|2.5 mm) tt%
3/8 inch (9.5 mm) rt%
No.4 (4.75 mm) tt%
No. 16 (1.18 mm) 9%

No. 50 (300 pm) 6%

No. 200 (75 pm) 3.s%

Asphalt Content 0.8%

c. Corrective action. CQCP shall indicate that appropriate action shall be taken when the process is
believed to be out oftolerance. The Plan shall contain sets ofrules to gauge when a process is out ofcontrol
and detail what action will be taken to bring the process into control. As a minimum, a process shall be
deerned out ofcontrol and production stopped and corrective action taken, if:

(1) One point falls outside the Suspension Limit line for individual measurernents or range; or

(2) Two points in a row fall outside the Action Limit line for individual measurements.

403-5.6 Quality control (QC) reports. The Contractor shall maintain records and shall submit reports of
QC activities daily, in accordance with the CQCP described in Item C-100.

MATERIAL ACCEPTAIICE

403-6.1. Quality Assurance Acceptance sampling and testing. Unless otherwise specified, all acceptance

sampling and testing necessary to determine conformance with the requirements specified in this section
will be performed by the RPR at no cost to the Contactor except that coring as required in this section shall

be completed and paid for by the Contractor.

a. Quality Assurance (QA) testing laboratory. The QA testing laboratory performing these

acceptance tests will be accredited in accordance with ASTM D3666. The QA laboratory accreditation will
be current and listed on the accrediting authority's website. All test methods required for acceptance

sampling and testing will be listed on the lab accreditation.

b. Lot Size. A standard lot will be equal to one day's production divided into approximately equal sublots
of between 400 to 600 tons. When only one or two sublots are produced in a day's production, the sublots

will be combined with the production lot from the previous or next day.

For small projects, with multiple small placements or if the total project size is less than 3000 tons (2270

metric tons), acceptable material will be paid for by the ton (metric ton) placed per day.

Where more than one plant is simultaneously producing asphalt for the job, the lot sizes will apply
separately for each plant.

c. Asphalt air voids. Plant-produced asphalt will be tested for air voids on a sublot basis.

(1) Sampling. Material from each sublot shall be sampled in accordance with ASTM D3665.

Samples shall be taken from material deposited into trucks at the plant or at the job site in accordance with
ASTM D979. The sample of asphalt may be put in a covered metal tin and placed in an oven for not less

than 30 minutes nor more than 60 minutes to maintain the material at or above the compaction temperature

as specified in the JMF.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-14



(2) Testing. Air voids will be determined for each sublot in accordance with ASTM D3203 for a
set of compacted specimens prepared in accordance with ASTM D6926.

d. In-place asphalt mat and joint density. Each sublot will be tested for in-place mat and joint density as

a percentage of the theoretical maximum density (TMD).

(1) Sampling. The Contractor will cut minimum 5 inches (125 mm) diameter samples in
accordance with ASTM D5361. The Contractor shall furnish all tools, labor, and materials for cleaning,
and filling the cored pavement. Laitance produced by the coring operation shall be removed immediately
after coring, and core holes shall be frlled within one day after sampling in a manner acceptable to the RPR.

(2) Bond. Each lift of asphalt shall be bonded to the underlying layer. If cores reveal that the
surface is not bonded, additional cores shall be taken as directed by the RPR to determine the extent of
unbonded areas. Unbonded areas shall be removed by milling and replaced at no additional cost as directed
by the RPR.

(3) Thickness. Thickness of each lift of surface course will be evaluated by the RPR for
compliance to the requirunents shown on the plans after any necessary colrections for grade. Measurements
of thickness will be made using the cores extracted for each sublot for density measurement. The maximum
allowable deficiency at any point will not be more than ll4 inch (6 mm) less than the thickness indicated
for the lift. Average thickness of lift, or combined lifts, will not be less than the indicated thickness. Where
the thickness tolerances are not met, the lot or sublot shall be corrected by the Contractor at his expense by
removing the deficient area and replacing with new pavement. The Contractor, at his expense, may take
additional cores as approved by the RPR to circumscribe the deficient area.

(4) Mat density. One core shall be taken from each sublot. Core locations will be determined by
the RPR in accordance with ASTM D3665. Cores for mat density shall not be taken closer than one foot
(30 cm) from a transverse or longitudinal joint. The bulk specific gravlty of each cored sample will be
determined in accordance with ASTM D2726. The percent compaction (densiry) of each sample will be
determined by dividing the bulk specific gravity of each sublot sample by the TMD for that sublot.

(5) Joint density. One core centered over the longitudinaljoint shall be taken for each sublot which
contains a longitudinal joint. Core locations will be determined by the RPR in accordance with ASTM
D3665. The bulk specific gravity of each core sample will be determined in accordance with ASTM D2126.
The percent compaction (density) of each sample will be determined by dividing the bulk specific gavity
of each joint density sample by the average TMD for the lot. The TMD used to determine the joint density
at joints formed between lots will be the lower of the average TMD values from the adjacent lots.

403-6.2 Acceptance criteria.

a. General. Acceptance will be based on the implementation ofthe Contractor Quality Control Program
(CQCP) and the following characteristics of the asphalt and completed pavements: air voids, mat density,
joint density, and grade.

b. Air voids. Acceptance of each lot of plant produced material for air voids will be based upon the
average air void from the sublots. If the average air voids of the lot are equal to or greater than 2%o and
equal to or less than5%o, then the lot will be acceptable. If the average is below 2%o or greater than 5%, the
lot shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense.

c. Mat densify. Acceptance of each lot of plant produced material for mat density will be based on the
average of all of the densities taken from the sublots. If the average mat density of the lot so established
equals or exceeds 94Yo,the lot will be acceptable. If the average mat density of the lot is below 94Yo,the
lot shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense.

d. Joint density. Acceptance ofeach lot ofplant produced asphalt forjoint density will be based on
the average of all of the joint densities taken from the sublots. If the average joint density of the lot so

established equals or exceeds 92Vo,the lot will be acceptable. If the average joint density of the lot is less

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-15



Ihan92Yo, the Contractor shall stop production and evaluate the method of compacting joints. Production
may resume once the reason for poor compaction has been determined and appropriate measures have been

taken to ensure proper compaction.

e. Grade. The final finished surface of the pavement of the completed project shall be surveyed to
verify that the grade elevations and cross-sections shown on the plans do not deviate more than ll2 inch
(12 mm) vertically.

Cross-sections of the pavement shall be taken at a minimum 50-foot (15-m) longitudinal spacing and

at all longitudinal grade breaks. Minimum cross-section grade points shall include grade at centerline, *
10 feet of centerline, and edge of taxiway pavement.

The survey and documentation shall be stamped and signed by a licensed surveyor. Payment for sublots
that do not meet grade for over 25Yo of the sublot shall not be more than9lYo.

403-6.3 Resampling Pavement for Mat Density.

a. General. Resampling of a lot of pavement will only be allowed for mat density and then, only if the

Contractor requests same in writing, within 48 hours after receiving the written test results from the RPR.

A retest will consist of all the sampling and testing procedures contained in paragraphs 403-6.1. Only one

resampling per lot will be permitted.

(1) A redefined mat density will be calculated for the resampled lot. The number of tests used to
calculate the redefined mat density will include the initial tests made for that lot plus the retests.

(2) The cost for resampling and retesting shall be borne by the Contractor.

b. Payment for resampled lots. The redefined mat density for a resampled lot will be used to evaluate
the acceptance of that lot in accordance with paragraph 403-6.2.

c. Outliers. Check for outliers in accordance with ASTM E178, at a sigrrificance level of 5o/o. Outliers
will be discarded and density determined using the remaining test values.

403-6.4 Leveling course. The leveling course is the first variable thickness lift placed to correct surface

irregularities prior to placement of subsequent courses. The leveling course shall meet the aggregate
gradation in Table 2,paragraph 403-3.3. The leveling course shall meet the requirements of paragraph 403-
3.3, 403-6.lb for air voids, but shall not be subject to the density requirernents ofparagraph 403-6.1c. The
leveling course shall be compacted with the same effort used to achieve density of the control strip. The
leveling course shall not exceed the maximum lift thickness associated with each gradation in Table 2,

paragraph 403-3.3.

METIIOD OF MEASUREMENT

403-7.LMeasurement. Plant mix asphalt mix pavement shall be measured by the number of tons of asphalt
pavement used in the accepted work. Recorded batch weights or truck scale weights will be used to
determine the basis for the tonnage.

BASIS OF PAYMENT

403-8.1 Payment. Payment for a lot of asphalt mixture meeting all acceptance criteria as specified in
paragraph 403-6.2 shall be made at the contract unit price per ton for asphalt. The price shall be

compensation for furnishing all materials, for all preparation, mixing, and placing of these materials, and

for all labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the item.

Payment will be made under:

Item P-403-8.1 Asphalt Mixture Surface Course - per ton

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-403-16



REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

ASTM lnternational (ASTM)

ASTM C29 Standard Test Method for Bulk Density ("Unit Weight") and Voids in
Aggregate

ASTM C88 Standard Test Method for Soundness of Aggregates by Use of Sodium
Sulfate or Magnesium Sulfate

ASTM Cl17 Standard Test Method for Materials Finer than 751m (No. 200) Sieve in
Mineral Aggregates by Washing

ASTM Cl27 Standard Test Method for Density, Relative Density (Specific Gravity),
and Absorption of Coarse Aggregate

ASTM Cl3l Standard Test Method for Resistance to Degradation of Small-Size
Coarse Aggregate by Abrasion and Impact in the Los Angeles Machine

ASTM C136 Standard Test Method for Sieve or Screen Analysis of Fine and Coarse
Aggregates

ASTM Cl42 Standard Test Method for Clay Lumps and Friable Particles in
Aggregates

ASTM C183 Standard Practice for Sampling and the Amount of Testing of Hydraulic
Cement

ASTM C566 Standard Test Method for Total Evaporable Moisture Content of
Aggregate by Drying

ASTM D75 Standard Practice for Sampling Aggregates

ASTM D242 Standard Specification for Mineral Filler for Bituminous Paving
Mixtures

ASTM D946 Standard Specification for Penetation-Graded Asphalt Cement for Use
in Pavement Construction

ASTM D979 Standard Practice for Sampling Bituminous Paving Mixtures

ASTM D1073 Standard Specification for Fine Aggregate for Bituminous Paving
Mixtures

ASTM D1074 Standard Test Method for Compressive Strength of Bituminous Mixtures

ASTM D1461 Standard Test Method for Moisture or Volatile Distillates in Bituminous
Paving Mixtures

ASTM D2041 Standard Test Method for Theoretical Maximum Specific Gravity and

Density of Bituminous Paving Mixtures

ASTM DZl72 Standard Test Method for Quantitative Extraction of Bitumen from
Bituminous Paving Mixtures

ASTM D2419 Standard Test Method for Sand Equivalent Value of Soils and Fine
Aggregate

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P403-17



ASTM D2489

ASTM D2726

ASTM D2950

ASTMD32O3

ASTM D338I

ASTM D3665

ASTM D3666

ASTM D4125

ASTM D43I8

ASTM D4552

ASTM D4791

ASTM D4867

ASTM D5444

ASTM D5581

ASTM D582I

ASTM D6307

ASTM D6373

ASTM D6752

ASTM D6925

ASTM D6926

ASTM D6927

Standard Practice for Estimating Degree of Particle Coating of
Bituminous-Aggregate Mixtures

Standard Test Method for Bulk Specific Gravity and Density of Non-
Absorptive Compacted Bituminous Mixhres

Standard Test Method for Density of Bituminous Concrete in Place by
Nuclear Methods

Standard Test Method for Percent Air Voids in Compacted Dense and

Open Bituminous Paving Mixtures

Standard Specification for Viscosity-Graded Asphalt Cement for Use in
Pavement Construction

Standard Practice for Random Sampling of Construction Materials

Standard Specification for Minimum Requirements for Agencies Testing
and Inspecting Road and Paving Materials

Standard Test Methods for Asphalt Content of Bituminous mixtures by
the Nuclear Method

Standard Test Methods for Liquid Limit, Plastic Limit, and Plasticity
Index of Soils

Standard Practice for Classifuing Hot-Mix Recycling Agents

Standard Test Method for Flat Particles, Elongated Particles, or Flat and

Elongated Particles in Coarse Aggregate

Standard Test Method for Effect of Moisture on Asphalt Concrete Paving
Mixtures

Standard Test Method for Mechanical Size Analysis of Extracted
Aggregate

Standard Test Method for Resistance to Plastic Flow of Bituminous
Mixtures Using Marshall Apparatus (6 inch-Diameter Specimen)

Standard Test Method for Determining the Percentage of Fractured
Particles in Coarse Aggregate

Standard Test Method forAsphalt Content of Hot-Mix Asphalt by
Ignition Method

Standard Specification for Performance Graded Asphalt Binder

Standard Test Method for Bulk Specific Gravity and Density of
Compacted Bituminous Mixtures Using Automatic Vacuum Sealing
Method

Standard Test Method for Preparation and Determination of the Relative
Density of Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Specimens by Means of the

SuperPave Gyratory Compactor

Standard Practice for Preparation of Bituminous Specimens Using
Marshall Apparatus

Standard Test Method for Marshall Stability and Flow of Bituminous
Mixtures

LONE PINEiDEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P403-18



ASTM D6995 Standard Test Method for Determining Field VMA based on the
Maximum Specific Gravity of the Mix (Gmm)

ASTM El I Standard Specification for Woven Wire Test Sieve Cloth and Test Sieves

ASTM El78 Standard Practice for Dealing with Outlying Observations

ASTM 82133 Standard Test Method for Using a Rolling Inclinometer to Measure
Longitudinal and Transverse Profiles ofa Traveled Surface

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO)

AASHTO Ml56 Standard Specification for Requirernents for Mixing Plants for Hot-
Mixed, Hot-Laid Bituminous Paving Mixtures

AASHTO T329 Standard Method of Test for Moisture Content of Hot Mix Asphalt
(HMA) by Oven Method

AASHTO T 340 Standard Method of Test for Determining the Rutting Susceptibility of
Hot Mix Asphalt (APA) Using the Asphalt Pavement Analyzer (APA)

Asphalt Institute (AI)

MS-2

MS-26

FAA Orders

5300.1 Modifications to Agency Airport Design, Construction, and Equipment
Standards

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)

Long Term Pavernent Performance Binder program

Software

FAir{IIFIELD

END OF ITEM P-403

Mix Design Manual, 7th Edition

Asphalt Binder Handbook
AI State Binder Specification Database

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P403-19



Item P-602 Emulsified Asphalt Prime Coat

DESCRIPTION

602-l.l This itern shall consist of an application of emulsified asphalt material on the prepared base course

in accordance with these specifications and in reasonably close conformity to the lines shown on the plans.

MATERIALS

602-2.1Emulsified Asphalt material. The emulsified asphalt material shall be as specified in ASTM
D3628 for use as a prime coat appropriate to local conditions. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the
manufacturer's Certificate of Analysis (COA) for the emulsified asphalt material. The COA shall be
provided to and approved by the Resident Project Representative (RPR) before the emulsified asphalt
material is applied. The furnishing of the COA for the emulsified asphalt material shall not be interpreted
as a basis for final acceptance. The manufacturer's COA may be subject to verification by testing the
material delivered for use on the project.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

602-3.1Weather limitations. The emulsified asphalt prime coat shall be applied only when the existing
surface is dry; the atmospheric temperature is 50'F (10'C) or above, and the temperature has not been

below 35oF (2'C) for the 12 hours prior to application; and when the weather is not foggy or rainy. The
temperature requirements may be waived when directed by the RPR.

602-3.2 Equipment. The equipment shall include a self-powered pressure asphalt material distributor and
equipment for heating asphalt material.

Provide a distributor with pneumatic tires of such size and number that the load produced on the base

surface does not exceed 65.0 psi (a.5 kg/sq cm) of tire width to prevent rutting, shoving or otherwise
damaging the base, surface or other layers in the pavunent structure. Desigrr and equip the distributor to
spray the asphalt material in a uniform coverage at the specified temperature, at readily determined and

controlled rates from 0.05 to 1 .0 gallons per square yard (0.23 to 4.5 L/square meter), with a pressure range
of 25 to 75 psi (172.4 to 517.1 kPa) and with an allowable variation from the specified rate of not more
than r5%o, and at variable widths. Include with the distributor equipment a separate power unit for the
bitumen pump, full-circulation spray bars, tachometer, pressure gauges, volume-measuring devices,
adequate heaters for heating of materials to the proper application ternperature, a thermometer for reading
the temperature of tank contents, and a hand hose attachment suitable for applying asphalt material
manually to areas inaccessible to the distributor. Equip the distributor to circulate and agitate the asphalt
material during the heating process. If the distributor is not equipped with an operable quick shutoff valve,
the prime operations shall be started and stopped on building paper.

A power broom and power blower suitable for cleaning the surfaces to which the asphalt coat is to be

applied shall be provided.

Asphalt distributors must be calibrated annually in accordance with ASTM D2995. The Contractor must
furnish a current calibration certification for the asphalt distributor truck from any State or other agency as

approved by the RPR.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-602-l



602-3.3 Application of emulsified asphalt material. Immediately before applyrng the prime coat, the full
width of the surface to be primed shall be swept with a power broom to remove all loose dirt and other
obj ectionable material.

The asphalt emulsion material shall be uniformly applied with an asphalt distributor at the rate of 0.15 to
0.30 gallons per square yard (0.68 to 1.36 liters per square meter) depending on the base course surface
texture. The type of asphalt material and application rate shall be approved by the RPR prior to application.

Following application of the emulsified asphalt material and prior to application of the succeeding layer of
pavement, allow the asphalt coat to cure and to obtain evaporation of any volatiles or moisture. Maintain
the coated surface until the succeeding layer of pavement is placed, by protecting the surface against
damage and by repairing and recoating deficient areas. Allow the prime coat to cure without being disturbed
for a period ofat least 48 hours or longer, as may be necessary to attain penetration into the treated course.
Furnish and spread sand to effectively blot up and cure excess asphalt material. The Contractor shall remove
blotting sand prior to asphalt concrete lay down operations at no additional expense to the Owner. Keep
traffic off surfaces freshly treated with asphalt material. Provide sufficient warning sigrrs and barricades so

that traffic will not travel over freshly treated surfaces.

602-3.4 Trial application rates. The Contractor shall apply a minimum of three lengths of at least 100 feet
(30 m) for the full width of the disfibutor bar to evaluate the amount of emulsified asphalt material that
can be satisfactorily applied with the equipment. Apply three different application rates of ernulsified
asphalt materials within the application range specified in paragraph 602-3.3. Other trial applications can
be made using various amounts of material as directed by the RPR. The trial application is to demonstrate
the equipment can uniformly apply the emulsified asphalt material within the rates specified and determine
the application rate for the project.

602-3.5 Freight and waybills. The Contractor shall submit waybills and delivery tickets during the
progress of the work. Before the final estimate is allowed, file with the RPR certified waybills and certified
delivery tickets for all ernulsified asphalt materials used in the construction of the pavement covered by the
contract. Do not remove ernulsified asphalt material from storage until the initial outage and temperature
measurements have been taken. The delivery or storage units will not be released until the final outage has

been taken.

METHOD OF MEASTJREMENT

602-4.1The ernulsified asphalt material for prime coat shall be measured by the gallon. Volume shall be
corrected to the volume at 60oF (16'C) in accordance with ASTM D4311. The emulsified asphalt material
paid for will be the measured quantities used in the accepted work, provided that the measured quantities
are not l0olo over the specified application rate. Any amount of emulsified asphalt material more than l0%
over the specified application rate for each application will be deducted from the measured quantities,
except for irregular areas where hand spraying of the emulsified asphalt material is necessary. Water added
to emulsified asphalt will not be measured for payment.

BASIS OF PAYMENT

602-5.1Payment for emulsified asphalt prime coat shall not be paid separately. The price is included in the
cost of asphalt paving and shall be fulI compensation for furnishing all materials, for all preparation,
delivering, and placing of these materials, and for all labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to
complete the item.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-602-2



REF'ERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM D2995 Standard Practice for Estimating Application Rate and Residual
Application Rate of Bituminous Distributors

ASTM D3628 Standard Practice for Selection and Use of Emulsified Asphalts

END OF'ITEM P.602

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RLTNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-602-3



Item P-603 Emulsified Asphalt Tack Coat

DESCRIPTION

603-1.1 This item shall consist ofpreparing and teating an asphalt or concrete surface with asphalt material
in accordance with these specifications and in reasonably close conformity to the lines shown on the plans.

MATERIALS

603-2.1Asphalt materials. The asphalt material shall be an emulsified asphalt as specified in ASTM
D3628 as an asphalt application for tack coat appropriate to local conditions. The emulsified asphalt shall
not be diluted. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the manufacturer's Certificate of Analysis (COA)
for the asphalt material to the Resident Project Representative (RPR) before the asphalt material is applied
for review and acceptance. The furnishing of COA for the asphalt material shall not be interpreted as a basis
for final acceptance. The manufacturer's COA may be subject to verification by testing the material
delivered for use on the project.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

603-3.1 Weather limitations. The tack coat shall be applied only when the existing surface is dry and the
atmospheric temperature is 50oF (10"C) or above; the temperature has not been below 35'F (2'C) for the
12 hours prior to application; and when the weather is not foggy or rainy. The ternperature requirements
may be waived when directed by the RPR.

603-3.2 Equipment. The Contractor shall provide equipment for heating and applying the emulsified
asphalt material. The emulsion shall be applied with a manufacturer-approved computer rate-conholled
asphalt distributor. The equipment shall be in good working order and contain no contaminants or diluents
in the tank. Spray bar tips must be clean, free of burrs, and of a size to maintain an even distribution of the
emulsion. Any type of tip or pressure source is suitable that will maintain predetermined flow rates and
constant pressure during the application process with application speeds under eight (8) miles per hour (13
km per hour) or seven (700) feet per minute (213 m per minute).

The equipment will be tested under pressure for leaks and to ensure proper set-up before use to verifu truck
set-up (via a test-shot area), including but not limited to,nozzle tip size appropriate for application, spray-
bar height and pressure and pump speed, evidence oftriple-overlap spray pattern, lack ofleaks, and any
other factors relevant to ensure the truck is in good working order before use.

The distributor truck shall be equipped with a minimum l2-foot (3.7-m) spreader spray bar with individual
nozzle control with computer-controlled application rates. The distributor truck shall have an easily
accessible thermometer that constantly monitors the temperature of the ernulsion, and have an operable
mechanical tank gauge that can be used to cross-check the computer accuracy. If the distributor is not
equipped with an operable quick shutoff valve, the prime operations shall be started and stopped on building
paper.

The distributor truck shall be equipped to effectively heat and mix the material to the required temperature
prior to application as required. Heating and mixing shall be done in accordance with the manufacturer's
recommendations. Do not overheat or over mix the material.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-603-l



The distributor shall be equipped with a hand sprayer.

Asphalt distributors must be calibrated annually in accordance with ASTM D2995. The Contractor must
fumish a current calibration certification for the asphalt distributor truck from any State or other agency as

approved by the RPR.

A power broom and/or power blower suitable for cleaning the surfaces to which the asphalt tack coat is to
be applied shall be provided.

603-3.3 Application of emulsified asphalt material. The emulsified asphalt shall not be diluted.
Immediately before applyrng the emulsified asphalt tack coat, the full width of surface to be treated shall
be swept with a power broom and/or power blower to remove all loose dirt and other objectionable material.

The emulsified asphalt material shall be uniformly applied with an asphalt distributor at the rates

appropriate for the conditions and surface specified in the table below. The type of asphalt material and

application rate shall be approved by the RPR prior to application.

Emulsified Asphalt

After application of the tack coat, the surface shall be allowed to cure without being disturbed for the period

of time necessary to permit drying and setting of the tack coat. This period shall be determined by the RPR.

The Contractor shall protect the tack coat and maintain the surface until the next course has been placed.

When the tack coat has been disturbed by the Contractor, tack coat shall be reapplied at the Contractor's
expense.

603-3.4 Freight and waybills The Contractor shall submit waybills and delivery tickets, during progress

of the work. Before the final statement is allowed, file with the RPR certified waybills and certified delivery
tickets for all emulsified asphalt materials used in the construction of the pavement covered by the contract.
Do not remove emulsified asphalt material from storage until the initial outage and temperature
measurements have been taken. The delivery or storage units will not be released until the final outage has

been taken.

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

603-4.1 The emulsified asphalt material for tack coat shall be measured by the gallon. Volume shall be
corrected to the volume at 60oF (16"C) in accordance with ASTM D1250. The emulsified asphalt material
paid for will be the measured quantities used in the accepted work, provided that the measured quantities

are not l0%o over the specified application rate. Any amount of emulsified asphalt material more than l0%
over the specified application rate for each application will be deducted from the measured quantities,

except for irregular areas where hand spraying of the emulsified asphalt material is necessary. Water added

to emulsified asphalt will not be measured for payment.

Surface Type Residual Raten gaUSY
(L/square meter)

Emulsion Application Bar Rate, gaUSY
(L/square meter)

New asphalt 0.02-0.0s (0.0e-0.23) 0.03-0.07 (0.13-0.32)

Existing asphalt 0.04-0.07 (0.r8-0.32) 0.06-0.11 (0.27-0.s0)

Milled Surface 0.04-0.08 (0.18-0.36) .0.06-0. 1 2 (0.27 -0.s4)

Concrete 0.03-0.05 (0.13-0.23) 0.05-0.08 (0.23-0.36)

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-603-2



BASIS OF'PAYMENT

603.5-1 Payment for emulsified asphalt tack coat shall not be paid separately. The price is included in the
cost of asphalt paving and shall be full compensation for fumishing all materials, for all preparation,
delivering, and placing of these materials, and for all labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to
complete the item.

REF'ERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM D1250 Standard Guide for Use of the Petoleum Measurement Tables

ASTM D2995 Standard Practice for Estimating Application Rate and Residual
Application Rate of Bituminous Distributors

ASTM D3628 Standard Practice for Selection and Use of Emulsified Asphalts

END ITEM P-603

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-603-3



Item P-610 Concrete for Miscellaneous Structures

DESCRIPTION

610-1.1 This item shall consist of concrete and reinforcement, as shown on the plans, prepared and

constructed in accordance with these specifications. This specification shall be used for all concrete other
than airfield pavement which are cast-in-place.

MATERIALS

610-2.1General. Only approved materials, conforming to the requirernents of these specifications, shall

be used in the work. Materials may be subject to inspection and tests at any time during their preparation

or use. The source of all materials shall be approved by the Resident Project Representative (RPR) before
delivery or use in the work. Representative preliminary samples of the materials shall be submitted by the
Contractor, when required, for examination and test. Materials shall be stored and handled to ensure
preservation of their quality and fitness for use and shall be located to facilitate prompt inspection. All
equipment for handling and transporting materials and concrete must be clean before any material or
concrete is placed in them.

The use ofpit-run aggregates shall not be permitted unless the pit-run aggregate has been screened and

washed, and all fine and coanie aggregates stored separately and kept clean. The mixing of different
aggregates from different sources in one storage stockpile or alternating batches of different aggregates

shall not be permitted.

a. Reactivity. Fine aggregate and coarse aggregates to be used in all concrete shall have been tested

separately within six months of the project in accordance with ASTM C1260. Test results shall be
submitted to the RPR. The aggregate shall be considered innocuous if the expansion of test specimens,

tested in accordance with ASTM C1260, does not exceed 0.08% at 14 days (16 days from casting). If the
expansion either or both test specimen is greater than 0.08% at l4 days, but less than0.20o/o, a minimum of
25%6 of Type F fly ash, or between 40Yo and 55% of slag cernent shall be used in the concrete mix.

If the expansion is greater than 0.20Yo the aggregates shall not be used, and test results for other

aggregates must be submiued for evaluation.

610-2.2 Coarse aggregate. The coarse aggregate for concrete shall meet the requirements of ASTM C33

and the requirements of Table 4, Class Designation 53; and the grading requirernents shown below, as

required for the project.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY A]RPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-610-l



Coarse Aggregate Grading Requirements

Maximum Aggregate Size ASTM C33, Table 3 Grading
Requirements (Size No.)

I ll2inch (37.5 mm) 467 or
4 and,67

I inch (25 mm) 57

% inch (19 mm) 67

% inch (12.5 mm) 7

610-2.2.1Coarse Aggregate susceptibility to durability @) cracking. Not used.

610-2.3 Fine aggregate. The fine aggregate for concrete shall meet all fine aggregate requirements of
ASTM C33.

610-2.4 Cement. Cement shall conform to the requirements of ASTM Cl50 Type I.

610-2.5 Cementitious materials.

a. Fly ash. Fly ash shall meet the requirements of ASTM C618, with the exception of loss of ignition,
where the maximum shall be less than 6%.Fly ash shall have a Calcium Oxide (CaO) content of less than
l5Yo and a total available alkali content less than 3%oper ASTM C311. Fly ash produced in furnace
operations using liming materials or soda ash (sodium carbonate) as an additive shall not be acceptable.
The Contractor shall furnish the previous three most recent, consecutive ASTM C618 reports for each
source of fly ash proposed in the concrete mix, and shall fumish each additional report as they become
available during the project. The reports can be used for acceptance or the material may be tested
independently by the RPR.

b. Slag cement (ground granulated blast furnace (GGBF)). Slag cement shall conform to ASTM
C989, Grade 100 or Grade 120. Slag cement shall be used only at arate between 25Yo and 55% of the total
cementitious material by mass.

610-2.6 Water. Water used in mixing or curing shall be from potable water sources. Other sources shall
be tested in accordance with ASTM C1602 prior to use.

610-2.7 Admixtures. The Contractor shall submit certificates indicating that the material to be furnished
meets all of the requirements indicated below. In addition, the RPR may require the Contractor to submit
complete test data from an approved laboratory showing that the material to be furnished meets all of the
requirements of the cited specifications. Subsequent tests may be made of samples taken by the RPR from
the supply of the material being furnished or proposed for use on the work to determine whether the
admixture is uniform in quality with that approved.

a. Air-entraining admixtures. Air-entraining admixtures shall meet the requirunents of ASTM C260
and shall consistently entrain the air content in the specified ranges under field conditions. The air-
entrainment agent and any water reducer admixture shall be compatible.

b. Water-reducing admixtures. Water-reducing admixture shall meet the requirements of ASTM
C494, Type A, B, or D. ASTM C494, Type F and G high range water reducing admixtures and ASTM
Cl0l7 flowable admixtures shall not be used.

c. Other chemical admixtures. The use of set retarding, and set-accelerating admixtures shall be
approved by the RPR. Retarding shall meet the requirernents of ASTM C494,Type A, B, or D and set-

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-6t0-2



accelerating shall meet the requirements of ASTM C494, Type C. Calcium chloride and admixtures
containing calcium chloride shall not be used.

610-2.8 Premolded joint material. Premolded joint material for expansion joints shall meet the
requirernents of ASTM D1751.

610-2.9 Joint filler. The filler for joints shall meet the requirernents of Item P-605, unless otherwise
specified.

610-2.10 Steel reinforcement. Reinforcing shall consist of reinforcing steel conforming to the
requirements of ASTM A615.

610-2.11Materials for curing concrete. Curing materials shall conform to ASTM C309.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

610-3.1 General. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and services necessary for, and incidental
to, the completion of all work as shown on the drawings and specified here. All machinery and equipment
used by the Contractor on the work, shall be of sufficient size to meet the requirements of the work. All
work shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the RPR.

610-3.2 Concrete Mixture. The concrete shall develop a compressive strength of 4000 psi in 28 days as

determined by test cylinders made in accordance with ASTM C31 and tested in accordance with ASTM
C39. The concrete shall contain not less than 470 pounds of cementitious material per cubic yard (280 kg
per cubic meter). The water cementitious ratio shall not exceed 0.45 by weight. The air content of the

concrete shall be syo +l- | .2%6 as determined by ASTM C23 1 and shall have a slump of not more than 4
inches (100 mm) as determined by ASTM C143.

610-3.3 Mixing. Concrete may be mixed at the construction site, at a central point, or wholly or in part in
truck mixers. The concrete shall be mixed and delivered in accordance with the requirements of ASTM
C94 or ASTM C685.

The concrete shall be mixed only in quantities required for immediate use. Concrete shall not be mixed
while the air temperature is below 40'F (4'C) without the RPRs approval. If approval is granted for mixing
under such conditions, aggregates or water, or both, shall be heated and the concrete shall be placed at a
temperature not less than 50'F (10'C) nor more than 100'F (38'C). The Contractor shall be heldresponsible
for any defective work, resulting from freezingor injury in any manner during placing and curing, and shall
replace such work at his expense.

Retempering of concrete by adding water or any other material is not permitted.

The rate of delivery of concrete to the job shall be sufficient to allow unintemrpted placement of the

concrete.

610-3.4 Forms. Concrete shall not be placed until all the forms and reinforcements have been inspected
and approved by the RPR. Forms shall be of suitable material and shall be of the type, size, shape, quality,
and strength to build the structure as shown on the plans. The forms shall be true to line and grade and shall
be mortar-tight and sufficiently rigid to prevent displacanent and sagging between supports. The surfaces

of forms shall be smooth and free from irregularities, dents, sags, and holes. The Contractor shall be
responsible for their adequacy.

The internal form ties shall be arranged so no metal will show in the concrete surface or discolor the surface

when exposed to weathering when the forms are removed. All forms shall be wetted with water or with a
non-staining mineral oil, which shall be applied immediately before the concrete is placed. Forms shall be

constructed so they can be removed without injuring the concrete or concrete surface.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-610-3



610-3.5 Placing reinforcement. All reinforcement shall be accurately placed, as shown on the plans, and
shall be firrnly held in position during concrete placernent. Bars shall be fastened together at intersections.
The reinforcement shall be supported by approved metal chairs. Shop drawings, lists, and bending details
shall be supplied by the Contractor when required.

610-3.6 Embedded items. Before placing concrete, all embedded items shall be firmly and securely
fastened in place as indicated. All embedded items shall be clean and free from coating, rust, scale, oil, or
any foreigrr matter. The concrete shall be spaded and consolidated around and against embedded iterns. The
embedding of wood shall not be allowed.

610-3.7 Concrete Consistency. The Contractor shall monitor the consistency of the concrete delivered to
the project site; collect each batch ticket; check ternperature; and perform slump tests on each truck at the
project site in accordance with ASTM C143.

610-3.8 Placing concrete. All concrete shall be placed during daylight hours, unless otherwise approved.
The concrete shall not be placed until the depth and condition offoundations, the adequacy offorms and
falsework, and the placing of the steel reinforcing have been approved by the RPR. Concrete shall be placed
as soon as practical after mixing, but in no case later than one (1) hour after water has been added to the
mix. The method and manner of placing shall avoid segregation and displacunent of the reinforcement.
Troughs, pipes, and chutes shall be used as an aid in placing concrete when necessary. The concrete shall
not be dropped from a height of more than 5 feet (1.5 m). Concrete shall be deposited as nearly as practical
in its final position to avoid segregation due to rehandling or flowing. Do not subject concrete to procedures

which cause segregation. Concrete shall be placed on clean, damp surfaces, free from running water, or on
a properly consolidated soil foundation.

6f0-3.9 Vibration. Vibration shall follow the guidelines in American Concrete lnstitute (ACI) Committee
309R, Guide for Consolidation of Concrete.

610-3.10 Joints. Joints shall be constructed as indicated on the plans.

610-3.11 Finishing. All exposed concrete surfaces shall be true, smooth, and free from open orrough areas,

depressions, or projections. All concrete horizontal plane surfaces shall be brought flush to the proper
elevation with the finished top surface struck-off with a straightedge and floated.

610-3.12 Curing and protection. All concrete shall be properly cured in accordance with the
recommendations in American Concrete Institute (ACD 308R, Guide to External Curing of Concrete. The
concrete shall be protected from damage until project acceptance.

610-3.13 Cold weather placing. When concrete is placed at temperatures below 40'F (4"C), follow the
cold weather concreting recommendations found in ACI 306R, Cold Weather Concreting.

610-3.14 Hot weather placing. When concrete is placed in hot weather greater than 85oF (30'C), follow
the hot weather concreting recommendations found in ACI 305R, Hot Weather Concreting.

QUALITY ASSURANCE (QA)

610-4.f Quality Assurance sampling and testing. Concrete for each day's placement will be accepted on
the basis of the compressive strength specified in paragraph 610-3.2. The RPR will sample the concrete in
accordance with ASTM Cl72; test the slump in accordance with ASTM C143; test air content in accordance
with ASTM C23 l; make and cure compressive strength specimens in accordance with ASTM C3 1; and test
in accordance with ASTM C39. The QA testing agency will meet the requirements of ASTM C1077.

The Contractor shall provide adequate facilities for the initial curing of cylinders.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-610-4



610-4.2 Defective work. Any defective work that cannot be satisfactorily repaired as determined by the
RPR, shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense. Defective work includes, but is not limited
to, uneven dimensions, honeycombing and other voids on the surface or edges ofthe concrete.

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

6f 0-5.1 Concrete shall be measured by the number of cubic yards based on batch tickets of material of
concrete complete in place and accepted.

BASIS OFPAYMENT

610-6.1 Payment for concrete shall not be paid separately. The price is included in the cost of work items
requiring concrete and shall be full compensation for furnishing all materials including reinforcement and

embedded items and for all preparation, delivery, installation, and curing of these materials, and for all
labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the item.

REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic designation only.

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM Al84 Standard Specification for Welded Deformed Steel Bar Mats for Concrete
Reinforcement

ASTMA6I5 Standard Specification for Deformed and Plain Carbon-Steel Bars for
Concrete Reinforcement

ASTM A704 Standard Specification for Welded Steel Plain Bar or Rod Mats for
Concrete Reinforcement

ASTM 4706 Standard Specification for Low-Alloy Steel Deformed and Plain Bars for
Concrete Reinforcement

ASTM 4775 Standard Specification for Epoxy-Coated Steel Reinforcing Bars

ASTM A884 Standard Specification for Epoxy-Coated Steel Wire and Welded Wire
Reinforcement

ASTM 4934 Standard Specification for Epoxy-Coated Prefabricated Steel Reinforcing
Bars

ASTM 41064 Standard Specification for Carbon-Steel Wire and Welded Wire
Reinforcement, Plain and Deformed, for Concrete

ASTM C31 Standard Practice for Making and Curing Concrete Test Specimens in the
Field

ASTM C33 Standard Specification for Concrete Aggregates

ASTM C39 Standard Test Method for Compressive Strength of Cylindrical Concrete
Specimens

ASTM C94 Standard Specification for Ready-Mixed Concrete

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RLINWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-610-5



ASTM C136

ASTM Cl14

ASTM C136

ASTM CI43

ASTM C15O

ASTM C17I

ASTM CI72

ASTM C231

ASTM C26O

ASTM C3O9

ASTMC3ll

ASTM C494

ASTM C618

ASTM C666

ASTM C685

ASTM C989

ASTM C1017

ASTM CIO77

ASTM CII57

ASTM CI26O

ASTM C1365

ASTM CI6O2

ASTM D1751

Standard Test Method for Sieve or Screen Analysis of Fine and Coarse
Aggregates

Standard Test Methods for Chemical Analysis of Hydraulic Cement

Standard Test Method for Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates

Standard Test Method for Slump of Hydraulic-Cement Concrete

Standard Specification for Portland Cement

Standard Specification for Sheet Materials for Curing Concrete

Standard Practice for Sampling Freshly Mixed Concrete

Standard Test Method for Air Content of Freshly Mixed Concrete by the
Pressure Method

Standard Specification for Air-Entraining Admixtures for Concrete

Standard Specification for Liquid Membrane-Forming Compounds for
Curing Concrete

Standard Test Methods for Sampling and Testing Fly Ash or Natural
Pozzolans for Use in Portland-Cement Concrete

Standard Specification for Chemical Admixtures for Concrete

Standard Specification for Coal Fly Ash and Raw or Calcined Natural
Pozzolan for Use in Concrete

Standard Test Method for Resistance of Concrete to Rapid Freezing and
Thawing

Standard Specification for Concrete Made by Volumetric Batching and
Continuous Mixing

Standard Specification for Slag Cement for Use in Concrete and Mortars

Standard Specification for Chemical Admixtures for Use in Producing
Flowing Concrete

Standard Practice for Agencies Testing Concrete and Concrete Aggregates
for Use in Consfruction and Criteria for Testing Agency Evaluation

Standard Performance Specification for Hydraulic Cement

Standard Test Method for Potential Alkali Reactivity of Aggregates
(Mortar-Bar Method)

Standard Test Method for Determination of the Proportion of Phases in
Portland Cement and Portland-Cement Clinker Using X-Ray Powder
Diffraction Analysis

Standard Specification for Mixing Water Used in the Production of
Hydraulic Cement Concrete

Standard Specification for Preformed Expansion Joint Filler for Concrete
Paving and Structural Construction (Nonextruding and Resilient Asphalt
Types)

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-610-6



ASTM D1752 Standard Specification for Preformed Sponge Rubber Cork and Recycled
PVC Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete Paving and Structural
Construction

American Concrete Institute (ACD

ACI305R Hot Weather Concreting

ACI 306R Cold Weather Concreting

ACI308R Guide to External Curing of Concrete

ACI309R Guide for Consolidation of Concrete

END OF ITEM P.610

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-610-7



Item P-620 Runway, Taxiway & Apron Marking

DESCRIPTION

620-l.l This item shall consist of the preparation and painting of numbers, markings, and stripes on the
surface of runways, taxiways, and aprons, in accordance with these specifications and at the locations
shown on the plans, or as directed by the Resident Project Representative (RPR). The terms "painf' and
"marking material" as well as "painting" and "application of markings" are interchangeable throughoutthis
specification.

MATERIALS

620-2.1 Materials acceptance. The Contractor shall furnish manufacturer's certified test reports, for
materials shipped to the project. The certified test reports shall include a statement that the materials meet
the specification requirements. This certification along with a copy of the paint manufacturer's surface
preparation; marking materials, including adhesion, flow promoting and/or floatation additive; and
application requirements must be submitted and approved by the Resident Project Representative (RPR)
prior to the initial application of markings. The reports can be used for material acceptance or the RPR may
perform verification testing. The reports shall not be interpreted as a basis for payment. The Contactor
shall notifu the RPR upon arrival of a shipment of materials to the site. All material shall arive in sealed
containers that are easily quantifiable for inspection by the RPR.

620-2.2 Marking materials.

Table 1. Marking Materials

Paintl Glass Beads2

Type Color f,'ed Std. 595
Number

Application Rate

Maximum
Type Application Rate

Minimum

Waterbome

Type I
White 3792s 1 15 ff/gal III l0 lb/gal

Waterborne

Type I
Yellow 33538 or 33655 I 15 fl/gal III I lblgal

Waterborne

Type I
Red 3l 136 I 15 ff/gal III 8 lb/gal

Waterborne

Type I
Black 37038 1 15 fl/gal None None

Temporary
Marking
Waterborne

Type 1

230 ftlgal None None

a. Paint. Paint shall be waterborne in accordance with the requirements of this paragraph. Paint colors
shall comply with Federal Standard No. 595.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-620-l



Waterborne. Paint shall meet the requirements of Federal Specification TT-P-1952F, Type I,
Type II, or Type III. The non-volatile portion of the vehicle for all paint types shall be composed

of a 100% acrylic polymer as determined by infrared spectral analysis. The acrylic resin used for
Type III shall be 100% cross linking acrylic as evidenced by infrared peaks at wavelengths 1568,

1624, and 1672 cm-lwith intensities equal to those produced by an acrylic resin known to be 100%

cross linking.

b. Reflective media. Glass beads for white and yellow paint shall meet the requirements for Federal

Specification TT-B-1325D Type III.

Glass beads for red and pink paint shall meet the requirernents for Tlpe I, Gradation A.

Glass beads shall be treated with all compatible coupling agents recommended by the manufacturers of the

paint and reflective media to ensure adhesion and embedment.

Glass beads shall not be used in black and green paint.

Type III glass beads shall not be used in red and pink paint.

Federal Specification TT-B-1325D, Type I, gradation A shall typically yield 300 mcd/m2llux on white
markings at installation and 175 mcd/m'zllux on yellow markings at installation.

Federal Specification TT-B-1325D, Type III. Initial readings typically yield 600 mcd/m'llux on white
markings and 300 mcd/m'Aux on yellow markings at installation and once in service, the reflectance values

are approximately the same as Type I beads.

Retroreflectivity shall be measured by a portable reforeflectometer according to ASTM E1710 and the
practices in ASTM D7585 shall be followed for taking retroreflectivify readings with a portable

retroreflectometer and computing measurement averages. A vehicle-mounted retroreflectometer may also

be used.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

620-3.1 Weather limitations. Painting shall only be performed when the surface is dry, and the ambient
temperature and the pavement surface temperature meet the manufacturer's recommendations in
accordance with paragraph 620-2.1. Painting operations shall be discontinued when the ambient or surface

temperatures does not meet the manufacturer's recommendations. Markings shall not be applied when the

wind speed exceeds l0 mph unless windscreens are used to shroud the material guns. Markings shall not

be applied when weather conditions are forecasts to not be within the manufacturers' recommendations for
application and dry time.

620-3.2 Equipment. Equipment shall include the apparatus necessary to properly clean the existing surface,

amechanical marking machine, abead dispensing machine, and such auxiliaryhand-painting equipment as

may be necessary to satisfactorily complete the job.

The mechanical marker shall be an atomizing spray-type or airless type marking machine with automatic
glass bead dispensers suitable for application oftraffic paint. It shall produce an even and uniform film
thickness and appearance ofboth paint and glass beads at the required coverage and shall apply markings

of uniform cross-sections and clear-cut edges without running or spattering and without over spray. The

marking equipment for both paint and beads shall be calibrated daily.

620-3.3 Preparation of surfaces. Immediately before application of the paint, the surface shall be dry and

free from dirt, grease, oil, laitance, or other contaminates that would reduce the bond between the paint and

the pavement. Use of any chemicals or impact abrasives during surface preparation shall be approved in
advance by the RPR. After the cleaning operations, sweeping, blowing, or rinsing with pressurized water

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-620-2



shall be performed to ensure the surface is clean and free of grit or other debris left from the cleaning
process.

a. Preparation of new pavement surfaces. The area to be painted shall be cleaned by broom, blower,
water blasting, or by other methods approved by the RPR to remove all contaminants, including PCC curing
compounds, minimizing damage to the pavement surface.

b. Preparation of pavement to remove existing markings. Existing pavement markings shall be
removed by rotary ggnding, water blasting, or by other methods approved by the RPR minimizing damage
to the pavement surface. The removal area may need to be larger than the area of the markings to eliminate
ghost markings. After removal of markings on asphalt pavements, apply a fog seal or seal coat to 'block
out' the removal area to eliminate 'ghost' markings.

c. Preparation of pavement markings prior to remarking. Prior to remarking existing
markings, loose existing markings must be removed minimizing damage to the pavernent surface, with a
method approved by the RPR. After removal, the surface shall be cleaned of all residue or debris.

Prior to the application of markings, the Conffactor shall certify in writing that the surface is dry and free
from dirt, grease, oil, laitance, or other foreign material that would prevent the bond of the paint to the
pavement or existing markings. This certification along with a copy of the paint manufactures application
and surface preparation requirernents must be submitted to the RPR prior to the initial application of
markings.

620-3.4 Layout of markings. The proposed markings shall be laid out in advance of the paint application.
The locations of markings to receive glass beads shall be shown on the plans. The Contractor shall furnish
a Califomia licensed professional land surveyor, under whose direction all layout and staking shall be
performed.

620-3.5 Application. A period of 24 days shall elapse between placanent of surface course or seal coat
and application of the permanent paint markings. Paint shall be applied at the locations and to the
dimensions and spacing shown on the plans. Paint shall not be applied until the layout and condition of the
surface has been approved by the RPR.

The edges of the markings shall not vary from a straight line more than ll2 inch (12 mm) in 50 feet (15 m),
and marking dimensions and spacing shall be within the following tolerances:

Marking Dimensions and Spacing Tolerance

Dimension and Spacing Tolerance

36 inch (910 mm) or less +ll2inch (12 mm)

greater than 36 inch to 6 feet (910 mm to 1.85 m) +l inch (25 mm)

greater than 6 feet to 60 feet (1.85 m to 18.3 m) +2 inch (50 mm)

greater than 60 feet (18.3 m) +3 inch (76 mm)

The paint shall be mixed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and applied to the pavement
with a marking machine at the rate shown in Table 1. The addition of thinner will not be permitted.

Glass beads shall be distributed upon the marked areas at the locations shown on the plans to receive glass

beads immediately after application of the paint. A dispenser shall be fumished that is properly desigrred
for attachment to the marking machine and suitable for dispensing glass beads. Glass beads shall be applied
at the rate shown in Table l. Glass beads shall not be applied to black paint or green paint. Glass beads
shall adhere to the cured paint or all marking operations shall cease until corrections are made. Different

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-620-3



bead types shall not be mixed. Regular monitoring of glass bead embedment and distribution should be

performed.

620-3.6 Application--preformed thermoplastic airport pavement markings. Not Used.

620-3.7 Control strip. Not Required for this project. Prior to the full application of airfield markings, the
Contractor shall prepare a control strip in the presence of the RPR. The Contractor shall demonstrate the

surface preparation method and all striping equipment to be used on the project. The marking equipment
must achieve the prescribed application rate of paint and population of glass beads (per Table I ) that are

properly embedded and evenly distributed across the full width of the marking. Prior to acceptance of the
control strip, markings must be evaluated during darkness to ensure a uniform appearance.

620-3.8 Retro-reflectance. Reflectance shall be measured with a portable retro-reflectometer meeting
ASTM E I 710 (or equivalent). A total of 6 reading shall be taken over a 6 square foot area with 3 readings
taken from each direction. The average shall be equal to or above the minimum levels of all readings which
are within 30% of each other.

Minimum Retro-Reflectance Values

Material Retro-refl ectance mcd/m2llux

White Yellow Red

Initial Tlpe I 300 175 35

Initial Type III 600 300 35

Initial Thermoplastic 225 100 35

All materials, rernark when less thanr 100 75 10

I 'Prior to remarking determine if removal of contaminants on markings will restore retro-reflectance

620-3.9 Protection and cleanup. After application of the markings, all markings shall be protected from
damage until dry. All surfaces shall be protected from excess moisture and/or rain and from disfiguration
by spatter, splashes, spillage, or drippings. The Contractor shall remove from the work area all debris,
waste, loose reflective media, and by-products generated by the surface preparation and application
operations to the satisfaction of the RPR. The Contractor shall dispose of these wastes in strict compliance
with all applicable state, local, and federal environmental statutes and regulations.

METHOD OF MEAST]REMENT

620-4.L2 The quantity of surface preparation shall be measured by the nurnber of square feet for each type

of surface preparation specified in paragraph 620-3.3.

620-4.1b The quantity of markings shall be paid for shall be measured by the number of square feet of
painting.

620-4.1c The quantity of reflective media shall be not be paid separately, since reflective media cost is
included in the cost for painting.

620-4.1d The quantity of ternporary markings to be paid for shall be the number of square feet of painting
performed in accordance with the specifications and accepted by the RPR.

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-620-4



BASIS OF PAYMENT

620-5.1This price shall be full compensation for furnishing all materials and for all labor, equipment, tools,
and incidentals necessary to complete the itern complete in place and accepted by the RPR in accordance
with these specifications.

620-5.1a Payment for surface preparation shall be made at the contract price for the number of square feet
for each type of surface preparation specified in paragraph 620-3.3.

620-5.2b Payment for markings shall be made at the contract price for the number of square feet of painting
including reflective media when used.

620-5.3c Payment for reflective media shall be not be paid separately.

620-5.4d Payment for temporary markings shall be made at the contract price for the number of square feet
of painting. This price shall be full compensation for fumishing all materials and for all labor, equipment,
tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the item. Temporary markings are required for this project.

REFERENCES

The publications listed below form a part ofthis specification to the extent referenced. The publications are

referred to within the text by the basic desigrration only.

ASTM International (ASTM)

ASTM D476 Standard Classification for Dry Pigmentary Titanium Dioxide Products

ASTM D968 Standard Test Methods for Abrasion Resistance of Organic Coatings by
Falling Abrasive

ASTM D1652 Standard Test Method for Epoxy Content of Epoxy Resins

ASTM D2074 Standard Test Method for Total, Primary, Secondary, and Tertiary Amine
Values of Fatty Amines by Alternative Indicator Method

ASTM D2240 Standard Test Method for Rubber Property - Durometer Hardness

ASTM D7585 Standard Practice for Evaluating Retroreflective Pavement Markings
Using Portable Hand-Operated Instruments

ASTM E303 Standard Test Method for Measuring Surface Frictional Properties Using
the British Pendulum Tester

ASTM E1710 Standard Test Method for Measurernent of Retroreflective Pavement
Marking Materials with CEN-Prescribed Geometry Using a Portable
Retroreflectometer

ASTM E2302 Standard Test Method for Measurement of the Luminance Coefficient
Under Diffuse Illumination of Pavement Marking Materials Using a
Portable Reflectometer

ASTM Gl54 Standard Practice for Operating Fluorescent Ultraviolet (UV) Lamp
Apparatus for Exposure of Nonmetallic Materials

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)

40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A-7, Method 24
Determination of volatile matter content, water content, density, volume
solids, and weight solids of surface coatings

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-620-s



29 CFR Paxt 1910.1200 HazardCommunication

Federal Specifications (FED SPEC)

FED SPEC TT-B-1325D Beads (Glass Spheres) Retro-Reflective

FED SPEC TT-P-1952F Paint, Traffic and Airfield Marking, Waterborne

FED STD 595 Colors used in Governrnent Procurement

Commercial Item Description

,4'-,4'-28868 Paint, Traffic, Solvent Based

Advisory Circulars (AC)

AC 150/5340-l

AC 15015320-t2

EI\[D OFITEMP-620

Standards for Airport Markings

Measurement, Construction, and Maintenance of Skid Resistant Airport
Pavement Surfaces

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION P-620-6



COUNTY OF INYO

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

FAA PROJECT NO. 3-06-0126-014-20t9

COUNTY PROJECT NO. TR-19-OO4

The Inyo County Public Works Department is soliciting bids for:

RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

At The LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

1900 S Main St, Lone Pine, California 93514

Bid Packages, which include the Notice Inviting Bids, Bid Proposal Forms, Contract and Bond Forms, Special
Provisions, and Plans may be obtained from the Inyo County Public Works Department, 168 North Edwards Street,
P,O. Drawer Q,Independence, CA 93526, Telephone (760) 878-0201. A nonrefundable fee of $100.00 will be
charged for each Bid Package. Checks shall be made out to Inyo County Public Worlrs Department. The Bid
Package may be viewed at the department offices during regular business hours and on the County of Inyo website
at www,inyocounty,us.

Bidders must purchase bid documents and register as plan holders to be able to submit a bid. Only registered
plan holders will receive any addenda to the bid packages. Ifa bidder does not acknowledge any and all addenda in
the bid, the bid proposal may be rejected.

To expedite shipping, fax to (760) 878-2001 a copy of (l) your mailed check, (2) your bidder contact information,
and (3) your FedEx number for shipping, Checks are to be made out to Inyo County Public Works Department.

Bids must be delivered in a sealed envelope clearly marked thereon with the bidder's name and address, the
word !!p, and the project title:

RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT

To be considered, bids must be received by the Assistant Clerk of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, 224
N. Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N), Independence, CA 93526 at or before 3:30 P.M., on July
3rd, 2019 after said time they will be publicly opened and read aloud. No oral, telegraphic, telephonic, or fax
proposals or modifications will be accepted.

General Work Description:

The consists of Full Depth Reclamation and overlay of Runway 16-34 at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport, and
includes the replacement of the existing culverts with reinforced concrete pipe, shoulder grading and pavement
markings.

Bids shall conform to and be responsive to the contract documents, which include the notice inviting bids, bid
proposal forms, contract and bond forms, general, County, Federal, special, and technical provisions, and any other
documents incorporated therein by reference, Bids are required for the entire work described in the contract
documents. Each bid must be submitted on the bid proposal forms furnished as part of the bid package.

Contract award, if awarded, will be based on lowest responsible bid total price forthe Base Bid and selected Bid
Additives, whichever is in the best interests of the County of Inyo,

The work in the contract is included in Airport Improvement Program Project No. 03-06-0126-014-2019 which is

being undertaken and accomplished by the County of Inyo in accordance with the terms and conditions of a
financial grant agreement between the County and the United States, under the Airport and Airway Safety and
Capacity Expansion Act of 1987.

Prime contractors and subcontractors may attend a pre-bid meeting scheduled for June 26,2019 at 10:00
a.m. Attendees shall meet at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Terminal Building, located at 1900 S Main

RLTNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT
ATTHE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Notice Inviting Bids
Page NIB-1



St. After the meeting interested attendees may participate in an optional field walk of the entire work areas

until 12:00 PM.

Each bid must be accompanied by a cashier's check, a certified check, or a bidder's bond from an admitted corporate

,urrty on the form proviied in th; bid package, in an amount not less than 70o/o of the amount of the bid, and made

p"y"6f. ," the County of Inyo. If the notice inviting bids and bid proposal forms require or permit each bid to

inrtua, additive iternprices, the amount of the bid-bond or check must be not less than 10% of the amount of the bid

plusaltoftheadditiv"tiaii.rr. Thecheckorbidder'sbondshallbegivenassecuritythatthebidderwillenter
into the contract with the County and furnish the required labor and materials payment bond, faithful performance

bond, certificates ofinsurance, or other required documents, ifthe bid is accepted. The check or bond will be

forfeited to the County if the bidder fails to timely enter into said contract or furnish the required bonds, certificates

ofinsurance, or other required documents. The check or bidder's bond may be retained by the County for sixty (60)

days or until the contract is fully executed by the successful bidder and the County, whichever occurs first'

The requirements of 49 CFR part 26, Regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation, apply to this contract' It

is the policy of the County of Inyo to pra-ctice nondiscrimination based on race, color, sex or national origin in the

u*u.6o, performance of ihis cont.u.t. Rll firms qualif,ing under this solicitation are encouraged to submit

bids/proposals.

Award of this contract will be conditioned upon satisfuing the requirements of this section. These requirements

apply to all bidders/offerors, including those who qualify as a disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE). There is no

,iut.a nnn contract goal for this contiact, The bidder/oiferor shall make good faith efforts, as defined in Appendix

A, 49 CFR Part 26, to subcontract to DBE firms, as defined in 49 cFR Part26.

r The apparent successful competitor will be required to submit the following information:

o The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the contract;

o A description of the work that each DBE firm will perform;

o The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;

o Written documentation of the bidder/offeror's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose

participation it submits to meet the contract goal;

o Written confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the

commitment made under (4);
Each bidder must complete, sign, and'furnish, with his bid, a "Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities", a statement

entitled ',Bidders Statement on previous Contracts Subject to EEO Clause", and "Assurance of Disadvantaged

Business Enterprise Participation", all addendum, etc., as contained in the Bid Proposal' and Statement of Good

Faith Effort foi Local Hire, Each bidder must supply all the information required by the bid documents and

specifications.

The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a faithful performance bond and a labor and materials payment

bond on the forms provided in the bid package in the amount of 100% of the maximum contract amount.

This is a Federal Aid Project and all bids must be based upon rates and wages at least as high as the minimum rates

established by the Secretary ofLabor as included in the Specifications. Prevailing wage rates for California shall be

paid to all classification. oilubor as required by the laws of the State of California. The proposed Contract is under

and subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and to the Equal Opportunity Clause. The EEO

requirements, labor provisions and wage rates are included in the specifications and bid documents and are available

for inspection at the Department of Public Services.

pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, to which this contract is subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in

Inyo County have been determined by the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage

,ui., upp.ui in the Department of Transportation publication entitled General Prevailing llage Rates in effect at the

time the project is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the

State Depaiment of Industrial Relations, are referenced, but not printed, in said publication, Such rates of wages

are also on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of the Public Works Department of
the County oflnyo and are available to any interested party upon request.

pursuant to Section 1725.5 ofthelabor Code, the bidder is required to certi$ that they, and all subcontractors listed

on the submitted Bid Form documentso are registered with the CA Department of Industrial Relations.

RUNWAY REHABILIATION PROJECT
ATTHE

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

Notice Inviting Bids
Page NIB-2



Consent

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO
n Departmental f Correspondence Action

Schedule time for f Ctosed Session ! Informational

For Clerk's Use

Onlyl

AGENDA NUMBER

t5

dba Cascade Software
Road Department's Cost

! ruutir Hearing !
FROM: Road Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: JU}l t I Z0B
SUBJECT: Approval of Road Cost Accounting Maintenance & Support Services for2019-2020

AL MMENDATIONS
Request approval of the agreement between the County of Inyo and Valsoft Corporation Inc.

Systems, Inc. (CSS), for the provision of Software Maintenance and Support Services for the

Accounting Program (CAMS), in an amount not to exceed $12,963.03 for the period of July 1,2019 through June

30,2020 and authorizethe chairperson to sign, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the 2019-2020 fiscal year

budget.

CAO RECO TIONS:
SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
yout goird on March 21, 1995 approved the contract and installation of the Cascade Software's Road Department

Cost Accounting Software. This software program has been maintained by,the contractor, as per the original

agreement and each year provides the necessary technical support on all upgrades specific to the cost accounting. The

Siate Controller's office is extremely pleased with our audit each year as Cascade Software System has been

developed specifically to provide the State with exactly what it requires.

ALTERNATIVES:
@ontractwouldcauSeextremedifficultyinobtaininganytechnicalsupportf9r!!esystem.
There are no other vendors that have this protected and exclusive program, nor are there any individuals that are not

employed by Cascade Software who can provide us with the technical support and upgrades to this specific system.

OTHER GENCY INVOL MENT:
County Counsel, Auditor's Office, Cascade Software,Inc

FINANCIN G:
To be in the Road

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

Unit 034600, 5265 for Fiscal Year 2019-20
AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MUSI bE

approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:

COLTNTY COT]NSEL

u

reviewed and

Date

AUD ANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller prior to

Approved

services prior to submission

DateN
AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the

to the board clerk.)
Approved:

(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) te



AGREEMENT

MAINTENANCE

CAMS . COST ACCOUNTING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

between

for

for

Valsoft Corporation Inc. dba Cascade Software
7405 Transcanada Highway, Suite 1 00
Montreal, Quebec, H4T lZ2
(cONTRACTOR)

Inyo County - Department of Public Works
P.O. Drawer Q
Independence,CA 93526
(cusTOMER)

AGREEMENT MADE AND ENTERED INTO this l't day of July,20l9, by and between the
Inyo County Department of Public Works, a political subdivision of the State of California,
located at Independence, California, (hereinafter referred to as the "CUSTOMER"), and Valsoft
Corporation Inc., dba Cascade Software a Quebec, Canada corporation, having its principal place

of business at 7405 Transcanada Highway, Suite 100, Montreal, Quebec, H4T lZ2 (hereinafter
referred to as "CONTRACTOR").

WHEREAS, CUSTOMER desires to engage CONTRACTOR to provide Accounting
Software Maintenance by reason of CONTRACTOR's qualifications, experience, and facilities
for doing the type of work herein contemplated.

NOW, THEREFORE, CUSTOMER and CONTRACTOR, for good and valuable
consideration, and in consideration of the premises and representations set forth herein, do
hereby enter into this Agreement which specifies the terms and conditions by which
CUSTOMER shall procure services from CONTRACTOR for support of the CUSTOMER's
Cost Accounting Management System (CAMS).

Section 1

DEFINITIONS
1.1 (CAMS" shall mean the Cost Accounting Management System developed by the
CONTRACTOR for the CUSTOMER.
1.2 "Confidential Information" shall mean private information of CUSTOMER personnel files
or other files which if disclosed to a third party could result in a compromise of the interests of
the CUSTOMER or its personnel.
1.3 "CONTRACTOR" shall mean Valsoft Corporation Inc.
1.4 "CUSTOMER" shall mean the Inyo County - Department of Public Works

I



1.5 'oMinor Problem" shall mean any programming defect, error, failure, bug, any other
malfunction in CAMS or any training problem that prevents it from operating in conformance
with original System Specifications and which, if not comected within thirty (30) working days,
will cause CUSTOMER to incur additional costs or work not previously anticipated.
1.6 6'Major Problem" shall mean any programming defect, eruor, failureo bug, any other
malfunction in CAMS or any training problem that prevents it from operating in conformance
with original System Specifications and which, if not corrected within forty-eight (48) hours,
excluding weekends and holidays, will cause CUSTOMER to incur additional costs or work not
previously anticipated.

Section 2

SCOPE OF WORK

2.1 Nature of Work

The work covered by this Agreement includes, but is not limited to, technical systems
analysis, program development, preparation, unit and systems testing, data
communications, project consultation, documentation, training, and status reporting for
CAMS.

2.2 CAMS Maintenance

CONTRACTOR shall provide CAMS Maintenance as follows:

2.2.1 lntroduction

CONTRACTOR will maintain the now current version of the CAMS plus any and all
Contractor revisions and modifications implemented with CUSTOMER approval. During
the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR will comect any programming or design
defects, errors, failures, bugs, and any and all other malfunctions or any training
problems in CAMS that prevents it from operating in conformance with the original
System Specifications.

2.2.2 Notification and Determination of Problem Magnitude

CUSTOMER will notifu CONTRACTOR of any problem with CAMS that prevents it
from performing accordant to original System Specifications. A telephone call, fax
message, or written notice from CUSTOMER Project Manager or designee shall serve as

such notification. CONTRACTOR is to provide telephone response to such notification
within forty-eight (48) normal business hours (8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.). During
CONTRACTOR telephone response, CUSTOMER Project Manager or designee, in
consultation with CONTRACTOR, shall determine the magnitude of the problem and
whether it falls under Subsection 1.5 ("Minor Problem") or 1.6 ("Major Problem").

2



2.2.3 Performance Effort for Minor and Major Problem

CONTRACTOR will provide a resolution plan within forty-eight (48) normal business
hours (8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.), excluding weekends and holidays, of determination of
problem magnitude. Resolution plan shall include CONTRACTOR's estimate of when
and how problem will be resolved. If CUSTOMER Project Manager or designee agrees
with CONTRACTOR's resolution plan, CUSTOMER Project Manager or designee shall
provide verbal notice to CONTRACTOR of acceptance of resolution plan to be,
optionally, followed by a written notice. Resolution plan shall provide for
CONTRACTOR to remedy Minor Problem within thirty (30) days and major problems
within forty-eight (48) hours.

2.3 Telephone Support

CUSTOMER may during normal business hours (8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.) of
CONTRACTOR, obtain telephone consultation covering the use of CAMS.
CONTRACTOR reserves the right to limit such non-billable telephone consultation to
CUSTOMER to no more that one hour per week.

Section 3

AMEIIDMENTS AND MODIF'ICATIONS

Any changes to this Agreement requested either by CUSTOMER or CONTRACTOR
may be effected if mutually agreed upon in writing by CUSTOMER's Project Manager
and CONTRACTOR's Representative.

Section 4

PAYMENTS

4.1 CAMS Maintenance

CUSTOMER shall pay CONTRACTOR receiving a valid annual invoice from
CONTRACTOR, renewing on July 1, 2019, a fee for a total of $12,963.03

CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to increase annual maintenance fees to a maximum of
5o/o pt year, upon providing CUSTOMER 60 days prior written notice.

4.2 Invoices and Prompt Payment Due

Payment will be made to CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after CUSTOMER
receipt: of a valid annual invoice. Invoices shall be sent to:

-t



Inyo County - Department of Public Works
P.O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526
USA

Section 5

TERM AND TERMINATION

5.1 This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above and shall continue for one
year thereafter. CONTRACTOR will submit a written renewal invoice to CUSTOMER with
updated Rates for Subsection 4.1 "CAMS Maintenance" not later than 60 days prior to the
anniversary date.

5.2 CONTRACTOR hereby reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon
providing CUSTOMER 60 days written notice.

5.3 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of a material breach hereof
by the other party, which material breach has not been cured within thirty (30) working days
after receipt of written notice thereof by the breachingparty from the other.

5.4 CUSTOMER agrees that the termination of this Agreement for reasons outlined herein shall
also cause in the automatic termination of the CAMS system.

Section 6

INDEMNIF'ICATION AND LIABILITY

6.1 If any claim is asserted or action or proceeding is brought against the CUSTOMER which
alleges that all or any part of CAMS Maintenance made or supplied by CONTRACTOR, for the
CUSTOMER's use thereof infringes or misappropriates any United States copyright or patent,
or any trade secret, contract, license, grant or other proprietary right, the CUSTOMER shall give
CONTRACTOR prompt wriffen notice thereof. CONTRACTOR shall defend any such claim or
action with counsel of the CUSTOMER's choice and at CONTRACTOR's expense and shall
indemnifu the CUSTOMER for any costs, including reasonable attorney's fees, and damages
actually incurred by the CUSTOMER in connection therewith.

6.2 CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and at CUSTOMER's request,
defend the CUSTOMER, its officers, agents, and employees from any and all costs and
expenses, damages, liabilities, claims, and losses occurring or resulting to CUSTOMER in
connection with the performance, or failure to perform, by CONTRACTOR, its officers, agents,
or employees under this Agreement.

4

Section 7



INSURANCE

7.1 CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense, shall maintain in full force and effect the following
insurance policies throughout the term of this Agreement:

7.2 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance policy (the "Policy") in the face insurable
amount of no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), covering any and all possible
insurable claims which can or may arise from this Agreement, including, but not limited to,
infringements and hade secret claims, breach of warranty claims, breach of contract claims,
third-party claims, inability to perform and force majeure, bodily injury, accidental death and
property damage and similar matterso and may be in the form of a combined single limit policy.

7.3 If CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits than the minimums stated above, CUSTOMER
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by CONTRACTOR

7.4 Workers Compensation insurance in accordance with the State of California Labor Code.

Section 8

SECURITY COMPLIANCE

8.1 CONTRACTOR shall not disclose or use any CUSTOMER Confidential Information
provided by CUSTOMER except as required in and by the terms of this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR shall safeguard any CUSTOMER property used during the duration of this
agreement.

8.2 CONTRACTOR and CUSTOMER shall take all reasonable precautions to prevent such
disclosure or use of any such Confidential Information.

8.3 Within seven (7) days of expiration or termination of this Agreement, as provided herein,
CONTRACTOR shall return to the CUSTOMER at the address given, all Confidential
Information, or property, embodied in written, magnetic or other form and any other property
belonging to the CUSTOMER.

Section 9

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

9.1 This agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties hereto and supersedes any
and all prior or contemporaneous representations or agreements, whether written or oral, between
the parties, and cannot be changed or modified unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto.

Section 10

5



ENF'ORCEMENT

10.1 This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of California and all clauses, including "'Whereas" and "Definitions", shall be given operative
effect.

Section 11

INDEPET\DENT C ONTRACTOR

11.1 In performance of the work, duties, and obligations assumed by CONTRACTOR under this
Agreement, it is mutually understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR, including any and all of
CONTRACTOR's officers, agents, and employees will at all times be acting and performing as

an independent capacity and not as an officer or agent of the CUSTOMER.

Section L2

WAIVER

12.1 No term or provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such
waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have so waived or
consented. Failure of CUSTOMER to enforce at any time, or from time-to-time, any provision
of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver thereof.

Section 13

SEVERABILITY

13.1 If any part of this Agreement is found violative of any law or is found to be otherwise
legally defective, this Agreement shall be construed and interpreted without reference to any
such part.

WHEREFORE, IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be
executed and do each hereby warrant and represent that their respective signatory whose
signature appears below has been and is on the date of such signature duly authorized by all
necessary and appropriate corporate and public action to execute this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR
VALSOFT CORPORATION INC.

By:

6

Gaurav Goyal, President



Date:_

Taxpayer ID No.: 93-1180136

CUSTOMER

INYO COTINTY _ DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

By:
Date

7



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COI]NTY OF INYO

n Consent I Departmental lCorrespondence Action

! Sctreduled Time for ! Ctosed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

l(a

! Puntic Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Nathan D. Reade, Agricultural Commissioner/Director of Weights and Measures

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June 11, 2019

SUBJECT: 2018 Annual Crop and Livestock Report

DEPAR RECOMMENDATION:

Presentation of the 2018 Annual Crop and Livestock Report

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:

General review of the 2018 Annual Crop and Livestock Report, which is submitted in accordance with Section 2279 of
the California Food and Agriculture Code. Agriculture continues to be a solid industry that is an integral part of Inyo and
Mono Counties' economy.

ALTERNATIWS:

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:

FINANCING:

DE PARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE :

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submrssion to the board clerk.)

DateApproved

AUDITORYCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to
submlsslon to the board clerk.)

DateApproved:

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTINTY OF INYO
Consent X Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for I Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

l7
! Puntic Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Water Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June 11, 2019

SUBJEGT: 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River (LORP) Annual Work Plan, Budget, Schedule

D E PART M E NTAL RE C O MM E NDA TI O N :
The Water Department requests the Board adopt the20l9-2020 Fiscal Year LORP Annual Work Plan.
Adoption is contingent on adoption of the same by LADWP.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
(1) The County and LADWP are jointly responsible for funding the LORP. For the past 9 years, funds set
aside as a credit from LADWP, and funds in the LORP Trust Account, have been drawn upon to pay the
County's share of its LORP costs. The responsibilities and obligations of each party are described in the May
18,2010, AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND CITY OF LOS ANGELES
DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER CONCERNING THE OPERATIONS AND FUNDING OF THE
LOWER OWENS RIVER PROJECT;commonly referred to as the Post-Imp Agreement. This funding
agreement commits each of the parties to fund the LORP for 15 years, ending July 1I,2022. According to
the Post-Imp Agreement (Sec. ILA): After July I I, 2022, the requiredflows will continue to be maintained
and the flow compliance monitoring required by the Stipulation and Order will continue to be conducted;
however, the Parties will decide what level of operations, maintenance, habitat monitoring, and adaptive
management will be conducted.

The beginning Post-Imp Agreement Credit Account balance was $2,253,033, and the beginning Trust
Account balance was $3,368,017 for atotal balance of $5,621,050. Cunently, as of March 15, 2019 the
Credit Account, has a balance of $1,176,882, and as of February 1,2019 the Trust Account holds
52,410,466. The sum of these balances is $3,587,348.

(2) The 2004Final Environmental Impact Report for the Lower Owens River Project ("FEIR") Section 2.2.1
provides that in December of each year, the Technical Group will develop and adopt an annual work
program for the Lower Owen River Project (LORP) describing work regarding the LORP to be performed in
the following fiscal year, including implementation of adaptive management measures. Following adoption
by the Technical Group, the work programs will be submitted to the County and LADWP governing boards
for approval. Each governing board must approve the plan before this work plan and budget can be
implemented.

The2019-2020 Work Plan was prepared according to the Agreement between the County of Inyo and City of
Los Angeles Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens River Project (Funding Agreement)
Sections D, E, and F. On May 9,2019,the Technical Group agreed ona2019-2020 Fiscal Year Lower
Owens River Project Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule.

In FY 2019-2020 the total cost to fund the LORP is $544,826, which is $8,3 16 less than was budgeted in
2018-2019. The County will pay $145,310 from the LORP Trust Account to fund a portion of the LORP
related work. This amount is less than LADWP's contribution of $399,516 so under the Agreement between
the County of Inyo and City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Concerning Funding of the



LORP Work Plan Agenda Request
Page 2

Lower Owens River Project (Funding Agreement), the LADWP will increase or decrease the County's
LORP Post-Implementation Credit by the difference divided by two. This year the LORP Credit will be
reduced by $127,103.

The 2019-2020 Work Plan includes provisions for:
1. Work and activities required to maintain required flows in the river and required water supplies to

other LORP components.
2. Hydrologic monitoring and reporting of Lower Owens River flows.
3. Maintenance associated with flow compliance monitoring and reporting associated with the above

referenced Stipulation and Order.
4. Biological and water quality monitoring described in the LORP Monitoring and Adaptive

Management Plan.
5. Services provided by the two LORP consultants Mark Hill and Bill Platt (formally Ecosystems

Sciences Inc.)
6. The preparation of the LORP Annual Report as required by Section 2.10.4 of the LORP Final EIR

and by Section L of the above referenced Stipulation and Order.
7. Other work or activities including mosquito abatement, beaver control, noxious weed treatment.

Descriptions of these tasks and cost breakdowns can be found in the Work Plan and Budget.

The following Table summarizes the expenses anticipated by each party and costs for the MOU consultant
that was agreed to by the Technical Group on April 12,2019.

Table 1. 2OL9-2O2O LORP Work Plan Su

lnyo County
Staff Work

Days

Budgeted Staff
Time, Materials,
and Equipment

Payment/Credit

Biologic and Water Quality 8 so

Mosquito Abatement 53o,ooo

MOU Consultant S6s,310

Noxious Species Control Sso,ooo

lnyo County Totals 8 $145,310 {$127,103)

TADWP

Budgeted
Staff Work

Days

Budgeted Staff
Time, Materials,
and Equipment

Hydrologic Monitoring S77,L6o

Biologic and Water Quality 8 $o

Operations and Maintenance s282,3s6

Mosquito Abatement S3o,ooo

Rodent Control Slo,ooo

IADWP Totals 8 $399,s16

Combined Total 168 $s44,826

lnyo County Credit Adjustment
(L/2of fie Difference in

Expenditures between lnyo
Countv and LADWP)

($127,103)



LORP Work Plan Agenda Request
Page 3

Biologic and water quality monitoring is conducted by staff from both LADWP and the Water Department.
For budgeting purposes a day-for-day offset is used, rather than dollar-for-dollar. In2019-2020, a combined
effort on the Biological and Water Quality work is estimated to require a combined 16 people-days, split
evenly between the County and LADWP.

LORP Operations and Maintenance in20l9-2020 is estimated to cost $218,076 for the river, and$217,789
for Blackock Waterfowl Management Area, for a total of $435,864. From this figure pre-LORP baseline
costs are subtracted. The baseline cost deduction is adjusted annually based on the November Los Angeles-
Riverside CPI. The CPI adjusted total for Operations and Maintenancein20l9-2020 is5282j56.

The County will administer the contracts with the MOU Consultants Mark Hill and Bill Platt. Up to $65,310
will be withdrawn from the Trust Account to pay consultant expenses in 2019-2020.

Background, Requirements, and Gonstraints on LORP Funding
Funding for the LORP is prescribed by a lengthy series of agreements and Court orders.

Section XII of the Water Agreement provides that: (l) the County will fund one-half of the LORP initial
construction costs (up to a maximum of $3.75 million-less any funds contributed to cover the initial
construction costs by the State of California or other non-LADWP sources), (2) LADWP will fund the
remaining initial construction costs of the LORP, and (3) LADWP and the County will jointly fund and
operate the LORP after it has been implemented (except for the costs of operating and maintaining the pump
station which will be tunded by LADWP).

On August 8, 2005, the Court sanctioned LADWP to the effect that, starting September 5,2005, and until
Los Angeles established permanent baseflows of approximately 40 cfs throughout the Lower Owens River,
Los Angeles paid $5,000 per day into an escrow account established by Los Angeles and Inyo County. The
proceeds of the account, including accrued interest may only be used for: (1) to pay for Special Master
services associated with establishment of flow in the LORP, (2) to pay the County's share of post-
implementation costs for the LORP, and (3) to pay the cost of monitoring habitat indicator species at the
direction of the California Department of Fish and Game for a five year period in an amount not to exceed a
cumulative total of $100,000, and (4) to pay the cost of the escrow account. The Special Master's role in the
establishment of LORP baseflows has terminated. The escrow account is held by the County Treasury as

Trust Account (504103), Siena Club vs. LA Court Trust ("Trust Account").

On September 16, 2005, the County and the LADWP entered into a settlement agreement ("LORP Funding
Agreement") whereby LADWP agreed to provide $5,242,965 to the County. With regard to the County's
obligation to fund $3.75 million of the LORP implementation costs, the LORP Funding Agreement provides
that LADWP will provide a credit to the County in the amount of $2,989,932. The LORP Funding
Agreement also acknowledges that the provision of this credit, in combination with the County's previous
application of $360,000 obtained from the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, $250,000 obtained from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, and $150,068 obtained from the EPA to LORP initial
construction costs, fully discharged the County's obligation for the payment of $3.75 million for the LORP
initial construction costs.

With regard to the County's obligation to fund a portion of the LORP post-implementation costs, the LORP
Funding Agreement provides as follows: (1) the difference between 55,242,965 and the $2,989,932 that will
be applied to the LORP initial construction costs (a difference of $2,253,033), will be a credit held in trust by
LADWP. This "Post Implementation Credit" will be used to partially fund the County's obligation to pay



LORP Work Plan Agenda Request
Page +

one half of the LORP post-implementation costs; (2) each year, the then remaining amount of this Post
Implementation Credit will be reduced by the County's share of the LORP post-implementation costs until
the $2,253,033 credit has been reduced to zero; (3) each year, the then remaining unexpended portion of the
$2,253,033 will be annually adjusted upward or downward in accordance with the previous April Los
Angeles--Anaheim--Riverside All Urban Consumers Price Index ("CPI") or its successor; (4) the annual CPI
adjustment will take place prior to deduction of a credit for County's annual share of the LORP post-
implementation costs; and (5) the CPI adjustment will commence when LADWP has established a
permanent baseflow of approximately 40 cfs in the LORP.

The LORP Funding Agreement also provides that Trust Account will be established in the Inyo County
Treasury as a trust account and that the interest earned on the fund balance will remain in the account. The
LORP Funding Agreement also provides that only after the 52,253,033 Post Implementation Credit (adjusted
as described above) has been reduced to zero, will the County begin to pay its share of the LORP post-
implementation costs from the Trust Account; however, the County may elect to reimburse itself from the
Trust Account for LORP related costs incurred by the County.

On July 11,2007, the parties to the MOU entered into a Stipulation and Order resolving issues of compliance
with the MOU. In the Stipulation and Order, the parties agree that as of July 11,2007, LADWP had
established a permanent baseflow of approximately 40 cfs in the LORP. The Stipulation and Order also
provides for monitoring and reporting of the baseflow flows throughout the LORP. With the entry of the
Stipulation and Order on July 11,2007, LADWP ceased making payments of $5,000 per day into the Trust
Account established pursuant to the Court Order because, as of that date, LADWP had established a

permanent baseflow of approximately 40 cfs in the LORP.

ALTERNATIWS:
Direct staff to work with LADWP to modi$ the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Work
Plan, Budget, and Amendment.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT :
LADWP, Inyo/\{ono Agricultural Commissioner

FINANCING:
Adoption of the Work Plan and Amendment would require a payment of $145,310 for 2019-2020, which has
been budgeted in the Water Department's Budget (024102). Sufficient funds are available in the Post-
Implementation Credit and Trust Account (504103) to fund this work.

After the $114,857 deductions for LORP work in FY 2018-2019, and a4.0Yo CPI adjustment is applied in
April2018, $1,176,882w1llremain available in the LORP Post-Implementation Credit for the 2019-20
LORP Work Plan. The LORP Trust Account Balance (504103) as of March 15,2019 is $2,410,466. The
Post-Implementation Credit is held by LADWP, and the County of Inyo Treasury holds the Trust Account.
The sum of accounts, $3,723,131, with Trust Account interest and Credit Account indexing, is available to
fund the County's LORP costs, trust account costs, and funding for the MOU Consultants through the term
of the Funding Agreement ending July 21,202I.



LORP Work Plan Agenda Request
Page 5

DEP ARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE:
(Not.to be signed until all approvals are

COUNry COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submrssrbn to the board clerk.)

Date: _Approved:

AUDITORYCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to

Approved

submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEITND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date: _

APPROVALS

,9-tYt



Lower Owens River Project
Work Plan, Budg€t, and Schedule

2OL9-2020 Fiscal Year

Prepared by
lnyo County Water Department and
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 4019"2020

Lower Owens River Project
Work Plan, Budget, ?nd Schedule

20L9-2020 Fiscal Year

The lnyo County Water Department and the Los Angeles Department of Water and power jointly prepared
this 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Lower owens River Project Work plan. The lnyo County/Los Angeles Technical
Group adopted this work plan on May 9, 2019. The Technical Group recommends that the lnyo County
Board of Supervisors and the City of Los Angeles Board of Water and power Commissioners or their
designee approve the 2019-2020 Fiscal year Lower owens River project work plan.

Introduction
The Final Environmental lmpact Report for the Lower Owens River Project {LORP) Section 2.2.1 provides
that in December of each year, the Long-Term Water Agreement (LTWA) Technical Group will develop
and adopt an annual work program for the LORP, which describes LORP work to be performed in the
following fiscal year. This work program identifies who will perform or oversee tasks, a schedule, and a
budget. This work plan and budget was prepared according to the Agreement between the County of
lnyo and City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Concerning Funding of the Lower Owens
River Project (Funding Agreement) sections D, E, and F. Following adoption by the Technical Group, the
work program will be submitted to the County and LADWP governing board for approval. Each
governing board must approve the plan before this work plan and budget can be implemented. This
Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule is in force from July I,ZOI}-June 30,2O2O.

The objectives of this work plan are to maintain compliance with the July t:.,2OOl Superior Court
Stipulation and Order in case no. S1CVCVO 7-29768, conduct monitoring necessary to achieve the LORp
goals described in the 1997 Memorandum of Understanding, maintain infrastructure necessary to the
operation of the LORP, and implement adaptive management measures. The following priorities are
observed in this work plan:

1. Work and activities required to maintain required flows in the river and required water supplies
to other LORP components.

2' Maintenance associated with flow compliance monitoring and reporting associated with the
above referenced Stipulation and Order.

3. Habitat and water quality monitoring described in the LORP Monitoring and Adaptive
Management Plan, or required to comply with the requirements of the Lahontan Regional
Water Quality Control Board.

4. The preparation of the LORP Annual Report as required by Section 2.l}.4of the LORp FinalEtR
and by Section L of the above referenced Stipulation and Order.

5. Other work or activities including the implementation of adaptive management measures.



Lower Owens River Project Work plan, Fy 201.9-2020

Section 1 of this work plan covers the budget and schedule for operations and maintenance, monitoring,
mosquito abatement, noxious species control, saltcedar control, and reporting activities. Saltcedar
control activities are identified but are funded under separate agreements and not budgeted in this
work plan,

The budget amount reflects the additional costs above equal sharing of work by the parties and does
not include the costs of lnyo and LA staff times where they offset.

Maintenance and Monitoring Budget

Table 1 summarizes the costs of operation, maintenance and monitoring for the fiscal year and specifies
the costs incurred by lnyo County, Los Angeles, and the cost of the MOU consultant. A summary of
these activities follows.

Efforts on biologic and water quality monitoring tasks are shared by lnyo and LADWp. ln 2O19-2020 a
total of L6 people days are required to complete these tasks. lnyo County and LADWp will each
contribute 8 days. Maintenance, operations, and Hydrologic monitoring are tasks solely performed by
LADWP, and are without offsetting costs. LADWP has allocated 110 days for Range Monitoring, which is
a LADWP cost.

Based on this budget, total cost for the fiscal year is 5544,826, with lnyo County contributing S145,3 j.0,
and LADWP Sggg,st6. lnyo County's Post lmplementation Credit will be decreased by Stzz,tog. ttris
figure is calculated by subtracting the dollars LADWP will spend during the fiscal year from the amount
spent by lnyo County, and dividing this figure by two.

3



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2019-2020

Table 1. LORP Work Plan Summa FY 2019-2020

lnyo County
Budgeted Staff

Work Days

Value of Additional Staff Time,
Materials, and Equipment

Payment/Credit

Biologic and Water Quality 8 so

Mosquito Abatement s30,000

MOU Consultant S6s,31o

Noxious Species Control Sso,ooo

lnyo County Totals 8 S14s,310 1s127,103)

LADWP
Budgeted Staff

Work Days

Budgeted Value of Additional Staff
Time, Materials, and Equipment

Hydrologic Monitoring s77,160

Biologic and Water Quality 8 so

operations and Maintenance s282,3s6

Mosquito Abatement s30,000

Rodent Control Slo,ooo

LADWP Totals 8 $399,s16

Combined Total 16 $s44,826

lnyo County Credit Adjustment
(1/2 ofthe Difference in
Expenditures between lnyo
County and LADWP)

(s127,103)

4



Original Post lmplementation Credit S2,2s3,033 S2,2s3,033

lncrease Post lmp Credit by 2.9% based on the July 2007 price lndex 2.9% So5, I l8 s2,378,371

County's obligation for July 11, 2007 to June 30, 2008 period 5243,524 $2,o74,947

lncrease the remaining balance ofthe Post lmplementation Credit by 5.7% based
upon the July 2008 price index 5.7Yo s 11ti,266 S2,193,113

County's obligation for 2008-2009 fiscal year 5243,s24 $1,949,s89

Reduce the remaining balance of the Post lmplementation Credit by 1.3% based
upon the April 2009 price index

-7.3% S2s,34s 57,924,24s

County's share of the costs for the 2009-2010 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management. s266,776 S1,6s8,069

lncrease the remaining balance of the Post lmplementation Credit by 1.9% based
upon the April 2010 price index effective July 10, 2010

7s% S I t,5rll 5r,689,s72

County's share ofthe costs for the 2010-2011 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management effective July 27,2O1O. s317,80s 51,377,767

lncrease the remaining balance of the Post lmplementation Credit by 3.3% based
upon the April 2011 price index effective July 10, 2011.

33% 54:,,2bS s1,417,03s

County's share of the costs for the 2011-2012 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management effective July 2f,2017. 548,278 s7,368,7s7

County's share of the costs for the Amended 2011-2012 work plan and budget,
effective July 21, 2011. 5s7,687 S1,311,070

lncrease the remaining balance ofthe Post lmplementation Credit by 1.5% based
upon the April 2012 price index effective July 10, 2012.

7s% S 1.9,6{16 S1,330,736

County's share of the costs for the 2O72-2O\3 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management effective July 23, 2012.

s r 4.084 s1,344,820

lncrease the remaining balance of the Post lmplementation Credit by 0.9% based
upon the April 2013 price index effective July 10, 2013.

0.9% S 1 2, lrl3 S1,3s6,924

County's share of the costs for the 2013-2014 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management effective June 2f,2073. s4 r,9 i !l s1,398,903

lncrease the remaining balance ofthe Post lmplementation Credit by 1.4% based
upon the April 2014 price index effective luly 7O,2O14.

1.4% $ ] s,58:i 5r,4r8,4a7

County's share of the costs for the 2O74-20L5 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management effectlve June 21,2074. S78,483 S1,340,004

lncrease the remaining balance ofthe Post lmplementation Credit by 0.5% based
upon the April 2015 consumer price index. o.s% Sb,7oo st,346,704

County's share of the costs for the 2015-2016 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management effective June 27,2075. S73,7ss 5r,272,949

lncrease the remaining balance ofthe Post lmplementation Credit by 2.0% based
upon the April 2016 consumer price index.

2.0/o $2:,,4se S1,2e&408

County's share ofthe costs for the 2016-2017 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management effective June 2I,2016. 584,704 51,2r3,704

lncrease the remaining balance ofthe Post lmplementation Credit by 2.7% based
upon the April 2017 consumer price index.

2.7% 5 ) 2,t1N 51,246,474

County's share of the costs for the 2017-2018 work plan and budget, including
adaptive management, effective October 31, 2018. S114,8s7 5r,t3r,617

lncrease the remaining balance of the Post lmplementation Credit by 4.0% based
upon the Aprll 2018 consumer price index. 4.0% i,4 s,2{j5 $1,u6,882

Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2019-2020

Footnote to Table 1. Post lmplementation Credit and Trust Accounting

The annual CPI adjustment will take place priorto deduction ofa credit for County's annual share ofthe LORP post-
implementation costs (PlA 8.4). The LoRP Trust Account Balance as of March 15, 2019 was 52,410,465.93.

5



Lower Owens River Project Work plan, Fy 2019-2020

Section 1. Maintenance and Monitoring Tasks

[ORP Tasks
The maintenance and monitoring portion of this work plan consists of four categories of tasks:
operations and maintenance, hydrologic monitoring, biological monitoring, and range monitoring.

Operations and Maintenance
Maintenance activities consist of cleaning sediment accumulations and other obstructions from water
measurement facilities, cleaning sediment and aquatic vegetation from ditches, mowing ditch margins,
fence repair, adjustments to flow control structures, and maintenance/replacement of existing
structures. Operationactivitiesconsistofsettingandcheckingflowsandensuringthatnecessaryflows
reach the riverto maintain mandated base and seasonal habitatflows. Estimates of the level of effort
necessary for maintenance are adjusted as required by section ll.D of the Funding Agreement, which
allows that costs for maintenance of ditches, spillgates, and control structures that are above the
baseline costs for facilities in the river corridor and Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area (BWMA)
shall be shared. The estimate d 2o]rg-2020 costs for River corridor and BWMA facilities were
5218,075.50 and 5217,788.89 respectively, for an overall 2olg-2ozooperations and maintenance
expenditure of 5435,864.49. This figure reduced by the combined Cpl-adjusted baseline costs for the
river corridor and BWMA facilities is 5282,355.97 (Table 2).

Hydrologic Monitoring
Hydrologic monitoring consists of monitoring, analyzing, and reporting river baseflows and seasonal
habitat flows, the flooded extent of the Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area (BWMA), the levels of
the off-River Lakes and Ponds, and baseflows, pulse flows, and seasonal habitat flows to the Delta.
Hydrologic monitoring costs for the 2019-2020 fiscal year are S77,t6o (Table 3).

Biological/Water euality Monitoring
Monitoring, analysis, reporting, and report preparation will be jointly conducted by lnyo and LADWp
with the time allocated by each agency given in the attached budget table (Table 4).

Biologicaland water quality monitoring is related to the tasks indicated in the Table 4.01of the LORP
Monitoring and Adaptive Management Plan (MAMP). LADWP and ICWD will continue to monitor
flooded extent at Blackrock as in past years. LADWP and lnyo County will also conduct a thorough
evaluation of the status of the LoRP since project implementation and will prepare a report that will be
incorporated into the 2019 LORP Annual Report. Meetings between Scientific Team members from
LADWP and lnyo county will occur as necessary to accomplish this task.

lnyo Staff and LADWP Staff will spend a total of 16 people days on LoRp biological and water quality
monitoring. There will be no off-setting costs.

6



l-.ri,rve r l)';rr:lt; iii,.i*i l)tltjlrtri. $r'r:ti.i irl.ri;, i;'l iril l!j-'.]1i2il

Measuri Station Maintenance

Table 2. LORP Operations and Mainte nance Budset- 201S2020 Fiscal Year

Labor Hours Labor Rate Total Labor Hours Rate Total
River

PowerShovel O rator 20 ss1.9e 039.80 Excavator 20 s10s.80 776.O0
Truck Driver 20 $4s.30 s905.00 3 axle dump truck 20 $ss.so s1,130.00
O pe rato r 20 s4e.12 Se82.40 Mower 20 S9o.10 S1,so2.oo
BuildinC Repairman 10 s4s.88 s4s8.80 3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 80 s13.50 s1,088.00
MCH 50 $sg.zz S1,988.s0 Water truck 40 s31.23 St,24s.2o

Subtotal $5,375.50 57,4p's.2o
lntake Spillgate

Mainte nance Building Repairman 40 s4s.8S S1,83s.20 Bull Dozer 40 s61.5s s2,466.00
MCH 280 539.77 s11,13s.50 Backhoe and trailer 40 s37.19 s1,487.60
Operator L20 s49.12 s5,894.40 3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 500 s13.60 SB,1Go.oo
PowerShovel Operator 120 ss1.ee S6,238.80 Mower 20 S9o.1o s1,802.00
Truck Driver 80 $4s.30 s3,524.00 Excavator 720 s108.80 S13,05o.oo

3 axle dump truck 80 s48.03 53,u2.40
Subtotal S28,7zB.oo S3o,B14.m
Thibaut Spillgate and Ditch
Cleaning PowerShovel Operator 50 ss1.e9 S3,1le.40 Excavator 60 S1o8.80 s6,s28.00

Operator 80 549.L2 s3,s29.50 Backhoe and trailer 40 s37.19 s1,487.60
Truck Driver 80 s4s.30 s3,624.00 Loade r 40 S37.40 s1,496.00
MCH 80 539.77 53,181.G0 3 axel dump truck 40 S48.03 5r,92r.20

3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 40 s13.50 Ssa+.oo
Subtotal s13,8s4.60 $11,978.80
lnde ndence and Ditch
Cleaning/Mowins PowerShovel Operator 80 ss1.s9 s4.1s9.20 Excavator 80 s108.80 s8,704.00

Ope rator 80 $4s.r2 53,92e.60 Loade r 40 s37.40 S1,4e6.oo
Truck Driver 40 s4s.30 s1,812.00 Side dump 40 s6s.65 s2,626.40
MCH I40 Stg.tt ss,s67.80 Mower 40 Sso.10 53,604.oo

3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 260 S13.60 s3,s36.00
Water truck 40 Ssr.z: sL.249.20

Subtotal S1s,468.60 s21,21s.60
Locust and Ditch
Cleaning Power Shovel Operator 60 Ss1.99 s3,11e.40 Excavator 50 s108.80 s6,s28.00

Operator 720 s49.12 Ss,8e4.40 Backhoe and trailer 720 s37.19 54,462.80
MCH I40 Srs.zz ss,s67.80 3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 140 S13.Go s1,904.00
Truck Driver 40 $4s.30 S1,812.00 3 axle dump truck 4A S48.03 s1,921.20

Subtotal s16,393.60 $r4ere.oo
Ditch

Cleaning/Mowing Ope rator 140 549.12 S6.87G.80 Mower 40 s90.10 S3,5o4.oo
Truck Driver 80 S4s.30 s3,624.00 Backhoe and trailer 60 s37.1s 52,237.40
PowerShovel Operator 60 ss1.99 53,11s.40 Loade r 40 Ssz.+o s1,496.00
MCH 140 539.77 ss,s67.80

Subtotal s19188.00 $Zrsr.40

Cleaning PowerShovel Operator 40 ss1.99 s2,079.60 Excavator 40 s108.80 s4,3s2.00
Operator 30 s4s.12 S1,473.60 Bull Dozer 30 s61.6s s1,849.s0
Truck Driver I20 S4s.3o ss,436.00 3 axle dump truck L20 s48.03 Ss,763.60

Subtotal 58,9s9,20 s11,95s.10



I tlv;{tt Llr;vl;ts j:i jvrr llio jr:r;l \lll:'lt i:rlr.lirt, t:'i ll;11;"21;21;

Location/ActiviW Labor type Hours Labor Rate Total labor Equipment/Materials Hours Rate Total Equip
Delta Spillgate

Buildine Repairman N s4s.88 s1,83s.20 3/4 ton 4x4 pick- up 40 s13.60 s544.00
MCH 40 S3e.77 s1,s90.80 3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 40 s13.60 ss44.oo

Subtotal S3,42o.oo s1,088.00
River subtotal S111.423.s0 s106,6s2.10
Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area

Blackrock Ditch

Mai nte nance Operator 120 549.L2 S5,894.40 Mower 80 sgo.10 s7,20S.00
Truck Driver 200 s4s.30 s9,060.oo 3 axle dump truck 40 s48.03 s1.921.20
MCH 200 s39.77 S7.954.00 3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 40 S13.60 ss44.00
PowerShovel Operator 80 ss1.ee s4,1s9.20 Excavator 80 s1o8.80 $&7o4.oo

Loade r 40 SEz.+o s1,495.00

3 axle dump truck 80 s48.03 S3,s42.40

Water 40 Ssr.zE $r,249.20
Side dump 40 s5s.55 s2,626.40

subtotal 527,067.fi s27,s91.2O
Patrol & Flow Changes (Riverand BWMA)

A&R data A&R Keeper (1.5 FTE) 3089 s39.21 st27,7r9.69 3/4ton 4x4 pick- up 3089 s13.60 s42,010.40
Subtotal st21.,L19.69 S42,010.40
BWMA subtotal 5L48,t87.29 s59.601.60

TOTATS

River Total s218,075.60

BWMATotal 52t7,799.99
Total O and M s435.864.49

CPI Adjusted O and tl s282,35s.97

Baseline Costs (described in Post -lmp)

CPI adjustment

2006-2007

200't-2008

2008-2009

2009-2070

2010-20!I

20tr-2072

20!2-2013

2073-2074

2074-2015

2075-2016

2016-2077

2077-2018

2018-2019

4.5%

3.tYo

-7.3%

os%

0.7%

3.O%

2.L%

o.4%

1..3%

7.6%

7.8%

3.6Yo

3.6%

River

SsG,863.oo

$s9,42r.84

SG1,263.e1

S80,467.48

s61,011.6s

56r,43s.77

s63,281.93

SG4,G1o.8s

S64,8G9.30

s5s,712.60

SGG,7G4.oo

s67,95s.75

57o,4t2.s2

512,947.37

BWMA

SG2,798.00

s 65,6 2 3.91

SG7,6sB.2s

S66,778.G9

567,379.7O

s67,8s 1.35

s69,886.e0

S71,3s4.s3

s77,639.94

572,sit.26

573,732.40

s7s,0s9.se

5i7,761.73

s80,551.1s

8



Table 3. Hydrologic Monitoring Budget, FY 2OL9-2O2O

Table 4. Biological Monitoring Budget, FY 2OL9-2O2O

Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2019-2020

Total Hydro
Budget

Person
days Labor Costs Equipment Cost

Total Predicted
Cost July 1,

2019 through
June 30, 2020

HYDRO OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

River Stations 30 s 12,900 s 6,000 $ tg,goo
Seasonal Habitat 20 s 8,600 s 800 s 9,400
Off River Lakes & Ponds 9 s 3,870 s 360 s 4,230
Flow to Delta 6 5 2,580 s r,240 s 3,820
Blackrock Waterfowl 16 s 6,880 s 3,640 S to,szo
Reporting Compliance 7 s 3,010 s 280 s 3,290

ENGINEERING

Reporting Compliance 50 s 27,000 s s 27,000

577,160

Biological Monitoring Days
lnyo
Days

tA
Days

Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area

Waterfowl Area Acreage 1.6 8 8

Total Person Days on Project 16 8 I

9



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, Fy 2019-2020

Range Monitoring
Range monitoring is related to the tasks described in section 4.6 of the MAMp. Three types of
monitoring will take place that are directly related to the management of livestock grazing: irrigated
pasture condition scoring, utilization and range trend monitoring, Range monitoring will be conducted
by LADWP and is not a shared cost, and therefore is not budgeted for in this work plan (Table 5).

Table 5. Range Monitori (IADWP only), FY 2OL9-202O

Mosquito Abatement
For fiscal year 2019-2020, the Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program (OVMAP) will continue a
comprehensive lntegrated Mosquito Management Plan (IMMP) when addressing the new and
developing sources within the LORP in accordance with its mission of protecting public health. This
IMMP consists of an expansion of currently used materials and methods for the surveillance and control
of mosquitoes across the OVMAP boundary as well as contingency planning for late season flushing
flows. The S0O,oOO budget anticipates field surveillance of potential larval habitat for mosquito
production, larviciding, pupaciding, adult mosquito surveillance with light traps, mosquito borne disease
surveillance, and treatment for adult mosquitoes.

Noxious Species Control
The lnyo/Mono Counties Agricultural Commissioner's Office conducts operations to control and
eradicate several different invasive weed species within the LORP boundaries. These invasive weed
species include Lepidium lotifolium, Acroptilon repens, Cirsium arvense, Centourea solstitiolis, Centaureo
maculosa, and Carderio draba. These populations are managed using integrated pest management
methods, including mechanical, chemical, and biological controls.

For fiscal year 2OI9-2O20, lnyo County will be responsible for treating weeds in the LORp. The budget
for noxious weed control is 550,000.

Saltcedar Control
lnyo County's saltcedar control program continues to be reduced from its past level of effort due to lack
of funding. The reduced level of effort will concentrate on treating resprouts and controlling saltcedar
in the river channel.

lnyo County's LORP saltcedar control activities are funded through the lnyo/Los Angeles Water
Agreement. LADWP will continue to treat saltcedar in the Owens Valley (in and out of the LoRp
Planning Area) as resources are available.

Task People Days

Utilization 45
lrrigated Pasture Condition 5

Ra Trend 40
Analysis and Reporting 20

Total 110

10



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2019-2020

Schedule

Table 6. Proposed Schedule of Monitoring and Reporting Activities for FY ?OL}-ZOZO

Period Monitoring

July 8 - July 16, 2019 Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area {BWMA) Flooded Extent

September 1- September 30, 2019 Delta Pulse Flow

September 14 - September 22,2079 BWMA Flooded Extent

October 1 - October 30, 2019 LADWP/Inyo Prepare Draft LORP Report

October 1 - October 30, 2019 Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Work Plan and Budget Reconciliation

october 31, 2019 Draft LORP Report transmitted to MOU Consultant

October 31, 2019 Transmittal of LORP Accounting Report to Governing Boards

November 1 - November 30, 2019 MOU Consultant review Draft LORP Report and develop Recommendations

November 1 - December 31, 2019 Delta Pulse Flow

December 1, 2019 MOU Consultant transmit Adaptive Management Recommendations to lnyo/LADWp

December 5, 2019 Draft Report transmitted to MOU Parties

December 19, 2019 Public Meeting for Draft LORP Report

December 16, 2019 - Februa ry 74,2O2O Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Work Plan and Budget Development

January 15 - lanuary 20, 2O2O BWMA Flooded Extent

February L7 - February 28,202O
Technical
Budget

Group Meeting to Adopt LORP Annual Report and 2O19-2OZO Fiscal year Work plan and

February 28 - March 31, 2020 Transmittal of LORP Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule to governing boards for approval

March 1 - May 31, 2020 Delta Pulse Flow

May8- May 16,2O2O BWMA Flooded Extent

May 15 - June 75,2020 Seasonal Habitat Flow

June 1 - July 31, 2020 Delta Pulse Flow

11



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, Fy 2019.2020

Section 2. Adaptive Management

No Adaptive Management is proposed during the 2019-2020 fiscal year

l2



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2019-2020

2O19-2O Work Plan and Budget for Mr. Mark HiIl, LORP MOU Consultant

TASK 1. RIVER AND WETTAND SITE VISITS
The MOU Consultant will make a reconnaissance and review site visit to the LORP river and wetlands, the
Delta and off-channel lakes and ponds to familiarize themselves with on-the-ground conditions. This site
visit will be made in early November in conjunction with range review. This will save costs by sharing some
expenses. This will allow the Consultant to see the LORP in both summer and early winter conditions prior
to reviewing and evaluating the 2OL9-20 annual report and making adaptive management
recommendations.
Labor:

Principal(Hill)
HOURS RATE COST

20 S13o S2,60o

s2,500Subtotal
Expenses:

Travel (Mileage 1500/trip @ SO.Selmi)

Lodging

Per Diem

Expenses Subtotal

TASK 2. ANNUAL REPORT EVATUATION AND ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS
At the end of October, LADWP and ICWD will forward the draft annual report to the MoU Consultant. The
MOU Consultant will evaluate the annual report for completeness and accuracy. This requires reviewing
each chapter and, in some cases, revaluating or re-estimating and verifying conclusions. Following review
and evaluation of the draft annual report and consultation with LADWP and ICWD, a final chapter for
adaptive management recommendations will be written for the final annual report and submission to the
LORP Technical Committee. The MOU Consultant will present the recommendations to the Technical
Committee, the MOU parties, decision makers, and the public as required. The deliverables will come in the
form of a simple MS Word Document that does not contain specialized features or protections on the
document. AMR must be delivered to lnyo and LADWP by no later than the first Monday in December,
Labor:

Principal(Hill)
HOURS RATE COST

185 S13o S24,05o

$24,050Subtotal

TASK 3. MEETINGS

The MOU consultant will meet with LADWP and ICWD to review progress or discuss issues either in person,
or via teleconference. The MoU consultant will provide progress reports to LADWp and ICWD as needed.
This task requires the MOU consultant to prepare for meetings, travel, and attend meetings with the
Scientific Team and MOU Parties to discuss progress towards meeting the LORP objectives.
Labor:

HOURS RATE COST

30 Srso S:,900

s3,900

0.5 S840 542o

T Slss Slss
7 5gs Sgs

Sezo

Principal(Hill)

Subtotal

13



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2019-2020

Expenses:

Travel (Mileage 1500/trip @ S0.56/mi)
Lodging

Per Diem

1 Ss+o Ss+o
2 Slss 5310
3 5gs S2ss

S1,435Expenses Subtotal

TOTATBUDGET $TASSS

t4



Lower Owens River Project Work plan, Fy 2019-2020

2Ol9-2O Work Plan and Budget for Dr. Bill Platts, IORP MOU Consultant

TASK 1. RIVERAND WETTAND SITE VISITS
The MoU Consultant will make a reconnaissance and review site visit to the LoRp river and wetlands, the
Delta and off-channel lakes and ponds to familiarize themselves with on-the-ground conditions. This site
visit will be made in early November in conjunction with range review. This will save costs by sharing some
expenses. This will allow the Consultant to see the LORP in both summer and early winter conditions priorto reviewing and evaluating the 2oI9-20 annual report and making adaptive management
recommendations.
Labor:

Principal (Bill)
HOURS RATE cosT
20 S13o $2,Goo

Sz,6ooSubtotal
Expenses:

Travel (Mileage 1500/trip @ SO.SOlmt)

Lodging

Per Diem

Expenses Subtotal

0.5 Ss+o S+zo

L Srss Srss
7 sss $gs

s670

TASK 2. ANNUAT REPORT EVALUATION ANDADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS
At the end of october, LADWP and ICWD wlllforward the draft annual report to the MoU Consultant. The
MoU Consultant will evaluate the annual report for completeness and accuracy. This requires reviewing
each chapter and, in some cases, revaluating or re-estimating and verifying conclusions. Following review
and evaluation of the draft annual report and consultation with LADWp and ICWD, a final chapter for
adaptive management recommendations will be written for the final annual report and submission to the
LORP Technical Committee. The MoU Consultant will present the recommendations to the Technical
Committee, the MOU parties, decision makers, and the public as required. The deliverables will come in the
form of a simple MS Word Document that does not contain specialized features or protections on the
document' AMR must be delivered to lnyo and LADWP by no later than the first Monday in December.
Labor:

Principal(Bill)
HOURS RATE COST

185 Si.3o $z+,050

S24,05oSubtotal

TASK 3. MEETINGS

The MoU consultant will meet with LADWP and ICWD to review progress or discuss issues either in person,
or via teleconference. The MoU consultant will provide progress reports to LADWp and ICWD as needed.
This task requires the MoU consultant to prepare for meetings, travel, and attend meetings with the
Scientific Team and MOU Parties to discuss progress towards meeting the LORP objectives.
Lobor:

HOURS RATE COST

30 Srso S3,9oo

53,goo

Principal (Bill)

Subtotal

l5



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 20i9-2020

Expenses:

Travel (Mileage 1500/trip @ S0.56/mi)
Lodging

Per Diem

L Sa+o $a+o
2 Srss $ero
3 Sgs $zas

Expenses Subtotal S1,435

TOTALBUDGET 532,655

I6



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
Consent X Departmental ECorrespondence Action

E Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

IB

E Puotic Hearing

E lnformational

FRoM: Water Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June LL,zOtB

SUBJECT: Workshop - lmplications of the Department of Water Resources 2019 Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act Basin Prioritization Process and Results (2019 Basin Prioritization)

D E PARTMENTAL REC OMMENDATI ON :

The Water Department requests that your Board hear an informational workshop regarding the implications of the
Department of Water Resources (DWR) release of a draft report reprioritization of the Owens Valley Groundwater
Basin.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) requires that local agencies in groundwater basins that are
designated as medium or high priority by the DWR form Groundwater Sustainability Agencies. On August t,20t7
eleven agencies within the Owens Valley groundwater basin (Basin) entered into a Joint Powers Agreement to form the
Owens Valley Groundwater Authority (OVGA) for the purpose of creating a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The
Owens Valley is a Medium priority basin, and by 2O22 the OVGA must prepare a GSP for the lands in the basin not
owned by Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP).

ln the draft 2019 Basin Reprioritization released on April 30, the DWR recommended changing the prioritization of
the Owens Valley groundwater basin to Low Priority. Previously, the DWR proposed in 20L8 to change to the Owens
Valley Basin to High priority. The requirements under SGMA are the same for medium and high priority basins
presently, but the OVGA submitted a public comment on August 75,2OLg objecting to the DWR prioritization
procedure (attached). Specifically, the OVGA objected to a severe penalty applied for groundwater export by LADWP

from their lands that are treated as adjudicated and thus exempt from SGMA. The draft 2019 draft Basin

Reprioritization reconsidered the points assigned for groundwater export out of the Owens Valley resulting in a score
in the Low priority category. The Low priority status for the Basin is not final. Following a public comment period that
ended on May 30,2OL9, DWR will review the comments and finalize the basin prioritization approximately one
month later.

The potential implications of the DWR decision for lnyo County and how the OVGA will proceed are substantial. A
Low priority basin is not required to be managed by a groundwater authority according to a GSP, nor is it subject to
intervention by the State Water Resources Control Board. The OVGA will be confronted with several decisions for
how to proceed if the Basin status remains Low priority. OVGA staff are preparing several options described in the
attached draft staff report that range from: (1) disbanding the OVGA, (2) remaining as a groundwater authority but
discontinue preparation of the GSP until needed, (3) continuing the GPA with modifications to the Joint Powers
Agreement or Board composition, or (4) determine that the OVGA should continue and prepare a GSP voluntarily to
manage groundwater resources and provide an important public service for residents of the Owens Valley. The
workshop will evaluate the implications of the DWR decision and describe options available to the OVGA in detail.
This information will assist the Board in providing direction to OVGA representatives before the June t3,2Ot9 OVGA
meeting where this issue will be discussed.



Agenda Request
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

Member agencies of the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority

FINANCING:

N/A

DEP ART MENT H EAD SI G N ATU RE :
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received -S 5- ZBt

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county aunsel prior to submlsslon fo the board clerk.)

Approved: Date:

AUDITOFYCONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor+ontroller pior to
submlssrbn to the board clerk.)

f\ala'Approved:

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date:

APPROVALS



OTWENS VAttEY GROI,'IYDWATER AUTHORITY
Big Pine CSD - City of Bishop - Counry of Inyo - County of Mono - Eastem Sierre CSD - Indian Crcek-Wectrldge CSD - Keeler CSD -

$ierra Highlands CSD - Starlire CSD - Tri Velley Groundwater Mrnagemenr District - Wheeler Crest CSD

P,O. Bor337
135 Jscbon Str€et
Independence, CA93326

Phone: (760) 878-0ml
Fax: (760) 878-2552
www.inyowrter.org

August 15,2018

Vla U.S, Mail and Email
Trevor Joseph, Supervising Engineering Geologist
Sustainable Groundwater Management Section
Department of Water Resources
P.O. Box 942836
Sac ramento, C A 9423 6-000 I

Timothy Ross, Senior Engineering Geologist
Groundwater Section
California D€partment of Water Resources
770 Fairmont Ave, Suite 102
Glendale, CA9l203

RE: PUBLIC COMMENT - 2018 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Basin Prioritization
Process and Results

Dear Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross:

The Owens Valley Groundwator Authority (Authority) appreciatos the opportunity to comment
on the Depanment of Water Resources' (DWR) Draft 20lE Sustainable Groundwiter Management Act
Basin Prioritization (P.uft Prioritization). The Authority is a joint powers authority consisting of eleven
local public agenciesr with land and groundwater regulatory authoiity in the oweni Valley Gioundwater
Basin (Basin). The Authority is the exclusive groundwater sustainability agency (CSA) for the Basin for
purposes of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), and therefore has great interest in
DWR's process of categorizing groundwater basins. The Draft Prioritization resulted in the Basin,
including both the Owens Valley Groundwater Subbasin and the Fish Slough Subbasin, being re-
categorized ftom a medium- to a high-priority. The Authority is concemed that the Draft Prioritization
misinterprets certain SGI\4A provisions governing the treatment of adjudicated areas within basins and
evidences a fundamontal misunderstanding of the unique characteristics, water use, and management
activities occuffing in the Basin. Accordingly, the Authority respectfully provides the following
comments on the Draft Prioritization and requests that the Basin be re-categorized in a manner oonsistent
with the comments provided through this letter.

I Specifically, thcAuthority_cgnsists of thc fotlowing local governments and local public agencies: City of Bishop, County of
fryo, !9unty of Mono, Big Pinc Community Services Districl, Eastem Sierra Community Scrvices District, lndiin Creck-

lvcstridqe Commlnity Services District, Kcelcr Community Services District, Siena Highlands Community Services District,
Sturlitc Curulrrurril,y Serviucs Disl"riut, Tri-Vullcy Oourrdwutcr Mulagulrrcrrt District, und Wlrcclq Crcst Cunununity Servlccs
Dirtrict.



Mr, Joseph and Dr, Ross
RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August 15,2018
Page2 of 6

l. Consideratiorr ql'City ol'Los:Lugelerlnrl L-ADIVP Ou!-gl:.Daeultilllritqrs l'ronr Elrctllll!
Adiudicated Areas is Not Supported bv SGMA of the Draft Prioritization

The largest private landowner and water user in the Basin is the City of Los Angeles (City),
which through its Department of Water and Power (LADWP), diverts surface water and extracts
groundwater for export from the Basin to the City and its residents for municipal and domestic use.
SGI\4A provides that "[a]ny groundwater basin or portion of a groundwater basin in Inyo County
managed pursuant to the terms of the stipulated judgment in City of Los Angeles v. Board of Supervisors
of the County of Inyo, et al. (lnyo County Case No. l290Sf shall be treated as an adjudicated arpa
pursuant to this section." (Wat. Code, $ 10720.8(c)), This provision effectively exempts the City and
LADWP's water management and use activities in the Basin from SGMA's regulatory authorities. In
recognition of this exemption, the Draft Prioritization provides: 'DWR determined that SGMA
prioritization should exclude those portions of the basin that were adjudicated," and continues to explain:
"DWR evaluated the non-adjudicated portion of the basin to determine the extent that these [adjudicated]
areas have the potontial to affect groundwater management in the entire basin..." (Draft Prioritization, at
p. 4.) However, despite SGMA's exemption for adjudicated areas and DWR's determination that
prioritization should not consider activities in adjudicated areas, the Draft Prioritization re-categorizes the
Basin to high-priority based exclusively on LADWP out-of-basin transfers from properties subject to the
Long-Term Water Agreement. In short, the Draft Prioritization applies an arbitrary process not supported
by SGMA. Based on the plain language of SGMA and the Draft Prioritization, DWR should not have
considered LADWP out-of-basin hansfers when oategorizing the Basin. Accordingly, the Authority
r€quests that the Draft Prioritization process be revised so that out-of-basin transfers are only taken into
consideration ifthe transfer is not conducted pursuant to an adjudication. In the Basin, all out-of-basin
groundwater transfers are subject to the Inyo/Los Angeles Water Agreement, which under SGMA, is
considered an adjudication; therefore, the Authority requests that the Draft Prioritization not consider
LADWP's transfers when categorizing the Basin. .

Re-Categorizing the t!--u:il n!.1-Lligh:Udgtlly Sllcly Bscnuse ol'tlle Cit.t, of Lus Arr8elcs nnd
LADWP's Out-of-Basin Transtbrs i s I neo u itabl e

As explained above, SGMA exempts from its regulatory purview and requirements certain
adjudicated attas, including portions of the Basin managed pursuant to the Long-Term Water Agreement.
(See Wat. Code, $ 10720.8(c).) Were it not for the assignment of the maximum 42 points from sub-
component 8.d, based on DWR scoring the Basin would be a low-priority basin,

Against this backdrop, assigning a high priority to the Basin creates inequitable results. In the
first instance, the Draft Prioritization burdens the low-population, low-resource, low-tax base, low-water
use, sever€ly disadvantaged and disadvantaged communities of the Basin with SGMA compliance
because of the activities of a wealthy, distant, out-of-basin municipality over which SGMA provides them
no control. Also, the Draft Prioritization creates a regulatory scheme that makes the Authority, its local
agency members, and their constituents responsible for conserving groundwater for the City's benefit
without rcquiring LADWP to contribute to or participate in any way to the efforts required to comply
with SGMA's sustainability mandates. These results are simply unaoceptable to the Authority and its
member agencies, Therefore, the Authority requests that the Draft Prioritization be revised in a way that
categorizes the Basin to avoid such inequitable results.

2 Hcreinaftcr, the stipulated judgment in City of Los Angeles v, Board of Supenisors of lhe County dlnyo, et al. (tnyo County
Case No, 1290E) is refcrred to as the "Long-Term Watcr Agreement."

2



Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross
RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August 15,2018
Page 3 of6

3. The Draft Prioritization Fails to Consider All Criteria Required by Water Code Section 109.33(bt
When Re-Categorizing the Basin as a Hiefr-Prioriiv

SGMA provides that basin catogorization shall be "[p]ursuant to [Water Code] Sectionr 10933."
(Wat. Codg $ 10722.a(a).) Section 10933(b) provides: "[n prioritizing the basins and subbasins, [DWR]
shall, to the extent data are available, consider all of the following:

The population overlying the basin or subbasin,

The rato of curent and projected growth of the population overlying the basin or
subbasin.

The number of public supply wells that draw from the basin or subbasin.

The total number of wells that draw from the basin or subbasin.

The irrigated acr€age overlying the basin or subbasin.

The degree to which persons overlying the basin or subbasin rely on groundwater as their
primary source of water.

Any documented impacts on the groundwater within the basin or subbasin, including
overdraft, subsidence, saline intrusion, and other water quality degradation,

Any other information determined to be relevant by the department, including adverse
impacts on local habitat and local streamflows."

(Wat. Code, $ 10933(b).) The plain language of this provision requires DWRto consider "all of
the" criteria listed in Section 10933(b). However, the Draft Prioritization re-categorizes the Basin to
high'priority based on a single factor, specifically the out-of-basin transfers by LADWP. To be sure, the
Draft Prioritization scores the Basin according to each of these criteria. Using these criteria, the basin
would score less than 13 points and would be rated as low priority. But that exerciso is nothing more than
lip service when the Draft Prioritization cncatos a prioritization scheme that automatically results in the
Basin being categorized as a high-priority based solely on LADWP's out-of-basin transfers. This
approach violates Section 10933(b), which requires DWR to consider "all of the" above-listed factors.
(Ibid.) Moreover, this automatic categorization ofthe Basin is based on a factor not expressly listed in
Section 10933(b) but instead under the crtch-all provision of Section 10933(bXB). The Authority does
not dispute the relevancy ofconsidering groundwater transfers and exports for purposes ofcategorizing
basins, but the fact remains that the plain language of Section 10933(b) requires DWR to consider all of
the Section 10933(b) criteria.

Therefore, the Authority rcquests that the Draft Prioritization be revised so that the Basin is categorized
based on consideration ofall Section 10933(b) criteria and not a singlo, unlisted factor.

4, Trenting Croundwatcr Trsnsfcls as n Dctrimelrtal Factor Durilrg tlre Categorizntion f'roccss is
Inconsistent with SGMA and the Draft Prioritization

Automatic categorization of basins based solely on out-of-basin transfers is internally inconsistent
with SGIvIA and the Draft Prioritization. The Draft Prioritization recognizes that "The purpose of this
factor [groundwater related transfer] is not to discourage water transfers involving groundwater, which
are recognized as "one of the water management tools to enhance flexibility in the allocation and use in

I,

2.

3.

4.

5,

6.

7.

8.

3 Hereinafter, all section references are to the Water Code unless otherwise provided.



Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross

RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August I 5, 201 I
Page 4 of6

California," "But ffansfers undertaken without an adequate understanding of the changes in groundwater
levels, water budget groundwater-surface water interactions, and land subsidencg and other features
considered in a GSP, would leave the basin from which water is transferr€d and potentially adjacent
basins vulnerable to adverse impacts" (Draft Prioritization, at p. 4.). As demonstrated by the
comprehensive information submitted to DWR relatingto the Basin by Inyo County and the OVGA over
the multi'year SGMA process, the out-of-basin water transfer occuning from the adjudicated area is well
quantified and understood and not in violation of SGMA's strictures.

In other words, groundwater transfers are not intrinsically bad. However, the Draft Prioritization
only treats groundwater related transfers as negatively affecting basins and their sustainability without
any recognition of their benefit - so much so that the mere existence of a transfer automatically results in
a basin being categorized as high-priority without any considcration of the other Section 10933(b) factors
or whether those transfers are subject to an adjudication exempt from SGMA. If groundwater related
ffansfers are considered, then the prioritization process should not result in categorization without also
considering all Section 10933(b) factors and the water management benefits of transfers, including
whether: (i) the transfer is subject to SGMA; (ii) whether the transfer is adversely affecting the basin or
causing an undesirable result; and (iii) whether the transfer is increasing the likelihood or magnitude of
any other Section 10933(b) factor. In the case of the Basin, the groundwater rplated transfers that resulted
in its automatically being categorized a high-priority are not subject to SGMA because the City and
LADWP's out-of-basin transfers are sxempt from SGMA. Furthern the Draft Prioritization does not show
that the transfers will result in - or have been the cause of - any adverse effect to the Basin. Accordingly,
the Authority r€quests that the Basin be rc-categorized as a low-priority basin unless and until DWR
demonstrates that the groundwater related transfers from the Basin are, in fact, having a derimental
effect.

5. The Draft Prioritization's Use of a Elat Rate of Pumping to Categorize Basins is Arbitrary qrd
Inational

Sub-component 8,c.3 of the Draft Prioritization uses the amount of groundwater extracted from
the non-adjudicated portion of each basin with an adjudication or adjudicated area to determine whether
the basin should be categorized as a very-low priority. This determination relies on a flat rate of non-
adjudicated pumping (i.e., 9,500 AF), rather than the amount of groundwater pumped per acre used
elsewhere in the Draft Prioritization (e.g., sub.components 6.a and 8.a). Using information from
Appendix 3 of the Draft Prioritization, the Authority computed non-adjudicated pumping per non-
adjudicated acre for the Basin and then compared that result to other adjudicated basins that the Draft
Prioritization categorized as very-low priority basins because their annual pumping was less than 9,500
AF. The results are depicted below in Table l.



Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross
RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August 15,2018
Page 5 of6

TABLE 1

Non-adludiceted pumping, non-adjudicated brsin erea, and non-adjudicated pumping per non-
adjudicated acre.

In other basins, it is evident that many of the non-adjudicated areas with less than 9,500 AF of pumping
actually have far higher areal non-adjudicated pumping stress than the Basin, yet they are categorized as
very-low priority due to the arbitrary 9,500 AF threshold. Table I clearly demonstrates that relying solely
on groundwater related transfers to categorize a basin as high-priority is irrational. Accordingly, the
Authority requests that DWR revise the Draft Prioritization to consider a metric that accounts for basin
size by casting the threshold in torms of non-adjudicated pumping per non-adjudicated acre.

6. The Draft Prioritization's Estimate of Gro$ndwater Pumpinq is Incorrect and the Methods Use_d

to Determine Groundwater Pumping are Unclear

The Draft Prioritization background data provided in Appendix 3 indicate that total pumping in
the Basin is 166,298 acre-feet per year (AFY), of which 24,228 AFY is in the non-adjudicated portion of
the Basin. Accordingly, the difference between total pumping in the Basin (166,298 AFY) and pumping
in the non-adjudicated portion of the Basin (24,228 AFY) represents the amount of water pumped from
the adjudicated portion of the Basin or 142,070 AFY. The Long-Term Water Agreement requires
LADWP to share all data relevant to the Agreement, including groundwater pumping data. Over the
period between l99l and 2016, LADWP's groundwater pumping under the Long Term Water Agreement
has averaged 73,265 AFY, and ofthis amount a significant component has been for in-valley (non-
exported) agricultural and environmental use (appx. 20,000-30,000 AFY). (See Inyo County Water
Dcparhnent :2016-2017 Annual Report, available at http://www.inyowater.org/wp.
contcnUuploads/20 I 2l I 2120 I 7-AnnunlRepcrrt-ICWD-t'inal-no-appcnd ix-5 ?,pdf'. at p. 20., and the annual
rcports submitted to DWR pursuant to the adjudicatod status of the Basin, available at
https;//sgnra.water.ca.rov/adjudbasinslreport/pfeviewll05). To put this amount of pumping in context,
recharge to the Basin is estimated to be betweon220,000-271,300 AFY (Table 5, Hydrogeologic
Conceptual Model of the Owens Valley, available at
https://sgma.water.ca.gov/basinrnod/docs/download/142). The amount of actual adjudicated pumping is
roughly half of the amount estimated in the Draft Prioritization. Notwithstanding its best efforts, the
Authority was unable determine the source ofthis discrepancy because the methods used to anive at the
estimate in the Draft Prioritization are not describod in sufficient detail (e.g., https://drinc,ca.gov/ear/).
Given the arbitrary approach taken in the Draft Prioritization, DWR's failure to clearly describe its

Basln
Number

Basln/Subbacin
Name

Non-
Adjudicated
Groundwrter

Usc
(AF)

Non-
Adjudicated

Arer
(acres)

Groundwater
Pumplng per

Acre
(AF/acre)

Priority ln
Draft

Report

Priority
Without

Subcomponents
t.c.3 rnd 8.d.1

6-012.01

Owens
Valley/Owens

Valley
24,228 429,659 0.056 High Low

3-008 Los Osos 1.027 2.417 4.42 Very Low High
4-0t2 San Fernando r.025 t.474 0,70 Very Low Medium

Hieh4.013 San Gabriel 7.000 3,176 1.85 Vcry Low

8-002.0t
Upper Santa
Ana/Chino

2,553 7,1 l0 0.36 Very Low High

8-002.04
Upper Santa Ana/

Rialto-Cohon
2,349 I,158 2,03 Very Low High



Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross
RE: Public Cornment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August 15,2018
Page 6 of6

analytical approach and mcthodology to categorizing basins can only be described as arbitrary and
irational. The Authority requests that DWR revise the Draft Prioritization to incorporato the most
currently available local data.

ln conslusion, the Authority appreoiates DWR's attempt to revise the basin categorization
process, but it simply cannot support the Draft Prioritization. Its misinterpretation of SGIVIA's express
language and failure to identify, employ, and apply the most accurate and ounent data regarding
individual basins result in the Basin being categorized arbitrarily as a high-priority and inequiably burden
its local governments, agencies, and communities with the cost of conserving groundwater for the benefit
of the City of Los Angeles, LADWP, and their residents and ratepayers. This result is an unfair,
disproportionate, and wasteful imposition on the Basin's oonstituents, many of which have dedicated
substantial nesources over several decades to implement agreements and projects that demonstrate
sustainable groundwater management oan coexist with municipal, agricultural, and habitat wat€r uses.
Therofore, the Authority requests that DWR revise the Draft Prioritization in light of the comments
provided herein and strongly urges that the Basin be re-categorized in a manner consistent with the
comments provided through this letter. The Authority additionally requests that DWR provide a
transparent explanation of the rationale for any scoring criteria that deviates from the recommendations
made in this letter.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft Prioritization. If you have any questions
or comments regarding the Authority's comment letter, please contact the Authority's Executive Director,
Bob Harrington, at (760) 878-0001 or bharringtgn@inyocountv.us.

Sincerely,

4
Fred p, Chair
Owens Valley Ground

Board of Directors, Owens Valley Groundwater Authority (email only)
Anita Regmi, Department of Water Resources (email only)
Erik Ekdahl, State Water Resources Control Board (email only)

ty

cc:



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
Consent X Departmental lCorrespondence Action

E Scheduled Time for E Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

l1
fl Puotic Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Water Department

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: June Lt,20tg

SUBJECT: Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Meeting - June 13, 2019

D EPARTMENTAL REC OMMENDATI ON :

A meeting of the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority is scheduled for June t3,2019 in Bishop, California. The Water
Department requests your Board provide direction to the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority representatives.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:

ln 20t4, the State of California signed into law the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). On August L,

2017 eleven agencies within the basin entered into a joint powers agreement to form the Owens Valley Groundwater
Authority (OVGA) for the purpose of creating a groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) for the Owens Valley groundwater
basin.

The OVGA will hold its next regular meeting on June 73,2019; a draft agenda is attached. The draft agenda contains
several informational items including a presentation by the consultant preparing the GSP on progress acquiring local
data and developing a conceptual hydrologic model which are essential components of the GSP. ln addition, at the April
L8,2OL9 meeting, the OVGA Board requested a standing agenda item be added to receive updates on the activities of
the lndian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority. A final agenda and complete packet of the materials for the OVGA

meeting will be available before the June 11 lnyo Board meeting.

Two important items are included on the draft agenda for discussion: (ltem 8) implications of the Department of Water
Resources ("DWR") release of a draft report for 2OLg SGMA Basin Prioritization Process and Results ("2019 Basin

Reprioritization") and (ltem 9) determination of additional OVGA Board seats for Associates and lnterested Parties. A
workshop to discuss the implications of the Basin status in much greater detail has been requested to precede this
agenda item.

ln the draft 2019 Basin Reprioritization released on April 30, the DWR recommended changing the prioritization of
the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin to Low Priority. The Owens Valley Groundwater Basin presently is classified as

Medium priority, and non-adjudicated lands in the basin are subject to SGMA. The DWR proposed in 2018 to change
the Owens Valley Basin to High priority. The OVGA submitted a public comment on August t5,2Ot8 objecting to the
procedure followed by the DWR (attached). Specifically, the OVGA objected to a severe penalty applied for
groundwater export by LADWP from lands treated as adjudicated and exempt from SGMA. The criteria in the 2019
Basin Reprioritization reconsidered the points for out of basin transfers resulting in a score within the Low priority
category. The Low priority status for the Basin is not final. Following a public comment period that ends on May 30,
2019, DWR will review the comments and finalize the basin prioritization approximately one month later.

The potential implications of the DWR decision for the OVGA and how the Authority will proceed are substantial. A
Low priority basin is not required to be managed by a groundwater authority according to a GSP nor is it subject to
intervention by the State Water Resources Control Board. The OVGA will be presented with several options available
for how to proceed if the Basin remains Low priority ranging from; disbanding the OVGA, remaining as a
Groundwater Authority but discontinue preparation of the GSP until needed, continuing the GPA with modifications



Agenda Request
Page 2

Groundwater Authority but discontinue preparation of the GSP until needed, continuing the GPA with modifications
to the Joint Powers Agreement or Board composition, or determine that the OVGA should continue and prepare a

GSP to manage groundwater resources as an important public service for residents and environment of the Owens
Valley.

Regarding the composition of the OVGA Board, at the April 18 meeting, the OVGA polled the members to provide

direction to staff regarding decision points for membership of potential Associates and lnterested Parties that had

submitted statements of interest to serve on the OVGA Board. The results of the polling were transmitted in a
memorandum to the OVGA Board members (attached). Based on the results of the polling, staff will provide a

recommendation for Board action; however, given the uncertainty on the Basin Prioritization, the OVGA may choose
to postpone a final decision on Board composition at this time.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

City of Bishop, Mono County, Tri-Valley GWMD, lndian Creek-Westridge CSD, Wheeler Crest CSD, Big Pine CSD, Sierra

Highlands CSD, Keeler CSD

FINANCING:

N/A

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submrssion to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date: _
AUDITORYCONTROLLER

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor+ontroller prior to
submissrbn to the board clerk.)

flala.Approved

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to

submission to the board clerk.)

Date:Approved

APPROVALS

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIG NATU RE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

S oate,s- 271



OIWENS VATLEY GROUhIDWATER AUTHORITY
Big Pine CSD - City of Bishop - Counry of Inyo - County of Mono - Eastem Sierra CSD - Indian Creek-Westrldge CSD - Keeler CSD *

Sierra Highlands CSD - Starlite CSD -Tri Valley Groundwater Management District - Wheeler Crest CSD

P,O. Box 337

135 frckson $treet
Independence, CA 93525

Phone: (760) 878-0m!
Faxr (760) 878-?552

www,inyowater,org

RE:

August 15,2018

Vta U.S, Mgll q\d Email
Trevor Joseph, Supervising Engineering Geologist
Sustainable Groundwater Manag€ment Section
Department of Water Resources
P.O. Box 942836
Sacramento, CA 94236-0001

Timothy Ross, Senior Engineering Geologist
Groundwater Section
California Department of Water Resources
770 Fairmont Ave, Suite 102

Glendale, CA 91203

PUBLIC COMMENT - 2018 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Basin Prioritization
Process and Results

Dear Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross:

The Owens Valley Groundwater Authority (Authority) appreciates the opportunity to comment
on the Department of Water Resources' (DWR) Draft 2018 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
Basin Prioritization (Draft Prioritization). The Authority is a joint powers authority consisting of eleven
local public agenciesl with land and groundwater regulatory authority in the Owens Valley Croundwater
Basin (Basin). The Authority is the exclusive groundwater sustainability agency (GSA) for the Basin for
purposes of the Sustainable Croundwater Management Act (SGMA), and therefore has great interest in
DWR's process of categorizing groundwater basins. The Draft Prioritization resulted in the Basin,
including both the Owens Valley Groundwater Subbasin and the Fish Slough Subbasin, being re-
categorized ftom a medium- to a high-priority, The Authority is concerned that the Draft Prioritization
misinterprets cenain SGMA provisions goveming the treatment of adjudicated areas within basins and
evidences a fundamental misunderstanding of the unique characteristics, water use, and management
activities occuning in the Basin. Accordingly, the Authority respectfully provides the following
comments on the Draft Prioritization and rcquests that the Basin be re-categorized in a manner consistent
with the comments provided through this letter.

I Specifically, the Authority consists of the following local govemments and local public agencies; City of Bishop, County of
lnyo, County of Mono, Big Pine Community Services District, Eastem Sierra Community Services District, lndian Creek-
Westridge Community Services District Keelcr Community Services District, Siena Highlands Cornmunily Services District,
Starlitc Curruuuuity Scrviucs Diskiul,, Tri-Vulluy Ouuurlwdsr lvluuugurrrcrrl Distriel, untl Wruclur Crust Currrrnunity Sewiccs
District.



Mr, Joseph and Dr. Ross
RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August 15,2018
Page2 of 6

l. Co_nsi.dgnrtion .o_f "Cify oLLq$_Arrgeles trnd LAt)Wfl Oltt-olill.irsitt l-rulslqls llorn Exqrlrg
Adjudicated Areas is Not Suppofted b.v SCMA qr thg Draft Prioritization

The largest private landowner and water user in the Basin is the City of Los Angeles (City),
which through its Department of Water and Power (LADWP), diverts surface water and extracts
groundwater for export from the Basin to the City and its residents for municipal and domestic use.
SGMA provides that "[a]ny groundwater basin or portion of a groundwater basin in Inyo County
managed pursuant to the terms of the stipulated judgment in City of Los Angeles v. Board of Supervisors
of the County of Inyo, et al. (lnyo County Case No. 12908f shall be treated as an adjudicated area
pursuant to this section." (Wal. Code, $ 10720.8(c)), This provision effectively exempts the City and
LADWP's water management and use activiiies in the Basin from SGMA's regulatory authorities. In
recognition of this exemption, the Draft Prioritization provides: "DWR determined that SGMA
prioritization should exclude those portions of the basin that were adjudicated," and continues to explain:
"DWR evaluated the non-adjudicated portion of the basin to determine the extent that these fadjudicated]
areas have the potentialto affect groundwater management in the entire basin..." (Draft Prioritization, at
p. 4.) However, despite SGMA's exemption for adjudicated areas and DWR's determination that
prioritization should not consider activities in adjudicated areas, the Draft Prioritization re-categorizes the
Basin to high-priority based exslusively on LADWP out-of-basin transfers from properties subject to the
Long-Term Water Agreement, In short, the Draft Prioritization applies an arbitrary process not supported
by SGMA. Based on the plain language of SGMA and the Draft Prioritization, DWR should not have
considered LADWP out-of-basin transfors when categorizing the Basin. Accordingly, the Authority
requests that the Draft Prioritization process be revised so that out-of-basin transfers are only taken into
consideration ifthe transfer is not conducted pursuant to an adjudication. In the Basin, all out-of-basin
groundwater transfers are subject to the Inyo/Los Angeles Water Agreement, which under SGMA, is
considered an adjudication; therefore, the Authority requests that the Draft Prioritization not consider
LADW?'s transfers when categorizing the Basin. .

Ke-Categoridng the llnrjn-a{,ilIg,h:&jsru-$slcly llEeguse of"!lr-e flty sf Lps Anqcles nn!
LADWP's Out-of-Basin Transtbrs is lneguitable

As explained above, SCMA exempts from its regulatory purview and requirements certain
adjudicated areas, including portions of the Basin managed pursuant to the Long-Term Water Agreement.
(See Wat. Code, $ 10720.8(c).) Were it not for the assignment of the maximum 42 points from sub-
component 8.d, based on DWR scoring the Basin would be a low-priority basin.

Against this backdrop, assigning a high priority to the Basin creates inequitable results. In the
first instance, the Draft Prioritization burdens the low-population, low-resource, low-tax base, low-water
use, severely disadvantaged and disadvantaged communities of the Basin with SGMA compliance
because of the activities of a wealthy, distant, out-of-basin municipality over which SGMA provides them
no control. AIso, the Draft Prioritization creates a regulatory scheme that makes the Authority, its local
agency members, and their constituents responsible for conserving groundwater for the City's benefit
without requiring LADWP to contribute to or participate in any way to the efforts required to comply
with SCMA's sustainability mandates. These results are simply unacceptable to the Authority and its
member agencies, Therefore, the Authority requests that the Draft Prioritization be revised in a way that
categorizes the Basin to avoid such inequitable results.

2 Hereinafter, thestipulatedjudgment inCity ofLos Angeles v. Boardofsupervisors ofthe Countyoflnyo, elal. (lnyo County
Case No. 12908) is referrcd to as the "Long-Term Water Agrecmenl"

2



Mr. Joseph and Dr, Ross
RE: Public Comment - 20tB Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August I5, 2018
Page 3 of6

3. Ihe Draft Prioritization Fails to Co:ugid-gr All Criteria Requited by Water Code Section 10933(b)
When Re-Categorizing the Basin.as a High-Prioritv

SGMA provides that basin categorization shall be "[p]ursuant to [Water Code] Sectionr 10933.'
(Wat. Code, $ 10722.a(a).) Section 10933(b) provides: "ln prioritizing the basins and subbasins, IDWRJ
shall, to the extent data are available, consider all of the following:

The population overlying the basin or subbasin.

The rate of current and projected growth of the population overlying the basin or
subbasin.

The number of public supply wells that draw from the basin or subbasin,

The total number of wells that draw from the basin or subbasin.

The irrigated acreage overlying the basin or subbasin.

The degree to which persons overlying the basin or subbasin rely on groundwater as their
primary source of water.

Any documented impacts on the groundwater within the basin or subbasin, including
overdraft, subsidence, saline intrusion, and other water quality degradation,

Any other information determined to be relevant by the department, including adverse
impacts on local habitat and local streamflows."

(Wat. Code, $ 10933(b).) The plain language of this provision requires DWR to consider "all of
the" criteria listed in Section 10933(b). Howevern the Draft Prioritization re-categorizes the Basin to
high-priority based on a single factor, specifically the out-of-basin transfers by LADWP. To be sure, the

Draft Prioritization scores the Basin according to each of these criteria. Using these criteria, the basin
would score less than l3 points and would be rated as low priority. But that exercise is nothing more than
lip service when the Drat Prioritization creates a prioritization scheme that automatically results in the
Basin being categorized as a high-priority based solely on LADWP's out-of-basin transfers. This
approach violates Section 10933(b), which requires DWR to consider "all of the" above-listed factors.
(Ibid.) Moreover, this automatic categorization of the Basin is based on a factor not expressly listed in

Section 10933(b) but instead under the catch-all provision of Section 10933(bX8). The Authority does
not dispute the relevancy ofconsidering groundwater transfers and exports for purposes ofcategorizing
basins, but the fact remains that the plain language of Section t 0933(b) requires DWR to sonsider all of
the Section 10933(b) criteria.

Therefore, the Authority requests that the Draft Prioritization be revised so that the Basin is categorized
based on consideratton ofall Section 10933(b) criteria and not a single, unlisted factor.

4, "frenting Croundwater T'r&nsfets 4s n D$lri-mental Fsctor Ouring the Categorization Pro.qe$lr
lnconsistent with SGMA and $e_Dras.!flor!!iz4ia!

Automatic categorization of basins based solely on out-of-basin transfers is internally inconsistent

with SGMA and the Draft Prioritization. The Draft Prioritization recognizes that "The purpose of this
factor [groundwater related transfer] is not to discourage water transfers involving groundwater, which
are recognized as "one of the water rnanagement tools to enhance flexibility in the allocation and use in

l.

2,

3.

4,

5.

6.

7.

8.

I Hereinafter, all section references are to the Water Code unless otherwise provided.



Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross

RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results

August 15, 2018
Page 4 of6

Califomia." "But transfers undertaken without an adequate understanding of the changes in groundwater

levels, water budget, groundwater-surface water interactions, and land subsidence, and other features
considered in a GSP, would leave the basin from which water is transforred and potentially adjacent

basins vulnerable to adverse impacts" (Draft Prioritization, at p. 4.). As demonstrated by the

comprehensive information submitted to DWR relating to the Basin by tnyo County and the OVGA over
the multi-year SGMA process, the out-of-basin water transfer occuning from the adjudicated area is well
quantified and understood and not in violation of SOMA's strictures.

In other words, groundwater transfers are not intrinsically bad. However, the Draft Prioritization
only treats groundwater related transfers as negatively affecting basins and their sustainability without
any recognition of their benefit - so much so that the mere existence of a transfer automatically results in
a basin being categorized as high-priority without any consideration of the other Section 10933(b) factors
or whether those transfers are subject to an adjudication exempt from SGMA. If groundwater related
transfers are considered, then the prioritization process should not result in categorization without also
considering all Section 10933(b) factors and the water management benefits of transfers, including
whether: (i) the transfer is subject to SGMA; (ii) whether the transfer is adversely affecting the basin or
causing an undesirable result; and (iii) whether the transfer is increasing the likelihood or magnitude of
any other Section 10933(b) factor. ln the case ofthe Basin, the groundwater related transfers that resulted
in its automatically being categorized a high-priority are not subject to SGMA because the City and

LADWP's out-of-basin transfers are exempt from SCMA. Further, the Draft Prioritization does not show
that the transfers will result in - or have been the cause of - any adverse effect to the Basin. Accordingly,
the Authority requests that the Basin be re-categorized as a lowpriority basin unless and until DWR
demonstrates that the groundwater related transfers from the Basin are, in fact, having a detrimental
effect,

5. The Draft Prioritization's Use of a"Elat Rate of Purnping to Categorize Basins is Arbitrqry and

Inational

Sub-component 8.c.3 of the Draft Prioritization uses the amount of groundwater extracted from
the non-adjudicated portion of each basin with an adjudication or adjudicated area to determine whether
the basin should be categorized as a very-low priority. This determination relies on a flat rate of non-
adjudicated pumping (i.e., 9,500 AF), rather than the amount of groundwater pumped per acre used

elsewhere in the Draft Prioritization (e.g., sub-components 6.a and 8.a). Using information from
Appendix 3 of the Draft Prioritization, the Authority computed non-adjudicated pumping per non-
adudicated acre for the Basin and then compared that result to other adjudicated basins that the Draft
Prioritization categorized as very-low priority basins because their annual pumping was less than 9,500
AF. The results are depicted below in Table 1.



Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross
RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August 15,2018
Page 5 of6

TABLE I
Non-adjudicated pumping, non-rdjudicated basin nrea, and non-rdjudicrted pumping per non-

adjudlcated acre.

In other basins, it is evident that many of the non-adjudicated areas with less than 9,500 AF of pumping
actually have far higher areal non-adjudicated pumping stress than the Basin, yet they are categorized as

very-low priority due to the arbitrary 9,500 AF threshold. Table I clearly demonstrates that relying solely
on groundwater related transfers to categorize a basin as high-priority is irrational. Accordingly, the
Authority requests that DWR revise the Draft Prioritization to consider a metric that accounts for basin
size by casting the threshold in terms of non-adjudicated pumping per non-adjudicated acre.

6. The Draft Prioritization's Estimate of Groundwater Pumpinq is Incorrect and the Methods Used
to Determing Grgundwater Pumping are Unclggt

The Draft Prioritization background data provided in Appendix 3 indicate that total pumping in
the Basin is 166,298 acre-feet per year (AFY), of which 24,228 AFY is in the non-adjudicated portion of
the Basin. Accordingly, the difference between total pumping in the Basin (166,298 AFY) and pumping
in the non-adjudicated portion of the Basin (24,228 AFY) represents the amount of water pumped from
the adjudicated portion of the Basin or 142,070 AFY. The Long-Term Water Agreement requires
LADWP to share all data relevant to the Agreement, including groundwater pumping data. Over the
period between l99l and 2016, LADWP's groundwater pumping under the Long Tenn Water Agreement
has averaged 73,265 AFY, and of this amount a significant component has been for in-valley (non-

exported) agricultural and environmental use (appx. 20,000-30,000 AFY). (See Inyo County Water
D€partment :2016-2011 Annual Repoft, available at http:/lwww.in:yowater.org/:vp-
pantenUgploadq/?O12/l2l?0lT"AnnuillItepnrt-ICWD-tinnl-no-awen{lix-5-2,pllf, at p. 20., and the annual
reports submitted to DWR pursuant to the adjudicatod status of the Basin, available at
https;//sgrrrs.wster.ca.ggvlrrdjudbssinsfspglpryvieqll0S). To put this amount of pumping in context,
recharge to the Basin is estimated to be between220,A0A-271,300 AFY (Table 5, Hydrogeologic
ConceptualModelof the Owens Valley, available at

https://sgnra.water.ca.sov/bosiunod-/3gqg/download/142). The amount of actual adjudicated pumping is
roughly half of the amount estimated in the Draft Prioritization. Notwithstanding its best efforts, the
Authority was unable determine the source of this discrepancy because the methods used to anive at the
estimate in the Draft Prioritization are not described in sufficient detail(e.g., https:/ldrins,ca.gov/ear/).
Given the arbitrary approach taken in the Draft Prioritization, DWR's failure to clearly describe its

Basln
Number

Basln/Subbasin
Nrme

Non-
Adjudicated

Groundwater
Use
(A[')

Non-
Adjudicrted

Area
(acres)

Groundwater
Pumplng per

Acre
(AFlacre)

Priority in
Draft

Report

Priority
Without

Subcomponents
8.c.3 and 8.d.1

5-012.01

Owens
Valley/Owens

Valley
24,228 429,659 0.056 High Low

3.008 Los Osos 1.027 2.417 0,42 Very Low Hieh
4-0t2 San Fernando l,025 1,474 0,70 Very Low Medium

Higtr4-013 San Gabriel 7.000 3,776 1.85 Very Low

8-002.01
Upper Santa
Ana/Chino

2,553 7,1 l0 0,36 Very Low High

8-002.04
Upper Santa Ana/

Rialto-Colton
2,349 1,158 2.03 Very Low High



Mr. Joseph and Dr. Ross
RE: Public Comment - 2018 Basin Prioritization Process and Results
August 15,2018
Page 6 of6

analytical approach and methodology to categorizing basins can only be described as arbitrary and
irrational. The Authority requests that DWR revise the Draft Prioritization to incorporate the most
currently available local data.

ln conclusion, the Authority appreciates DWR's attempt to revise the basin categorization
process, but it simply cannot support the Draft Prioritization. lts misinterpretation of SGMA's express
language and failure to identiff, employ, and apply the most accurate and cunent data regarding
individual basins result in the Basin being categorized arbitrarily as a high-priority and inequitably burden
its local gov€rnments, agencies, and communities with the cost of conserving groundwater for the benefit
of the City of Los Angeles, LADWP, and their residents and ratepayers. This result is an unfair,
disproportionate, and wasteful imposition on the Basin's constituents, many of which have dedicated
substantial resources over several decades to implement agreements and projects that demonstrate
sustainable groundwater management can coexist with municipal, agricultural, and habitat water uses.

Therefore, the Authority requests that DWR revise the Draft Prioritization in light of the comments
provided herein and strongly urges that the Basin be re-categorized in a manner consistent with the
comments provided through this letter. The Authority additionally requests that DWR provide a
transparent explanation of the rationale for any scoring criteria that deviates from the recommendations
made in this letter.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft Prioritization. If you have any questions
or comments regarding the Authority's comment letter, please contact the Authority's Executive Director,
Bob Harrington, at (760) 878-0001 or bharrington@invocountv.us.

Sinceroly,

-l

cc;

Fred Chair
Owens Valley Gruund

Board of Directors, Owens Valley Groundwater Authority (email onty)
Anita Regmi, Department of Water Resources (email only)
Erik Ekdahl, State Water Resources Control Board (email only)



OWENS VAttEY GROI,JNDWATER AUTHORITY
Big Pine CSD - City of Bishop - Counry of lnyo - County of Mono - Eastern Sierua CSD - Indian Creek-Westridge CSD - Keeler CSD -

Sierra Highlands CSD - Tri Valley Groundwater Management District - Wheeler Crest CSD

P.O. Box 337

135 faclaon Street

Independence, CA 93526

April23,2019

MEMORANDUM

TO: OVGA Board Members

FROM: Aaron Steinwand, OVGA Executive Manager
Laura Piper, OVGA Board Secretary

subject: April 18, 2019 OVGA Meeting ltem#l3 -
Associate and lnterested Parties

Phone: (760) 878-0001

Fax (760) W8-25s2
www,inyowater.org

n of Board Seats for

The above item was agendized to provide direction to staff on possible options for additional
seats on the OVGA Board. Several Board members requested during the meeting that the
results of polling the members be provided once tallied. Staff has compiled the results and
present the number of members supporting each option as well as the weighted result. Keeler
CSD was absent (2 weighted votes). This agenda item was not an action of the Board, but the
results will be used to prepare staff recommendations for next OVGA meeting.

Natlve American Tribes: options 3, 4 were not acceptable to Lone pine Tribe

1A 5 members t9.7 - offer one seat to Lone Pine Tribe understanding they will be
subject to the GSP

18 4 members 18.3 - offer one seat to Lone Pine Tribe with conditions to be
contained in an additional agreement

2 O members 0.0 - Offer one seat to Lone Pine Tribe as an lnterested Party

Other Potential Associates - Mutual Water Companies

L L members 6.24- offer both seats to companies
2 6 members 27.70 - offer a seat filled by one representative for both companies
3 0 members 0.0 - offer only one company a seat
4 1 members 6.24- invite to sit on a future advisory committee
5 1 members 3.82- determine participation in stakeholder process is sufficient



lnterested Parties - State Aqencv/Srecial Dlstrlct

t L members 3.82 - offer both agencies seats
2  members 14.06-offeronlyoneagencyaseat
3 3 members 16.30 - both agencies invited to sit on a future advisory committee
4 1 members 3.82 - determine participation in stakeholder process is sufficient

lnteresteC Parties: Environmental lnterests (Sierra Club withdrew, options t and 2 no longer
applicable)

3 5 members L7,88 - offer one seat for OVC as an lnterested party

4 3 members 15.30 - invite to sit on a future advisory committee
5 1 members 3.82 - determine participation in stakeholder process is sufficient

lnterested Parties: Private Business lnterests {Rio Tinto did not respond)

L 2 members 10.06 - offer one seat for CG Roxane as an lnterested party

2 5 members 22,12- invite CG Roxane to sit on a future advisory committee
3 2 members 5.82 - determine participation in stakeholder process is sufficient

cc: OVGA staff
Potential Associates and lnterested Parties



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

lConsent XDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

n Scheduled Time for I Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

2t
n Public Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Clint G. Quilter, County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: JUNC 1 1,2019

SUBJECT: Continuation of declaration of existence of local emergency

D E PA RT M E NTAL REC O MME N DATION :
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as
the "Here lt Comes Emergency" that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions from near-record snowpack
posing extreme peril to the safety of property and persons in lnyo County.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:
During your March 28, 2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-15
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency, which has been named the Here lt Comes Emergency, in anticipation of
run-off conditions from near-record snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of property and persons in lnyo
County and which are likely beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of the County of
lnyo. During your June 27,2017 meeting, your Board took action to amend Resolution 2017-15 to recognize that the
County has moved from the Preparedness stage to the Response stage, and to include new damages and impacts that
have occurred in the operationalarea.

ln light of the massive amount of runoff that is occurring due to the unprecedented snowpack, the recommendation is that
the emergency be continued on a biweekly basis and that Resolution 2017-15 be updated as necessary, until further
evaluation of conditions are completed and staff makes the recommendation to end the emergency.

ALTERNATIVES: NIA

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: NI^

FINANCING: NIA

D EP ARTM ENT H EAD S IG N ATU RE :

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MuSt bE

reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submissrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITORYCONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to

submisslon to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submrssrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are 05



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

!Consent XDepartmental lConespondenceAction

n Scneduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

))

n Public Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Clint G. Quilter, County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: June 1 1,2019

SUBJECT: Continuation of declaration of local emergency

D E PARTME NTAL RE C OMM ENDAT ION :
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as
the "Rocky Road Emergency" that was proclaimed as the result of flooding, mud, and rock landslides and deep snow
drifts over portions of lnyo County caused by an atmospheric river weather phenomena that began January 3,2017
and continued throughout February.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
During your February 7,2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-04
declaring a local emergency, which has been named The Rocky Road Emergency, and was the result of an atmospheric
river weather phenomena that began January 3,2017 and caused flooding, mud, and rock landslides and deep snow
drifts over portions of lnyo County. Since the circumstances and conditions relating to this emergency persist, your
Board directed that the continuation of the declaration be considered on a biweekly basis. On March 7,2017, your Board
amended Resolution 2017-04 to further extend the continuation of the emergency and also add language to include
additional damages that occurred in the latter half of January and into February.

ALTERNATIWS: NIA

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: NI 

^
FINANCING: NI^

D E P A RT M E NT H E A D S'GTVA TUREJ

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submlssion to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to

submrsslon to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel seruices prior to
submlssion to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are 3t t1



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

nConsent ffDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

fl Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

2b
n Public Hearing

I lnformational

FROM: Clint G. Quilter, Clerk of the Board, County Administrator
BY: Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: JUNE 11, 2019

SUBJEGT: Approval of Board of Supervisors meeting minutes

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Request Board approve the minutes from the regular Board of
Supervisors meeting of June 4,2019.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved
the minutes as requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County's webpage,
www. invocountv. us.

ALTERNATIWS: NIA

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT: NI A

FINANCING.. N/A

DEPARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE :

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MuSt bE

reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submisslon to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AUDITORYCONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to
submlssrbn to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel servrbes pior to

submissrbn to the board clerk.)

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are
\to - o5'11



OFFICE OF THE

Tor

From:

GG:

Date:

Rer

JEFFRHOLLOWELL .I -FSHERIFF F }5
SHERIFF
INYO COUNTY, CA

"A Professional Seryice Agency"

Memorandum

Sheriff Hollowell, U/S Pritchard, Lt. Sparks, Sgt. Carter

Riannah, Administrative Assistant to the Sheriff

Board of Supervisors, CAO, Assistant to the Board

June 4, 2019

February 2019 overtime

ERIC PRITCHARD
UNDERSHERIFF

Following, please find the amount of overtime expended and overtime balances for the month
of February 2019.

Budqet # Budget Expended

022700 Sheriff General $ 4619.41

022701 Kitchen Services $ 1649.34

022710 Sheriff Safetv $ 13631 .02

022900 Jail General $ 10198.80

022910 Jail Safety $ 5315.43

Grand Total $ 35414.00

Account Director Reports are attached. lf you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Thank you

P.O. Drawer "S" (550 South Clay Street) Independence, CA 93526
Phone:760-878-0383 Fax:760-878-0389



FEBRUARYOVERTIMETOTAL: S35,414.00

Record Post Date Reference Reference Debit Credit B MTD Actual YTD Actual Encumbrance Balance Percent
BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS
TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003
5003

5003

5003

s003

GRS.

GRS.

02040DP

02050DP

02040DP

02050DP

02040DP

02050DP

o2040DP
02050DP

02040DP

02050DP

022700
022700 2t15t2019 SHERTFF

022700 311t2019 SHERIFF

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

2,726.24 2,726.24

1 ,893.17 1 ,893.17

4,619.41

617.99 617,99

1 ,031 .35 1,031.35

1,649.34

8,572.73 8,572.73

5,058.29 5,058.29

13,631 .02

6,506.76 6,506.76
3,692.04 3,692.O4

1 0,1 98.80

3,451.13 3,451.13

1,864.30 1,864.30

5,315.43

72,OOO.OO

72,000.00

72,000.00

21,605.00

21,605.00

21,605.00

320,000.00

320,000.00

320,000.00

142,500.00

142,500.OO

142,500.00

1 06,043.00

1 06,043.00

1 06,043.00

6,720.53

6,720.53

6,720.53

1,998.91

1,998.91

1,998.91

30,442.41

30,442.41

30,442.41

51,838.71

51,838.71

51.838.71

14,428.62

14,428.62

14,428.62

21 9,399.56

219,399.56
219.399.56

20,161.29

20,161.29

20,161.29

7,176.38

7,176.38

7,176.38

100,600.44

100,600.44

1 00,600.44

41,402.0O

41,402.O0

41,402.00

38,030.38

38,030.38

38,030.38

72.00

72.0O

72.OO

66.78

66.78

66.78

68.56

68.56

68.56

70.95
70.95

70.95

02270'l

022701 2t15t2019 K|TCHEN SERVTCES

022701 3t1t2019 KTTCHEN SERVTCES

022710

022710 211512019 SHERIFF-SAFETY
022710 3t1t2019 SHERTFF - SAFETY

GRS

GRS

GRS.

GRS.

022900
022900 2t15t2019
022900 3t112019

JAIL
JAIL

GRS.

GRS.

20,754.07

20,754.A7

20,754.07

101 ,098.00
1 01,098.00
101,098.00

022910

022910 2r15t2019 JA|L-SAFETY
022910 31112019 JAIL - SAFETY

GRS.

GRS.

10,559.64

10,559.64

1 0,559.64

68,012.62

68,012.62

68,012.62

64.14

64.14

64.14



SHERIFF
INYO COUNTY, CA

"A Professional Seryice Agency"

Memorandum
Sheriff Hollowell, U/S Pritchard, Lt. Sparks, Sgt. Carter

Riannah, Administrative Assistant to the Sheriff

Board of Supervisors, CAO, Assistant to the Board

June 4, 2019

March 2019 overtime

OFFICE OF THE

To:

From:

GG:

Date:

Re:

JEFF R HOLLOWELL
SHERIFF

ERIC PRITCHARD
UNDERSHERIFF

Following, please find the amount of overtime expended and overtime balances for the month
of March 2019.

Budget # Budget Expended

022700 Sheriff General $ 6511.35

022701 Kitchen Services $ 1483.66

022710 Sheriff Safety $ 39716.95

022900 Jail General $ 23800.41

022910 Jail Safety $ 16626.58

Grand Total $ 88138.95

Account Director Reports are attached. lf you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Thank you

P.O. Drawer "S" (550 South Clay Street) Independence, CA 93526
Phone:760-878-0383 Fax:760-878-0389



MARCH OVERTIME TOTAL: 88,138.95

Record Post Reference Reference Debit Credit Enc. MTD Actual YTD Actual Encumbrance Balance Percent
BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

5003

5003

5003

5003

022700

022700

022700

022700

02060DP

02070DP

02080DP

4,070.81

4,O70.81

4,070.81

4,070.8't

77.65

77.65

77.65

77.65

3t15t2019 SHERTFF

3t29t2019 SHERTFF

4t't2t2019 SHERTFF

311512019 SHERIFF - SAFEry
312912019 SHERIFF - SAFETY

4J12NO19 SHERIFF - SAFEry

GRS.

GRS.

GRS-

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

1,396.49

3,430.87

1,683.99

6,51 1.35

1,483.66

8,141.43

17,242.69

14,332.83

39,71 6.95

7,203.85

1,086.03

662.00

8,1 10.15

6,738.38

23,800.41

3,393.85

5,301.49

7,931.24

16,626.s8

1,396.49

3,430.87

1,683.99

8,141.43

17,242.69

1 4,332.83

7,203.85

1,086.03

662.00

8,1 1 0.1 5

6,738.38

3,393.85

5,301.49

7,931.24

'12,974.65

12,974.65

12,974.65

12,974.65

12,974.65

12,974.65

't'1,542.82

1't,542.82

't1,542.82

't1,542.82

'114,072.65

1't4,O72.65

'114,072.65

1't4,072.65

114,O72.65

114,072.65

79,555.44

79,555.44

79,555.44

79,555.44

16,090.48

16,090.48

16,090.48

16,090.48

5,958.32

5,958.32

5,958.32

5,958.32

73,132.70

73,132.70

73,'132.70

73,132.70

28,427.35

28,427.35

28,427.35

28,427.35

28,427.35

24,427.35

26,487.56

26,487.56

26,487.56

26,487.56

72,000.00

72,000.00

72,000.00

72,000.00

21,605.00

21,605.00

21,605.00

21,605.00

320,000.00

320,000.00

320,000.00

320,000.00

142,500.00

142,500.00

142,500.00

142,500.00

142,500.00
'142,500.00

106,043.00

106,043.00
'106,043.00

106,043.00

1,xa.o6
1 ,218.06
1,214.06

1,218.06

27,467.74

27,467.74

27 ,467.74
27,467.74

55,909.52

55,909.52

55,909.52

55,909.52

15,646.68

15,646.68

15,646.68

15,646.68

246,867.30

246,867.30

246,867.30

246,867.30

5003

5003

5003

5003

022701

022701

02270'l

022701

31 1512019 KITCHEN SERVICES

312912019 KITCHEN SERVICES

411212019 KITCHEN SERVICES

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

02060DP

02070DP

02080DP

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

346.65

620.91

516_ 10

346.65

620.91

516.10

72.42

72..42

72.42

72.42

77.'t5
77.15

77.15

77.15

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

5003

5003

5003

5003

022710

0227't0

022710
022710

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

02060DP

02070DP

02080DP

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

022900

022900

022900

022900

0229A0

022900

3t15t2019

3n?,2019
3t26t2019

u29no19
4t12t2019

JAIL

JAIL

JAIL

JAIL

JAIL

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

02060DP

02074DP

02076DP

02070DP

02080DP

80.05

80.05

80.05

80.05

80.05

80.05

022910

022910

022910

022910

311512019 JAIL. SAFETY

3N912O19 JAIL- SAFETY

411212019 JAIL- SAFETY

02060DP

02070DP

02080DP

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

75.O2

75.O2

75.O2

75.O2



SHFRIFF
INYO COUNTY, CA

"A Professional Seryice Agency"

Memorandam
Sheriff Hollowell, U/S Pritchard, Lt. Sparks, Sgt. Carter

Riannah, Administrative Assistant to the Sheriff

Board of Supervisors, CAO, Assistant to the Board

June 4, 2019

April2019 overtime

OFFICE OF THE

To:

From:

GG:

Dater

Re:

JEFF R HOLLOWELL
SHERIFF

ERIC PRITCHARD
UNDERSHERIFF

Following, please find the amount of overtime expended and overtime balances for the month
of April 2019.

Budqet # Budqet Expended

022700 Sheriff General $ 15635.38

022701 Kitchen Services $ 1806.85

022710 Sheriff Safety $ 23652.26

022900 Jail General $ 12016.04

022910 Jail Safetv $ 8255.10

Grand Total $ 61365.63

Account Director Reports are attached. lf you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Thank you

P.O. Drawer "S" (550 South Clay Street) Independence,CA93526
Phone:760-878-0383 Fax:760-878-0389



APRIL OVERTIME TOTAT: 61,365.63

Record Post Date Reference Reference Debit Credit MTD Actual YTD Actual Encumbrance Balance Percent

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

s003

s003

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

s003

s003

5003

5003

s003

02090DP

02100DP

02090DP

02100DP

02090DP

02100DP

02090DP

02100DP

02090DP

02100DP

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

12,158.00

12,158.00

12,158.00

4,715.32

4,r!5.32
4,775.32

50,202.70

50,202.70

50,202.70

19,540.01

19,s40.01

19,s40.01

77,734.57

77,738.57

77,734.57

83.11

83.11

83.11

80.95

80.95

80.9s

022700
ozzToo 4/26/2019 SHERTFF

022700 5hO/2019 SHERTFF

022900
o229OO 4126/2019 JA|L

o229OO s/r1/2019 JA|L

022970

o2z9ro 4126/2019 JA|L-SAFETY

o2291O s/7O/2O19 JA|L-SAFETY

GRS.

GRS.

EARN REG

EARN REG

2346.82
13,244.56

15,635.38

70I.96
1,104.89

1,806.85

73,r34.9I
10,517.35

23,652.26

6,236.27

5,779.77

72,076.04

3,611.58

4,643.52

8,25s.10

2386.42
!3,244.s6

707.96

1,104.89

13,r34.97

10,517.35

6,236.27

5,779.77

3,611.58

4,643.52

72,000.00

72,000.00

72,000.00

21,605.00

21,505.00

21,605.00

320,000.00

320,000.00

320,000.00

142,s00.00

142,s00.00

142,500.00

105,043.00

106,043.00

106,043.00

3,932.48

3,932.48

3,932.48

1,843.00

1,843.00

1,843.00

22,930.0O

22,930.OO

22,930.OO

8,44734
8,887.34

8,887.34

8,74A.99

8,748.99

8,74A.99

59,842.O0

59,842.00

s9,842.00

77,449.68

77,489.68

fi,449.68

269,797.30

269,797.30

269,797.30

722,959.99

122,959.99

122,959.99

48304.43

88,304.43

88,304.43

02270r
022707 4/2612019 KTTCHEN SERVTCES

o227O1 5/tO/2O19 KTTCHEN SERVTCES

022710
o227t1 4/2612019 SHERTFF-SAFETY

o227rA 5/fi12019 SHERTFF - SAFETY

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

GRS.

84.31

84.37

84.3I

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

GRS.

GRS.

EARN REG

EARN REG

86.29

86.29

86.29

43.27

43.27

43.27

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

5003

5003

5003

GRS.

GRS.



Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control
APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LTcENSE(S)

State of Califomia #aa
ABC 2n

TO: Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control
48OO STOCKDALE HWY
sTE 213
BAKERSFIELD, CA 93309
(661) 39s-273t

DISTRICT SERVING LOCATION

First Owner:
Name of Business:

Location of Business:

File Number: 606542
ReceiptNumber: 2575443
GeographicalCode: 1400
Copies Mailed Date: l:$.4ray 28,2019
Issued Date:

County:

Is Premise inside city limits?

Mailing Address:
(If different frorn
premises address)

Type oflicense(s): 20

Transferor's license/name

BAKERSFIELI)

BIG PINE PETROLEUM,INC
BIG PINE SHELL STATION

109 S MAIN ST
BrG PINE, CA 93513

INYO
No

132 RASSANI DRTVE
DAtrvrLLE, CA 94506

Census Tract '0004j00

e
6 't

)F l _.

t&t
c] .! ti
*. =-d1-g' "tr-

i.1

$+

:.r?

'::t] F- F -.
.R +i+ #r.

376005 I NIKOLAUS, DEBORAH LYNN Dropping partner: Yes "i'"X
License Type Transaction lvpe Fee lvpe
20 - Off-Sale Beer And Win PERSON-TO-PERSON TRANSFER NA
20-Off-SaleBeerAndWin ANNUALFEE NA
NA STATE FINGERPRINTS NA
NA FEDERALFINGERPRINTS NA

Master Dup

0

0

4

4

Date

05/28n9

05/28n9

05128/t9

05/28^9

Fee

$50.00

$296.00

$156.00

$96.00

Y
Y
N

N

Total $598.00

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? No
Have you ever violated any provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, or regulations of the
Department pertaining to the Act? No
Explain any "Yes" answer to the above questions on an attachment which shall be deemed part of this application.

Applicant agrees (a) that any manager employed in an on-sale licensed premises will have all the q
of a licensee, and (b) that he will not violate or cause or permit to be violated any of the provisionj
Alcoholic Beverage Control Act.

STAIE OF CALIFORNIA County of INyO Date: May 2g,2019
Underpenaltyofperjury,eachpersonwhoseslgnatueappearsbelow,certiflese.ndsays:(l) Hcisanappiicant,oroneoftheapplicants,oranexecutive
olficer.of 'rireappiicant corporatio4 named in G foregoing application, duly authorizea to mate this appt;ti*;r ,ts;;h.lf; (z) that he has read rhe
foregoingandknowsthecontentsthereofandthateachoftheibovestatemintsthereinmadearetrue;(i1 thatnop".sonotherihantheapplicantor
applicants has any direct or indirect interest in the applicant or applicant's buiness to be conducted undei the license(s) for which this appiication is made;(4) that the ransfer application or proposed transfer is not made to satisf the payment of a loan or to fulfill an agreement entered into more ttr- "i*ty 

'
(90) days preceding the day on which the_ transfq application is file wit[r the bepartment or to gain or establish i preference to or for any creditor or
transferorortodefraudorinjureanycreditorofhansferor;(5) thatthdtransferapplication may-bewithdrawnUyiittrerttreapplicantorihelicenseewith
no resulting liability to the Department.

Elfectivc July 1,2012' Revcnue end Texrtion Codc Scction 7057, authorizcs the Statc Board ofEqualization end thc Franchisc Tax Board to
shrrc taxpayer information with Deprrtment ofAlcohotic Bcvcragc Control. The Dcprrtment may suspend, rcvokc, and refuse to issuc a licensc
if the liccnsce's nrmc appcars in tbc 500 largcst trx delinquencicsiist. lBusiness and irofessions Cbde Scction 494.5.)

Applicant Name(s) Applicant Signature(s)

See 211 Signature Page

ualifications
of the

BIG PINE PETROLEUM.INC


	part 1
	part 2

